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.

Report at the close of business as of the end of fiscal year

This Report is required by law: Section 5(c}{1)}{A) of the Bank
Holding Company Act (12 U.5.C. § 1844 (c)(1)(A)); Section 8(a)
of the International Banking Act (12 U.S.C. § 3106(a)); Sections
11{a}{1), 25 and 25A of the Federal Reserve Act (12 U.8.C.
§§ 248(a)(1), 602, and 611a); Section 211.13(¢) of Regulation K
(12 C.F.R. § 211.13{c)); and Section 225.5(b) of Regulation Y (12
C.FR. § 225.5(b}) and section 10{c){2)}{H) of the Home Owners'
Loan Act. Return to the appropriate Federal Reserve Bank the
original and the number of copies specified. ;
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This report ft'Sff}] is to be filed by all top-tier bank holding co %

nies and top¥8r savings and loan holding companies orga
under U.S. 1w, and by any foreign banking organizatior
does not meet the requirements of and is not treated as a qi
ing foreign banking organization under Section 211.:
Regulation K (12 C.F.R. § 211.23). (See page one of the g¢
instructions for more detail of who must file) The Ft

" Reserve may not conduct or sponsor, and an arganization

person) is-not required to respond te, an infermation coll
unless it dlspfays a currently valid OMB control number,

NOTE: The Annual Report of Holding Companies must be signed
by one director of the top-tier holding company. This individual
should also be a senior official of the top-tier holding company. In
the event that the top-tier holding company does not have an
individual who is a senior official and is also a director, the chair-
man of the board must sign the report.

I, David W. Kemper

Date of Report (top—tner holding company s fiscal year-end):
December 31, 2013

Month f Day / Year |

Reporter's Name, Street, and Mailing Address
Commerce Bancshares, Inc.

Name of the Holding Company Directer and Official

Chairman, CEO and Director

L.egat Title of Holding Company
1000 Walnut, P.O. Box 415248

Tile of the Holding Company Director and Official
attest that the Annual Report of Holding Companies (including
the supporting attachments) for this report date has been pre-
pared in conformance with the instructions issued by the Federal
Reserve System and are true and correct to the best of my
knowledge and belief.

With respect to information regarding individuals contained in this
report, the Reporter certifies that it has the authonty to provide this
information to the Federal Reserve. The Reporfer also certifios
that it has the authority, on behalf of each individual, to consent or
object to public refease of information regarding that individual.
The Federal Reserve may assums, in the absence of a request for
confidential treatment submilted in accordance with the Board's
"Rules Regarding Availability of Information,” 12 C.A.R. Part 261,
that the Reporter and individual consent to publfic release of all

d%pcloconﬂmg that individual.

(Mailing Address of the Holding Company) Street/ P.O. Box

Kansas City MO
City State

64141
Zip Code

Physical location (if different from mailing address)

Person to whom questions about this report should be directed:
Karen Finke Assistant Controller

Name Title

B816-760-7711

Area Code f Phong Number / Extension

816-234-2369

Area Code / FAX Number

Karen.Finke@CommerceBank.com

E-rmail Address

www.commercebank.com

Signature of Ho?lng Company Director and Qfﬁcml Address (URL) for the Holding Company's web page
Date of Signature Does the reporter request confidential treaiment for any portion of this

For holding companies not registered with the SEC-
Indicate status of Annual Report to Shareholders:

[ is included with the FR Y-6 report

3 will be sent under separate cover

O is not prepared

For Federal Reserve Bank Use Only

RSSDID
ClL

submission?

D Yes Please identify the report items to whu:h this request
applies:

In accordance with the instructions on pages GEN-2
and 3, a letter Justifying the request is belng provided.

[_] The information for which confidential treatment is sought
is being submitted separately labeled "Confidential.”

H o

Public reporting burden for this Information collection is estimated to vary from 1.3 fo 101 hours per response, with an average of 5.25 hours per responsa, including time to gather and
maintain data in the required form and to review instructions and complete the information coflection. Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this cellection of
information, including suggestions for reducing this burden lo; Secratary, Board of Govemars of the Federal Reserve System, 20th and C Streets, NW, Wa:hmgton DC 20551, and Lo the

Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduclion Project (7100-02497), Washington, DC

20503, .
1272012



mailto:Karen.Finke@CommerceBank.com
http://www.commercebank.com

For Use By Tiered Holding Companies

Top-tiered holding companies must list the names, mailing address, and physical focations of each of their subsidiary holding companies

below.

CBl-Kansas, Inc,

FR Y-&
Page Z2of 2

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company

1000 Walnut, P.O. Box 419248

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company

{Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street/ P.O. Box

Kansas City MO 64141

(Mailing Address of the Subsldiary Holding Company) Street / P.O. Box

City State Zip Code

City State Zip Code

Physical location {if different from mafling address}

Physical location (if different from mailing address)

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company

Legal Titla of Subsidiary Holding Company

{Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company} Street/ P.O. Box

{Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street / P.O. Box

City State Zlp Code

City State Zip Code

Physical location {if different from mailing address)

Physical location (if diferent from mailing address)

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company

{Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street/ P.O. Box

‘{Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street/ P.O. Box'

City State Zip Code

City State .Zip Code

Physical location {if different from mailing address)

Physical jocation {if different from mailing address)

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street/ P.O. Box

{Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company} Street / P.O. Box

City State Zip Code

City State Zip Code

Physical becation {if different from mailing address)

Physical location (if different from mailing address)

122012



la, 1b.

2a.

2b.

REPORT ITEMS

Bank Holding Company Form 10-K and Annual Report:

The 2013 Commerce Bancshares, Inc. Form 10-K as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission and the Annual Report to Shareholders is included as Exhibit
laand 1b. ’

Organization Chart:

An organization chart of subsidiaries is included as Exhibit 2a.

Domestic Branch Listing:

An updated list of domestic branches is included as Exhibit 2b.

Shareholders:

Lists of shareholders of Commerce Bancshares, Inc. and sec-ond-tier bank holding
company subsidiaries are included as Exhibit 3. '

Directors and Officers;

A list of directors and officers and required information for Commerce Bancshares,
Inc. is included as Exhibit 4.

A list of directors and officers and required information for CBI-K_ansas,'lnc. is
included as Exhibit 5.




Commerce Bancshares, tnc. and Subsidianies

December 31, 2013

Commerce Bancshares, Inc.
(Parert Company)
(Kansas City, MO}

Incorporated in Missouri

|
Iffx{;’ . Second Tier BHC & Subsii™

o Barking Subs ¥, 2V #00]

CBi - Kansas, Inc. CBI insurance Company
{Kansas City, MO) (Kansas City, MO)
Incorporated in Kansas —‘ Incorporated in Arizona
CFB Partners, LLC
Commerce Bark I {Meneging member)
(Karsas City, MO} {Managed with 0% ownership)

Incorporated in Missouri

1 (Clayton, MO)
Incorporated in Missouri

Clayton Hokdings, LLC
[~ (Manager) (Kansas Ciy, MO)
Incorporated in Missouri

Clayton Financlel Corp.
(Clayton, MO)
Incorporated in Missouri

il

Clayton Reaity Corp.
{Clayton, MO)
Incorporated in Missouri

llinois Financial, LLC
H (Manager) (Peoria, tL}

Ilinois Reafty, LLC
(Manager)
(Pecria, IL)

Incorporated in Delaware

Commerte Insuranca Services, Inc.
o (Fenton, MQ)
Incorporated in Missourl

Commercs Investment Advisors, Inc.
= (Kansas City, MO)
Incorparated in Missouri

- (Kansas City, MO}
Incorporated in Missouri

Commerce Mortgage Corp.
— {Kansas City, MO)
Incorporated in Missouri

{Clayton, MO} Incorporated in Delaware

Commerce Brokerage Services, Inc. -

CFB Venture Fund 1, Inc.
{Kansas City, MO)
Incorporated in Missouri

[

CFB Venture Fund, LP.
(80% CFB Venture Fund i - limited partner,
20% CFB Partners - general partner)

{Clayton, MO} Incorporated in Delaware

CF8 Partrers il, LLC
(50% CBI - managing member)
(Kansas Cdy, MO)
Incorporated in Missour

CFB Venture Fund i1, L.P.
(42.6% CBI - imited partner

7] 20% CF8 Partners i, LLC - general pariner}

(Kansas City, MO} incorporated in Missouri

Incomporated in Detaware L

Capital For Business, Inc.
{Kamsas City, MC)
Incorporated in Missouri

CBI Equipment Financs, Inc. Note: Al companies are 100% owned except as noted.

Exhibit 2a




Results: A list of branches for your holding company: COMMERCE BANCSHARES, INC. (1049341) of KANSAS CITY, MO,

The data are as of 12/31/2013. Data reflects information that was received and processed through 01/07/2014,

1. Inthe Data Actlon column of each branch raw, enter one or more of the actions speclfied below.
2. W required, enter the date in the Effective Date column.

Actipng

OK: If the branch information Is correct, enter 'OK' in the Data Action column,
Change: if the branch Information is incorrect or incomplete, revise the data, enter 'Change’ in the Data Actlon column and the date when this Informatlon first became valid in the Effective Date column.
Close: If a branch listed was sold or closed, enter ‘Close’ In the Data Actlon column and the sale or closure date in the Effective Date column.
Delete: If a branch listed was never owned by this depository Institution, enter 'Delete’ In the Data Action ealumn.
Add: If a reportable branch is missing, insert a row, add the branch data, and enter 'Add' in the Data Action column and the opening or acquisition date in the Effective Date column.

if printing this list, you may need to adjust your page setup In MS Excel. Try using landscape orientation, page scaling, and/or legal sized paper.

Submission Procedure

When you are finished, send a saved copy to your FRB contact. See the detailed Instructions on this site for more information.

If you are e-mailing this to your FRB contact, put your institution name, city and state in the subject line of the-e-mail.

Note;

To satisfy the FR Y-10 reporting requirements, you must also submit FR Y-10 Domestic Branch Schedules for each branch with a Data Action of Change, Close, Delate, or Add,
The FR Y-10 report may be submitted in a hardcopy format or via the FR Y-10 Online application - https://y10online federaireserve gov,

* FDIC UNINUM, Office Number, and ID_RSSD columns are for reference only. VerifiGation of these values is not required.

Data’Action’ | EHective Datel|Branch Service Type {Branch ID_RSSD* [Popular Rame Street Address City State |Zip Code |County Country FOIC UNINUM®* |Office Number® |Head Office Head Office ID_RSSD* [Comments
OK Full Service [Head Office) H01050[ COMMERCE BANK 1000 WALNUT STREET KANSAS GTY MO 64106 | JACKSON UNITED STATES 17317 OJCOMMERCE BANK 501050
0K Full Service B84554| AURORA BRANCH 15305 EAST COLFAX AVENUE AURDRA <0 80011|ADAMS UNITED STATES 15480, 222|COMMERCE BANK £01050
OK Full Service 4390482 [DENVER TECH CENTER BRANCH B450 E. CRESCENT PARKWAY, SUITE 150 GREENWOOD VILLAGE |CO 80111|ARAPAHOE UNITED STATES 530032 1000[COMMERCE BANX 601050
0K Full Service 3552667|BELLEVILLE EAST BRANCH 2020 NORTH BELT EAST BELLEVILLE IL 6222157 CLAIR UNITED STATES 356750 213[COMMERCE BANK 601050
oK Full Service 1824285| BELLEVILLE WEST BRANCH 5701 WEST MAIN STREET BELLEVILLE 1L 6222657 CLAIR UNITED STATES 46659 203| COMMERCE BANK 501050
0K Full Service 3529439|OUR LADY QF SNOWS BRANCH 442 SOUTH DEMAZENQD DRIVE BELLEVILLE IL 62223 5T CLAIR UNITED STATES 465612 223| COMMERCE BANK 501050
oK Full Serviee 3750164{BLOOMINGTON AIRPORT BRANCH 2807 EAST EMPIRE STREET BLOOMINGTON 1L 61704|MCLEAN UNITED STATES 480326 231|COMMERCE BANK 501050
OK Full Service 39373%|BLOOMINGTON DOWNTOWN BRANCH 120 NORTH CENTER STREET BLOOMINGTON JiL 61701 MCLEAN UNITED STATES 579 194| COMMERCE BARK 501050
CK Full Service 2045041 | BLOOMINGTON MAIN BRANCH 1339 E EMPIRE ST BLOOMINGTON IlL £1701|MCLEAN UNITED STATES 186598 195|COMMERCE BANK 501050
QoK Full Service 3629390| CHAMPAIGN BRANCH 1015 WINDSOR RD CHAMPAIGN IIL £1821|CHAMPAIGN UNITED STATES 453160l 220|COMMERCE BANK 501050
QK Full Service 2728689| COLUMBIA CENTER BRANCH 995 COLUMBIA CTR COLUMBIA L §2236|MONROE UNITED STATES 289395/ 211|COMMERCE BANK 501050
OK Full Service 3629402 EDWARDSVILLE BRANCH 2436 TROY ROAD EDWARDSVILLE I 62025|MADISON UNITED STATES 453472 206|COMMERCE BANK 501050
OK Fulf Service 360133 | LEXINGTON BRANCH 228 WEST MAIN STREET LEXINGTON L £1753|MCLEAN UNITED STATES 7492 19E8|COMMERCE BANK 601050
OK Full Service 769240 METAMORA BRANCH ONE ENGELWOOD DRIVE METAMORA IL 61548WOODFORD UNITED STATES 603 191]COMMERCE BANK 601050
oK Full Service 2043289 NORMAL EAST BRANCH 1500 EAST COLLEGE AVENUE NORMAL IL 61761|MCLEAN UNITED STATES 201795 197|COMMERCE BANK 6501050/
QK Full Service 725349 | NORMAL UPTOWN BRANCH 104 NORTH BROADWAY NORMAL 1L 61761 MCLEAN UNITED STATES 2382 136|COMMERCE BANK 601050
oK Full Service 739748 | PEKIN BRANCH 111 NORTH SIXTH STREET PEKIN IL 61554 [ TAZEWELL UNITED STATES 2390 190|{COMMERCE BANK 601050
QK Full Service 3384550| GRAND PRAIRIE BRANCH 74D0 NORTH ORANGE PRAIRIE RQAD PEQRIA IL 61615|PEORIA UNITED STATES 445297 203|COMMERCE BANK 601050
0K Full Service 2095273 | KNOXVILLE BRANCH 2609 NORTH KNOXVILLE AVENUE PEORIA IL 651604 PEORIA UNITED STATES 201813 188|{COMMERCE BANK 601050
aK Full Service 2100472 |NORTHPOINT BRANCH 8615 NORTH KNOXVILLE AVENUE PEORIA IL 61615|PEQRIA UNITED STATES 201814 185|COMMERCE BANK 601050
OK Full Service 741545 |PEORIA MAIN BRANCH 416 MAIN STREET PEQRIA IL 61602 |PECRIA UNITED STATES 2392 1B7|COMMERCE BANK 601050
oK Full service 812342 [ROANOKE BRANCH 102 NORTH SIXTH STREET ROANDKXE L 51561 | WOODFORD UNITED STATES 10453 192|{COMMERCE BANK 601050
OK Fult Service 3334263 |SHILOH BRANCH 4400 GREEN MOUNT CROSSING DRIVE SHILOH IL 65226957 CLAIR UNITED STATES 422903 195|{COMMERCE BANK 601050
0K Fult Sarvice 34751| BONNER SPRINGS BRANCH 13010 SOUTH COMMERCIAL DRIVE BONNER SPRINGS KS 66012 | WYANDOTTE UNITED STATES 12005 5|COMMERCE BANK 601050
0K Full Service 1464618 | COLUMBUS BRANCH 137 WEST MAPLE STREET COLUMBUS KS 66725|CHERQKEE UNITED STATES B679] 165 COMMERCE BANK 601050
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Data'Actlon| |EHective Date] | Branch Service Type Branch iD_RSSD* |Popular Name Street Address City State {Zip Code [County Country FDIC UNINUM® |Office Number* |Head Office Head Office ID_RSSD* [Comments
oK Ful} Service 2169563 |DERBY BRANCH K00 NORTH ROCK ROAD AND MADISON 5T |DERBY KS 67037 |SEDGWICK UNITED STATES 263080 242| COMMERCE BANK 601050
0K Full Service 831651|EL DORADO 625 W. CENTRAL EL DORADO K5 670421BUTLER UNITED STATES |Not Required Not Required COMMERCE BANK £01050
0K Full Service 740454\GARDEN CITY 7TH & SPRUCE BRANCH 512 NORTH 7TH STREET GARDEN CITY Ks 67846 FINNEY UNITED STATES 217927 253|COMMERCE BANK 601050
oK Full Service 924955|GARDEN CITY EAST BRANCH 1601 EAST KANSAS PLAZA GARDEN CITY KS 67846 |FINNEY UNITED STATES 217928 254|COMMERCE BANK 601050
oK Full Service 925457|GARDEN CITY MAIN BRANCH 215 NORTH MAIN GARDEN CITY KS 67846 FINNEY UNITED STATES 5156 252{COMMERCE BANK 601050
oK Full Service 4523963 |HAYS DOWNTOWN 132 E 8TH STREET HAYS KS &7601|ELLIS UNITED STATES |Not Required Not Reguired COMMERCE BANK 601050
oK Full Service 860651|HAYS MAIN 2200 VINE ST HAYS KS 67601 ELLIS UNITED STATES 3211 235|COMMERCE BANK 501050
0K Full Service 2328856[HAYS STATE UNIVERSITY BRANCH 600 PARK STREET HAYS KS 57601 [ELLIS UNITED STATES 223080 234|COMMERCE BANK 501050
QK Full Service 1495603|HUTCHINSON BRANCH 101 EAST 30TH AVENUE HUTCHINSON XS 67502 |RENO UNITED STATES 42139 241|COMMERCE BANK 501050
0K Full Service 1011151|43RD AND STATE LINE BRANCH 1906 WEST 43RD AVENUE KANSAS CITY Ks 66103 fWYANDOTTE UNITED STATES 7172 Z|COMMERCE BANK 601050
oK Limited Service 1010659[RAINBOW BRANCH 4020 RAINBOW BLVD KANSAS CITY KS 66103 | WYANDOTTE UNITED STATES 224178 3[COMMERCE BANK 601050
oK Full S&rvice 3818354, COMMERCE BANK LANSING BRANCH 111 4HROAD LANSING X5 56043 | LEAVENWORTH UNITED STATES 493135 262|CCMMERCE BANK 601050
[¢14 Full Service 3288890|15TH AND WAKARLUSA BRANCH 1500 WAKARUSA DRIVE LAWRENCE Xs 56047 |DOUGLAS UNITED STATES 257784 88|COMMERCE BANK 601050
[s]4 Full Service 1420034[23RD STREET DILLONS NO. 1 BRANCH 1015 WEST 23RD STREET LAWRENCE XS 66045 |DOUGLAS UNITED STATES 249469 85|COMMERCE BANK 601050
oK Full Service 1418216|6TH STREET CILLONS BRANCH 3000 WEST 6TH STREET LAWRENCE KS 66049 | DOUGLAS UNITED STATES 249463 84| COMMERCE BANK 601050
[#).4 Full Service 15058| LAWRENCE BRANCH 955 IOWA STREET LAWRENCE KS 66044 | DOUGLAS UNITED STATES 13565 B3|COMMERCE BANK 601050
oK Full Service 3334854[UNIVERSITY QF KANSAS UNION BRANCH 1301 SAYHAWK BOULEVARD LAWRENCE KS 656045 DOUGLAS UUNITED STATES 257795 155|COMMERCE BANK 601050
oK Full Service ASS8|LEAVENWORTH BRANCH 2830 5 4TH ST LEAVENWORTH KS 66048 | LEAVENWORTH UNITED STATES 17459 4|COMMERCE BANK 601050
QK Full Service 33i56[LEAVENWORTH BROADWAY BRANCH 200 NORTH BROADWAY LEAVENWOQRTH KS 66048 |LEAVENWORTH UNITED STATES 2438139 6| COMMERCE BANK 601050
oK Full Service 2446116 NALL BRANCH 11405 NALL AVENUE LEAWOOD KS 66211 |JOHNSON UNITED STATES 2577182 42| COMMERCE BANK 601050
QoK Full Service 2295462|8TTH AND MONROVIA BRANCH 8700 MONROVIA STREET LENEXA Ks 66215 |JOHNSON UNITED STATES 257786 9Q|COMMERCE BANK 601050
oK Full Service 2612546(KU STUDENT UNION BRANCH 1700 ANDERSON AVENUE MANHATTAN KS 66506 |RILEY UNITED STATES 257789 98| COMMERCE BANK 601050
oK Full Serviee 264350 MANHATTAN BRANCH 727 POYNTZ AVENUE MANHATTAN KS 66502 |RILEY UNITED STATES 3145 91|COMMERCE BANK 601050
MANHATTAN WESTPORT COMMONS
OK Full Service 165655|BRANCH 2740 CLAFIN ROAD MANBATTAN KS 66502 |RILEY UNITED STATES 204045 52| COMMERCE BANK 601050
0K Fu!l Service 2043001 | MARTWAY BRANCH 6655 MARTWAY MISSION K5 66202 [IOHNSON UNITED STATES 2577178 1|COMMERCE BANK H01050
[#]4 Full Service 3405156(159TH AND MUR-LEN BRANCH 15910 SOUTH MUR-LEN OLATHE KS 66062 |JOHNSON UNITED STATES 447892 205|COMIMERCE BANK 601050
0K Full Service 2667881|STRANG LINE ROAD 8RANCH 11900 STRANG UNE ROAD OLATHE KS 66062 [JOHNSON UNITED STATES 257792 152|COMMERCE BANK 601050
oK Fu!l Service 334152 |WEST 135TH STREET BRANCH 16650 WEST 135TH STREET QLATHE KS 66062 [JOHNSGN UNITED STATES 16264 157|COMMERCE BANK 601050
0K Full Service 1464524 WEST DENNIS BRANCH 1105 WEST BENNIS QOLATHE K5 66061{JOHNSON UNITED STATES 256049 158|COMMERCE BANK 601050
oK Full Service 3094523[135TH & QUIVIRA BRANCH 12280 W 135TH STREET OVERLAND PARK KS 66221 [JOHNSON UNITED STATES 365208 183|COMMERCE BANK 601050
0K Full S2rvice 3923360|COLLEGE AND QUIVIRA BRANCH 11080 OAKMONT STREET QOVERLAND PARK KS 65210 [JOHNSCN UNITED STATES 493134 261|COMMERCE BANK 601050
OVERLAND PARK 127TH & ANTIOCH
QK Full Service 2700863 | BRANCH 12671 ANTIOCH ROAD OVERLAND PARK KS 662131 JOHENSON UNITED STATES 256050 159|COMMERCE BANK 601050
0K Full Service 3629493|OVERLAND PARK BRANCH £305 WEST 135TH STREET OVERLAND PARK KS 66223 |JOBNSON UNITED STATES 466228 228|COMMERCE BANK 601050
oK Full Service 527253|PITTSBURG BRANCH 100 SOUTH BROADWAY PITTSBURG KS £6762{CRAWFORD UNITED STATES 13211 167|COMMERCE BANK 501050
oK Full Service 2418%917|PITTSBURG CENTENNIAL BRANCH 310 EAST CENTENNIAL DRIVE PITTSBURG KS €6762 | CRAWFORD UNITED STATES 248159 170|COMMERCE BANK 601050
0K Full Service 404457 |PITTSBURG NORTH BRANCH 2720 NORTH BROADWAY STREET PITTSBURG KS 66762 {CRAWFORD UNITED STATES 248158 168|COMMERCE BANK 601050
QK Limited Service 3629448|PITTSBURG STATE UNIVERSITY BRANCH 302 EAST CLEVELAND STREET PITTSBURG KS E6762{CRAWFORD UNITED STATES 453473 207|COMMERCE BANK 601050
0K Full Service 2810342|CORINTH SQUARE BRANCH 4006 W B3RD 57 PRAIRIE VILLAGE Ks 66208 JOHNSON UNITED STATES 257797 160]COMMERCE BANK 501050
0K Full Service 30327195 MIDLAND BRIVE BRANCH 21800 MIDLAND DRIVE SHAWNEE KS £6218]JOHNSON UNITED STATES 360495 181]COMMERCE BANK 501050
OK Full S&rvice A16759|NIEMAN BRANCH 1100¢ SHAWNEE MISSION PKWY SHAWNEE K5 66203 |JOHNSON UNITED STATES 235510 96| COMMERCE BANK 601050
SHAWNEE MISSION PARKWAY & PFLUMM
QK Full Service 1214895|BRANCH 13501 SHAWNEE MISSION PARKWAY SHAWNEE KS$ 66216 JOHNSON UNITED STATES 235611 97JCOMMERCE BANK 501050
274 Full Service 2242916§215T & TYLER BRANCH B878 WEST 2157 STREET WICHITA KS 67205 5EDGWICK UNITED STATES 204153 243|COMMERCE BANK 6501050
934 Full Service 2624286|215T AND GROVE BRANCH 2333 E 21ST STREET WICHITA KS £7214)SEDGWICK UNITED STATES 223081 251|COMMERCE BANK 601350
oK Full Sepvice 77057|BROADWAY BRANCH 1701 5OQUTH BROADWAY WICHITA KS 57211 |SEDGWICK URITED STATES 241230 240]COMMERCE BANK 501050
GxX Full Service 377551|EAST BRANCH 6424 EAST 13TH STREET WICHITA K$ 67206]|SEDGWICK UNITED STATES 204151 23HCOMMERCE BANK 601050
QK Full Service 522354[PAVILION BRANCH 456 NORTH MAIN 5T WICHITA KS 67202 1SEDGWICK UNITED STATES 204150 236|COMMERCE BANK 601050
oK Full Service 3185216|TALLGRASS BRANCH 9620 E Z1STSTN WICHITA KS 57206|5EDGWICK UNITED STATES 223086 259{COMMERCE BANK 501050
0K Full Service B93SS[WEST BRANCH 6920 WEST CENTRAL WICHITA KS 67212|SEDGWICK UNITED STATES 204152 238|COMMERCE BANK 601050
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Data'Action] | Efective Date]| Branch Service Type Branch ID_R5SD* |Popular Name Street Address City State |Zip Code |County Country FDIC UNINUM* [Office Number* |Head Office Head Office ID_RSSD* {Comments
QK Fu!l Service 500050{WICHITA MAIN BRANCH 1551 N WATERFRONT PKWY WICHITA Ks 67206 [SEDGWICK UNITED STATES 6387 232|COMMERCE BANK 601050
QK Limited Service 3334836|WICHITA STATE UNIVERSITY BRANCH 1845 FAIRMOUNT STREET WICHITA KS 67260 |SEDGWICK UNITED STATES 204154 247)COMMERCE BANK 601050
QK Full Service 555751 |WOODLAWN BRANCH 1250 5 WCOODLAWN BLVD WICHITA KS 67218 [SEDGWICK UNITED STATES 241229 239|COMMERCE BANK 601056
OK Full Service 755243|AFFTON BRANCH 10185 GRAVOIS RD AFFTON MO 6312357 LOUIS UNITED STATES 14342 113|COMMERCE BANK 601059
OK Full Serviee 824952 ARNQLD BRANCH 5§56 JEFFCO BOULEVARD ARNOLD MO 63010 [JEFFERSON UNITED STATES 7925 132 | COMMERCE BANK 601050
OK Full Service 3150120({BELTON BRANCH 8200 EAST 17157 BELTON MO 64012 |CASS UNITED STATES 257801 172 |[COMMERCE BANK 601050
QK Full Service 1833214|7 HIGHWAY BRANCH 503 NW HIGHWAY 7 BLUE SPRINGS MO 54014 [JACKSON UNITED STATES 187968 30|COMMERCE BANK 601050
QK Full Service 574444 |BOLIVAR MAIN BRANCH 2370 SOUTH SPRINGFIELD ROAD BOUVAR MO 65613 |POLK UNITED STATES 11901 50|COMMERCE BANK 601050
OK Full Service 1360756|BONNE TERRE BRANCH 2 EAST SCHOGL STREET BONNE TERRE MO £3628|ST FRANCOIS UNITED STATES 250586 147 |CCMMERCE BANK 601050
0K Fuli Service 3287987|BRANSON FINANCIAL CENTER S00 WEST MAIN STREET BRANSON MO 65616 |TANEY UNITED STATES 228861 59]COMMERCE BANK 601050
OK Full Service 475149 CALIFORNIA BRANCH 209 EAST MAIN STREET CALIFORNIA MO 65018 |MONITEAL UNITED STATES 2994 73jCOMMERCE BANK 601050.
0K Full Service 1966859 |CAPE GIRARDEAU BRANCH 160 SOUTH BROADVIEW CAPE GIRARDEAU MO 53703 |CAPE GIRARDEAU |UNITED STATES 17239 105{COMMERCE BANK 601050
0K Fuli Service 2681896(CAPE GIRARDEAU NORTH BRANCH 180C CAPE LACROIX RD CAPE GIRARDEAU MO 63701 |CAPE GIRARDEAU |UNITED STATES 257791 151|COMMERCE BANK €01050
OK Full Service 369341 |CASSVILLE BRANCH 715 MAIN STREET CASSVILLE MO 65625 |BARRY UNITED 5TATES 1314 BO|COMMERCE BANK 601050
o] 4 Full Service 1220805 |CASSVILLE SQUTH BRANCH B9 MAIN STREET CASSVILLE MO 65625 |BARRY UNITED STATES 1904569 82|COMMERCE BANK &01050
OK Full Service 1848254 |CHESTERFIELD BRANCH 1699 CLARKSON RQAD CHESTERFIELD MO 63017|5T LOUIS UNITED STATES 254880 120[{COMMERCE BANX 601050
1050 SCHNUCKS WOODS MILL PLAZA, STE
QK Full Service 1920570 TOWN & COUNTRY BRANCH 100 CHESTERFIELD MO 6301757 LOUIS LNITED STATES 230030 143| COMMERCE BANK 501050
QK Full Service 510143|BERNADETTE DRIVE BRANCH 2000 BERMADETTE DRIVE COLUMBIA MO 65203 |BOONE LNITED STATES 257788 94| COMMERCE BANK 601050
OK Full Service 3459113 |BROADWAY SHOPS AND HWY 63 BRANCH |2609 EAST BROADWAY, SUITE 101 COLUMBLA MO 65201 |BOONE UNITED STATES 4566225 225|COMMERCE BANK 501050
QK Fuli Service 3629523 |BROWN SCHOOL BRANCH 1220 EAST BROWN SCHOOL ROAD COLUMBIA MO 65202 |BOONE UNITED STATES 462228 21%|COMMERCE BANK 601050
0K Full Service 423140|COLUMBIA 5TH & BROADWAY BRANCH 501 EAST BROADWAY COLUMBIA MO 65201 |BOONE UNITED STATES 189925 71|COMMERCE BANK 501050
0K Full Service SB85570|COLUMBIA 9TH & BROADWAY BRANCH 901 EAST BROADWAY COLUMBIA MO 65201 |BOONE UNITED STATES 527099 214|COMMERCE BANK 501050
QK Full Service 4424640 COLUMBIA BOONE LANDING BRANCH 109 NORTH KEENE STREET COLUMBIA MO 65201 |BOONE UNITED STATES |Mot Regquired Not Required COMMERCE BANK 601050
0K Full Service 4504177 COLUMBIA LENOIR SENIOR CENTER 3710 5. LENOIR ST. COLUMBIA MO 65201|BOONE UNITED STATES |[Not Required Not Required COMMERCE BANK 601050
0K Full Service 33BB0O71|EAST POINTE BRANCH 1700 EAST POINTE DR, SUITE 200 COLUMBIA MO 65201 |BOONE UNITED STATES 445852 204| COMMERCE BANK 601050
0K Fu!l Service 3459122 |HYVEE BANKING CENTER BRANCH 3100 WEST BROADWAY COLUMBIA MO 65203 |BOONE UNITED STATES 466224 224|COMMERCE BANK 601050
0K Full Service 1411649|ROCK BRIDGE BRANCH 3709 SANDMAN LANE CaLumMala -{MO 65201 | BOOKRE UNITED STATES 189924 TO|COMMERCE BANK 601050
ox Full Service 3150148|DES PERES BRANCH 11501 MANCHESTER RD DFES PERES MQ 63131 |ST LOUIS UNITED STATES 357527 175|COMMERCE BANK 601050
QK Fu!l Service 822949|DESLOGE BRANCH 1101 NORTH DESLOGE DRIVE DESLOGE MO 63601 5T FRANCOIS UNITED STATES 250585 146|COMMERCE BANK 601050
oK Fu!l Service 2836146(ELLISVILLE BRANCH 16303 TRUMAN ROAD ELLISVILLE MO 63011|5T LOUIS UNITED STATES 257799 162 | COMMERCE BANK 601050
Ox Full Service 3835276|EUREKA BRANCH 200 E FIFTH ST EUREKA MO 63025|5T LOUIS UNITED STATES 493136 263|COMMERCE BANK &01050
GK Full Service 573942| FARMINGTON BRANCH 1040 EAST KARSCH BOULEVARD FARMINGTON MO 63640|5T FRANCOIS UNITED STATES 13832 145|COMMERCE BANK 601050
OK Full Serviee 714950 FENTON BRANCH 487 OLD SMIZER MILL RCAD FENTON MO 63026(5T LOUIS UNITED STATES 5282 114|COMMERCE BANK 601050
oK Fuil Service 3802175|FESTUS BANKING CENTER BRANCH 1102 BRADLEY STREET FESTUS MQ 63028 |JEFFERSON UNITED STATES 15190 131 |COMMERCE BANK 601050
0K Full Service 899950| FESTUS TRUMAN BRANCH 1319 TRUMAN BOULEVARD FESTUS MO 63028 |IEFFERSON UNITED STATES 227218 133| COMMERCE BANK 601050
[#] Full Service 3334368(CROSS KEYS BRANCH 2900 NORTH HIGHWAY 67 FLORISSANT MO 63033|5T LOUIS UNITED STATES 248467 117|COMMERCE BANK 601050
QK Full 5ervice 1010453 | FLORISSANT BRANCH 8150 NORTH LINDBERGH FLORISSANT MO 63031|5T LOUIS UNITED STATES 13279 116|COMMERCE BANK 601050
QK Full Service 3486025|FRONTENAC GROVE BRANCH 10429 CLAYTON RD FRONTENAC MO 6313157 LOUIS UNITED STATES 466226 226)|COMMERCE BANK 601050
0K Full Service 773658|GRANDVIEW BRANCH 12829 SOUTH HIGHWAY 71 GRANDVIEW MO 64030 |JACKSON UNITED STATES 15516 15|COMMERCE BANK 601050
OK Full Service 970457[HANNIBAL 7TH & BROADWAY BRANCH 7TH & BROADWAY HANNIBAL MO 63401 |MARIGN UNITED STATES 189496 101|COMMERCE BANK 601050
oK Full Service 5555|HANNIBAL MAIN BRANCH 100 HUCK FINN SHOPPING CENTER HANNIBAL MO 63401 |MARION UNITED STATES 1092 102 COMMERCE BANK 60105¢
OK Full Service 960458 HARRISONVILLE BRANCH 1301 LOCUST HARRISCNVILLE MO 64701 |CASS UNITED STATES 203890 25|COMMERCE BANK 601050
oK Full Sarvice 904555|24 HIGHWAY BANKING CENTER 17601 EAST HIGHWAY 24 INDEPENDENCE MO 64056 JACKSON UNITED STATES 253341 17|COMMERCE BANK 601050
oK Full Service 77995%|INDEPENDENCE 39TH STREET BRANCH 18700 EAST 39TH STREET SOUTH INDEPENDENCE MO 64057 JACKSON UNITED STATES 15034 16]COMMERCE BANK 601050
0K Full Service 719852 NOLAND ROAD BRANCH 2915 SOUTH NOLAND RQAD INDEPENDENCE MO 64055 |JACKSON UNITED STATES 257781 41|COMMERCE BANK 601050
QK Full Service 1457580| OS5AGE BRANCH 300 NORTH QSAGE ST INDEPENDENCE MO 64050 JACKSON UNITED STATES 264375 29| COMMERCE BANK 601050
0K Full Service 20382883 [IACKSON BRANCH 2025 EAST JACKSON BOULEVARD JACKSON MO 63755|CAPE GIRARDEAU {UNITED STATES 189970 106|COMMERCE BANK 601050
[¢14 Full Service 931056]IDPLIN EAST BRANCH 1804 EAST 20TH STREET JOPLIN MO 64804 {JASPER UNITED STATES 190472 79| COMMERCE BANK 601050
oK Full Service B70454{10PLIN MAIN BRANCH 21t 5 MAIN STREET JQPLIN MO 64801 [JASPER UNITED STATES 1316 77|COMMERCE BANK 601050
QK Full Service 1875371|MCCLELLAND BRANCH 2980 MC CLELLAND BOULEVARD J1OPUN MO 64804 [JASPER UNITED STATES 190471 78| COMMERCE BANK 601050
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m"fﬁml Branch Service Type Branch ID_RSSD* |Popular Name Street Address City State [Zip Code [County Country FDIC UNINUM®* |Office Number* |Head Office Head Qffice ID_RSSD* [Comments
QK Full Service 876755[12TH AND CHARLOTTE BANKING CENTER  |BO4 EAST 12TH STREET KANSAS CITY MO 64106 [JACKSON UNITED STATES 187962 12|COMMERCE BANK 601050
0K Full Service 590157|89TH AND STATE LINE BRANCH 8901 STATE LINE ROAD KANSAS CITY MO 54114 [JACKSCN UNITED STATES 187965 14|COMMERCE BANK 601050
14 Full Service 7B7655|BARRY ROAD BRANCH 110 NORTH WEST BARRY ROAD KANSAS CITY MO 54155{CLAY UINITED STATES 15882 31{COMMERCE BANK 601050,
OK Full Service 597153|BLUE HILLS BRANCH 5100 TROOST AVENUE KANSAS QTY MO 54110 [JACKSON UNITED STATES 11180 19|CGMMERCE BANK 601050
QK Full Service 518058 |BROOKSIDE BRANCH 6335 BROCKSIDE PLAZA KANSAS QITY MO 64113 [JACKSON UNITED STATES 221230 22|COMMERCE BANK 601050
QK Full Service 3630051 {FUNTLOCK BRANCH 9239 NOARTHEAST HIGHWAY 152 KANSAS CITY MO 54157 |CLAY UNITED STATES 4665227 227|COMMERCE BANK 601050}
oK Full Service 1440948 |GLADSTONE BRANCH 5334 NORTHEAST ANTIOCH ROAD KANSAS CITY MO 64119 CLAY UNITED STATES 221726 39|COMMERCE BANK 601050
QK Full Service 2718279{ PLATTE COUNTY BRANCH SBO1 NORTHWEST BARRY ROAD KANSAS CITY MO 64154 |PLATTE UNITED STATES 257793 153|COMMERCE BANK 601050
0K Full $ervice 699057{PLAZA BRANCH 11B WEST 47TH STREET KANSAS CITY MO 54112 [JACKSON UNITED STATES 6274 21| COMMERCE BANK 601050
QK Full Service 753953|STATE LINE ROAD BRANCH 13441 STATE LINE ROAD KANSAS CITY MO 64145 JACKSON UNITED STATES 429274 185|COMMERCE BANK 501050
0K Full Service 4398965|ABERDEEN HEIGHTS BRANCH 575 COUCH AVENUE KIRKWOOD MG 63122 |ST LOUIS YUNITED STATES |Nat Required Not Required COMMERCE BANK 601050
oK Full Service 981154|XIRKWOOD BRANCH 300 N XIRKWOOD RD KIRKWOQOD MO 6312257 LQUIS UNITED STATES 5672 111|COMMERCE BANK 501050
QK Full Service B63054|LEBANON NORTH BRANCH 687 NCRTH JEFFERSON AVENUE LEBANON MO 65536 |LACLEDE UNITED S5TATES 189937 75|COMMERCE BANK 601050
QK Full Service 1160394 LEBANON SOUTH BRANCH 1460 SOUTH JEFFERSON AVENUE LEBANON MO 65536 |LACLEDE UNITED STATES 189539 76|COMMERCE BANK 601050
QK Full Service 925251|LEBANON WEST BRANCH 224 WEST COMMERCIAL STREET LEBANON MO 65536{LACLEDE UNITED STATES 1080 F4|COMMERCE BANK 601050
[8]4 Full Service 1414529 CHIPFMAN ROAD BRANCH 1001 NW CHIPMAN RD LEES SUMMIT MO 64081 [JACKSON UNITED STATES 187967 2B{COMMERCE BANK 601050
0K Full Service 3630060|LEES SUMMIT 150 HIGHWAY BRANCH 809 SW M-150 HIGHWAY LEES SUMMIT MO 64082 [ JACKSON UNITED STATES 463166 221|COMMERCE BANK 601050
0K Full Service 630050[LEES SUMMIT DOWNTOWN BRANCH 301 SE HIGHWAY 291 LEES SUMMIT MO 64063 | JACKSON UNITED STATES 497254 265|COMMERCE BANK 601050
QK Full Service 3150139|WOODS CHAPEL BRANCH 750 NE WOODS CHAPEL ROAD 1EES SUMMIT MO 64064 [JACKSON UNITED STATES 340840 174|COMMERCE BANX 601050
QK Full Service 821054(LIBERTY MAIN BRANCH ONE IBERTY BELL CIRCLE LIBERTY MO 64068 |CLAY UNITED STATES 6416 37|COMMERCE BANX 601050
0K Full Service 531252 MANCHESTER BRANCH 14317 MANCHESTER ROAD MANCHESTER MO 63011)57 LOUIS UNITED STATES 15138 118|COMMERCE BANK 601050
oK Full Service 748656 MARYLAND HEIGHTS BRANCH 12633 DORSETT RDAD MARYLAND HEIGHTS MO 63043 |57 LOUIS UNITED STATES 15737 119|COMMERCE BANK 601050
0K Full Service 872757 MEXICO EAST BRANCH 1015 EAST LIBERTY STREET MEXICC MO 65265 AUDRAIN UNITED STATES 189922 £2|COMMERCE BANK €01050
(=] Full Service 3230684| MEXICO MAIN BRANCH 2946 SOUTH CLARK MEXICO MO 65265 AUDRAIN UNITED STATES 12437 64 |COMMERCE BANK 601050
QK Full Service 680158 MOBERLY BANKING CENTER 1415 NORTH MORLEY MOBERLY MO 65270|RANDOLPH UNITED STATES 187815 69 |COMMERCE BANK £01050
[8].4 Full Service 1190485|NIXA BRANCH 1889 NORTH HIGHWAY CC NIXA MO 65714 |CHRISTIAN UNITED STATES 39354 53]COMMERCE BANK 601050
oK Full Service 3199343(Q'FALLON BRANCH 101 EAST ELM STREET O FALLON MO 63366 (ST CHARLES UNITED STATES 234303 142|COMMERCE BANK 601050
QK Full Service 1405031|O'FALLON DEER CREEK CROSSING BRANCH 1901 HIGHWAY K O FALLON MO 63366 |5T CHARLES UNITED STATES |Not Required Not Required COMMERCE BANK 501050
oK Full Service 1871131|0OZARK JACKSON BRANCH 1695 WEST JACKSON OZARK MO 65721 |CHRISTIAN UNITED STATES 228858 54| COMMERCE BANK 501050
0K Full Service 31350932|PARKVILLE BRANCH 9155 NW HIGHWAY 45 PARKVILLE MO 64152 {PLATTE UNITED STATES 440723 202|COMMERCE BANK 601050
oK B Full Service 2371320|PCPLAR BLUFF NORTH 67 BRANCH 2586 N WESTWOQOQD BLVD PCPLAR BLUFF MO 63901 [BUTLER UNITED STATES 189971 109|COMMERCE BANK 501050
0K Full Service 398257|PQPULAR BLUFF WEST BRANCH 1100 WEST PINE POPLAR BLUFF MO 63901 |BUTLER UNITED STATES 189968 103|COMMERCE BANK 601050]
OK Full Service 1421152 |BLUE RIDGE BRANCH 6705 BLUE RIDGE BOULEVARD RAYTOWN MO 54133 [JACKSON UNITED STATES 187966 27[COMMERCE BANK 601050
aK Full Service 401652|REPUBLIC BRANCH 605 US HIGHWAY 60 E REPUBLIC MO 65738 |GREENE UNITED STATES 10985 55|COMMERCE BANK 601050
OK Full Service 1218035|SAINT ANN BRANCH 9850 SAINT CHARLES ROCK ROAD SAINT ANN MO 653074|5T LOUIS UNITED STATES 3963G 17B[COMMERCE BANK 601050
QK Full Service 3150111/94 CROSSING BRANCH 6271 M!D RIVERS MALL DR SAINT CHARLES MO 53304 |ST CHARLES UNITED STATES 257802 173| COMMERCE BANK 601050
OK Limited Service 2735669|BREEZE PARK BRANCH 600 BREEZE PARK DRIVE SAINT CHARLES MO 63304 |ST CHARLES UNITED STATES 257794 154|COMMERCE BANK 601050
QK Full Service 2347482 [SAINT CHARLES BRANCH 1101 15T CAPITOL DRIVE SAINT CHARLES MO 53301 ST CHARLES UNITED STATES 281869 179|COMMERCE BANK 6801050
OK Full Service 405856|SAINT CHARLES HERITAGE BRANCH 2700 SOUTH HIGHWAY 94 SAINT CHARLES MO 63301 |ST CHARLES UNITED STATES 230301 139|COMMERCE BANK &01050
0K Full Service 357B52|SAINT JOSEPH ASHLAND BRANCH 3303 ASHLAND AVENUE SAINT JOSEPH MO 54506 |BUCHANAN UNITED STATES 203919 45|COMMERCE BANK 601050
0K Full Service 356257|SAINT JOSEPH DOWNTOWN BRANCH 328 FELLX STREET SAINT JOSEPH MO 54501 |BUCHANAN UNITED STATES 5480 43| COMMERCE BANK 601050
0¥ Full Service 353658(SAINT JOSEPH FREDERICK BRANCH 3606 FREDERICK AVENUE SAINT JOSEPH MO 64506 |BUCHANAN UNITED STATES 218739 44|COMMERCE BANK 601050
0K Full Service 481056|CHIPPEWA BRANCH 6317 CHIPPEWA STREET SAINT LOUIS MO 63109 ST LOUIS CITY UNITED STATES 187876 130|COMMERCE BANK 601050
8.4 Full Service 2454997|CHOUTEAL BRANCH 40193 CHOUTEAU AVENUE SAINT LOLNS MO 63110|ST LQUIS CITY UNTTED STATES 723 127|COMMERCE BANK 601050
QK Full Service 2689650|CRESTWOOD BRANCH 10010 WATSON ROAD SAINT LOLIS MO 63126|5T LOWIS UNITED STATES 261870 1B0|COMMERCE BANK 601050
oK Full Service 1999192 | CREVE COEUR BRANCH 12275 OUVE BLVD SAINT LOUIS MG 653141|5T LOUIS UNITED STATES 230031 144| COMMERCE BANK 601050
CK Full Service 295945|DEMUN BRANCH 6383 CLAYTON ROAD SAINT LOLIS MO 53117 [5T LOUIS UNITED STATES 219118 112 |COMMERCE BANK 601050
oK Full Service 647254 FORSYTH BRANCH 8000 FORSYTH BOULEVARD SAINT LOUIS MO 653105|ST LOUIS UNITED STATES 945 10Q{ COMMERCE BANK 601050
oK Full Service 2455015[METROPOLITAN SQUARE BRANCH 211 NORTH BROADWAY SAINT LOUIS MO 53102 |5T LOULS CITY UNITED STATES 230028 136|COMMERCE BANK 601050
0K Full Service 191850|NATURAL BRIDGE BRANCH 4401 NATURAL BRIDGE SAINT LOUIS MO 63115|5T LOUIS CITY UNITED STATES 187845 128{COMMERCE BANK 601050
OK Full Service 37154 RICHMOND HEIGHTS BRANCH 7910 CLAYTON ROAD SAINT LOUIS MO 63117|ST LOUIS UNITED STATES 709 121{COMMERCE BANK 601050
Pagedof 5




Data Action]|Effective Date]| Branch Service Type Branch ID_RSSD* |Popular Name Street Address Clty State |Zip Cade [County Country FDIC UNINUM* |Offlce Number* IHead Office Head Office ID_RSSD* [Comments
QK Full Service 32875950(SOUTH COUNTY MARKETPLACE BRANCH 4100 RUSTY ROAD SAINT LOUIS MO 63128(5T LOUIS UNITED STATES 430776 185|COMMERCE BANX 601050
oK Full Service B0S450|SPANISH LAKE BRANCH 1626 PATTERN DRIVE SAINT LQUIS MO 63138(ST LOUIS UNITED STATES 14728 122|COMMERCE BANK 601050
QK Futll Service 1440135|TELEGRAPH ROAD BRANCH 5630 TELEGRAPH ROQAD SAINT LOUIS MO 63129|5T LOUIS UNITED STATES 230029 137|COMMERCE BANK 601050
OK Full Service 3334377|TESSQON FERRY BRANCH 12856 TESSON FERRY RDAD SAINT LOUIS MO 63128]5T LOUIS UNITED STATES 437778 201{COMMERCE BANK 631050
QK Full Service 471954 TOWER GROVE BRANCH 3134 5 GRAND BLVD SAINT LOUIS MO 63118{5T LOUIS CITY UNITED STATES 729 129|COMMERCE BANK 601050
8] 4 Full Service 214852 |UNIVERSITY CITY BRANCH 6630 DELMAR BOULEVARD SAINT LOU1S MO 6313Q(5T LOUIS UNITED STATES 9444/ 123[COMMERCE BANK 601050.
QK Full Service 3334827|SAINT PETERS MID RIVERS MALL BRANCH 435 MID RIVERS MALL DRIVE SAINT PETERS MO 63376]5T CHARLES UNITED STATES 8641 138|COMMERCE BANK 601050
0K Full Service 371054 |BATTLEFIELD BRANCH 1345 EAST BATTLEFIELD SPRINGFIELD MO 65804 |GREENE UNITED STATES 8263 46| COMMERCE BANK 601050,
Ox Full Service 289850|GLENSTONE BRANCH 616 NORTH GLENSTONE AVENUE SPRINGFIELD MO 65802 |GREENE UNITED STATES 228852 47| COMMERCE BANK 601050
[9; 4 Full Service 3287978 KANSAS EXPRESSWAY BRANCH 2616 NORTH XANSAS EXPRESSWAY SPRINGFIELD MO £5803|GREENE UNITED $TATES 358374 176{COMMERCE BANK 501050
ox Full Service 2836137 MISS0UR) STATE UNION BRANCH 901 SOUTH NATIONAL AVENUE SPRINGFIEL\D MO 65897]GREENE UNITED STATES 257800 171{COMMERCE BANK 601050)
1.9 Limited Service 615157|SPRINGFIELD BOONVILLE DRIVE-IN BRANCH |1626 NORTH BOONVILLE AVENUE SPRINGFIELD MO 65803 |GREENE UNITED STATES 521673 266)COMMERCE BANK 601050
oK Full Service 240150]|SPRINGFIELD REPUBLIC ROAD BRANCH 2770 WEST REPUBLIC ROAD SPRINGFIELD MO 65807 |GREENE UNITED STATES 235509 S7|COMMERCE BANK 601050
oK Full Service 1168112|SUNSHINE BRANCH 3301 EAST SUNSHINE SPRINGFIELD MG 65804 |GREENE UNITED STATES 228856 52|COMMERCE BANK 601050
OK Full Service 4504186|FRIENDSHIP VILLAGE 12502 VILLAGE CIRCLE DRIVE SUNSET HILLS MG 6312757 LOUIS UNITED STATES |Not Required Not Required COMMERCE BANK 601050
513 Full Service 499659 |TIPTON BRANCH 232 SOUTH OSAGE AVENUE TIPTON MO 65081 |MONITEAU UNITED STATES 5477 67| COMMERCE BANK 601050
OK Full Service 3629934{TWIN OAKS BRANCH 558 MERAMEC STATION ROAD VALLEY PARK MO 6308857 LOULS UNITED STATES 453474, 208|COMMERCE BANK 601050
0K Full Service 3150157|WEBR CITY BRANCH 1209 5 MADISON 5T WEBS CITY MO 64870 |JASPER UNITED STATES 358932 177 COMMERCE BANK 601050
[s] 4 Full Service 1386895|LACLEDE QAKS MANOR BRANCH 701§ LACLEDE STATION RC § WEBSTER GROVES MO 63119|5T LOUIS UNITED STATES 230027 135|COMMERCE BANK 601050
0K Full Service 383356/ WEBSTER GROVES MAIN BRANCH 8050 BIG BEND BOULEVARD WEBSTER GROVES MO 63119 5T LOUIS UNITED STATES 11420 124| COMMERCE BANK 6531050,
OK Full Service 445553 WENTZVILLE BANKING CENTER BRANCH 1594 WENTZVILLE PARKWAY WENTZVILLE MO 63385 |5T CHARLES UNITED STATES 189972 149|COMMERCE BANK 601050,
OK Full Service 319355|WILLARD BRANCH 203 WEST JACKSON STREET WILLARD MO 65781 |GREENE UNITED STATES 13347 49| COMMERCE BANK 601050
QK Full Service 4372677 OKLAHCOMA CITY BRANCH 1003 NW §3RD STREET, SUITE 110 OKLAHOMA, CITY QK 73116 |OKLAHOMA UNITED STATES |Not Required Not Required COMMERCE BANK 601050
QK Full Service 3043651|SUMMIT BANK BRANCH 5314 SOUTH YALE, SUITE 100 TULSA oK 74135|TULSA UNITED STATES |Mat Required Not Required COMMERCE BANK 601050
OK Full Service 2667911 |TULSA EAST BRANCH 65130 EAST B1ST STREET TULSA [#).4 74137 {TULSA UNITED STATES 61529 217)COMMERCE BANK 601050
QK Full Service 3022517|UTICA SQUARE BRANCH 2054 UTICA SQUARE TULSA X [74114-18]TULSA UNITED STATES 360773 218|COMMERCE BANK 601050,
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Exhibit 3

BHC #: 87
RSSD #: 1049341

REPORT ITEM 3
LIST OF BHC SHAREHOLDERS FOR 2013

COMMERCE BANCSHARES, INC.

(1) List each shareholder, of record, that directly or indirectly owns, controls, or holds with
power to vote 5 percent or more of any class of voting securities of the bank holding
company. In addition, list each person or entity that holds options, warrants or other
securities or rights that can be converted into or exercised for voting securities, which, in
their aggregate, and including voting securities currently held, would equal or exceed 5
percent of any such class of voting securities.

As of December 31, 2013
COUNTRY OF NUMBER -
CITIZENSHIP OF PERCENTAGE
NAME AND ADDRESS OR SHARES OF

(CITY & STATE/COUNTRY) INCORPORATION OWNED . OWNERSHIP
Commerce Bank USA 9,635,679 10.0%
Kansas City, Missouri/lUSA
State Street Corporation USA 6,322,501 6.6%
Boston, Massachusetts/USA
American Century Investment USA 5,640,056 5.9%
Management, Inc.,

American Century Companies, Inc. and

Stowers Institute for Medical Research

Kansas City, Missouri/USA

The Vanguard Group USA 5,220,888 5.4%
Malvern, Pennsylvania/lUSA

BlackRock, Inc. USA 5,216,409 5.4%
New York, New York/USA

(2) List any shareholder not listed in section 3(1) above that owned or controlled five percent

or more of any class of voting securities in the bank holding company during the fiscal
year for which the report is being filed. In addition, list each person or entity that held
options, warrants or other securities or rights that could have been converted into or
exercised for voting securities, which, in their aggregate, and including voting securities
held, would have equaled or exceeded five percent of any such class of voting securities.

None



(1)

BHC #: 2633
RSSD #: 1056835

REPORT ITEM 3
LIST OF BHC SHAREHOLDERS FOR 2013

CBI-KANSAS, INC.

List each shareholder, of record, that directly or indirectly owns, controls, or holds with
power to vote five percent or more of any class of voting securities of the bank holding
company. In addition, list each person or entity that holds options, warrants or other
securities or rights that can be converted into or exercised for voting securities, which, in
their aggregate, and including voting securities currently held, would equal or exceed five
percent of any such class of voting securities.

As of December 31, 2013

COUNTRY OF NUMBER
CITIZENSHIP OF PERCENTAGE

NAME AND ADDRESS OR SHARES OF
(CITY & STATE/COUNTRY) INCORPORATION OWNED OWNERSHIP

Commerce Bancshares, Inc. USA 1,045 100%
Kansas City, MO/USA

€3

List any shareholder not listed in section 3(1) above that owned or controlled five percent
or more of any class of voting securities in the bank holding company during the fiscal
year for which the report is being filed. In addition, list each person or entity that held
options, warrants or other securities or rights that could have been converted into or
exercised for voting securities, which, in their aggregate, and including voting securities
held, would have equaled or exceeded five percent of any such class of voting securities.

(
None



Exhibit 4
COMMERCE BANCSHARES, INC.
Director
12/31/2013

(1)  Name and address (city and state/country): Terry D. Bassham
Kansas City, Missouri/USA

(2) Principal occupation, if other than with the holding company organization:

Chairman, CEO, and President of Great Plains Energy, KCP&I. and KCP&L Greater
Missouri Operations

(3) Title or position with:

(a)  the bank holding company: Director

i

(b)  all direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company: None

(c) any other company in which the person is a director, trustee, partner, or executive
officer:

Director of Great Plains Energy, KCP&L and KCP&L Greater Missouri
Operations
Treasurer of Greater Kansas City Chamber of Commerce

(4) Percentage of each class of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to
vote in:

() the bank holding company: 0.0008%
(b)  direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company: 0%
(c) any other company, if 25 percent or more of its outstanding voting securities or
proportionate interest in a partnership are held. (list the name of the company and

the percentage of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to vote.)

" N/A




(1

2

()

COMMERCE BANCSHARES, INC.
Director
12/31/2013

Name and address (city and state/country): John R. Capps
St. Louis, Missouri/USA

Principal occupation, if other than with the holding company organization:

Vice President of BCJ Motors, Inc.

Title or position with:

(@ the bank holciing company: Director

(b)  all direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company:  None

(c) any other company in which the person is a director, trustee, partner, or executive
officer:

President/Secretary of Volkswagen Mid-America, Inc.

Manager of National Car Credit L.L.C.

Vice-President/Secretary of Capitol Coal & Coke Co. & Subsidiaries
Secretary of Capplanco Four, Inc.

Secretary of Capplanco Five, Inc.

Secretary of Capplanco Seven, Inc.

President/Director of Capplanco Nine, Inc.

Member of Capplanco Twelve, L.L.C.

President/Director of Capitol Export Corporation of MO, Inc.

Vice President/Secretary/Director of Capitol Resources Lasher, Inc.
President/Director of Dealer Network, Inc.

Vice President of Suntrup Kia of West County

Percentage of each class of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to
vote in: '

(a) the bank holding company: 0.02%

(b) direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company: 0%

c any other company, if 25 percent or more of its outstanding voting securities or
y P g g
proportionate interest in a partnership are held. (list the name of the company and

the percentage of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to vote.

BCJ Motors, Inc. — 33%




(1)

@

(3)

(4)

COMMERCE BANCSHARES, INC.
Director
12/31/2013

Name and address (city and state/country): Earl H. Devanny, 111
Greenwood Village, Colorado/USA

Principal occupation, if other than with the holding company organization:
Business Executive
Title or position with:

(a) the bank holding company:  Director

~(b)  all direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company:  None

(c) any other company in which the person is a director, trustee, partner, or executive
officer: '

Retired Chairman, CEO and President of TriZetto Group

Percentage of each class of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to
vote in:

(a) the bank holding company: 0.004%
(b)  direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company: 0%
(c) any other company, if 25 percent or more of its outstanding voting securities or

proportionate interest in a partnership are held. (list the name of the company and
the percentage of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to vote.)

N/A
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COMMERCE BANCSHARES, INC.
Director
12/31/2013

Name and address (city and state/country): 'W. Thomas Grant, II
Shawnee Mission, Kansas/USA

Principal occupation, if other than with the holding company organization:
Business Executive

Title or position with:

(a the bank holding company: Director

(b) all direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company: None

(©) any other company in which the person is a director, trustee, partner, or executive
officer:

President and Director, SelectQuote Senior Insurance Services

Percentage of each class of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to
vote in:

(a) the bank holding company:  0.02%

(b) direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company: 0%

(c) any other company, if 25 percent or more of its outstanding voting securities or
proportionate interest in a partnership are held. (list the name of the company and

the percentage of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to vote.)

SelectQuote — 33%
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COMMERCE BANCSHARES, INC.
Director
12/31/2013

Name and address (city and state/country): James B. Hebenstreit

: Kansas City, Missouri/USA
Principal occupatiqn, if other than with the holding company organization:
Business Executive
Title or position with:
(a)  the bank holding company: Director
(b) all direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company: None

(c) any other company in which the person is a director, trustee, partner, or executive
officer:

Chief Executive Officer, President and Director of Bartlett and Company
Trustee of Naval Postgraduate School Foundation

Percentage of each class of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to
vote in:

(a) the bank holding company: 0.20%
(b)  direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company: 0%
(c) ‘ any other company, if 25 percent or more of its outstanding voting securities or

proportionate interest in a partnership are held. (list the name of the company and
the percentage of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to vote.)

N/A
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COMMERCE BANCSHARES, INC.
Director
12/31/2013

Name and address (city and state/country): David W. Kemper
St. Louis, Missouri/USA

Principal occupation, if other than with the holding company organization: N/A
Title or position with:

(a) the bank holding company:

| Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and Director

(b) all direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company:

Director of Capital for Business, Inc.
Director of CFB Venture Fund I, Inc.
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, and Director of Commerce Bank

{c) any other company in which the person is a director, trustee, partner, or executive
officer:

Director of The Commerce Bancshares Foundation
Director of Tower Properties Company

Director of The Crawford Group, Inc.

Adpvisory Director of Bunge North America
Director of Washington University in St. Louis
Director of Missouri Botanical Garden

Director of St. Louis Art Museum

Director of Donald Danforth Plant Science Center

Percentage of each class of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to
vote in:

(a) the bank holding company: 2.94%
(b)  direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company: 0%
(c) any other company, if 25 percent or more of its outstanding voting securities or

proportionate interest in a partnership are held. (list the name of the company and
the percentage of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to vote.)

N/A



COMMERCE BANCSHARES, INC.
Director
12/31/2013

(1} Name and address (city and state/country): Jonathan M.-Kemper
Kansas City, Missouri/USA

(2)  Principal occupation, if other than with the holding company organization: N/A
3) ”l.‘itle or position with:

(a)  the bank holding company: Vice Chairman and Director

(b) all direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company;

President and Treasurer of CBI-Kansas, Inc.
Director of Commerce Mortgage Corp.
Vice Chairman and Director of Commerce Bank

(c) . any other company in which the person is a director, trustee, partner, or executive
officer:

Vice President, Assistant Secretary, and Director of
The Commerce Bancshares Foundation
Chairman of Tower Properties Company
Board Member of Downtown Council
President and Trustee of the Kansas City Public Library Board
Co-Trustee of William T. Kemper Foundation
Board of Trustees -- Midwest Research Institute
Trustee of Kansas City Library Foundation (ex officio)
Trustec of Newberry Library

(4)  Percentage of each class of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to
vote in:

(a) the bank holding company: 2.22%

(b) direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company: 0%

(c) any other company, if 25 percent or more of its cutstanding voting securities or
proportionate interest in a partnership are held. (List the name of the company

and the percentage of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to
vote.) :

N/A




(D

@)

()

COMMERCE BANCSHARES, INC.
Director
12/31.2013

Name and address (city and state/country): Terry O. Meek

Springfield, Missouri/USA
Principal occupation, if other than with the holding company organization:
Retail Lumber Executive
Title or position with:
(a)  the bank holding company: Director

(b)  all direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company: None

(c) any other company in which the person is a director, trustee, partner, or executive

officer:

President/Director, Meek Lumber Yard, Inc.

President/Director, Builders Loan Company

Vice President/Director, C.C.M. Corporation

Vice President/Director, Cha-Dor Realty

President/Director, Charles C. Meek Lumber Company of Doniphan
Vice President/Director, Chas. C. Meek Lumber Company of Branson

Vice President/Director, Chas. C. Meek Lumber Company of Carson City

President/Director, Chas. C. Meek Lumber Company of Poplar Bluff
Director, Chassie Corporation

Vice President/Director, Enterprise Realty

Trustee, Meek Charitable Trust

President/Director, Meek Lumber Co.

Trustee, Meek Lumber Co. Retirement Savings Plan
President/Director, Sunshine Realty Corporation
Director, Triple M Corp. — Chico

Vice President, Trymeek Corporation

Vice President/Director, Valley Builders Service
Vice President/Director, WBC Lumber Corporation

Vice President/Director, Western Buyers
Vice President/Director, Wholesale Lumber and Materials Co.
President/Director, Wholesale Supply Company

Vice President, Wil-C-Meek Corporation
President/Director, WLM Lumber Corporation
President/Director, High Road Property Owner Association
Partner, First Nevada Partnership

Partner, Foxgrape Plaza Partnership

-8-
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Terry O. Meek (continued)

Partner, Jefferson Financial Partnership
Partner, Quest Capital Alliance, L.L.C.
Partner, Quest Capital Alliance 11, L.L.C.
Manager, CAMM Farms, LLC

Manager, Meek Family, LLC

Manager, Modern Building Components, LLC
Manager, Fremont, LLC

Manager, Sycamore, LLC

Partner, Mulroy, LL.C

Employer, Charles C. Meek Lumber Co.

Percentage of each class of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to
vote in:

(a) the bank holding company:  0.06%
(b)  direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company: 0%

(c) any other company, if 25 percent or more of its outstanding voting securities or
proportionate interest in a partnership are held. (list the name of the company and
the percentage of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to vote.)

All Controlled -- 100%

C.C.M. Corporation

Chas. C. Meek Lumber Company of Carson City
First Nevada Partnership

Foxgrape Plaza Partnership

Cha-Dor Realty

Triple M Corp. — Chico

Valley Builders Service

Western Buyers

Meek Lumber Yard, Inc.

Builders Loan Company

Charles C. Meek Lumber Company of Doniphan
Chas. C. Meek Lumber Co. of Poplar Bluff
Trymeek Corporation

Enterprise Realty

Chas. C. Meek Lumber Company of Branson
Wholesale Lumber and Materials Co.
Wholesale Supply Company

Jetferson Financial Partnership

Chassie Corporation

Wil-C-Meek Corporation

Meek Charitable Trust




Terry O. Meek (continued)

Sycamore, LLC .

CAMM Farms, LLC

Meek Family, LLC

Modern Building Components, LLC
Fremont, LLC

Mulroy, LLC
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COMMERCE BANCSHARES, INC.
Director
12/31/2013

* Name and address (city and state/country): Benjamin F. Rassieur, III

St. Louis, Missouri/USA
Principal occupation, if other than with the holding company organization:
President of Paulo Products Company
Title or position with:
(a) the bank holding company: Director
(b) all direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company: None .

(c) any other company in which the person is a director, trustee, partner, or executive
officer:

None

Percentage of each class of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to
vote in:

(a) the bank holding company: 0.02%

(b) direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company: 0%

(c) any other company, if 25 percent or more of its outstanding voting securities or
proportionate interest in a partnership are held. (list the name of the company and
the percentage of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to vote.)

Paulo Products Company — 30%
Tee’s Golf Grill LLC — 50%

Tee’s Bar Holdings LLC — 50% _
Tee’s Real Estate Holdings LLC — 50%

-11-
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COMMERCE BANCSHARES, INC.
Director
12/31/2013

Name and address (city and state/country): Todd R. Schnuck
St. Louis, Missouri/USA

Principal occupation, if other than with the holding company organization:
President and Chief Operating Officer — Schnuck Markets, Inc.

Title or position with:

(a) the bank holding company: Directér

(by all dire-ct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company:  None

(c) any other company in which the person is a director, trustee, partner, or executive
officer: ‘

Vice President of Doned, Inc.

Vice President of SPLP, Inc. ‘ :
Vice President of The DESCO Group, Inc. -
Vice President of Leastup Corporation

Manager of SM Properties 2000, LLC

Manager of SM Properties Edwardsville, LL.C

Manager of SM Properties Independence, LLC

Manager of SM Properties IV, LLC

Manager of SM Properties VIi, LLC

Manager of Kirkwood Commons, LLC

Manager of TDG Cash Management, LLC

Manager of SM Properties Lake St. Louis, LLC

Manager of 25 N. Brentwood Holdings, LL.C

Manager of Riverdale CEC, LLC

Manager of SM Properties Waterloo, LLC

Manager of GST Development Fund, LLC

Manager of SM Properties Darmstadt, LLC

Manager of Spirit Fund, LLC

Manager of TDG Development, LL.C

Manager of SM Properties North Peoria, LLC

Manager of SM Properties 2000-Richmond, LLC

Manager of DIC Dorsett Funding, LL.C ‘
Manager of Blind Luck, LLC ‘
Manager/Member of Scotodd, LL.C




Todd R. Schnuck (continued)

(4)

Percentage of each class of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to
vote in:

(a) the bank holding company: 0.004%

(b)  direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company: (0%

(©) any other company, if 25 percent or more of its outstanding voting securities or
proportionate interest in a partnership are held. (list the name of the company and

the percentage of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to vote.)

N/A
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COMMERCE BANCSHARES, INC.
Director
12/31/2013

Name and address (city and state/country): Andrew C. Taylor

St. Louis County, Missouri/USA
Principal occupation, if other than with the holding company organization:
Chairman and CEO of Enterprise Holdings, Inc.
T‘itle or position with:
(a) the bank holding company: Director

(b)  all direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company: None

(c) any other company in which the person is a director, trustee, partner, or executive

officer;

Chairman and CEO of The Crawford Group, Inc.
Director of Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.
Chairman and CEO of CynCast, Inc.
Director of ELCO Chevrolet .
Chairman of Centric Group, LLC
Life Trustee of Missouri Botanical Garden
Trustee of St. Louis Symphony Orchestra
Trustee of Naval Aviation Historical Foundation
Trustee of Washington University
Director of St. Louis Award Committee
Trustee of Crawford-Taylor Foundation
Director of The Bogey Club
Officer/Trustee of Enterprise Rent-A-Car Foundation
Director of Citizen of the Year

" Trustee of United Way Greater St. Louis
Manager of Pingree II, LLC
General Partner of KCP Investments, L.P.

Percentage of each class of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to

vote in:
(a) the bank holding company: 0.04%

(b) direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company: 0%

-14-



Andrew C. Taylor (continued)

(©

any other company, if 25 percent or more of its outstanding voting securities or
proportionate interest in a partnership are held. (list the name of the company and
the percentage of voting securities owned, controiled, or held with power to vote.)

The Crawford Group, Inc. - controlling interest as voting trustee
Centric Group, LLC — controlling interest as voting trustee

" Pingree II, LL.C — 32%

KCP Investments, L..P. — controlling interest as general partner

-15-
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COMMERCE BANCSHARES, INC.
Director
12/31/2013

Name and address (city and sta;te/country): Kimberly G. Walker
St. Louis, Missouri/USA

Principal occupation, if other than with the holding company organization:
Chief Investment Officer

Title or position with:

(a)  the bank holding company: Director

(b)  all direct-and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company: None

(c) any other company in which the person is a director, trustee, partner, or executive
officer:

Chief [nvestment Officer of Washington University in St. Louis

Percentage of each class of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to
vote in:

(a) the bank holding company: 0.007%
(b)  direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company: 0%
{©) any other company, if 25 percent or more of its outstanding voting securities or

proportionate interest in a partnership are held. (list the name of the company and
the percentage of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to vote.)

N/A
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COMMERCE BANCSHARES, INC.
Executive Officer
12/31/2013

Overland Park, Kansas/USA

(2)  Principal occupation, if other than with the holding company organization: N/A

(3) Title or position with:

(1)  Name and address (city and state/country): Jeffery D. Aberdeen

(a)
(b

(c)

the bank holding company: Controller
all direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company:

Treasurer of Capital for Business, Inc.

Vice President, Treasurer and Director of CBI Equipment Finance, Inc. -
Treasurer and Director of CBI Insurance Company

Director of CBI-Kansas, Inc.

Treasurer of CFB Venture Fund I, Inc.

Controller and Director of Clayton Financial Corporation

Manager of Clayton Holdings, LLC

Controller and Director of Clayton Realty Corporation

Controller of Commerce Bank

Treasurer of Commerce Mortgage Corp.

Manager of Illinois Financial, LLC

Manager of Illinois Realty, LLC

any other company in which the person is a director, trustee, partner, or executive
officer:

Board Member of Atonement Lutheran Church Foundation

@ Percentage of each class of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to
vote in:

(a)
(b)

©

the bank holding company:  0.06%
direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company: 0%
any other company, if 25 percent or more of its outstanding voting securities or

proportionate interest in a partnership are held. (list the name of the company and
the percentage of voting sccurities owned, controlled, or held with power to vote.)

N/A
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COMMERCE BANCSHARES, INC.
Executive Officer
12/31/2013

Name and address (city and state/country): Kevin G. Barth
Leawood, Kansas/USA

Principal occupation, if other than with the holding company organization: Banking _
Title or position with:

(a)  the bank holding company: Executive Vice President

(b)  all direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company:

Executive Vice President and Director of Commerce Bank
Vice President of CBI Equipment Finance, Inc.

(©) any other company in which the person is a director, trustee, partner, or executive
officer:

Director of The Commerce Bancshares Foundation

Director of Kansas City Area Development Council

Director of Economic Development Corporation of Kansas City
Chairman, Board of Directors, of Kansas City Industrial Foundation
Director of Starlight Theatre

Director of Kansas City Life Insurance Company

Director of Hodgdon Powder Company, Inc.

Director of The Kansas City Area Chamber of Commerce

Percentage of each class of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to
vote in:

(a) the bank holding company: 0.16%
(b) direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company: 0%
{c}  any other company, if 25 percent or more of its outstanding voting securities or

proportionate interest in a partnership are held. (list the name of the company and
the percentage of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to vote.)

N/A
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COMMERCE BANCSHARES, INC.
Executive Officer
12/3122013

Name and address (city and state/country): Jeffrey M. Burik
Overland Park, Kansas/USA

Principal occupation, if other than with the holding company organization: N/A

Title or position with:

(a)  the bank holding company: Senior Vice President

(b) all direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company:
Executive Vice President of Comrhcrce Bank

(<) any other company in which the person is a director, trustee, partner, or executive
officer:

None

Percentage of each class of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to
vote in: '

(a) the bank holding company: 0.03%

(b)  direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company: 0%

(¢)  any other company, if 25 peréent or more of its outstanding voting securities or
proportionate interest in a partnership are held. (list the name of the company and

the percentage of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to vote.)

N/A
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COMMERCE BANCSHARES, INC.
Executive Officer
12/31/2013

Name and address (city and state/country): Daniel D. Callahan
St. Louis, Missouri/USA

Principal occupation, if other than with the holding company organization: N/A
Title or position with:
(a) _the bank holding company:
Executive Vice President
(b) all direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company;
Vice President and Director of Capital for Business, Inc.
Vice President of CBI Equipment Finance, Inc.
Vice President and Director of CFB Venture Fund I, Inc.
Vice President of Clayton Holdings, LLC

Executive Vice President and Director of Commerce Bank

(©) any other company in which the person is a director, trustee, partner, or executive
officer:

None

Percentage of each class of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to
vote in:

(a) the bank holding company: 0.04%

(b)  direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company: 0%

(©) any other company, if 25 percent or more of its outstanding voting securities or ﬂ
proportionate interest in a partnership are held. (list the name of the company and

the percentage of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to vote.)

N/A
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COMMERCE BANCSHARES, INC.
Executive Officer
12/31/2013

(1)  Name and address (city and state/country): Sara E. Foster |
St. Louis, Missouri/USA

(2)  Principal occupation, if other than with the holding company organization: N/A
(3) Title or position with:

(a) the bank holding company:  Executive Vice President
Director of Support Group Services

(b)  all direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company:

Officer of Commerce Bank

(c) any other company in which the person is a director, trustee, partner, or executive
officer:

Board Member of Big Brothers/Big Sisters of Eastern Missouri
Chancellor’s Council and Member of Executive Committee of University of

Missouri — St. Louis

(4) Percentage of each class of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to
vote in:

(a)  the bank holding company: 0.07%
(b)  direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company: 0%
- (¢)  any other company, if 25 percent or more of its outstanding voting securities or

| proportionate interest in a partnership are held. (list the name of the company and
the percentage of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to vote.)

\ N/A
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COMMERCE BANCSHARES, INC.
Executive Officer
12/31/2013

Name and address (city and state/country): John W. Kemper
- St. Louis, Missouri/USA

Principal occupation, if other than with the holding company organization: N/A

" Title or position with:

(a) the bank holding company: President and Chief Operating Officer
(b)  all direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company:

President of Commerce Bank
Director of CFB Venture Fund |, Inc.

(c) any other company in which the person is a diréctor, trustee, partner, or executive
officer:

Member of Executive Committee of St. Louis Regional Chamber

“Percentage of each class of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to

vote in:

(a) the bank holding company: 0.30%

(b)  direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company: 0%

(c)  any other company, if 25 percent or more of its outstanding voting securities or

proportionate interest in a partnership are held. (list the name of the company and
the percentage of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to vote.)

N/A
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COMMERCE BANCSHARES, INC.
Executive Officer
12/31/2013

(1)  Name and address (city and state/country): Charles G. Kim
' St. Louis, Missouri/USA

(2)  Principal occupation, if other than with the holding company organization: N/A A
(3) Title or position with:

(a) .the bank holding company: Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

(b) all direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company:

Chairman and Director of Commerce Mortgage Corp.
Executive Vice President and Director of Commerce Bank

Director of Commerce Insurance Services, Inc.
Vice President of CBI-Kansas, Inc.

President of Clayton Financial Corporation
President of Clayton Realty Corporation

officer:

(c) any other company in which the person is a director, trustee, partner, or executive

Treasurer of Junior Achievement of Missouri Valley
Treasurer of Missouri Baptist Healthcare Foundation

(4)  Percentage of each class of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to

' vote in:

(a) the bank holding company: 0.11%

(c)  any other company, if 25 percent or more of its outstanding voting securities or
proportionate interest in a partnership are held. (list the name of the company and
the percentage of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to vote.)

|
(b)  direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company: 0%
N/A

-23-
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COMMERCE BANCSHARES, INC.
Executive Officer
12/31/2013

Name and address (city and state/country): Seth M. Leadbeater
St. Louis, Missouri/USA -

Principal occupation, if other than with the holding company organization: N/A
Title or position with:
(a) the bank holding company: Vice Chairman
(b) all direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company:

Vice President of CBI Equipment Finance, Inc.

Vice President of Clayton Holdings, LLC

Vice Chairman and Director of Commerce Bank

(c)  any other company in which the person is a director, trustee, partner, or executive
officer:

None

Percentage of each class of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to
vote 1n:

(a) the bank holding company: 0.15%

(b) direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company: 0%

(c)  any other company, if 25 percent or more of its outstanding voting securities or
proportionate interest in a partnership are held. (list the name of the company and

the percentage of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to vote.)

N/A
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COMMERCE BANCSHARES, INC.
Executive Officer
12/31/2013

Name and address (city and state/country): Thomas J. Noack
St. Louis, Missouri/USA

Principal occupation, if other than with the holding company organization: N/A
Title or position with:

(a) the bank holding company: Vice President, Secretary and General Counsel
) all direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company:

Secretary of Capital for Business, Inc.

Director and Secretary of CBI Equipment Finance, Inc.
Director and Secretary of CBI Insurance Company
Director and Secretary of CBI-Kansas, Inc.

Director and Secretary of Clayton Financial Corporation
Manager and Secretary of Clayton Holdings, LLC
Director and Secretary of Clayton Realty Corporation
Secretary and General Counsel of Commerce Bank
Secretary of Commerce Brokerage Services, Inc.
Director and Secretary of Commerce Insurance Services, Inc.
Manager of Illinois Realty, LLC

(c) any other company in which the person is a director, trustee, partner, or executive
officer:

Secretary of Tower Fitness Center d/b/a Downtown Fitness
Secretary of The Commerce Bancshares Foundation

Percentage of each class of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to
vote 1n:

(a) the bank holding company: 0.03%
(b} direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company: 0%
(¢} any other company, if 25 percent or more of its outstanding voting securities or

proportionate interest in a partnership are held. (list the name of the company and
the percentage of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to vote.)

N/A
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COMMERCE BANCSHARES, INC.
Executive Ofﬁcer
12/31/2013

(1 Name and address (city and state/country): Michael J. Petrie
Shawnee, Kansas/USA
(2)  Principal occupation, if other than with the holding company organization: N/A
3) Title or position with:
(a) the bank holding company: Senior Vice President
(b) all direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company:
Officer of Commerce Bank

(c) any other company in which the person is a director, trustee, partner, or executive
officer:

None

(4) Percentage of each class of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to
vote in:

(a) the bank holding company: 0.05%

(b) direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company: 0%

() any other company, if 25 percent or more of its outstanding voting securities or
proportionate interest in a partnership are held. (list the name of the company and

the percentage of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to vote.)

N/A
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COMMERCE BANCSHARES, INC, -
Executive Officer
12/31/2013

Name and address (city and state/country): Robert J. Rauscher
Kansas City, Missouri/USA
Princif)al occupation, if other than with the holding company organization: N/A
Title or position with:
(a) | the bank holding company: Senior Vice President
(b)  all direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company:
Officer of Commerce Bank

(c) any other company in which the person is a director, trustee, partner, or executive
officer:

None

Percentage of each class of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to
vote in:

(a) the bank holding company: 0.06%
(b) direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company: 0%
(c) any other company, if 25 percent or more of its outstanding voting securities or

proportionate interest in a partnership are held. (list the name’of the company and
the percentage of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to vote.)

N/A
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COMMERCE BANCSHARES, INC.
Executive Officer

12/31/2013 |
(1)  Name and address (city and state/country): Vemon Raymond Stranghoener
St. Louis, Missouri/USA
(2) Principal occupation, if other than with the holding company organization: N/A
3) Title or position with:
(a)  the bank holding company: Executive Vice President
(b) all direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company:

Officer of Commerce Bank
Director of Commerce Investment Advisors, Inc.

(c) any other company in which the person is a director, trustee, partner, or executive
officer:

Vice Chairman of Opera Theater of St. Louis
Chairman Emeritus of Missouri History Museum

(4)  Percentage of each class of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to
vote In:

(a) the bank holding company: 0.10%
(b) direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company: 0%
(c) any other company, if 25 percent or more of its outstanding voting securities or

proportionate interest in a partnership are held. (list the name of the company and'
the percentage of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to vote.)

N/A
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Exhibit 5
CBI-KANSAS, INC,
Directors and Officers
12/31/2013

Name and address (city and state/country): Jeffery D. Aberdeen

Overland Park, Kansas/USA

Principal occupation, if other than with the holding company organization: Banking

Title or position with:

(@)
(b)

(©)

the bank holding company: Director
all direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company:

Controller of Commerce Bank

Controller and Director of Clayton Financial Corporation

Manager of Clayton Holdings, LLC

Controller and Director of Clayton Realty Corporation

Vice President, Treasurer and Director of CBI Equipment Finance, Inc.
Manager of Illinois Financial, LLC

Manager of Illinois Realty, LLC

Treasurer of Commerce Mortgage Corp.

any other company in which the person is a director, trustee, partner, or executive
officer:

Board member of Atonement Lutheran Church Foundation
Other companies owned and controlled by Commerce Bancshares, Inc.

Percentage of each class of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to
vote in:

(@)

(b)

the bank holding company: 0%
direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding.company: 0%
any other company, if 25 percent or more of its outstanding voting securities or

proportionate interest in a partnership are held. (list the name of the company and
the percentage of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to vote.)

N/A
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CBI-KANSAS, INC.
Directors and Officers
12/31/2013

Name and address (city and state/country): Jonathan M. Kemper
Kansas City, Missouri/USA

Principal occupation, if other than with the holding company organization: Banking
Title or position with:

(a) the bank holding company: President and Treasurer

(b)  all direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company;

Vice Chairman and Director of Commerce Bank
Director of Commerce Mortgage Corp.

(c) any other company in which the person is a director, trustee, partner, or executive
. :
officer:

Chairman of Tower Properties Company
Board Member of Downtown Council
Vice Chairman and Director of Commerce Bancshares, Inc.
Vice President, Assistant Secretary and Director of

The Commerce Bancshares Foundation
President and Trustee of the Kansas City Public Library Board
Trustee of Kansas City Library Foundation (ex officio)
Co-Trustee of William T. Kemper Foundation
Board of Trustees of Midwest Research Institute
Trustee of Newberry Library

Percentage of each class of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to
vote in:

(a) the bank holding company: 0%
(b)  direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company: 0%
(c) = any other company, if 25 percent or more of its outstanding voting securities or

proportionate interest in a partnership are held. (list the name of the company and
the percentage of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to vote.)

N/A
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CBI-KANSAS, INC.,
Directors and Officers
12/31/2013

Name and address (city and state/country): Charles G. Kim
St. Louis, Missouri/USA

Principal occupation, if other than with the holding company organization: Banking
Title or position with:
(a) the bank holding company: Vice President
(b)  all direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company:
Executive Vice President and Director of Commerce Bank
Chairman and Director of Commerce Mortgage Corp.
Director of Commerce Insurance Services, Inc.
President of Clayton Financial Corporation

President of Clayton Realty Corporation

(c) any other company in which the person is a director, trustee, partner, or executive
officer: ' '

Treasurer of Junior Achievement of Missouri Valley
Treasurer of Missoun Baptist Healthcare Foundation

Other companies owned and controlled by Commerce Bancshares, Inc.

Percentage of each class of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to
vote in:

(a) the bank holding company: 0%.
(b)  direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company: 0%
(c) any other company, if 25 percent or more of its outstanding voting securities or

proportionate interest in a partnership are held. (list the name of the company and
the percentage of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to vote.)

N/A
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CBI-KANSAS, INC.
Directors and Officers
12/31/2013

Name and address (city and state/country): Thomas J. Noack
St. Louis, Missouri/USA

Principal occupation, if other than with the holding company organization: Banking
Title or position with:

(a) the bank holding company: Director and Secretary

(b)  all direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company:

Director and Secretary of CBI Equipment Finance.
Director and Secretary of Clayton Financial Corporation
Manager and Secretary of Clayton Holdings, LLC - |
Director and Secretary of Clayton Realty Corporation |
Secretary and General Counsel of Commerce Bank

Secretary of Commerce Brokerage Services, Inc.

Director and Secretary of Commerce Insurance Services, Inc.

Manager of Illinois Realty, LL.C

(c) any other company in which the person is a director, trustee, partner, or executive
officer:

Secretary of The Commerce Bancshares Foundation
Secretary of Tower Fitness Center d/b/a Downtown Fitness

Other companies owned and controlled by Commerce Bancshares, Inc.

Percentage of each class of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to
vote in:

(a) the bank holding company: 0%
(b) direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company: 0%
(c) any other company, if 25 percent or more of its outstanding voting securities or

proportionate interest in a partnership are held. (list the name of the company and
the percentage of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to vote.)

N/A




CBI-KANSAS, INC.
Directors and Officers
12/31/2013

(1)  Name and address (city and state/country): Edward J. Reardon, II
Leawood, Kansas/USA
(2) Principal occupation, if other than with the holding company organization: Banking
€)) Title or position with:
: (a) the bank holding company: Vice President and Director
(b)  all direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company:
Officer of Commerce Bank

(c) any other company in which the person is a director, trustee, partner, or executive
officer:

Director, Vice President and Treasurer of The Commerce Bancshares Foundation

(4) Percentage of each class of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to
vote in:

(a) the bank holding company: 0%
(b) direct and indirect subsidiaries of the bank holding company: 0%
() any other company, if 25 percent or more of its outstanding voting securities or

proportionate interest in a partnership are held. (list the name of the company and
the percentage of voting securities owned, controlled, or held with power to vote.)

N/A
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COMPANY PROFILE

Commerce Bancshares, Inc. operates as a super-community
bank offering an array of sophisticated financial products
delivered with high-quality, personal customer service.
The Cempany’s customer promise we ask, listen and solve
is not just its brand, but also its corporate focus. With this
platform, Commerce is continually building its long-term
franchise white paying strict attention to asset quality and
expense management. Commerce provides a full range of
financial products to consumer and commercial customers,

3

.$21\. : O, e
* 4,727 full%nmg\equwalent (FTE) €mptoye

Pﬁ_‘._‘\,\_\
he C Trust € dminist 5 billiorri
* The ommercﬁe rust Company administers $35 bi m%

including lending, payment processing, trust, brokerage
and capital markets services. Serving its customers

from 358 locations in Missouri, Kansas, lllinois, Oklahoma
and Colorado and commercial offices throughout the
nation’s midsection, Commerce uses a variety of delivery
platforms, including an expansive ATM network, full-
featured online banking, and a central contact center,

and has a nationwide presence in the commercial
payments industry.

COMMERCE BANCSHARES AT A GLANCE

2014 cash dividend, %king the 46th consecutive year
="

of regular cash dividehnd Q‘c}reases

Lommercial Paymepts Seryices offered in 48 states

1. 5t Louls 5. Central Hinois
2. Kansas City 6. Wichita

3. Springfield 7. Tulsa

4. Central Missouri 8. Denver

COMMERCIAL DFFICES

1. Cinclanati 3. Dallas
2. Hashville

Branch Footprint

Extended Commerclal Market Area

Commercial Payments Services

A CONSISTENT STRATEGY WITH A LONG-TERM VIEW

Community Bank Front End

* Flat organization; quick decisions
* Employees embrace strong culture
* Award-winning customer service

+ Customer and market knowledge
reduces risk

! efficiency

Super-Community Approach

* Relationship-based sales strategy driven by
our customer promise to ask, listen and solve

* High-performing teams supported by a
commitment to talent development

= [nvestment in distinctive, high-return businesses
+ Long history of top-quartile credit quality metrics
* Disciplined approach to acquisitions

00000000000 000000s .> * Ongoing focus on improvement in operational

000000000000 00000
" Super-Regional Back End

* Sophisticated payment processing
systems

* Broad consumer praduct offerings
+ Private banking; trust; capital markets

= Competitive on unit costs

ABOUT THE COVER

Denver's historic Union Station neighborhood is currently
being redeveloped into a world-class, transit-oriented retail,
office and residentiat complex. Commerce Bank provided the
construction financing for the the new home of IMA Financial
Group, a diversified financial services company, which
moved into its new headquarters there this past December.

“Commerce is the right size bank for us — big enough to
have the market clout and resources to do the job, but small
enough that our business truly matters to them,” says Robert
Cohen, chairman and CEO of IMA Financial {right), here with
Dan Sheehan, manager, Colorado Commercial Reat Estate
Banking (left).

Financial Highlights 1 | Message to Our Shareholders 2 | Partnering for Growth 10
Success Stories 11 | Community Advisors 19 | Officers and Directors 24
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

{In thousands, except per share data) 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
OPERATING RESULTS
Net interest income $ 635,502 $ 645,932 & 646,070 % 639,506 § 619,372
Provision for loan losses 160,697 100,000 51,515 27,287 20,353
Non-interest income 396,259 405,111 392,917 399,630 418,386
Investment securities gains (losses), net (7.195) (1,785) 10,812 4,828 (4,525)
Non-interest expense 621,737 631,134 617,249 618,469 629,633
Net income 169,075 221,710 256,343 269,329 260,961
Cash dividends 74,720 78.231 79,140 211,608** 82,104
AT YEAR END
Total assets $ 18,120,189 $ 18,502,339 % 20,649,367 $ 22,159,589 & 23,072,036
Loans, including held for sale 10,490,327 9,474,733 9,208,554 9,840,211 10,956,836
Investment securities 6,473,388 7,409,534 9,358,387 9,669,735 9,042,997
Deposits 14,210,451 15,085,021 16,799,883 18,348,653 19,047,348
Equity 1,885,905 2,023,464 2,170,361 2,171,574 2,214,397
Non-performing assets 116,670 97.320 93,803 64,863 55,439
Commaon shares outstanding* 100,897 100,278 98,070 95,985 95,881
Tier | capital ratio 13.04% 14.38% 14.71% 13.60% 14.06%
Total capital ratio 14.39 15.75 16.04 14.93 15.28
Leverage ratio 9.58 10.17 9.55 9.14 9.43
Tangible common equity to assets ratio 9.71 10.27 9.91 9.25 9.00
Efficiency ratio 59.88 59.71 59.10 59.26 60.49
OTHER FINANCIAL DATA (based on average halances)
Return on total assets 96% 1.22% 1.32% 1.30% 1.19%
Return on equity 9.76 11.15 12.15 12.00 11,99
Loans to deposits 79.7% 70.02 59.15 55.80 57.12
Equity to assets 9.83 10.91 10.87 10.84 9.95
Net yield on interest earning assets (T/E) 3.93 3.89 3.65 3.41 3.11
Wtd. average common shares outstanding-diiuted* 99.036 101,156 99,448 96,489 94,983
PER SHARE DATA
Net income - basic* % 1.71 $ 219 % 257 % 2.77 s 2.73
Net income - diluted” 1.70 2.18 2.56 2.76 2.72
Market price* 31.86 34.32 34.58 33.39 44.91
Book value* 18.69 20,18 2213 22.62 23.10
Cash dividends* 752 773 795 2.195%+ .B57
Cash dividend payout ratio 44.15% 35.52% 31.06% 79.48%** 31.51%

* Restated for the 5% stock dividend distributed December 2013.
** Inchudes a special dividend paid in the fourth quarter of 2012.

GROWTH IN EPS AND STOCK PRICE

$50

540

$30
520

Stock Price

$10

55

CASH DIVIDENDS PER SHARE

Eamnings per Share
Dividends per Share

so

04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11

=0~ Eamings per Share T3 Stock Price

12 13

Excludes special dividend of §1.36 per share in 2012.



We ask, listen and solve,

COMMERCE BANCSHARES, INC. 2013 ANNUAL REPORT

2

To Our Shareholders

In 2013, Commerce Bancshares continued to deliver on
our strategic plan to provide a superior value proposition
to both our customers and investors. Customers appreci-
ate our convenience, sophisticated product set, strong |
service culture and experienced banking staff, who are
here to ask, listen and offer solutions. Investors continue
to value our consistent, strong financial performance,
unique product mix, investment in growth opportunities
and targeted geographical expansion. As a result, mid-
sized banks such as Commerce are now being rewarded
with superior price-to-earnings valuations, compared to
both larger and smaller banks.

David W. Kemper, Chalrman

demographic and business potential.

Last year saw a slow but steady domestic economic expansion,

Despite a financial services environment of continued very low
interest rates and increased regulatory costs and intervention,
our Company enjoyed excellent 11% loan growth, while
deposits grew 4%. We also saw strong growth from both

our commerciat card and wealth '[nanagement businesses,
with commercial card revenue growing 14% to $81 million,

and wealth
We continue to expand in targeted management
hi . . 1 i fevenue
geographies with highly dgs rable increasing

8% to surpass
$100 million.
With an emphasis on building customer relationships, strong
collaboration across business lines and a diverse product
set, our business model continues to altow us to provide a
broad array of products and services to our commercial and
retail customers.

We continue to expand in targeted geographies with
highly desirable demographics and strong business
potential, In September, we completed our merger with
Summit Bancshares Inc. in Oklahoma. This merger increased
our loans in the Oklahoma market to almost $500 million.
Loans in our Denver market grew 30% last year to more than
$270 million, white loan growth in our other expansion
markets, including Dallas, Nashville and Cincinnati, was
strong. In addition to leveraging these markets for loan and
fee income growth, we also continue to expand in our core
markets with targeted calling in high-growth industry
segments, including healthcare, commercial real estate
and agribusiness.

Traditional retail banking and mass-market consumer
payments remain a challenge in the banking industry. A
combination of low interest rates, regulatory price controls,
changing consumer behavior and new self-service options
has reduced profitability and put significant pressure on the
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traditional retail bank model. We remain committed to a
core branch system, focused on delivering the right set of
products and convenience to our customers, At the same
time, we are putting programs in place to raise productivity
and increase sales to our existing customer base in areas

such as mortgage and asset management.

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

* Commerce reported earnings per share of $2.72,
down 1% from 2012. Return on average assets totaled
1.2%, while return on average equity was 12.0%. This
compares favorably to the top 50 bank industry average of
1.0% for return on average assets and 9.0% for return on
average equity in 2013.

» Net income totaled $261 million, versus $269 million
last year, reflecting a 25% decrease in loan losses, solid
growth in trust and commercial card fees, and controlled
expense, offset by lower net interest income.

* We paid a dividend of $.857 per share* in 2013,
making this the 45th consecutive year regular cash dividends
were increased. We have also paid a 5% stock dividend for
the 20th year in a row.

s Company equity totaled $2.2 billion at year end, and the
ratio of tangible common equity to assets amounted to 9.0%.
We repurchased 1.7 million shares of Company stock in 2013.

s Lpans grew 11% this year, or $1.1 billion, to $11.0
billion. Personat banking loans grew $396 mitlion on
continued growth in consumer residential and auto lending.

Commercial loans grew
Our expansion markets, $729 million on strong
growth in business

based Summit Bancshares Inc., acquiring $207 million in
loans, $232 million in depaosits and branch locations in Tulsa
and Oklahoma City.

* Net loan charge-offs totaled $31 million in 2013, a
dectine of 20% from amounts charged off last year. Our
provision for loan losses also declined 25% to $20 million.
Non-performing assets declined to $55 million at year end,

a reduction of 15% from last year.

TOTAL tOANS

% in Billions

% in Blllions

COMMERCE'S VALUE PROPOSITION

including Tulsa, Oklahoma City, .
loans, tax-advantaged Commerce offers a strong value proposition to both our
Denver, Dallas, Nashville and tending and leasing.

Qur expansion

customers and shareholders. Commerce operates as a

inci i super-community banking organization, dedicated to
; Cincinnati, grew loans by 23%. up unity banking org n, dedi

markets, including
Tulsa, Oklahoma City,
Denver, Dallas, Nashville and Cincinpati, grew loans by 23%,
* OQur national commercial card business grew
revenue 14% to $81 million in 2013, as a result of strong
new customer sales and greater usage by our existing
customers. Our trust and asset management business also
grew 8%, with revenue of $103 million.
* In September, the Company purchased Oklahoma-

*Restated for December 2013 5% stock dividend.

providing sophisticated, convenient products and solutions
to its business and retail customers. At the same time,
Commerce is committed to providing high service levels,
often customized to meet our customers’ specific needs.

We continually communicate with our customers to
ensure satisfaction, while emphasizing our culture and vatue
proposition with our employees. Through regular surveys,
we measure employee engagement and satisfaction. Scores
consistently rank high and outrank other high-performance
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peer companies, demonstrating our employees’ commitment
to our core values,

Our value proposition is equally strong for our Company’s
shareholders. We focus on providing shareholders solid,
consistent, risk-adjusted returns with strong capitat and
reserves. On average, over the tast ten years our return
on average assets and equity outperformed both our peer
banks and a select group of the pation's largest banking
institutions. Furthermore, our emphasis on sound credit
underwriting has resulted in top-quaftile credit metrics
for many years. Commerce has paid above-average

dividends and has increased its ;regular cash dividend for

- 45 consecutive years, a record few banking organizations

can match. '

Commerce is dedicated to continuous improvement
and innovation throughout the organization. We have a long
history of solid financial performance, while serving our
customer base with high-quality“products and personal
customer service. We proactivelyI look for new ways to deepen
Qur existing customer relationships and improve our sales
process to attract new customersl. Our continued focus on
improving our business processes enables us to attain new
cost efficiencies. We listen to our customers’ needs and
invest in innovative products and high-return businesses
to provide them with superior solutions. -

L}

INDUSTRY RECOGNITION
We continue to receive industry recognition each year for our
success in generating solid, consistent returns to investors,
while providing a high leve! of customer service.
* For the fifth consecutive year, Commerce ranked among
the top 10 on Forbes' list of America’s Best Banks. Dividend
Channel also named Commerce to the 5.A.F.E. 25 list,
signifying stocks
with above-average Commerce Bancshares is among
statistics and a only four banks in the country
superb track
record of at least  with the highest assigned Bank
two decades of
dividend growth.
» Commerce to Moody’s Investor Service, as of

Investment December 1, 2013.

Financial Strength Rating according

Advisors bond

management team,

which is shared with The Commerce Trust Company, was rated
the #1 Fixed Income Smalil Fund Group in the U.S. by Lipper,
the leading provider of mutual fund information.

« Commerce Bancshares is among only four banks in the
country with the highest assigned Bank Financial Strength
Rating according to Moody’s Investor Service, as of December
1,2013.

* Commerce Bancshares, inc. ranked tenth in the
%5 billion to $50 billion asset category on Bank Director
magazine's 2013 Bank Performance Scorecard.

* Commerce Bancshares is one of 33 returning members
included on the Keefe, Bruyette, & Woods, Inc. (KBW) Bank
Honor Rolt of banking institutions that achieved positive
eamings per share growth trends over the last decade,
regardiess of the economic environment. In 2013, KBW
also ranked Commerce among the top performing banks
of the decade.

* Bloomberg Markets magazine named Commerce
Family Office, a division of The Commerce Trust Company,
the 20th largest family office in the world by assets, and
the fourth fastest growing.

* In 2013, Commerce was included in the Barron’s 400
index. The index collects the most fundamentally sound and
attractively priced stocks from atl corners of the globe using
@ proven and disciplined stock selection process.
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OPPORTUNITIES FOR GROWTH

Despite the headwinds the banking industry has faced
over the last few years, Commerce has pursued a number
of opportunities to grow our businesses and add to our
customer base.

We have concentrated on growing new loan relationships
across both our commercial and consumer business lines
and experienced solid growth in 2013. We have created
distinctive capabilities in our leasing and tax-advantaged
lending businesses and have developed industry specialties,
including healthcare, beverage distribution, aviation and
agriculture. With our recent investments in Oklahoma and
Texas, we have added new energy lending expertise and new
loan and fee income growth opportunities in this important
and growing industry. Further, we have added more than 400
new automobile dealership customers over the last two
years, which has enabled us to expand our consumer auto
and floor-plan lending businesses.

Commerce is a top provider of consumer and commercial
bank card products in the financial services industry, The
Nilson Report ranked Commerce among the top issuers in the

payments industry; in
Our national commercial card 2013, Commerce was
business has been rapidly "”mbe,r” onits fst

af Debit Card Issuers,
number 16* among
Consumer Card
Issuers, number 11*
25% for the last five years. among Bank Acquirers,
number 7 among
Purchasing Card
tssuers and number 17 among Commercial Card Issuers. Our
national commercial card business has been rapidly growing
revenue at a compound annual growth rate of more than 25%
for the last five years and continues to have great success in
attracting new customers.

With more than $35 billion in customer assets under
administration, Commerce’s wealth management business
ranks 30th nationally based on assets under management.
Revenue has grown an average of 8% over the last three
years and exceeded $100 million in 2013.

During the last five years, we have placed emphasis on
developing five new markets ~ Tulsa, Denver, Dallas,

*Excludes non-banks.

Nashville and Cincinnati. Since 2008, loans have grown
128% to $1.0 biltion in these markets and now represent
9% of our total loans. Additionally, the Summit acquisition
added 27 new banking professionals to the growing
Oklahoma market, further increasing our capacity and
expertise there. This acquisition provides us with our first
physical presence in Oklahoma City and new opportunities
to add commercial and wealth management relationships.
Our Denver market increased loans by 30% in 2013 and
experienced significant success selling corporate payments
products, with more commercial card sales in 2013 than
any other market outside of Kansas City and St. Louis. Qur
Dallas office, which opened in 2012, has seen steady
growth, surpassing our expectations and financial targets.
As in our traditional markets, these expansion markets

are staffed with local, experienced bankers who know our
customers and focus on providing the right product solutions
to meet their needs.

LOAN GROWTH - 2013 VERSUS 2012

Expansion Markets Offering Growth Opporunities
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FOCUS ON EFFICIENCIES

Managing our expenses remains a top priority for our
Company, while continuous improvement is an ongoing
long-term strategy. Over the last four years, non-interest
expense has grown less than 1% on average, as we continue to
make significant investments in both people and technologies
to support those areas of the Company that show strong
growth opportunities. We are also focused on improving
efficiency and productivity throughout the organization to
reduce unit costs and improve profitability. Sme it use of
technology, disciplined execution in our operations areas,
attention to detail and a culture of continuous improvement
all contribute to controlling our costs appropriately.
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Payments System |
In: 201 3, Commérce continued to:coﬁcentrate on growing
the payments business. This business ié maintained within
our retail and commercial SEngIl‘ItS. The payments business
offers the Company strong revenue and profit growth
opportunities, consistent earnings and tess volatility from
economic and interest rate cyclesj. Our payments business
delivers a comprehensive suite o‘f products and technologies
designed to help customers proc?ss their payments more
efficiently and effectively. These products provide our
customers with debit and credit Icard services, online
banking and disbursement and remittance processing
solutions, including merchant prdcessing. commercial card
. products, ACH
We focused on a number of processing,
| wire transfers,
commercial

was strong, including agriculture and  remote-deposit

food processing, healthcare and banking and

o international
not-for-profit organizations. senices.
This business
generated
more than $268 million in combined fee income in 2013
and grew 5% more than in the prévious year. As the Nilson
numbers show, we continue to be a recognized industry
leader in providing payment solutions.

Commercial Banking Activities

Qur commercial banking division provides traditional
lending products, such as working capital lines of credit,
owner-occupied and investment rleal estate toans, tax-

advantaged financing programs and equipment financing
and leasing. In addition to customized financing solutions,
we offer investment products to our correspondent bank and
commercial customers. We deliver a full payment system
suite of solutions through experienced and knowledgeable
relationship and product managers with deep industry
knowledge and proven experience in helping their
customers manage business cycles.

During 2013, commercial banking loans grew
$729 million, or 13%, to $6.4 hillion. We focused on a
number of specialized industries where demand was strong,
including agriculture and food processing, healthcare and
not-for-profit organizations. Corporate deposits totaled
$7.4 billion, up $688 million, or 10%, as companies
continued to maintain high cash tevels. Fee income grew
4%, to $186 million on continued strong growth in corporate
card revenues. Fees from commercial cash management
services this year totaled $33 million, up 4%, while fees on
international services grew by 7%. Low rates on fixed income
securities and limited demand from our banking customers
reduced revenues 33% in our Capital Markets Group.

We continue to see solid opportunities to grow toans
while increasing our fee-based revenue, By focusing our
experienced team on targeted business development and
specialized lending opportunities, we believe we are well
positioned to offer our customers a solid value proposition
to meet their banking needs. With careful expansion in our
newer markets and new energy lending potential, we can
attract new customers to our commercial banking and
payment systems products.

Consumer Banking Activities
In addition to offering our retail banking customers traditional
deposit account products, such as checking accounts and
certificates of deposit, we also offer debit and credit cards,
residential mortgages and personal banking loans for
automobiles, construction and home improvement. At year
end, we operated more than 200 branches within our
footprint with total deposits of $9.5 billion, reflecting growth
of 3% in 2013.

Consumer banking loans grew 17% to $1.5 billion in
2013, driven by strong growth in auto lending and improved
cross-sales of consumer loans to our household base.
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However, profitability was down this year and remains
stressed due to a combination of low interest rates and
regulations that lowered fees on debit cards and overdrafts
during the last several years.

We intend to re-establish profits in this segment by
developing new products, repositioning existing products
and focusing on our most profitable growth channels, while

increasing

We continue to invest in our mobile productivity

within our branch
network. In 2014,

will introduce several new exciting we will rofl out

our new toggle
functionality,
and new bill pay functionality. which will give

credit card users

choices in how
quickly they pay for individual purchases. We continue to
invest in our mobile and digital banking platforms and will
introduce severai new exciting features, including remote
deposit and new bill pay functionality. Additionally, we wilt
introduce a number of initiatives in 2014 that will enhance
productivity and our customer experience, including the
latest self-service technology at cur branches and improved
communication capabilities.

Corporate Card and Merchant Activities
Our corporate card payments business has grown in a
short period of time to become the largest of our payment
businesses. This business involves processing corporate
payments, including accounts payable payments for our
commercial customers, We offer this product through our
commercial bankers in our traditional markets and across
48 states through a dedicated sales staff. We service
businesses in many industries and have developed
specialties in healthcare, education and government.
During 2013, corporate card revenues grew to
$81 million, an increase of 14%, on customer-generated
sales volume of $6.0 billion, The Company precesses
payments for 1,000 commercial customers, including 200
new customers in 2013 with projected annualized sales
volumes of approximately $1.6 billion. This product enables
customers to reduce expenses and become more efficient in

7

processing etectronic payments, which allows them to shed
manual, paper-based tasks. We see solid demand for this
product in the future, and we continue to investin new
products and technologies to further meet the commercial
payment needs of our customers.

We also offer merchant processing as part of our
commercial payments systems product suite. Merchant
revenue in 2013 exceeded $27 million on customer sates
volume of more than $7.4 biltion, We process payments for
approximately 3,500 merchant customers and added 680

new customersin 2013,

CORPORATE CARD FEES

S in Milllons
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Wealth and Asset Management

We offer wealth and asset management services through

The Commerce Trust Company, which is a leading regional
provider of private client and institutional wealth management
services. We provide asset management, including trust and
investment advisory services, to individual and corporate
clients, as well as private banking and family office services.
Through Commerce Trust, we manage a family of mutual
funds, the Commerce Funds, with assets of $1.8 billion, and
we operate a retail brokerage business, Commerce Brokerage
Services, Inc.

In 2013, trust and asset management revenues grew
8%, to $103 million, reflecting a 5-year compound growth
rate of 5%. Total client asseis also grew 16% to a record
$35.2 billion, and overall asset management profitability
grew by 8%. Asset management sales included over $8
million in new annual revenues, while our strong account
retention remained above industry standards.

Private banking loans increased 18% in 2013, and we
continued to see solid growth in our family office business.
With client assets of $10.1 billion, our Commerce Family
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Office business was ranked 20th|largest in the wortd by
Bloomberg Markets in 2013. We Iadded new family office
clients with assets of more than $1.5 billion in 2013 and
continue to see good growth opplortunities.

Commerce Trust provides important opportunities for
our Company. The wealth management business is a growth

industry,
Our Commerce Family Office business  driven by
was ranked 20th largest in the world O"g‘l)t:g
wea
by Bloomberg Markets in 2013, generation
| in the U.S.

and the demographics of retiring|baby boomers. With its
broad array of products and servifies, reputation for excellence
in personal service, integrity and long-term risk-adjusted
investment performance, Commer“ce Trust is well positioned to
grow its share of the market within the Commerce footprint.
We continue to invest strategically in people, products and
technology to support an expand}ng sales effort, and will also
expand our capabilities in some tl:»four newer markets.

Commerce Brokerage provides both transaction- and
investment-based solutions to our retail customers for
their investment needs. Total revel‘nues grew 8% in 2013
to $11 million, while client assets grew 10% to $3.5 billion.
We have focused on selling our Horizons managed account
product, which operates much like a mutual fund family, to
our customers who need diversification in their holdings.
This praduct also creates a less vcr)latile income stream for
Commerce Brokerage and helps attract new customers to
our business. We believe that the synergies between
Commerce Brokerage and Commerce Trust will continue
to grow this business.

1
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Risk Management

We continually focus on maintaining top-quartile asset
quality through an emphasis on strong underwriting and
credit management throughout the lending life cycle, and

our results in 2013 continued to be among the bestin the
banking industry. Net toan charge-offs declined to $31

million in 2013, a decrease of 20%, and totaled .30% of
average loans, compared to the top 50 banks' loss rate of
.48%. Non-performing loans declined to .45% of loans, the
lowest level in five years, compared to the industry average of
3%. The Company realized net recoveries of $5 million on a
portfolio of commercial loans totaling more than $6 billion.
These recoveries mainly resulted from previously charged-off
construction
and business
loansoverthe ¢ <5 million on a portfolio of
last five years.

Consumer  commercial loans totaling more

toan losses than $6 billion.

were down 7%

in 2013 mainly

on lower marine/RV loan net charge-offs, while losses remain
low on automobile loans. Net loan charge-offs on credit cards
were up slightly over loss levels in 2012, but totaled 3.34%
of total credit card loans. These loss results are among the
best in the industry. Furthermore, 30-day delinguencies on
consumer loans remain low, although loss levels have now
stabilized and are no tonger declining significantly,

QUTLOOK FOR 2014
With the 1.5, economy expanding modestly in 2013, we
remain optimistic that this expansion will continue in 2014

1
HE‘I“LOAN CHARGE~DFFS
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The Company realized net recoveries
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and provide an even better environment for our Company to
grow. While record low interest rates continue to pressure
revenue growth in our industry, we see many positive signs
for this coming year. GDP growth is forecasted to reach 3%
in 2014, and unemployment is projected to decline to well
under 7% by the end of the year. Private sector growth,
improved personal balance sheets, and reduced political
uncertainty are all expected to boost the economy this year.
As a result of these positive factors, the Federal Reserve is
expected to continue unwinding its bond purchase program,
and higher interest rates are expected, which will help

bank margins.

CONCLUSION

The United States commercial banking system withstood
the great recession of 2008-2009 and has emerged leaner,
more focused and better capitalized. It has also had to
battle through a sluggish economy, an extended period of
negative short-term real interest rates, and unprecedented
regulatory costs and oversight. Rapid changes in technology
and consumer behavior in financial services have put more
stress on the traditional bank model and its services and
affected the industry’s profitability. We believe that the
successful banks of the future will need to have strong
cultures and a calculated sense of the markets they want
to serve.

Commerce Bank will celebrate its 150th anniversary in
2015. We have prospered over that century and a half for
our shareholders by both managing risks through economic
cycles and adapting our services to our customers as their
needs change. We believe our super-community model, our
culture of customer first and our willingness to embrace

RETURN ON AVERAGE EQUITY

=)= Commerce 3 Peers

change will serve us well in the future. We continue to receive
outstanding customer satisfaction scores while maintaining
both capital and earnings well above industry averages.

We remain
dedicated to
risk-adjusted

We believe our super-community
model, our culture of customer first
returns for our
shareholders.  and our willingness to embrace
InJanuary: we - change will serve us well in the future.
raised our

cash dividend

5% to $.90 per share - the 46th consecutive annual increase,

Our return to shareholders has significantly exceeded overall

brank stock returns over the last ten years. We believe the

eventual return to more normal interest rates and a growing

domestic economy will bode well for banks in the future and

are very pleased with our continual growth in payments and

wealth management. I'd like to thank our shareholders for

their continued support as we look forward to a challenging

but successful 2014,

Dood Rarg—

David W. Kemper, Chairman
COMMERCE BANCSHARES, INC, FEBRUARY 24, 2014

TEN-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN

0
2003 2005 2007 2009 2011 2013

== Commerce ((BSH) == NASDAQ Bank —0— S&P 500
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PARTNERING FOR GROWTH

Leaders of growing businesses rarely do it alone, Whether they
sell golf cars or licorice, transport cargo over long distances or
data over short ones, successful bus!iness owners understand the
value of a strong financial partner. it’s what enables them to make
acquisitions when opportunities arise and build new factories

when demand grows. Commerce Bank is fortunate to partner
with many successful businesses. We make it our business to
ask them where they are headed, listen to how they intend to get
there and offer solutions to help them succeed. When we work

in partnership with our customers, together we grow.

11 | Building a Foundation

a Mile High

The area surrounding Denver’s
historic Union Station is
undergoing a massive
makeover, and IMA Financial
Group wanted to be part of it.
Commerce provided financing
and IMA’s new headguarters
opened there in December 2013.

Za\
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15 | A Healthy Collzboration

To deliver high-guality
healthcare services at lower
costs, it takes more than a good
medical team; it atso requires
exceptional management.
Nueterra, which funds, builds
and manages healthcare
facilities throughout the world,
would know.

Iu | Additive for Growth

When a company distributes
its automotive maintenance
products to 60 countries
worldwide, it helps to have

a bank that understands
internationat business. That's
just one of the reasons why
BG Products has banked with
Commerce since 1971.

16 | Sweet Success

in 2013, West Coast-based
American Licorice moved its
banking business to Commerce.
It didn’t matter that the bank’s
closest bricks-and-mortar branch
was more than 1,000 miles away.

13 | Keep on Truckin’

Empire Express is known in

the trucking industry for its
impeccable customer service
and efficiency. So when the
family-owned trucking company
looked for a new bank, it
expected nothing less.
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17 | How lo Succeed In Business
Qver the past 30 years, Daryl
Woodard has invested in and,
in some cases, led IT consulting,
computer networking, energy
and other businesses. He
understands the value of a

strong banking relationship
better than most.
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14 | Trust In Higher Education
Many Fontbonne University
students depend on
scholarships to help make
their education affordable.
Fontbonne, in turn, depends
on The Commerce Trust
Company to manage its
endowment, which enables
these scholarships to serve
even more students.

18 | Excellent Follow Through
When Chris Mitler spotted an
opportunity to lease golf cars to
his local country club 35 years
ago, he didn't think twice. He just
presented his business idea to
Commerce Bank.

™
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Building a Foundation
a Mile High

IMA FINANCIAL GROUP, INC,
DENVER, COLORADO

An employee-owned financial services company

Robert Cohen says he had a good feeling
after meeting the Commerce bankers from
Denver for the first time two years ago.
“They reminded me of the people at our
company,” says Robert, chairman and CEO
of IMA Financial Group. “i knew we needed
to find a way to do business together.”
About that same time, employee-owned
IMA Financial was preparing to become the
first private company to commit to moving
its corporate headguarters {o Denver's
Union Station neighborhaod. The historic¢
train station and surrounding 19.5 acres are
undergoing massive redevelopment to create
a new urban center and transpaortation hub

for residents, tourists and commuters alike.

“That project seemed like a good place
to start,” Robert says.

But he and his partners needad more
than simple construction financing from
Commerce. The complex loan structure
would require considerable negotiation
and involve financing a nearby pedestrian
bridge for the Denver Union Station Project’
Authority. The clock on IMA's existing
building lease, meanwhile, was ticking.

Long story short: the five-story
headquarters broke ground in April 2012,
Twenty months later, IMA Financial teok
occupancy, right on schedule,

“It was like all successful business
deals,” Robert says. "It took two partners
willing to work though the details to make
it happen.”

“People often wonder, what is the one
magic thing a company can do to set itself
apart fram the crowd?” Robert says. “For
Commerce, it was all the little things they
did better than anyone else. From the
personal involvement of their bankers,
to the speed of their decision-making, to
their payment process - little things add
up. Commerce not only met, they exceeded
my expectations.”

We ask, listen and solve,
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The building was financed by Commerce, and IMA Financial Group became the first private company to commit to moving its corporate
headquarters to the Denver Unien Station redevelopment, according to Robert Cohen, chairman and chief executive officer.
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An Additive for Growl':h

BG PRODUCTS, INC.
WICHITA AND EL DORADO, KANSAS

A global manufacturer of automotive maintenance

products and equipment

Darin Greseth is, much to his delight, in a
rapidly changing industry.

“Change creates opportunities,” he
says. “Our company got where it is today
by eagerly jumping on them.”

That fearlessness dates back to 1971,
when seven World War Il veterans-turned-
entrepreneurs saw an apportunity to'help
auto repair shops and car dealerships keep
pace with the ever-increasing sophistica-
tion of the vehicles they were charged to
maintain. The seven banded together to
form BG Products, with each one serving

We ask. lIsten and solve.
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as a distributor of the company's original
two automotive maintenance products.

BG Products has ridden a growth
curve ever since. Today the company
manufactures more than 144 solutions
that make automobiles perform better
and last longer, and distributes them in
more than 60 countries worldwide.

| .

{ommerce provided financing for a new $50 million
manufacturing center in El Doradp, Kansas, where BG Products
makes automotive maintenance goads sold in more than 60
countries worldwide. From left, Galen Myers, chairman;
Darin Greseth, president and chief executive officer; and

Ron Garcla, vice president and general manager.

is here for us,” says Ron Garcia, vice
president and general manager. Most
recently, that inciuded helping

“From day one, Commerce has provided to finance a new $50 million

us exactly what we’ve needed to grow

and be successful.”

The “financial additive” the company uses

to fuel its growth? Commerce Bank.
“Whether we need help with cash

management or letters of credit, Commerce

manufacturing center.

And BG Products isn’t done
yet. “As we look for our next golden
era of growth, it's good to know
that, when an opportunity arises,
Commerce is just a phone call away,” says
Darin. Adds board chairman Galen Myers,
“It’s always been reassuring to know that
Commerce is right beside us.”



Keep on Truckin’

EMPIRE EXPRESS
MEMPRIS, TENNESSEE

One of the Southeast's premler family-owned

trucking firms

Time is money in the trucking industry.
That's why Tim Gatlin is glad that two-
thirds of his family’s trucking business
is what truckers call “drop and hook.”

“That means we drop off one trailer
and immediately hook up another one,”
explains Tim, president and CEQ of Empire
Express. “We like it because our drivers
aren't waiting around for cargo to be
loaded and unloaded.”

That “get ‘er done” attitude — along
with the latest satellite tracking and
mobile communications technology —
enables this 25-year-old carrier to keep
its fleet of 200 trucks and 550 trailers
constantly on the move throughout the
United States and Canada.

The desire for efficiency also explains,
in part, why Empire Express moved its
banking business to Commerce in 2013.

“After calling on us for the better
part of three years, Commerce’s Rick
Seadler did an analysis of our company
that opened my eyes,” says Ed Gatlin,
Tim's father and the company's founder.
“He gave us great ideas and introduced
us to great peaple who would make
them happen.”

“We now have a computerized bank
balance waiting for us every morning,”

Ed says. The company's deposits, wire
transfers, ACH payments and other
banking transactions are all done online.
Commerce is also the lead bank on
financing the 50 or so trucks Empire
Express replaces each year.

Says Ed, "At this point, our relation-
ship with Commerce is as close as any our
business has ever had. They've developed
into a true partner.”

Empire Express replaces about 50 of the 200 tractor-trailer
trucks in its feet each year, with Commerce serving as its lead
bank far financing. From left, Tim Gatlin, president and

chiefl executive officer; and Ed Gatlln, chairman,

We ask, listen and solve,
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Trust in Higher Ed uca;'ion

FONTBONNE UNIVERSITY )
ST. LOUIS, MISSOURI

A Catholic liberal arts university founded in’1923

Like many successful institutions of

higher learning, Fontbonne University

has amassed a strong endowment ar:ld
depends on a portion of the income it
earns each year to fund student scholiarships
and other expenses.

Soin spring 2013, when Fontbonne’s
leaders began considering altemativle
ways to manage these and other res%ricted
funds, they knew one thing for sure: the
partner they chose would need to be one
they could trust completely.

“It was essential for us to have
confidence in the people working on our
behalf,” says Gary Zack, the university’s
vice president for Finance and Administration.
“We were looking for competent, pro‘fes-
sional investment advice, along with a
track record of ls;uccess."

As it turns out, they didn’t have to look
far. Commerce had served as Fontbo’nne’s
bank for nearly 30 years, beginning with
ordinary depasitory services and, over
time, adding everything from purchasing
cards to electronic services that have
helpéd the university operate more
efficiently. By 2009, Fontbonne had|also
selected The Commerce Trust Compl’my
to serve as trustee on a bond sale.

After soliciting proposals and !
interviewing other well-respected firms,
fontbonne made the decision to en;trust
its entire endowment to Commerce Trust,
We're just a geod match,” Gary says;.
“Commerce is conservatively managed,
and we are as well. That puts us in sl,ync
with one another, which enables these
scholarships to serve even mare stlijdents."

Fonthenne University had been a Camme;rce customer

for nearly 30 years before entrusting its erltireI endowment
to Commerce T_rusl in 2013. From Iei;t. Gary Zack,

vice president for Finance and Administration;

and Dennls Golden, president.

We ask, [Isten and solve.
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“Qur relatioﬁship with Commerce has grown organically ™

over the past three decades. They've got good people
who are good to work with, and they understand our
business. That’s really all I can ask for.”




A Healthy Collaboration

NUETERRA
LEAWOOD, KANSAS

A leading gtobal healthcare management and

development company

Nueterra is in a business that is built on
collaboration.

For nearly two decades, the Kansas
company has partnered with physician
groups, healthcare systems and
governments to fund, build and manage
healthcare facilities throughout the
world. Nueterra's combination of strategic
guidance, financial resources and efficient
management helps its healthcare partners
deliver their services at a higher quality
and lower cost.

So it should come as no surprise that
Nueterra's leaders would seek a banking
partner that also places a high premium
on colfaboration.

We ask, listen and solve.
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“We want to work with bankers who
danr’t just understand our plans, but who
will take an active role in our strategic
planning and decision-making process,”
says Dan Tasset, chairman.

That's precisely what set Commerce
apart from other banks vying for the firm's
business last year.

“I had already begun a private
banking relationship with
Commerce,” recalls Dan. “| liked
the attentive, personal service |
got. Since bringing Commerce an
as Nueterra's primary bank, the
level of service we receive has
only grown.”

The relationship took off last
spring when Commerce began roiling out
its automated Accounts Payable Sotution
payment processing system, both at
Nueterra's corporate offices and in the
healthcare facilities it manages across the
country, Today, Nueterra looks to Commerce
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As Nueterra expands into Europe, Latin America and beyond,

the Kansas-based company relies cn Commerce for letters

of credit and other international banking expertise. From left,
Dan Saale, chief financial officer; Dan Tasset, chairman; and
Tim Q'Brien, chief operating officer.

for a full range of financial services,
including their primary credit and treasury
needs, corporate card, and international
and private banking.

“We didn’t want a bank. We wanted a
banking relationship. Commerce has
given us just that.”

“Commerce understands the healthcare
business,” says Dan. “More importantly,
they understand OUR business and bring
us leading-edge technologies that help us
achieve our goals.”



Sweet Success

AMERICAN LICORICE COMPANY ,
UNION CITY, CALIFORNIA !

One of the oldest licarice manufacturers in
the United States

Financial stability is important to Amej_-rican
Licorice. it has enabled the century-old
company to remain a candy aisle stai?le.
even as other family-run confectionaries
are absorbed by larger compantes or
disappear completely.

Old-fashioned customer service ?Iso
matters to American Licorice, which P}as
built strong customer loyalty by delighting
generations of children with its Red \jines
and other classic licorice twists, ropes
and bites.

After being introduced to Comrm?rce.
the licorice maker felt it had found a Ibank
with similar priorities, according to John
Kretchmer, chief executive officer and great-
grandson of the company’s founder.

" Soin October 2011, the West Coast-
based company moved its business L
including tines of credit, cash management,
credit card services and more — to
Commerce. The bank's largely Midwestern
branch footprint didn’t make a lick of
difference.

“These days, it’s possible to bank
with anyone from anywhere in the wbrld,"
says John. “We chose Commerce because
itis a strong, financially stable bankrthat
could give us the financial flexibility to
improve and expand production, invest in
our associates and weather challenging
economic cycles with confidence.”

But it was more than that. “Com:merce
took the time to understand our business
and to earn our trust and respect,” says
John. “That allows us to focus our eﬁergy
on what we do best: making the great
candy our customers love.”

Currently celebrating its 100-year anniversary, American
Licorice makes six different brands of licorice tV:ViStS. ropes
and bites at its production facilities in California and Indiana.
From left, John Nelson, chiefoperat_ions officer;

and Clarence Walsh, accounting manager.

We ask, listen and salve,
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“What attracted us was C(\)mm‘erce’g"ﬁ nancial strength
and high industry ratingsrTh'E_?act that there’s no branch
“nearbyis; in this'ddy and age, irrelevant.”
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How to Succeed
in Business

DARYL WOODARD
TULSA, OKLAHOMA

Longtime entrepreneur and CEQ of SageNet, LLC,

a managed network services provider

Daryl Woodard is like many successful
entrepreneurs, he has a sixth sense about
what the world needs next.

As personal computer sales were
starting to take off in the mid-eighties, he
purchased a number of MicroAge computer
franchises, one of the nation’s first retail
computer stores.

After growing annual sales to $120
million, Daryt sold his franchises in 1995
to join a longtime partnerin starting an IT
consulting firm that delivered the custom
computer applications that oil and gas and
other industries needed at the time.

He sold his interest in that company
and started SageNet, a technology firm
that provides the networking solutions
mufbti-site retailers need to improve
security, speed transaction times and
address other missign-critical needs.

In recent years, he has also invested
in an energy company, bought back his
IT consulting firm and — most recently —
acquired a Washington, D.C.-based
communications network company that
more than doubles SageNet’s size.

At his side virtually the entire time has
been Carl Hudgins, who today is chairman
of Commerce Bank's Oklahoma market.

“Carl was my loan officer in 1986 when |
was just getting started,” says Daryl. The two
continued to work together when they helped
found Bank South, which Commerce purchased
in 2007. Commerce has helped finance
Daryl’s companies’ growth ever since,

“Commerce has the lending capacity
and sophisticated services of a large bank,
but the day-to-day personal service and

senior-level attention you'd expect of a
community bank,” says Daryl. This brings
Daryl peace of mind as he seeks out new
opportunities. “It’s good to have a
relationship that goes beyond dollars

Financing from Commerce helped SageNet CEOQ Daryl Woodard acquire another computer networking company, invest in an energy

and cents,” he says. startup and capitalize on other entrepreneurial opportunities.




Excellent Follow Through

MB&M GOLF CARS
MEXICO, MISSCURI

A large Midwestern distributor of Club Car, the

nation’s top-selling golf cars

In 1978 Chris Miller tagged along wh{en his
wife's nursery business was completing a
project at a local country club. “| ovelrheard
a conversation between two people
discussing their desire to lease some

new golf cars,” Chris recalls. “I told them
I'd like to help.”

The only problem was, Chris wasn't
in the golf car business. So he did S(’)me
research and learned he could becolme a
Club Car dealer by purchasing six ofltheir
vehicles. He also learned that one olfthe
people he overheard served pn the local
Commerce Bank board. So Chris prolposed
an idea: if Commerce would finance the
cars’ purchase, he would lease them to
the club.

And M&M Golf Cars was formed.

In the 35 years since, the family-owned
dealership has grown to include temitories
in Missouri, Kansas, lowa and lllinc:Jis,
where it leases or sells 4,000 to 5,000
vehicles a year, An ancillary businéss
makes conversion kits that transfolrm used
golf cars into everything from athletic field
ambulances to college campus ﬁreI trucks.

As Chris' business has grown, 50
have his banking needs. Commerce' today
provides M&M Golf Cars with everything
from meichant cards and payroll services,
to an automated loan sweep and foreign
exchange. :

“Our cash needs fluctuate widc;ely
throughout the year,” says Chris. “Our
banker, Ron Hopkins, put together a plan
that puts our company’s money to work
and speeds the time I'm paid on our
teases. It's a great partnership.”

Commerce provided financing for the first six golf cars
be purchased 35 years ago — and tens of thousands more
since, according to Chris Miller, president of M&M Golf Cars.

We ask, tisten and salve.
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A fundamental element of Commerce Bank’s super-
community strategy is the role of our Community
Advisors. We believe that a deep understanding and
a close relationship with the communities we serve
can be achieved only when we are interwoven in the

We ask, listen and solve,
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COMMUNITY ADVISORS

* *
Missouri
BARRY COUNTY CAPE GIRARDEAU CENTRAL MISSOUR!
Donald Cupps Leon Eftink Mike Alden

Ellis, Cupps & Cole

William A. Easley, |r.
Retired,
Commerce Bonk

JoAnne Ellis
Retired Fducator

Phil Hutchens
Huichens Construction

Mike McCracken
Commerce Bank

Eugene Miekley
Miekley and Cupps,

DVM Office

Mike Petrie

Commerce Bancshares, Inc.
Commerce Bank

Keith Shumaker
Shumaker Tire, Inc.

Clive C. Veri
Commerce Bank

Jerry Watley
Able 2 Products Co.

BOLIVAR

lannis Keeling
Keeling Accounting &
Financial Services

Craig Lehman
Shelter Insurance Agency

Robert Moreland
Commerce Bank

Douglas D, Neff
Commerce Bank

Ed Peterson
Century 21
Peterson Real Estate

Dr. C. Pat Taylor

Southwest Baptist University

R.D. Yestal
Vestal Equipment Co., fnc.

The Remodeling Room

W. Cliff Ford
Mount Auburn Praperties, LLC

Alan Gregory
Gregory Construction, Inc.

Gregg E. Hollabaugh

Commerce Bancshares, inc.

Mike Kasten
University of Missouri

Richard R. Kennard
Coad Chevrolet, Inc.
Cood Toyata

Adam Kidd
Kidd's Gas &
Convenience Store

Frank Kinder

Red Letter Communications, inc.

john Layton
Loyton and Southard, LIC

Roger Tolliver
Commerce Bank

Allen Toole
Cape Electrical Supply, inc.

Timothy D. Woedard

Commerce Bank

University of Missouri

Dan Atwill
Atwill & Montgomery,
Attorneys

Brent Beshore
AdVentures, LLC

Brent Bradshaw
Orseheln Management
Company

Morris F. Burger
Burger's Country Cured Hams

Brad Clay
Commerce Bank

Joe Hartman
Retired,
Commerce Bank

Gregg E, Hollabaugh
Commerce Bancshares, {nc.

Ron Hopkins
Commerce Bank

George M. Huffman
Pear! Motor Company

Jack W. Knipp
Knipp Enterprises

Rick Kruse
Retired, Boone National
Sovings & Loan Assac.

Dr, Mike Lutz
Mike Lutr, DDS

David A. Machens
Machens Enterprises

Teresa Maledy
Commerce Bank

Jim McRoberts
McRoberts Farms. Inc.

Mike Petrie
Commerce Bancshares, fne.
Commerce Bank

Robert K. Pugh
MBS Texthook Exchange

Jim Rolls
Retired,
Associated Electric Cooperative

James Schatz
Commerce Bank

Valerie Shaw
Commerce Bank

Sleve Sowers
Commerce Bank

Col. C. R. Stribling, I
Retired,
Missouri Military Academy

Ken Tebow
Commerce Bank

Mel Toellner
Gold Crest Distribuling
& Songhird Station

Larry Webber
Webber Pharmacy

Dr. John §. Williams
Retired,
Horton Animel Hospital

EASTERN JACKSON COUNTY

Kevin G, Barth
Commerce Bancshares, inc.
Commerce Bank

Jason E. Boyer
Commerce Bank

Jackie DeSouza
Lee's Summit Medical Center

Jon Ellis
Paradise Park, Inc.

Gayle Evans
Chinnery, fvans & Noil

Todd E. Gafney
Commerce Bank

fabric of the market. Local civic and business leaders,
serving as Community Advisors, provide the insight
to local needs that ensures Commerce delivers on

its promise. Following are the names of these
ambassadors within each of our markets.

Gary Hawkins
HSMC Certified Public
Accountants, P.C.

Kelly Hooker
Commerce Bank

Robert Hormann
Durvel, Inc.

Robert Lund
Realty Trust Group

Mike Patel
Baloji investment, LLC

Jeanne Rau-Flattery
Milienium International, LLC

Edward |. Reardon, If
Commerce Bank

Robert C. Thompson
Thompson Properties, LLC

HANNIBAL

C. Todd Ahrens
Hannibal Regional Hospital

David M. Bleigh
Bleigh Construction
Company and Bleigh
Regdy Mix Company

Gregg E. Hollabaugh
Commerce Bancshares, Inc.

Jim Humphreys
tuck, Humphreys and
Associates, CPA, PC.

Jerotd {Jerry) W. Lee
Commerce Bank

Darin D. Redd
Commerce Bank

Mike Scholes
Reliable Termite & Pest Controf,
inc.
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HARRISONVILLE
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LEBANON

Aaron Aurand
Crouch, Spangler & Douglas

Connie Aversman
Commerce Bank

Larry Dobson

Real Estate Investments

Mark Hense
IALUSA, LLC

Scott Milner
Milner 0'Quinn
Ford, Lincoln, Mercury

Brent Probasco
Cass Regional Medical Center,
inc.

Aaron Rains
Commerce Bank

Laurence Smith
Reece & Nichols Smith Realty

Larry Snider
Snider & Associates, inc.

Timothy Soulis
Gas Light Properties

JOPLIN -

Jerrod Hogan
Anderson Englneering

David C. Humphreys
TAMKQ Building
Produets, inc.

Dr. Richard E. LaNear
Missouri Southern
State University

Barbara |. Majzoub
Yorktown Properties

Fred Osborn
Mercy

Mike Petrie
Commerce Bancshares, Ire.
Commerce Bank

Eric Schnelie
S&#H Farm Supply, inc.

Todd Stout
Standord Transportation
Services, Inc.

Clive C. Veri
Comimerce Bonk

Kevin G. Barth
1

Commerce Bancshares, Inc.
1

Commerce Bank

\
Clay C. Plair. i
Clay Blair Services Corp.

Ellen z, Darling
Zimmer Campanies

Stephep D. Dunn
). E. Dunn Construction Co., Inc.

Joe Freeman
\
Pioneer Finencial Services, Inc.

Stepheln Gound
Labconco Corp.

C.L W!lliam Haw
Haw Ranch

Jonathan M. Kemper
|
Commerce Bancshares, inc,

Commerce Bark

David I;(iersznowski
DEMDACO

|
Stephen G. Mos
Central States Beveroge Company

Randa‘ll L. O’Donnell, Ph.D.
Children's Mercy Hospital
and Clinics

Edward |. Reardon, I}
Cammelrre Baonk

br. NeEsun R. Sabates
Sobates Eye Centers

Kirk H. Schulz, Ph.D

I
Kansas State University

Charlels 5. Sosland
Sosland Publishing Company

Thomas R, Willard

Tower P|mperr."es

Jerry N. Benson
Retired,
Commerce Bank

Hugh V. Corry
Hardware Electric &
Plumbing Supply Company

Brian Esther
Commerce Bonk

Lester M. Evans
Cettlemon

Douglas D. Neff
Commerce Bank

Harold Storck
Cattleman

Dan M. Waterman
cra

POPLAR BLUFF

Bill R, Brandt

Commerce Bank

John A. Clark
Allorney af Law

Bob Greer
Retired

Gregg E. Hollabaugh
Commerce Bancshares, Inc.

James P. McLane
Mclane Livestock
Transport, Inc.

Mark Melloy
Briggs & Stratton Corp.

Roger Tolliver
Commerce Bank

Ben Traxel
Ditte end Traxel, LIC

Gregory West
Mills lron & Supply

Timothy D. Woodard
Commerce Bonk

ST. JOSEPH

Robert ). Brown, |r.
Robert L. Brown
Lumber Company

James H, Counts
Attorney ot Low

Brett Carolus
Hillyard, Inc.

Rabert S, Dempster
Lommerce Bank

Richard M. DeShon
Civic Leader

Pat Dillon
Heartland Health

Andrew Fent
Commerce Bank

Pete Gray
Gray Automotive
Products Co.

Corky Marquart
Commerce Bank

Brad McAnally
Hy-Vee Food Store

Dr. Scott Murphy
Murphy-Watsan-Burr
Eye Center

Mike Petrie
Commerce Bancshares, Inc.
Commerce Bonk

Edward |. Reardon, Il
Commerce Bank

Matt Robertsen
CliftonLarsenAllen LLP

Judy Sabbert
Heortland Foundation

Emil H. Sechter
Commerce Bank

ST. LOUIS METRO

Blackford F. Brauer
Hunter Engineering Co.

Kyle Chapman
Forsyth Capital Investors

Chartes L. Drury, Ir.
Drury Hatels

Joseph Forshaw, ¥
Forshaw of St. Lowis

James G. Forsyth, lll
Mota, inc.

David S. Grossman
Grossman tron ond Steel

Juanita Hinshaw
H & H Advisars

Donald A. Jubel
Spartan Light Metal Products

David W. Kemper
Commerce Bancshares, Inc.

John W, Kemper
Commerce Bancshares, Inc.

Alois |. Koller, ir.
Koller Enterprises, Inc.

Kristopher G. Kosup
Buckeye International, Inc.

Seth M, Leadbeater
Commerce Bancshares, Inc.
Commerce Bank

James B. Morgan
Subsurface Constructors, Inc,

Victor L. Richey, Jr.
ESCO Technologles, Ing.

Steven F. Schankman
Contemporary Productions, LLC

James E, Schiete
St Louis Screw & Bolt Co.

John {Jack) A. Schreiber
Commerce Bank

Thomas H. Stillman
Summit Distributing

Christine Taylor-Broughton
Enterprise Holdings

Gregory Twardowski
Whelan Security Company

Kelvin R. Westbrook
KRW Advisors, LIC

Patricia D, Whitaker
Arcturis

ST. LOUIS METRO EAST

William Courtney
Helitech Cancrete &
Structural Repair

Thomas Lippert
Liese Lumber Company, Inc.

Robert McClelian
Retired,

Hortica insurance &
Employee Benefits

James Rauckman
Rauckman High Yoltage
Sales, 11

Dr. James T. Rosborg
McKendree University

Jack Schmitt
Jack Schmitt Famity
of Dealerships

Joe Wiley
Quest Management Consultants

Dr. Charles ). Willey
inngvare Health Advocates
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ST. LOUIS SQUTH

Michael D, Allen
Hoyo Gptical

Phillip j. Amato
Retired

Scott Lively
CiftontarsonAtlen LLP

Thomas E. Muzzey
Orchard Farm School District

Louis j. Naeger
Semi-retired,
Crouch, farley & Heuring, PC.

Lee Thurman
Thurman, Shinn
and Company

ST. LOUIS WEST

Cyrus Blackmore
Blackmore & Glunt, fnc.

Richard K. Brunk

Attorney at Law

James K. Foster
McMahon Berger

Jack Hoffmann
Milestone Solutions

Richard E. Hrabko
Retired

Herbert (Herb) 5. Jones
Messenger Printing &
Publishing, Inc.

Stephen Mattis

Allied Industrial Equipment
Corporation

Richard C. Mueller, Jr.
Bopp Funeral Chapel

Greg W. Schmittgens
CliftontarsonAller LLP

Stuart Krawli
Bearn of 5t. Louis, Inc.

Howard M. Rosen
Conner Ash, PC.

ST. LOUIS EAST
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SPRINGFIELD

Roger Campbell, Jr,

Lampbell Ford-Mercury, Inc.

James P. Ferguson
Heart of America

Tino Difrance
Trapicana Bowling Lanes

). L. Juggle) Hinduja
Sinclair industries, Inc.
Myron ). Klevens

Organizational Development
Strategies

Patrick N. Lawlor

tawlor Corporotion

Lisa McLaughlin
Poisinelli

McGraw Milhaven
Talk Show Host - KTRS

Scott Polzin
Aberdeen Heights

Dennis Scharf
Scharf Tox Services

fichard C. Ward
2immer Recl Estote Services,
L.C./ONCOR iInternational

ST. CHARLES COUNTY/NORTH

Beverage Co.

Charles R, Greene
Husch Blackwell, LLP

Bunch Greenwade
Rancher

Robert A,
Hammerschmidt, Jr.
Commerce Bank

John Himmel
Retired,
Commerce Bonk

Seth M. Leadbeater
Commerce Bancshares, Inc.
Commerce Bank

Mary Kay Meek
Try-Meek, Inc.

Alvin D. Meeker
Retired.
Commerce Bonk

James F. Moore
investments

David Murray

Gaspare Calvaruso
SSM St joseph Health Center

Ronald D. Chesbrough
St. Chartes Community College

James D, Evans
President,
Lindenwood University

Peter }. Mihelich, Jr.
Goellner Promotions

Duane A, Mueller
Cissell Mueller Canstruction
Company

Howard A. Nimmons
CPA, CFP
Nimmons Wealth Monagement

Tarlton ). Pitman
Pitman Funeral Home, inc.

Willlam ). Zollmann, tI
Attorney at Law

Don Zykan
Zykan Properties

R.B. Murray Company

Douglas D. Neff
Commerce Bonk

Keith Noble
Commerce Bank

Richard Ollis
llis & Company Insurers

Mike Petrie
Commerce Bancshares, Inc.
Commerce Bank

B. Gtenn Robinson
Grand Country Square

Kansas

BUTLER {QUNTY
(EL DORADO}

Eugene 5. Adams
Retived

Marilyn B. Pauly
Commerce Bank

Mark Utech

Commerce Bank

Dr, Jackie Vietti
Butler Community College

COLUMBUS

Jay Hatfield
Jay Hatfieid Chevrolet

Wesley C. Houser
Retired,
Commerce Bank

Don Kirk
H & K Campers inc.

Mike Petrie

Commerce Bancshares, inc.

Commerce Bank

jane Rhinehart
Commerce Bank

Darrel Shumake
Attorney ot Law

Clive C, Veri
Commerce Bank

GARDEN CITY

Richard Harp
Lommerce Bank

Dr, Gloria Hopkins
Fry Eye Associates

Drennis Kleysteuber
Kleysteuber & Gillen Inc,

Gerald Miller
Commerce Bank

Mike Petrie

Commerce Bancshares, Inc.

{ommerce Bank

Lee Reeve
Reeve Cattle Company

Patrick Rooney
Rooney Agri Business

Pat Sullivan
Suiiivan Analytical
Service, Inc.

Bob Tempel
WindRiver Grain, (L

HAYS

D.G. Bickle, |r.
Worehouse, Inc.

Kurt David
tagle Communications, Inc.

Earnest A, Lehman
Midwest Energy., Inc.

Stuart Lowry
Sunflower Llectric Power
Carporation

Marty Patterson
Rome Corporotion
Mike Petrie

Commerce Bancshares, Inc.
Commerce Bank

Kevin Royer
Midland Marketing Co-op

Thomas L. Thomas
Commoerce Bank
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|
JOHNSON COUNTY - LAWRENCE MANHATTAN
|
Kevin G, Barth J. Scot Buxton Kelly Briggs
Commerce Bancshares, inc. Willis Group Bayer Construction
Commerce Bank .
mmer Martin B.I Dickinson, Jr. Tom Giller
Damond Boatwright SchroederIProfessor of Law, Commerce Bank
Overfand Park Regional University of Kansas Dr. Jackle L. Hartman
Medical Center L
Mark Heilder Kansas State University
im Dennin Commerce Bank
! ) ) »s merca ban Neal Helmick
Discaver Vision )
Evan lce Griffith Lumber Co.
Todd E. Gafne h LLLP "
y Stephens & Brond, LL Rich Jankavich
Lommerce Bank
Eugene W, Meyer Commerce Bunk
II;:;CD: CWO Hart Lawrence Memarial Hospital Dr. All Matekzadeh
Martin \‘! Moore Kansas State University
Chris Herre Advanco, Inc.

Rose Construction Co., Inc.

Pat Olney

Commerce Bank

Charles D, Peters
Peters & Associales

Edward |. Reardan, Il
Commerce Bank

Thomas K. Rogge
Cramer Products

Daniel E. Sight

Reece Commercial

Kevin Winters
[a:174

Kevin }. p'Maltey
O'Malley Beverages
of Kansasl. Inc.

|
Edward ). Reardon, Il
Commerce Bank

|
Dan C, sllmons

The World Company
|

Michael Treanor
]
Treanor Architects, PA.

LEAVENWORTH

Dr. David Pauls
Surgical Associates

Mike Petrle
Commerce Bancshares, Inc.
Commerce Bank

L.W. Stolzer
Griffith Lumber Co.

PITTSBURG

i
I Sanfo‘rd Bushman
DeMaranville & Associate,
CPAs, LIC

Norman B. Dawson
r
Retired,
Cammerg:e Bancshares, Inc.

Shemry DeMaranville
DeMaranville and

o
Associates

Mark Dlerlney
LF. Denr:‘ey Plumbing
& Heating

]eremy“ Greenamyre
The Greenamyre Companies

Lawrence W. O'Donnell, Jr.

Lawrenc'e W. O'Donnell, fr.,
CPA Chartered

i
Bill Petrie
Comme'rce Bank

Edward |. Reardon, Il
|
Commerce Bank

1
Robert D. Schmitt, I}
Mama Mia's, Inc.

Kurt Seelbach

|
President, Armed forces
Insusance Exchonge

Dr. Thomas W. Bryant
Pittsburg State University

Todd Coleman
Miller’s Professional imaging

Harvey R. Dean
Pitsco, inc.

Joe Dellasega
(.5, Awards

Adam Endicott
Unique Metal
Fabrication, Inc.

Mike Petrie
Commerce Boncshares, Inc.
Commerce Bank

Ronald L. Rhodes
Rhodes Grocery, Inc.

Steve W. Sloan
Midwest Minerals, Inc.

COMMERCE BARCSHARES, INC, 2013 ANNUAL REPORT

Brian Sutton
Commerce Bank

Clive C. Verl
Commerce Bank

Judith A. Westhoff
Retlired,
Commerce Bank

Wendell L. Wilkinson
Retired,
Commerce Bank

RENO COUNTY
(HUTCHINSON)

John C. Clevenger
Commerce Bank

Steven B. Harper

Netwark Management Group, Inc.

Brett Mattison
Decker & Mattisen Company

john Munds
V&M Transport, Inc.

WICHITA

Dr. john Bardo
Wichita State University

Michael P. Brown
College Hill 0B/GYN

Michael E. Bukaty
Retired,
Lotshaw Enterprises, Inc.

John C, Clevenger
Commerce Bank

Ray L. Connell
Connel! & Connelf

Monte A. Cook
Commerce Bank

Thomas E. Dondlinger
Dondlinger & Sons
Construction Co., Inc.

Ronald W. Holt
Sedgwick Coupry

Eric E. Ireland
Commerce Bank

Fran D. Jabara
Jabarae Ventures Group

Paul 0. Jackson
Yantage Point Properties, Inc.

Seth M, Leadbeater
Commerce Bancshares, Inc.
Commerce Bank

Gaylyn K. McGregor
Commerce Bank

Derek L. Park

Law Office of Derek Park, L1C

Marityn B. Pauly
Commerce Bank

Mike Petrie
Commerce Bancshares, ing.
Commerce Bank

Barry L. Schwan
House of Schwan, Inc.

Collin Stieben
Commerce Bank

Thomas D. White
White & Ellis Crifling, Inc.



Ilinois

BLOOMINGTON-NORMAL

Julle Dobski
Little Jewels Learning Center
McDonald’s

Brent A. Eichelberger
Commerce Bonk

Ron Greene
Afni, Inc.

Gregg E. Hotlabaugh

Commerce Bancshares, Inc.

Farker Kemp
Kemp Farms, Inc.

Raobert Lakin
Commerce Bank

Seth M. Leadbeater
Commerce Bancshares, Inc.
Commerce Bank

Thomas Mercier
Bloomington Offset
Process, int.

Dennis Myers
Myers, inc.

Aaron Quick
Farnsworth Group, inc,

Jay Reece
Mueller, Reece & Hinch, LIC

Alan Sender
Chestaut Health Systems

CHAMPAIGN-URBANA

Mark Arends
Arends Brothers, inc.

Paul Donohue
Provena Covenant
Medicai Center

Brian Egeberg
Commerce Bank

Tim Harrington
Devonshire Group

Gregg E. Hollabaugh

Commerce Bancshares, Inc.

Robert Lakin
Commerce Bank

Kim Martin
Martin, Hood, Friese &
Associates, LLC

Roger Rhodes
Horizon Hobby, Inc.

We ask, listen and solve
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Oklahoma
PEORIA OKLAHOMA CITY
Bruce L. Alkire Ron Atchley
Coldwell Barker Commerciol Atchley Resources
Devonshire Realty Gary Bridwell

Daniel }. Altorfer
United Facilities, inc.

Peter T. Coyle
Gallagher Covie

Brent A. Eichelberger
Commerce Bank

Lowell G, “Bud™ Grieves
Mark Twain Hote!

Gregg E. Holtabaugh
Commerce Bancshares, Inc.

Seth M, Leadbeater
Commerce Bancshares, inc.
Commerce Bank

Dr, James W. Maxey
Great Plains Orthopaedics

Edward . Scott
Caterpillar, inc.

Timothy F. Shea
Peoria Builders

janet M. Wright
Cenlral ilinGis Business
Publishers, inc.

Ditch Witch of Gkighoma

Steve Brown
Red Rock Distributing, inc.

Jeb Cook

Commerce Bank

Charlie Crouse
Commerce Bank

Zane Fleming
Eagle Orifling Fluids

Mike McDonald
Triod Energy

Dr. Gabe Pitman
Neurologic Specialist

Kelly 5achs

Commerce Bank

Joe Warren
Cimarron Production

Jim Young
Commerce Bank

TULSA

Jack Allen
HUB international CFR

R. Scott Case
Case & Associotes
Properties. Inc.

Gary Christopher
Christoper Energy
Jeffery Davis

U.S, Beef Corporation

Wade Edmundson
Commerce Bank

Or. Jehn Frame

Breast Health Specialists
of Oklahoma

Gip Gibson

Commerce Bank

Kent Harrell
Harrell Energy

Carl Hudgins
Commerce Bank

Bruce Humphrey
Commerce Bonk

Ed Keller
Titen Resources

Teresa Knox
Community Care Coliege

P. Ken Lackey
The NORDAM Group, Inc.

Dr. George Mauerman
Eastern Oklahoma
Orthopedic Center

Tom Maxwell
Flintco, LLC

Sanjay Meshri
Advanced Research Chemitals

John Neas
Neas investments

Shannen 0'Doherty
Lommerce Bank

D. Lindsay Perkins
Lindsay Develcpment

Tracy Poole
New Gulf Energy

John Turner
First Stuart Corporation

John Williams
John Williams Company

Daryl Woodard
SageNer

Colorado

DENVER

Robert L. Cohen
The IMA Financiol Group, Inc.

Thomas A. Cycyota
AftoSource

Mark Danzo, 0.D.
20/20 institute

Joseph Freund, Jr.
Running Creek Rancht

R. Allan Fries
i2 Construction, LLP

Darren Lemkay
Lommerce Bank

James . Lewlen
Lornmerce Bonk

Randall H. Lortscher, M.D.
Rocky Mountoin Gamma Knife
Center, LLC

Sherman R. Miller
University of Colorado ~
Reol Estate Depgriment

Robin H. Wise
Junior Achievement -
Rocky Mountain, inc,

Jason Zickerman
The Alternative Board




Officers'

David W. Kemper
Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer

Jonathan M. Kemper
Vice Chairman

Seth M. Leadbeater

Vice Chairman

* T
Directors
Terry D. Bassham*
Choirman of the Board, Chief
Executive Officer and President of
Greal Plains Energy, KCP&L, and
Greater Missouri Operations

John R, Capps*
Vice President,
BC} Mators, inc.

Earl H. Devanny, Il
Retired Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer
and President,

The TriZetto Group

“Audit Committee Members
‘As of january 31, 2014

t

I
John W. Il(emper
President ?nd
Chief Operating Officer

Charles I‘.‘S Kim
Chief Firancial Officer

|
and Executive Vite President

Kevin G.! Barth
Executive Vice President

!
I

i
W, Tho:lnas Grant, ||

President,

1
SetechuFre Senior
Insurance Services

James B. Hebenstreit*

1
Chief Exefu tive Officer
and President,

!
Bartlett and Company

David W. Kemper
Chairmat-.- of the Bpard

1
ond Chief Executive Officer,
Commerrce Bancshares, inc.
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Daniel D, Callzhan
Executive Vice President
and Chief Credit Officer

Sara E. Foster
Executive Vice President

V. Raymond Stranghoener

Executive Vice President

Jonathan M. Kemper
Vice Chairman,
Commerce Bancshares, Inc,

Terry 0. Meek
President,
Meek Lumber Yord, inc.

Benjamin F. Rassieur, lII*
President,
Pgule Products Company

COMMERCE BANCSHARES, INC. 2013 ANNUAL REPORT

|effery M. Burik

Senior Vice President

Michael ). Petrie
Senior Vice President

Robert |. Rauscher
Senior Vice President

Todd R. Schnuck*
President and

Chief Operating Gfficer,
Schnuck Markets, inc.

Andrew C. Taylor
Executive Chairman,
Enterprise Holdings, Inc.

Thomas |. Noack
Vice President, Secretary
and Generol Counsel

Jeffery D. Aberdeen
Cantrolfer

Keith E. Baker
Auditor

Kimberly G. Walker*
Chief Investment Officer,
Waoshington University

in St. Louis
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PART 1

Item 1, BUSINESS
General

Commerce Bancshares, Inc,, a bank holding company as defined in the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended, was
incorporated under the laws of Missouri on August 4, 1966. Through a second tier wholly-owned bank holding company, it owns
alt of the outstanding capital stock of Commerce Bank (the “Bank”), which is headquartered in Missouri. The Bank engages in
general banking business, providing a broad range of retail, corporate, investment, trust, and asset management products and
services to individuals and businesses. Commerce Bancshares, Inc. also owns, directly or through the Bank, various non-banking
subsidiaries. Their activities include underwriting credit life and credit accident and health insurance, seiling property and casualty
insurance (relating to consumer loans made by the Bank), private equity investment, securities brokerage, mortgage banking, and
leasing activities. A list of Commerce Bancshares, Inc.'s subsidiaries is included as Exhibit 21.

Commerce Bancshares, Inc. and its subsidiaries (collectively, the "Company") is one of the nation’s top 50 bank holding
companies, based on asset size. At December 31, 2013, the Company had consolidated assets of $23.1 billion, loans of $11.0
billion, deposits of $19.0 billion, and equity of $2.2 billion. All of the Company’s operations conducted by its subsidiaries are
consolidated for purposes of preparing the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s goal is to be the preferred provider of targeted financial services in its communities, based on strong customer
relationships. it believes in building long-term relationships based on top quality service, a strong risk management culture, and
a strong balance sheet with industry-leading capital levels. The Company operates under a super-community banking format
which incorporates large bank product ofterings coupled with deep local market knowledge, augmented by expetienced, centralized
support in select critical areas. The Company’s focus on local markets is supported by an experienced team of managers assigned
to each market and is also reflected in its financial centers and regional advisory boards, which are comprised of local business

* persons, professionals and other community representatives, who assist the Company in respending to local banking needs. In
addition to this local market, community-based focus, the Company offers sophisticated financial products available at much larger

financial institutions.

The Company's banking facilities are located throughout Missouri, Kansas, and central Illinois, as well as Tulsa and Oklahoma
City, Oklahoma and Denver, Colorado. Its two largest markets include St. Louis and Kansas City, which serve as the central hubs
for the entire Company.

The markets the Bank serves, being located in the lower Midwest, provide natural sites for production and distribution facilities
and also serve as transportation hubs. The economy has been well-diversified in these markets with many major industries
represented, including telecommunications, automobile, aircrafi and general manufacturing, health care, numerous service
industries, food production, and agricultural production and related industries. The real estate lending operations of the Bank are
cenlered in its lower Midwestern markets, Historically, these markets have tended to be less volatile than in other parts of the
country. Management believes the diversity and nature of the Bank’s markets has a mitigating effect on real estate loan losses in
these markets and were key factors in the Bank’s relatively lower loan loss levels stemming from the 2008 financial crisis.

From 't_ime to time, the Company evaluates the potential acquisition of various financial institutions. In addition, the Company
regularly considers the potential disposition of certain assets and branches. The Company seeks merger or acquisition partners
that are culturally similar, have experienced management and either possess significant market presence or have potential for
improved profitability through financial management, economies of scale and expanded services. On September 1, 2013, the
Company accjuired Summit Bancshares [nc. (Summit). The Company's acquisition of Summit added $261.6 miltion in assets
(including $207.4 million in loans), $232.3 million in deposits and two branch locations in Tulsa and Oklahoma City, Oklahoma.

The Company employed 4,311 persons on a full-time basis and 578 persons on a part-time' basis at December 31, 2013, The
Company provides a variety of benefit programs including a 401 (k) plan as well as group life, health, accident, and other insurance.
The Company, also maintains training and educational programs designed to address the significant and changing regulations
facing the financial services industry and prepare employees for positions of increasing responsibility.

Cdmpetition :

" The Company faces intense competition from hundreds of financial service providers. It competes with national and state
banks for deposits, toans and trust accounts, and with savings and loan associations and credit unions for deposits and consumer
lending products. In addition, the Company competes with other financial intermediaries such as securities brokers and dealers,
personal loan companies, insurance companies, finance companies, and certain governmental agencies. With the passage of the
Gramm-Leach-Bliley Financial Modernization Act of 1999 (GLB Act), competition has increased over time from institutions not
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subject to the same regulatory restrictions as domestic banks and bank holding companies. The Company generally competes on
the basis of customer service and responsiveness to customer needs, reputation, interest rates on loans and deposits, lending limits,
and customer convenience, such as location of offices. The Company has approximately 13% of the deposit market share in
Kansas City and approximately 9% of the deposit market share in St. Louis.

Operating Segments

The Company is managed in three operating segments. The Consumer segment includes the retail branch network, consumer
installment lending, personal mortgage banking, consumer debit and credit bank card activities. It provides services through a
network of 202 full-service branches, a widespread ATM network of 398 machines, and the use of alternative delivery channels
such as extensive online banking and telephone banking services. In 2013, this retail segment contributed 20% of total segment
pre-tax income. The Commercial segment provides a full array of corporate lending, merchant and commercial bank card products,
leasing, and international services, as well as business and government deposit and cash management services. Fixed income
investments are sold to individuals and institutional investors through the Capital Markets Group, which is atse included in this
segment. In 2013, the Commercial segment contributed 64% of total segment pre-tax income. The Wealth segment provides
traditional trust and estate tax planning services, brokerage services, and advisory and discretionary investment portfolio
management services te both personal and institutional corporate customers, At December 31, 2013, the Trust group managed
investments with a market value of $20.4 billion and administered an additional $14.8 billion in non-managed assets. This segment
also manages the Company’s family of proprietary mutual funds, which are available for sale to both trust and general retail
customers. Additional information relating to operating segments can be found on pages 44 and 88.

Government Policies .

The Company's operations are affected by federal and state legislative changes, by the United States government, and by
policies of various regulatory authorities, including those of the numerous states in which they operate. These include, for example,
the statutory minimum legal lending rates, domestic monetary policies of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System,
United States fiscal policy, international currency regulations and monetary policies, the U.S. Patriot Act, and capital adequacy

and liquidity constraints imposed by federal and state bank regulatory agencies.

Supervision and Regulation

The following information summarizes existing laws and regulations that materially affect the Company's operations. It does
not discuss all provisions of these laws and regulations and it does not include all laws and regulations that affect the Company
presently or may affect the Company in the future.

General

The Company, as a bank holding company, is primarily regulated by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System
under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 (BHC Act). Under the BHC Act, the Federal Reserve Board’s prior approval is
required in any case in which the Company proposes to acquire all or substantially al! of the assets of any bank, acquire direct or
indirect ownership or control of more than 5% of the voting shares of any bank, or merge or consolidate with any other bank
holding company. With certain exceptions, the BHC Act also prohibits the Company from acquiring direct or indirect ownership
or control of more than 5% of any class of voting shares of any non-banking company. Under the BHC Act, the Company may
not engage in any business other than managing and controlling banks or furnishing certain specified services to subsidiaries and
may not acquire voting control of non-banking companies unless the Federal Reserve Board determines such businesses and
services to be closely related to banking. When reviewing bank acquisition applications for approval, the Federal Reserve Board
considers, among other things, the Bank’s record in meeting the credit needs of the communities it serves in accordance with the
Community Reinvestment Act of 1977, as amended (CRA). Under the terms of the CRA, banks have a continuing obligation,
consistent with safe and sound operation, to help meet the credit needs of their communities, including providing credit to individuals
residing in low- and moderate-income areas. The Bank has a current CRA rating of “outstanding”.

The Company is required to file with the Federal Reserve Board various reports and additional information the Federal Reserve
Board may require. The Federal Reserve Board also makes regular examinations of the Company and its subsidiaries. The
Company’s banking subsidiary, is a state chartered Federal Reserve member bank and is subject to regulation, supervision and
examination by the Federal Reserve Bank of Kansas City and the State of Missouri Division of Finance. The Bank is also subject
to regulation by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). In addition, there are numerous other federal and state iaws
and regulations which control the activities of the Company and the Bank, including requirements and limitations relating to capital
and reserve requirements, permissible investments and lines of business, transactions with affiliates, loan limits, mergers and
acquisitions, issuance of securities, dividend payments, and extensions of credit. if the Company fails to comply with these or
other applicable laws and regulations, it may be subject to civil monetary penalties, imposition of cease and desist orders or other
written directives, removal of management and, in certain circumstances, criminal penalties. This regulatory framework is intended
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primarily for the protection of depositors and the preservation of the federal deposit insurance funds, not for the protection of
security holders. Statutory and regulatory controls increase a bank holding company’s cost of domg business and limit the options
of its management to employ assets and maximize income.

In addition to its regulatory powers, the Federal Reserve Bank affects the conditions under which the Company opefates by
its influence over the national supply of bank credit. The Federal Reserve Board employs open market operations in U.S. government
securities and oversees changes in the discount rate on bank borrowings, changes in the federal funds rate on overnight inter-bank
borrowmgs and changes in reserve requirements on bank deposits in implementing its monetary pohcy objectives. These methods
are used in varying combinations to influence the overall level of the interest rates charged on loaris and paid for deposits, the
price of the dollar in foreign exchange markets, and the level of inflation. The monetary pollcaes of the Federal Reserve have a
significant effect on the operating results of financial institutions, most notably on the interest rate environment. In view of changing
conditions in the national economy and in the money markets, as well as the effect of credit policies of monetary and fiscal
authorities, no prediction can be made as to possible future changes in interest rates, deposit levels or loan demand, or their effect
on the financial statements of the Company. '

The financial industry operates under laws and regulations that are under constant review by various agencies and legislatures
and are subject to sweeping change. The Company currently operates as a bank holding company, as defined by the GLB Act, and
the Bank qualifies as a financial subsidiary under the Act, which allows it to engage in investment banking, insurance agency,
brokerage, and underwriting activities that were not available to banks prior to the GLB Act. The GLB Act also included privacy
provisions that limit banks’ abilities to disclose non-public information about customers to non-affiliated entities.

The Company must also comply with the requirements of the Bank Secrecy Act (BSA). The BSA is designed to help fight
drug trafficking, money laundering, and other crimes, Compliance is monitored by the Federal Reserve. The BSA was enacted
to prevent banks and other financial service providers from being used as intermediaries for, or to hide the transfer or deposit of
money derived from, criminal activity. Since its passage, the BSA has been amended several times. These amendments include
the Money Laundering Control Act of 1986. which made money laundering a criminal act, as well as the Money Laundering
Suppression Act of 1994 which required regulators to develop enhanced examination procedures and increased examiner training
to improve the identification of money laundering schemes in financial institutions.

The  USA PATRIOT Act, established in 2001, substaﬁtially broadened the scope of U.S. anti-meney laundering laws and
regulations by imposing significant new compliance and due diligence obligations, creating new crimes and penalties and expanding
the extra-territorial jurisdiction of the United States. The regulations impose obligations on financial institutions to maintain
appropriate policies, procedures and controls to detect, prevent, and report money laundering and terrorist financing. The
regulations include significant penalties for non-compliance.

Subsidiary Bank

Under Federal Reserve policy, the bank holding company, Commerce Bancshares, Inc. (the "Parent"), is expected to act as a
source of financial strength to its bank subsidiary and to cbm!'n.it resources to support it in circumstances when it might not otherwise
do so. In addition, loans by & bank holding company to any of its subsidiary banks are subordinate in right of payment to deposits
and to certain other indebtedness of such subsidiary banks. In the event of a bank holding company’s bankruptcy, any commitment
by the bank holding company to a federal bank regulatory agency to maintain the capital of a subsidiary bank will be assumed by
the bankruptcy trustee and entitled to a priority of payment,

Deposit Insurance

Substantially all of the deposits of the Bank are insured up to the applicable limits by the Bank Insurance Fund of the FDIC,
generally up to $250,000 per depositor, for each account ownership category. The Bank pays deposit insurance premiums to the
FDIC based on an assessment rate established by the FDIC for Bank Insurance Fund member institutions. The FDIC classifies
institutions under a risk-based assessment system based on their perceived risk to the federal deposit insurance funds. The current
assessment base is defined as average total assets minus average tangible equity, with other adjustments for heavy use of unsecured
liabilities, secured liabilities, brokered deposits,-and holdings of unsecured bank debt. For banks with more than $10 billion in
assets, the FDIC uses a scorecard designed to measure financial performance and ability to withstand stress, in addition to measuring
the FDIC’s exposure should the bank fail. The Company's FDIC insurance expense was $11.2 million in 2013, $10.4 million in
2012, and $13.1 million in 2011 .

Payment of Dividends

The Federal Reserve Board may prOhlblt the payment of cash dividends to shareholders by bank holding companies if their
actions constitute unsafe or unsound practices. The principal source of the Parent's cash revenues’is cash dividends paid by the
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Bank. The amount of dividends paid by the Bank in any calendar year is limited to the net profit of the current year combined
with the retained net profits of the preceding two years, and permission must be obtained from the Federal Reserve Board for
dividends exceeding these amounts. The payment of dividends by the Bank may also be affected by factors such as the maintenance
of adequate capital.

Capital Adequacy

The Company is required to comply with the capnal adequacy standards established by the Federal Reserve. These capital
adequacy guidelines genera!ly require bank holding companies to maintain minimum total capital equal to 8% of total risk-adjusted
assets and off-balance sheet items (the “Total Risk-Based Capital Ratio™), with at least one-half of that amount consisting of Tier
I, or core capital, and the remaining amount consisting of Tier [1, or supplementary capital. Tier [ capital for bank holding companies
generally consists of the sum of common shareholders’ equity, qualifying non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock, a limited
amount of qualifying cumulative perpetual preferred stock and minority interests in the equity accounts of consolidated subsidiaries,
less goodwitl and other non-qualifying intangible assets. Tier Il capital generally consists of hybrid capital instruments, term
subordinated debt and, subject to limitations, general allowances for loan losses. Assets are adjusted under the risk-based guidelines
to take into account different risk characteristics.

In addition, the Federal Reserve also requires bank holding companies to comply with minimum leverage ratio requirements.
The leverage ratio is the ratio of a banking organization’s Tier | capital to its total consolidated quarterly average assets (as defined
for regulatory purposes), net of the allowance for loan losses, goodwill and certain other intangible assets. The minimum leverage
ratio for bank holding companies is 4%. At December 31, 2013, the Company was “well-capitalized” under regulatory capital
adequacy standards, as further discussed on page 91.

in July 2013 the FDIC, the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency and the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System approved a final rule to implement in the United States the Basel I11 regulatory capital reforms from the Basel Committee
on Banking Supervision and certain changes required by the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (Dodd-
Frank Act). A key goal of the Basel [1] agreement is to strengthen the capital resources of banking organizations during normal
and chalienging business environments. The Basel 1 final rule increases minimum requirements for both the quantity and quality
of capital held by banking organiZations. The rule includes a new minimum ratio of common equity tier | capital to risk-weighted
assets of 4.5% and a common equity tier | capital conservation buffer of 2.5% of risk-weighted assets, The final rule also adjusted-
the methodology for calculating risk-weighted assets to enhance risk sensitivity. Beginning January 1, 2015, the Company must
be compliant with revised minirﬁum regulatory capital ratios and will begin the transitional period for definitions of regulatory
capital and regulatory capital adjustments and deductions established under the final rule. Compliance with the risk-weighted
asset calculations is also required on January 1, 2015. Management believes that as of December 31, 2013, the Company's capital
levels would remain "well-capitalized” under the new rules.

Significant Legislation Affecting the Company

in July 2010, the Dodd-Frank Act was signed into law. The Dodd-Frank Act is sweeping legislation intended to
overhaul regulation of the financial services industry. Its implementation requires continuous new rulemaking and reporting over
the foreseeable future. Among its many provisions, the Dodd-Frank Act established a new council of “systemic risk” regulators,
empowers the Federal Reserve to supervise the largest, most complex financial companies, aliows the government to seize and
liquidate failing financial companies, and gives regulators new powers to oversee the derivatives market.

The Dodd-Frank Act also established the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (CFPB) and authorized it to supervise certain
consumer financial services companies and large depository institutions and their affiliates for consumer protection purposes.
Subject to the provisions of the Act, the CFPB has responsibility to implement, examine for compliance with, and enforce “Federal
consumet financial law:” As a depository institution, the Company is subject to examinations by the CFPB, which focus on the
Company’s ability to detect, prevent, and correct pracuces that present a significant risk of violating the law and causing consumer
harm. - T

In 2011, the Federal Reserve, under the provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act, approved a final debit card interchange rule that
significantly limited the amount of debit card interchange fees charged by banks. The rule capped an issuer’s base fee at 21 cents
per transaction and allowed additional fees to help cover fraud losses. The pricing was a reduction of approximately 45% when
compared to previous market rates. The ruie also limited network exclusivity, requiring issuers to ensure that a debit card transaction
can be carried on two unaffiliated networks: one signature-based and one PIN-based. The rules applied to bank issuers with more
than $10 billion in assets and took effect in phases, with the base fee cap effective in Qctober 2011 and the network exclusivity
ruleeffectivein April 2012. OnJuly 31,2013, a Federal District Court judge ruled that the Federal Reserve inflated debit interchange
fees when implementing the Dodd-Frank provision in 2011, The judge ruled that the Federal Reserve erred in using criteria outside
of the scope Congress intended to determine the fee cap. The judge also ruled that the network options for both signature and PIN
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transactions were not set appropriately in accordance with the Dodd-Frank Act. The:-Federal Reserve appealed this decision on
August 21, and the decision has been stayed during the appeal process. If not overturned on appeal, this ruling could significantly
affect debit fees for the banking industry and for the Company. However, these developments are preliminary and the impact on
the Company is not determinable at this time.

In October 2012, the Federal Reserve, as required by the Dodd-Frank Act, approved new stress testing regulations applicable
to certain financial companies with total consolidated assets of more than $10 billion but less than $50 billion. The rule requires
that these financial companies, mcludmg the Company, conduct stress tests on an annual basis. The stress tests will have an as-
of date of September 30, 2013 using scenarios provided by the Federal Reserve in November 2013 (projected nine months out).
The Company is required to submit regulatory reports on its stress test results to the Federal Reserve by March 31, 2014. By June
30, 2015, the Company will be required to make public disclosures of the results of the 2015 stress tests performed under the
severely adverse scenario.

In December 2013, the Volcker Rule of the Dodd-Frank Act was approved by all five of the necessary financial regulatory
agencies, and becomes effective on April 1, 2014, The rule places trading restrictions on financial institutions, and separates
investment banking, private equity and proprietary trading (hedge fund) sections of financial institutions from their consumer
lending arms. Key provisions restrict banks from simultaneously entering into advisory and creditor roles with their clients, such
as with private equity firms. The Volcker Rule also restricts financial institutions from investing in and sponsoring certain types
of investments, which must be divested by July 21, 2015. The Company does not believe it will be significantly affected by the
Volcker Rule provisions.

Available Information

The Company’s principal offices are located at 1000 Walnut, Kansas City, Missouri (telephone number 816-234-2000), The
Company makes available free of charge, through its Web site at www.commercebank.com, reports filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission as soon as reasonably practicable after the electronic filing. These filings include the annual report on
Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q}, current reports on Form 8-K, and all amendments to those reports.

Statistical Disclosure

The information required by Securities Act Guide 3 — “Statistical Disclosure by Bank Holding Companies” is located on the
pages noted below.
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Item la. RISK FACTORS.

Making or continuing an mvcstment in securities issued by Commerce Bancshares, Inc., including its common stock, involves
certain risks that you should carefully consider, If any of the followmg risks actually occur; its business, financial condition or
resuits of operations could be negatively affected, the market price for your securities could decline, and you could iose all or a
part of your investment. Further, to the extent that any of the information contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K constitutes
forward-iooking statements, the risk factors set forth below also are cautionary statements identifying important factors that could
cause the Company’s actual results to differ materialtly from those expressed in any forward-looking statements made by or on

" behalf of Commerce Bancshares, Inc.
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Difficult market conditions may affect the Company’s industry.

The concentration of the Company’s banking business in the United States particularly exposes it to downturns in the U.S.
economy. While economic conditions have improved significantly over the past several years, there remain risks that could
undermine these recent improvements.

In particular, the Company may face the following risks in connection with these market conditions:

. High unemployment levels and weak economic activity may affect consumer confidence tevels and may cause declines
in consumer credit usage, adverse changes in payment patterns, and higher loan delinquencies and default rates. These
could impact the Company’s future loan losses and provision for loan losses, as a significant part of the Company’s
business includes consumer and credit card lending.

. Reduced levels of economic activity may also cause declines in financial service transactions, including bank card,
corporate cash management and other fee businesses, as well as the fees earned by the Company on such transactions.

. The Company’s ability to assess the creditworthiness of its customers may be impaired if the models and approaches it
uses to select, manage, and underwrite its customers become less predictive of future behaviors, causing higher future
credit losses.

. The process used to estimate losses inherent in the Company’s loan portfolio requires difficult, subjective, and complex
judgments, including forecasts of economic conditions and how these economic predictions might impair the ability of
its borrowers to repay their loans. If an instance occurs that renders these predictions no longer capable of accurate
estimation, this may in turn impact the reliability of the process.

. Competition in the industry could intensify as a result of the increasing consolidation of financial services companies in
connection with current market conditions, thereby reducing market prices for various products and services which could
i turn reduce Company revenues.

. If the level of bank failures rise, the Company may be required to pay high levels of FDEC premiums for extended periods
of time.

. The U.S. economy is also affected by foreign economic events. Although the Company does not hold foreign debt, global
conditions affecting interest rates, business export activity, capital expenditures by businesses, and investor confidence
may negatively affect the Company by means of reduced loan demand or reduced transaction volume with the Company.

Significant changes in banking laws and regulations could materially affect the Company’s business.

As a result of the 2008 banking crisis, a significant increase in bank regulation has occurred. A number of new laws and
regulations have been implemented, including those which reduce overdraft fees, credit card revenues, and revenues from student
lending activities. These regulations have resulted in lower revenues and higher operating costs. As discussed in Item 1, the Dodd-
Frank Act passed in July 2010 contains significant complex regulations for all financial institutions. Among its many provisions
are rules which established a new council of “systemic risk” regulators, created a new. consumer protection division within the
Federal Reserve, empower the Federal Reserve to supervise the largest, most complex financial companies, allow the government
to seize and liquidate failing financial companies, and give regulators new powers to oversee the derivatives market.

Because the Company has maintained a strong balance sheet and has not offered many of the complex financial products that
were prevalent in the marketplace, there are a number of provisions within the Dodd-Frank Act, including higher capital standards,
improved lending transparency and risk-based FDIC insurance assessments, that management does not expect to negatively affect
the Company’s future financial results. However, the Company has already been significantly affected by enacted regulation on
debit cards, and a number of provisions within the law include the potential for higher costs due to increased regulatory and
compliance burdens, which will result in lower revenues or increasing costs for the Company. In addition to these and other new
regulations which are already in place and are discussed above, the Company will likely face increased regulation of the industry.
Increased regulation, along with possible changes in tax laws and accounting rules, may have a significant impact on the way the
Company conducts business, iniplements strategic initiatives, engages in tax planning and makes financial disclosures. Compliance
with such regulation may divert resources from other areas of the business and limit the ability to pursue other opportunities.




The performance of the Compan'y is dependent on the economic conditions of the markets in which the Company operates.

The Company’s success is heavily influenced by the general economic conditions of the specific markets in which it operates.
Uniike larger national or other regional banks that are more geographically diversified, the Company provides financial services
primarily throughout the states of Missouri, Kansas, and central Hlinois, and has recently expanded into Oklahoma, Colorado and
other surrounding states. As the Company does not have a significant banking presence in other parts of the country, a prolonged
economic downturn in these markets could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition and results of
operations.

Significant changes in federal monetary policy could materially affect the Company’s business.

The Federal Reserve System regulates the supply of money and credit in the United States. Its polices determine in large part
the cost of funds for lending and investing by influencing the interest rate earned on loans and paid on borrowings and interest
bearing deposits. Credit conditions are influenced by its open market operations in U.S. government securities, changes in the
member bank discount rate, and bank reserve requirements. Changes in Federal Reserve Board policies are beyond the Company’s
control and difficult to predict, and such changes may result in lower interest margins and a continued lack of demand for credit
products. : )

The soundness of other financial institutions could adversely affect the Company.

The Company’s ability to engage in routine funding transactions could be adversely affected by the actions and commercial
soundness of other financial institution counterparties, Financial services institutions are interrelated as a result of trading, clearing,
counterparty or other relationships. The Company has exposure to many different industries and counterparties and routinely
executes transactions with counterparties in the financial industry, including brokers and dealers, commercial banks, investment
banks, mutual funds, and other institutional clients. Transactions with these institutions include overnight and term borrowings,
interest rate swap agreements, securities purchased and sold, short-term investments, and other such transactions. As a result of
this exposure, defaults by, or rumors or questions about, one or more financial services institutions or the financial services industry
in general, could lead to market-wide liquidity problems and defaults by other institutions, Many of these transactions expose the
Company to credit risk in the event of default of its counterparty or client, while other transactions expose the Company to liquidity
risks should funding sources quickly disappear. 1n addition, the Company’s credit risk may be exacerbated when the collateral
held cannot be realized or is liquidated at prices not sufficient to recover the full amount of the exposure due to the Company.
Any such losses could materially and adversely affect results of operations.

The Company’s asset valuation may include methodologies, estimations and assumptions which are subject to differing
interpretations and could result in changes to asset valuations that may materially adversely affect its results of operations
or financial condition. '

The Company uses estimates, assumptions, and judgments when certain financial assets and liabilities are measured and reported
at fair value. Assets and liabilities carried at fair value inherently result in a higher degree of financial statement volatility. Fair
values and the information used to record valuation adjustments for certain assets and liabilities are based on quoted market prices
and/or other observabie inputs provided by independent third-party sources, when available. When such third-party information
is not available, fair value is ¢stimated primarily by using cash flow and other financial modeling techniques utilizing assumptions
such as credit quality, liquidity, interest rates and other relevant inputs, Changes in underlying factors, assumptions, or estimates

in any of these areas could materially impact the Company’s future financial condition and results of operations.
. 3

During periods of market disruption, including periods of significantly rising or high interest rates, rapidly widening credit
spreads or illiquidity, it may be difficult to value certain assets if trading becomes less frequent and/or market data becomes less
observable. There may be certain assct classes in active markets with significant observable data that become illiquid due to the
current financial environment. In such cases, certain asset valuations may require more subjectivity and management judgment.
As such, valuations may include inputs and assumptions that are less observable or require greater estimation. Further, rapidly
changing and unprecedented credit and equity market conditions could materially impact the valuation of assets as reported within
the Company’s consolidated financial statements, and the period-to-period changes in value could vary significantly. Decreases
in value may have a material adverse effect on results of operations or financial condition.

The Company’s investment portfolio values may be adversely impacted by deterioration in the credit quality of underlying
collateral within the various categories of investment securities it owns.

The Company generally invests in securities issued by municipal entities, government-backed agencies or privately issued
securities that are highly rated and evaluated at the time of purchase, however, these securities are subject to changes in market
value due to changing interest rates and implied credit spreads. Over the past several years, budget deficits and other financial
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problems in a number of states and political subdivisions have occurred. While the Company maintains rigorous risk management
practices over bonds issued by municipalities, further credit deterioration in these bonds could occur and result in losses. Certain
mortgage and asset-backed securities represent beneficial interests which are collateralized by residential mortgages, credit cards,
automobiles, mobile homes or other assets. While these investment securities are highly rated at the time of initial investment, the
value of these securities may decline significantly due to actual or expected deterioration in the underlying collateral. Under
accounting rules, when the impairment is due to declining expected cash flows, some portion of the impairment, depending on
the Company’s intent to self and the likelihood of being required to sell before recovery, must be recognized in current eamings.
This could result in significant non-cash losses.

Future loan losses could increase.

The Company maintains an allowance for loan losses that represents management’s best estimate of probable losses that have
been incurred at the balance sheet date within the existing portfolio of loans. The level of the allowance reflects management’s
continuing evaluation of industry concentrations, specific credit risks, loan loss experience, current loan portfolio quality, present
economic, political and regulatory conditions and unidentified losses inherent in the current foan portfolio. Although the loan
losses have declined significantly in 2013 and 2012, a deterioration of financial market conditions could result in larger loan losses,
which may negatively affect the Company's results of operations and could further increase levels of its allowance. In addition,
the Company’s allowance level is subject to review by regulatory agencies, and that review could result in adjusiments to the
allowance, See the section captioned “Allowance for Loan Losses™ in Item 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations, of this report for further discussion related to the Company’s process for determining the
appropriate level of the allowance for possible loan loss.

The Company is subject to both interest rate and liquidity risk.

With oversight from its Asset-Liability Management Committee, the Company devotes substantial resources to monitoring its
liquidity and interest rate risk on a monthly basis. The Company's net interest income is the largest source of overall revenue to
the Company, representing 60% of total revenue. The interest rate environment in which the Company operates fluctuates in
response to general economic conditions and policies of various governmental and regulatory agencies, particularly the Federal
Reserve Board. Changes in monetary policy, including changes in interest rates, will influence loan originations, deposit generation,
demand for investments and revenues and costs for earning assets and liabilities.

Additionally the Company manages its balance sheet in order to maximize its net interest income from its net eaming assets
while insuring that there is ample liquidity to meet fluctuating cash flows coming from either funding sources or its carning assets.

Since the financial crisis of 2008, there has been significant growth in deposits from both consumers and businesses, and much
of this growth has been invested in the investment securities portfolio, as loan demand has been relatively weak during much of
this time. For the past several years, the Federal Reserve has maintained interest rates at unprecedented low levels, and as the
securities portfolio has grown, interest margins have been pressured. The securities portfolio, which has averaged 45% of total
eaming assets over the past three years, generally carries lower rates than loans, Furthermore the Company attempts to diversify
its securities portfolio while keeping duration short, in order to ensure it is always able to meet liquidity needs for future changes
in loans or deposit balances. Loan demand has recently strengthened, growing 2% on average in 2012 and 10% in 2013. During
2013, growth in loans was mainly funded by maturities of investment securities, and growth in deposits were mostly reinvested
in the securities portfolio. At December 31, 2013, the Company's Ioan to deposit rate was 57%, a sign of strong liquidity.

While further loan growth is expected to accompany a strengthening economy, it is expected that interest margins will continue
to be pressured if rates remain low. Should the demand for loans increase in the future while deposit balances decline significantly,
the Company's liquidity risk could change, as it is dependent on the Company's ability to manage maturities within its investment
portfolio to fund these changing cash flows.

The Company operates in a highly competitive industry and market area.

The Company operates in the financial services industry, which is facing a rapidly changing environment having numerous
competitors including other ba;nks and insurance companies, securities dealers, brokers, trust and investment companies and
morigage bankers. Consolidation among financial service providers is likely to occur, and there are many new changes in
technology, product offerings and regulation. As consolidation occurs, larger regional banks may acquire smaller banks in our
market and add to existing competition. These new banks may lower fees in an effort to grow market share, which could result
in a loss of customers and lower fee revenue for the Company. The Company must continue to make investments in its products
and delivery systems to stay competitive with the industry as a whole, or its financial performance may suffer.
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The Company’s reputation and future growth prospects could be lmpanred |f events occur which breach its customers’
privacy.

The Company relies heavily on communications and information systems to conduct its business, and as part of its business,
the Company maintains significant amounts of data about its customers and the products they use. Additionally, customers rely
on online bank products. While the Company has policies and procedures and safeguards designed to prevent or limit the effect
of failure, interruption or security breach of its information systems, there can be no assurances that any such failires, interruptions
or security breaches will not occur; or if they do occur, that they will be adequately addressed. In addition'to unauthorized access,
denial-of-service attacks could overwhelm Company Web sites and prevent the Company from adequately serving customers.
Should any of the Company's systems become compromised, the reputation of the Company could be damaged, relationships with
existing customers may be impaired, the compromise could result in lost business, and as a result, the Company could incur
significant expenses trying to remedy the incident. Similarly, because the Company is an issuer of both debit and credit cards, it
is periodically exposed to losses related to security breag,hes which occur at retailers that are unaffiliated with Company (e.g.,
customer card data being compromised at retail stores). These include, but are not l1m|ted to, costs and expenses for card reissuance
as well as losses resulting from fraudulent card transacttons '

The Company may net attract and retain skilled employees. o

The Company’s success depends, in large part, on its ability to attract and retain key people. Competition for the best people
can be intense, and the Company spends considerable time and resources attracting and hiring qualified people for its various
business lines and support units. The unexpected loss of the services of one or more of the Company’s key personnel could have
a material adverse impact on the Company’s business because of their skills, knowledge of the Company’s market, and years of

industry experience, as well as the difficulty of promptly finding qualified replacement personnel.
. .. X

N

Item 1b. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS .

None

Item 2. PROPERTIES

The main offices of the Bank are focated in the larger metropohtan arcas of i its markets i in various multi-story office buildings.
The Bank owns its main offices and leases unoccupied premises to the publlc The targer ofﬁces include:

! L . Net rentable % occupied in % occupied by
Building o . square footage total bank
922 Walnut . - o
Kansas City, MO . . - _256,000 95% 93%
1000 Walnut : I K -
Kansas City, MO _ - . 403,000 . 84 39
811 Main - .
Kansas City, MO .. 237,000 100 100
8000 Forsyth o S '
Clayton, MO ‘ i 178,000 97 97
1551 N. Waterfront Pkwy

Wichita, KS C oo L 120,000 97 32

vl

Various installment loan, credit card, trust and safe deposit functions operaté out'of leased offices in downtown Kansas City,
Missouri. The Company has an additional [97 branch locations in Missouri, Illinois, Kansas, Oklahoma and Colorado which are
owned or leased, and 156 off-site ATM locations.

Item3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The information required by this item is set forth in Item 8 under Note 20, Commitments, Contingencies and Guarantees on
page 106.

b
b

' o s et

Item 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable
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Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following are the executive officers of the Company as of February 24, 2014, each of whom is designated annually. There
are no arrangements or understandings between any of the persons so named and any other person pursuant to which such person
was designated an executive officer.

Name and Age

Positions with Registrant

Jeffery D. Aberdeen, 59

Kevin G. Barth, 53

Jeffrey M. Burik, 55

Daniel D. Callahan, 57

Sara E, Foster, 53

David W. Kemper, 63

John W. Kemper, 36

Jonathan M. Kemper, 60

Charles G. Kim, 53

Seth M. Leadbeater, 63

Michael J. Petrie, 57

Robert J. Rauscher, 56

V. Raymond Stranghoener, 62 .

. Controller of the Company since December 1995, He is also Controller of the Company's

subsidiary bank, Commerce Bank.

Executive Vice President of the Company since April 2005 and Executive Vice President of
Commerce Bank since October 1998. Senior Vice President of the Company and Officer of
Commerce Bank prior thereto.

Senior Vice President of the Company since February 2013. Executive Vice President of
Commerce Bank since November 2007,

Executive Vice President and Chief Credit Officer of the Company since December 2010 and
Senior Vice President of the Company prior thereto. Executive Vice President of Commerce
Bank since May 2003.

Executive Vice President of the Company since February 2012 and Senior Vice President of

 the Company since February 1998,

Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company since November 1991, Chief Executive

. Officer of the Company since June 1986. He was President of the Company from April 1982

until February 2013. He is Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer of
Commerce Bank. He is the son of James M. Kemper, Ir. (a former Director and former
Chairman of the Board of the Company), the brother of Jonathan M. Kemper, Vice Chairman
of the Company, and father of John W. Kemper, President and Chief Qperating Officer of the
Company.

President and Chief Operating Officer of the Company since February 2013, and Executive
Vice President and Chief Administrative Officer of the Company prior thereto. Senior Vice
President of Commerce Bank since January 2009. Prior to his employment with Commerce
Bank in August 2007, he was employed as an engagement manager with a global management
consulting firm, managing strategy and operations projects primarily focused in the financial

: service industry. He is the son of David W. Kemper, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company and nephew of Jonathan M. Kemper, Vice Chairman of the Company.

Vice Chairman of the Company since November 1991 and Vice Chairman of Commerce Bank

. since December 1997. Prior thereto, he was Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer,

and President of Commerce Bank. He is the son of James M. Kemper, Jr. (a former Director
and former Chairman of the Board of the Company), the brother of David W. Kemper, Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and uncle of John W. Kemper, President and

© Chief Operating Officer of the Company,

Chief Financial Officer of the Company since July 2009. Executive Vice President of the
Company since April 1995 and Executive Vice President of Commerce Bank since January

' 2004, Prior thereto, he was Senior Vice President of Commerce Bank.

Vice Chairman of the Company since January 2004. Prior thereto he was Executive Vice
President of the Company. Vice Chairman of Commerce Bank since September 2004, Prior

+ thereto he was Executive Vice President of Commerce Bank,

Senior Vice President of the Company since April 1993. Prior thereto, he was Vice President
of the Company.

 Senior Vice President of the Company since October 1997. Senior Vice President of Commerce

Bank prior thereto.

Executive Vice President of the Company since July 2005 and Senior Vice President of the
Company prior thereto.
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PART 11

.

Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Commerce Bancshares, Inc.
Common Stock Data

The following table sets forth the high and low prices of actual transactions in the Company’s common stock and cash dividends
paid for the periods indicated (restated for the 5% stock dividend distributed in December 2013).

Cash
. Quarter High Low Dividends ~
2013 First $ 3894 § 3371 S 214
Second 4250 36.63 214
Third 4526 - 40.04 214
Fourth 45.77 " 40.80 214
2012 First - $ . 3744 % 34.08 $ 209
Second  © 37.19 3281 209
Third ' 3877 34.20 209
Fourth 36.86 33.04 1.569*
2011 First $ 36.86 $ 3329 § 199
Second 37.92 34.60 199
Third . © 3801 28.71 199
Fourth 35.07 28.56 199

* Includes a special dividend of 31.360} per share

Commerce Bancshares, Inc. common shares are listed on the Nasdaq Gtobal Select Market (NASDAQ) under the symbol
CBSH. The Company had 4,116 shareholders of record as of December 31, 2013.




Performance Graph

The following graph presents a comparison of Company (CBSH) performance to the indices named below. It assumes $100
invested on December 31, 2008 with dividends invested on a cumula}live total shareholder return basis.

Five Year Cumulative Total Return

$225.00
$200.00
$175.00
$150.00
$125.00
$100.00
£75.00 | T T T T I
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
—®— Commerce (CBSH) —il— NASDAQ OMX Global-Bank
—&— NASDAQ Bank —%— S&P 500
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Commerce (CBSH) 10060  9496{ 10478 108.07| 11090 15226
NASDAQ OMX Global-Bank 100.00 98.65 109.85 81.92 11037 150.79
NASDAQ Bank 10000| 84.30| 100.68 90.16 | 10538 150.84
S&P 500 100.00| 126.46| 145.50] 14859 17237 22819

As a result of a change in the total return data made available to us through our vendor provider, our performance graphs going
forward will be using an index provided by NASDAQ OMX Global Indexes which is comparable to the NASDAQ Bank Stock
Index. Please note, information for the NASDAQ Bank Stock Index is provided only from December 31, 2008 through December
31, 2013, the last day this data was available by our third-party provider.

The following table sets forth information about the Company’s purchases of its $5 par value common stock, its only class of
stock registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act, during the fourth quarter of 2013.

Total Number of Maximum
Shares Purchased Number that May
as Part of Publicly Yet Be Purchased

Total Number of  Average Price Announced Under the
Period : Shares Purchased  Paid per Share Program Program
October 1—31, 2013 : — — — 3,495,733
November 1—30, 2013 2,606 $45.75 2,606 3,493,127
December 1—31, 2013 862 $44 96 862 3,492,265
Total _ 3,468 $45.55 3,468 3,492,265

The Company’s stock purchases shown above were made under authorizations by the Board of Directors. Under the most
recent authorization in July 2013 of 4,000,000 shares, 3,492,265 shares remained available for purchase at December 31, 2013,
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Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The required information is set forth below in Item 7.

L.

Item 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OQPERATIONS

Forward-Looking Statements

This report may contain “forward-looking statements™ that are subject to risks and uncertainties and include information about
possible or assumed future results of operations. Many possible events or factors could affect the future financial results and
performance of Commerce Bancshares, Inc, and its subsidiaries (the "Company™). This could cause results or performance to
differ materiaily from those expressed in the forward-looking statements. Words such as “expects”, “anticipates”, “believes”,
“estimates”, variations of such words and other similar expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking statements.
These statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions which are
difficult to predict. Therefore, actual outcomes and results may differ materially from what is expressed or forecasted in, or implied
by, such forward-looking statements. Readers should not rely solely on the forward-looking statements and should consider all
uncertainties and risks discussed throughout this report. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made. The
Company does not undertake to update forward-looking statements to reflect circumstances or events that occur after the date the
forward-looking statements are made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events, Such possible events or factors include
the risk factors identified in Item la Risk Factors and the following: changes in economic conditions in the Company s market
area; changes in policies by regulatory agencies, governmental legislation and regulation; fluctuations in interest rates; changes
in liquidity requirements; demand for loans in the Company’s market area; changes in accounting and tax principles; estimates
made on income taxes; failure of litigation settlement agreements to become final in accordance with thelr terms; and competition
with other entities that offer financial services.

Overview .

The Company operates as a super-community bank and offers a broad range of financial products to consumer and commercial
customers, delivered with a focus on high-quality, personalized service. It is the largest bank holding company headquartered in
Missouri, with its principal offices in Kansas City and St. Louis, Missouri. Customers are served from approximately 360 locations
in Missouri, Kansas, Illinois, Oklahoma and Colorade and commercial offices throughout the nation's midsection. A variety of
delivery platforms are utilized, including an extensive network of branches and ATM machines, full-featured online banking, and
a central contact center.

The core of the Company’s competitive advantage is its focus on the local markets it services and its concentration on relationship
banking and high touch service, In order to enhance shareholder value, the Company targets core revenue growth, To achieve
this growth, the Company focuses on strategies that will expand new and existing customer relationships, offer opportunities for
controlled expansion in additional markets, utilize improved technology, and enhance customer satisfaction. '

Various indicators are used by management in evaluating the Company’s financial condition and operating performance. Among
these indicators are the followmg

. Net income and earnings per share — Net income attributable to Commerce Bancshares Inc was $261.0 million, a
decrease of 3.1% compared to the previous year. The return on average assets was 1.19% in 2013, and the return an
- average equity was 11.99%. Diluted earnings per share decreased 1.4% in 2013 compared to 2012.

. Total revenue — Total revenue is comprised of net interest income and non-interest income. Total revenue in 2013
decreased slightly from 2012, as non-interest income grew $18.8 million and net interest incomie fell $20.5 million. Non-
interest income saw increases in bank card transaction fees, trust fees, and brokerage fees, partly offset by a decline in
capital market fees. Although average loan growth of nearly 10% was achieved, the low interest rate environment
pressured net interest income and the net interest margin declined to 3.11% in 2013, a 30 basis point decline from 2012.

. Expense control — Total non-interest expense increased 1.8% this year compared to 2012. Salaries and employee benefits,
the largest expense component, increased by $6.0 million, or 1.7%, due to higher salaries, which were partly offset by
lower incentive compensation and medical costs. Data processing and software expense increased $4.4 million, or 6.0%,
driven by growth in bank card processing costs.

. Asset quality — Net loan charge-offs in 2013 decreased $7.9 million from those recorded in 2012 and averaged .30% of
loans compared to .42% in the previous year. Total non-performing assets, which include non-accrual loans and foreclosed
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real estate, amounted to $55.4 million at December 31, 2013, a decrease of $9.4 million from balances at the previous
year end, and represented .51% of loans outstanding.

. Shareholder return — Total shareholder return, including the change in stock price and dividend reinvestment, was 37.3%
over the past year, largely due to strong performance in the national stock markets during 2013. Shareholder return over

the past 10 years was 6.8%.

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related
notes. The historical trends reflecied in the financial information presented below are not necessarily reflective of anticipated

future results.

Key Ratios l

{Based on average balances) 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Return on total assets 1.19% 1.30% 1.32% 1.22% 96%
Retumn on total equity T 11.99 12.00 12.15 LIS 9.76
Equity to total assets 9.95 10.84 10.87 10.91 9.83
Loans to deposits ™/ 57.12 55.80 59.15 70.02 79.79
Non-interest bearing deposits to total deposits 33.01 32.82 30.26 28.65 26.48
Net yield on interest eaming assets (tax equivalent basis) KB )| 341 3.65 3.89 3.03
{Based on end of period data) .

Non-interest income to revenue 40.32 38.44 37.82 38.54 3841
Efficiency ratio™” 60.49 59.26 59.10 59.71 59.88
Tier I risk-based capital ratio 14.06 13.60 14.71 14.38 13.04
Total risk-based capital ratio 15.28 14.93 16.04 15.75 14.39
Tier | leverage ratio 9.43 9.14 9.55 10.17 9.58
Tangible common equity to assets ratio ™ 9.00 9.25 9.91 10.27 9.71
Cash dividend payout ratio 31.51 79.48 31.06 35.52 44.15

(1} Includes loans held for sale.

(2} Revenue includes net interest income and non-interest income.

(3) The efficiency ratio is calculated as non-interest expense (excluding intangibles amortization) as a percent of revenue.

(4) The tangible common equity 1o assels ratio is a measurement which management believes is a uscful indicator of capital adequacy and utilization. It provides
a meaningful basis for period to period and compuny to company comparisons, and also assists regulators, investors and analysts in analyzing the financial
position of the Company. Tangible common equity is a non-GAAP measure and represents common equity less goodwill, core deposis premium and non-controlling

interest in subsidiaries. Tangible assets, also a non-GAAP measure, represents 1o1al assets less goodwill and core deposit premium.
¢

The following table is a reconciliation of the GAAP financial measures of total equity and total assets to the non-GAAP
measures of total tangible common equity and total tangible assets.

{Dollars in thousands)

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Total equity $ 2,214397 § 2,171,574 § 2,170,361 § 2,023,464 § 1,885905
Less non-controlling interest 3,755 4,447 4,314 1,477 1,677
Less goodwill 138,921 125,585 125,585 125,585 125,585
Less core deposit premium 8,489 4,828 6,970 9,612 12,754
Total tangible common equity (a) $ 2,063,232- 3§ 2036714 § 2033492 § 1886790 § ' 1,745,889
Total assets ' $ 23,072,036 $ 22,159,589 § 20,649,367 § 18,502,339 § 18,120,189
Less goodwill 138,921 125,585 125,585 125,585 125,585
Less core deposit premium 8,489 4,828 6,970 9,612 12,754
Total tangible assets (b) ! $ 22924626 $ 22029176 §$ 20,516,812 § 18,367,142 § 17981850
Tangible common equity to assets ratio (a)/(b} 9.00% 9.25% 9.91% 10.27% 9.71%
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Selected Financial Data

:

(In thousands, except per share data) 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Net interest income - 3 619,372 § 639,906 § 646,070 § 645,932 § 635,502
Provision for loan losses 20,353 27,287 . 51,515 100,000 160,697
Non-interest income 418,386 399,630 392,917 405,111 396,259
Investment securities gains (losses), net (4,425) 4,828 10,812 (1,785) (7,195)
Non-interest expense 629,633 618,469 - 617,249 631,134 621,737
Net income attributable to Commerce Bancshares, Inc. ‘260,961 269,329 256,343 221,710 169,075
Net income per common share-basic* ' 2.73 ' 277 ' 2.57 219 1.71
Net income per common share-diluted* ; o 272 2.76 2.56 2,18 1.70
Cash dividends 82,104 211,608 . 79,140 78,231 74,720
Cash dividends per share* 857 2,195 795 73 752
Market price per share* . 4491 33.39 3458, 34.32 31.86
Book value per share* 2310 22,62 2213 20.18 18.69
Common shares outstanding* . ' . 95,881 95,985 98070 - 100,278 100,897
Total assets . 23,072,036 22,159,589 20,649,367 18,502,339 18,120,189
Loans, including held for sale 10,956,836 t 9,840211 9,208,554 9,474,733 10,490,327
Investment securities - 9,042,997 9,669,735 ' 9358387 7,409,534 6,473,388
Deposits S l9,047,348 18,348,653 16,799,883 15,085,021 14,210,451
Long-term debt 455,310 503,710 511,817 - 512,273 1,236,062
Equity ‘ 2214397 © 2,171,574 2,170,361 2,023,464 1,885,905
Non-performing assets . : 55,439 64,863 93,803 97,320 - 116,670

* Restated for the 5% stock dividend distributed in December 201 3.

Results of Operations

§ Change " % Change

{Dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 “ 2011 '13-'12 12211 '13-"12 1211
Net interest income $ 619372 § 639906 $§ 646,070 § (20,534)%  (6,164) °  (3.)% (1.0)%
Provision for loan losses (20,353) (27,287) ('5 1,515) (6,934) k24,228) (25.4) (47.0)
Non-interest income 418,386 399,630 392,917 18,756 6,713 4.7 1.7
Investment securities gains (losses), net ‘ 4,425) 4828 10,812 . . (9,2583) (5,984) NM. , (55.3)
Non-interest expense ' (629,633)  (618469) (617,249) 11,164 1,220 1.8 2
Income taxes . (122,230 (127,169}  (121,412) (4,939) 5,757- (3.9 4.7
Nen-controlling interest expense (156) (2,110} . (3,280) (1,954) (1,170) (92.6) - (35.7)
Net income attributable to Commerce . - ‘ '

Bancshares, Inc. $ 260961 § 269329 § 256,343 § (8,368) S 12,986 3.1)% 5.1 %

Net income attributable to Commerce Bancshares, Inc. for 2013 was $261.0 million, a decrease of $8.4 million, or 3.1%,
compared to $269.3 million in 2012. Diluted income per share was $2.72 in 2013 compared t6 $2.76 in 2012. The decrease in
net income resulted from a $20.5 million decrease in net interest income, as well as an increase of $11.2 million in non-interest
expense and a decrease of $9.3 million in net securities gains. These decreases in net income were partly offset by an increase in
non-interest income of $18.8 million and a decline of $6.9 million in the provision for loan losses. The return on average assets
was 1.19% in 2013 compared to 1.30% in 2012, and the retum on average equity was 11.99% compared to 12.00% in 2012, At
December 31, 2013, the ratio of tangible common equity to assets was 9.00% compared to 9.25% at year end 2012.

During 2013, net interest income decreased $20.5 million, or 3.2%, compared to 2012. This decrease continued the trend noted
in the previous year of lower rates earned on investment securities and loans, partly offset by higher loan balances and lower rates
paid on deposits. The provision for loan losses decreased $6.9 million from the previous year, totaling $20.4 million in 2013, and
was $11.0 million lower than net loan charge-offs in 2013. Net charge-offs declined by $7.9 million in 2013 compared to 2012,
mainly in construction, business real estate, consumer, and revolving home equity loans.

N(;n-interest income for 2013 was‘ $418.4 million, an increase of $18.8 miilion, or 4.7%, compared to $399.6 million in 2012.
This increase resulted mainly from increases of $7.9 million in trust fees and _512:4 million in bank card fees. Bank card fees
included a $9.9 million increase in corporate card fees, a product line upon which the Company has placed significant focus during
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the past few years and which continues to show strong growth. Capital market fees declined $6.9 million due to weak demand
from correspondent and commercial customers.

During 2013, investment securities net losses of $4.4 million were incurred, compared to net gains of $4.8 million during 2012.
Gains and losses in both years resulted from activity in the private equity investment portfolio, and include fair value adjustments
and gains/losses realized upon sale or disposition.

Non-interest expense for 2013 was $629.6 million, an increase of $11.2 million over $618.5 million in 2012. The increase in
non-interest expense included a $6.0 million increase in salaries and benefits expense, as well as a $4.4 million increase in data
processing and software expense. Occupancy, supplies and communications, marketing and deposit insurance expense increased
on a combined basis by only $94 thousand. Partly offsetting these increases in non-interest expense during 2013 was a $1.7 million
decrease in equipment expense. Income tax expense was $122.2 million in 2013 compared to $127.2 million in 2012, resulting
in an effective tax rate 0f 31.9% in 2013 and 32.1% in 2012.

Net income attributable to Commerce Bancshares, Inc. for 2012 was $269.3 million, an increase of $13.0 million, or 5.1%,
compared to $256.3 million in 2011, Diluted income per share was $2.76 in 2012 compared to $2.56 in 2011. The increase in net
income largely resulied from a $24.2 million decrease in the provision for loan losses coupled with an increase of $6.7 million in
non-interest income. These increases to net income were partly offset by a decline of $6.2 million in net interest income, $6.0
million in lower net securities gains, and a $5.8 million increase in income tax expense.  The return on average assets was 1.30%
in 2012 compared to 1.32% in 2011, and the return on average equity was 12.00% compared to 12.15% in 2011. At December
31, 2012, the ratio of tangible common equity to assets was 9.25% compared to 9.91% at year end 2011,

During 2012, net interest income decreased $6.2 million to $639.9 million, as compared to $646.1 million in 201 1. This decline
was due to lower rates earned on investment securities and loans, partly offset by higher balances in these assets and lower rates
paid on deposits. The provision for loan tosses totaled $27.3 million in 2012, a decrease of $24.2 million from the prior year. Net
loan charge-offs declined by $25.2 million in 2012 compared to 2011, mainly in business, construction, consumer, and consumer
credit card loans.

Non-interest income for 2012 was $399.6 million, an increase of $6.7 million, or 1.7%, compared to 201). This increase
resulted mainly from higher trust fees and capital market fees, and a $13.0 million increase in corporate card revenue. Debit card
interchange income, which was limited by rules adopted under the Dodd-Frank Act effective in the fourth quarter of 2011, declined
$19.3 million. Deposit fees decreased $3.2 million, as declines in overdraft and return items fees were partly offset by increases
in other types of deposit fees. Loan fees and sales declined $1.5 million, as sales of home mortgages in the secondary market
were discontinued in late 2011.

Non-interest expense for 2012 was $618.5 million, an increase of $1.2 million over 2011. This slight increase included 2 $15.6
million increase in salaries and benefits expense, as well as a $5.7 million increase in data processing and software expense. During
2012, non-interest expense included a $5.2 miltion charge related to Visa interchange litigation, which is discussed further in Note
20 to the consolidated financial statements. Offsetting these increases in non-interest expense during 2012 was $18.3 million
expensed during 2011 related to debit card overdraft litigation, also discussed further in Note 20. Income tax expense was $127.2
million in 2012 compared to $121.4 million in 2011, resulting in an effective tax rate of 32.1% in both years.

In September 2013, the Company acquired Summit Bancshares, Inc., an Oklahoma-based franchise with $261.6 million in
assets and branch locations in Tulsa and Oklahoma City. The acquisition is further discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements,

The Company distributed a 5% stock dividend for the twentieth consecutive year on December 16, 2013. All per share and
average share data in this report has been restated to reflect the 2013 stock-dividend.

Critical Accounting Policies

The Company's consolidatéd financial statements are preparcd based on the application of certain accounting policies, the most
significant of which are described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. Certain of these policies require numerous
estimates and strategic or economic assumptions that may prove inaccurate or be subject to variations which may significantly
affect the Company's reported results and financial position for the current period or future periods. The use of estimates,
assumptions, and judgments are necessary when financial assets and liabilities are required to be recorded at, or adjusted to reflect,
fair value. Current economic conditions may require the use of additional estimates, and some estimates may be subject to a
greater degree of uncertainty due to the current instability of the economy. The Company has identified several policies as being
critical because they require management to make particularly difficult, subjective and/or complex judgments about matters that
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are inherently uncertain and because ofthe likelihood that materially different amounts would be reported under different conditions
or using different assumptions. These policies relate to the allowance for loan losses, the valuation of certain investment securities,
and accounting for income taxes.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The Company performs periodic and systematic detailed reviews of its loan portfolio to assess overall collectability: The level
of the allowance for loan losses reflects the Company's estimate of the losses inherent in the loan portfolio at any point in time.
While these estimates are based on substantive methods for determining allowance requirements, actual outcomes may differ
significantly from estimated results, especially when determining allowances for business, construction and business real estate
loans. These loans are normally larger and more complex, and their collection rates are harder to predict. Personal banking loans,
including personal real estate, credit card and consumer loans, aré individually smaller and perform in a more homogenous manner,
making loss estimates more predictable. Further discussion of the methodology used in establishing the allowance is provided in
the Allowance for Loan Losses section of Item 7 and in Note ] to the consolidated financial statements. A !

Valuation of Investment Securities

The Company carries its investment securities at fair value and employs valuation techniques which utilize observable inputs
when those inputs are available. These observable inputs reflect assumptions market participants would use in pricing the security
and are developed based on market data obtained from sources independent of the Company. When such information is not
available, the Company employs valuation techniques which utilize unobservable inputs, or those which reflect the Company’s
own assumptions about market participants, based on the best information available in the circumstances.These valuation methods
typically involve cash flow and other financial modeling techniques. Changes in underlying factors, assumptions, estimates, or
other inputs to the valuation techniques could have a material impact on the Company's future financial condition and resuits of
operations. Assets and liabilities carried at fair value inherently result in more financial statement volatility. Under the fair value
measurement hierarchy, fair value measurements are classified as Level 1 (quoted prices), Level 2 (based on observable inputs)
or Level 3 (based on unobservable, internally-derived inputs), as discussed in more detail in Note 16 on Fair Value Measurements.
Most of the available for sale investment portfolio is priced utilizing industry-standard models that consider various assumptions
observable in the marketplace or which can be derived from observable data. Such securities totaled approximately $8.3 billion,
or 92.6% of the available for sale portfolio at December 31, 2013, and were classified as Level 2 measurements. The Company
also holds $127.7 million in auction rate securitics. These were classified as Level 3 measurements, as no liquid market currently
exists. for these securities, and fair values were derived from internally generated cash flow valuation models which used
unobservable inputs significant to the overall measurement.

1

Changes in the fair value of available for sale securities, excluding credit losses relating to other-than-temporary iinpairment,
are reported in otlier comprehensive income. The Company periodically evaluates the available for sale portfolio for other-than-
temporary impairment. Evaluation for other-than-temporary impairment is based on the Company’s intent to sell the security and
whether it is likely that it will be required to sell the security before the anticipated recovery of its amortized cost basis. If either
of these conditions is met, the entire loss (the amount by which the amortized cost exceeds the fair value) must be recognized in
current eamnings. 1f neither condition is met, but the Company does not expect to recover the amortized cost basis; the Conipany
must determine whether a credit loss has occurred. This credit loss is the amount by which the amortized cost basis exceeds the
present value of cash flows expected to be collected from the security. The credit loss, if any, must be recognized in current
earnings, while the remainder of the loss, related to all other factors, is recognized in other comprehensive income.. . .~

The estimation of whether a credit loss exists and the period over which the security is expected to recover requires significant
judgment. The Company must consider available information about the collectability of the security, including information about
past events, current conditions, and reasonable forecasts, which includes payment structure, prepayment speeds, expected defaults,
and collateral values. Changes in these factors could result in additional impairment, recorded in current earnings, in future periods.

At December 31, 2013, certain non-agency guaranteed mortgage-backed securities with a fair value of $70.4 million were
identified as other-than-temporarily impaired. The cumulative credit-related impairment toss initially recorded on these securities
amounted to $12.8 million, which was recorded in the consolidated statements of income.

The Company, through its direct holdings and its private equity subsidiaries, has numerous private equity. investments,
categorized as non-marketable securities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. These investments are reported at fair
value and totaled $60.7 million at December 31, 2013. Changes in fair value are reflected in current earnings and reported in
investrnent securities gams (losses), net, in the consolidated statements of income, Because there is no observable market data
for these securities, fair values are internally developed using available information and management’s judgment, and the securities
are classified as Level 3 measurements, Although management believes its estimates of fair value reasonably reflect the fair value
of these securities, key assumptions regarding the projected financial performance of these companies, the evaluation of the investee
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company’s management team, and other economic and market factors may affect the amounts that will ultimately be realized from
these investments.

Accounting for Income Taxes

Accrued income taxes represent the net amount of current income taxes which are expected to be paid attributable to operations
as of the balance sheet date. Deferred income taxes represent the expected future tax consequences of events that have been
recognized in the financial statements or income tax returns, Current and deferred income taxes are reported as either a component
of other assets or other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets, depending on whether the balances are assets or liabilities.
Judgment is required in applying generally accepted accounting principles in accounting for income taxes. The Company regularly
monitors taxing authorities for changes in laws and regulations and their interpretations by the judicial systems. The aforementioned
changes, as well as any changes that may result from the resolution of income tax examinations by federal and state taxing
authorities, may impact the estimate of accrued income taxes and could materially impact the Company’s financial position and
results of operations.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income, the largest source of revenue, results from the Company’s lending, investing, borrowing, and deposit
gathering activities. [t is affected by both changes in the level of interest rates and changes in the amounts and mix of interest
earning assets and interest bearing liabilities. The following table summarizes the changes in net interest income on a fully taxable
equivalent basis, by major category of interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilities, identifying changes related to volumes
and rates. Changes not solely due to volume or rate changes are allocated to rate,

2013 2012
Change due to Change due to
) Average Average Average Average

{In thousands) Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total
Interest income, fully taxable equivalent basis
Loans $§ 42,759 § (49,138)8 (6379 3 7.898 § (24,813)% (16,915)
Loans held for sale (194) 9 (185) (882) 128 (754)
Investment securities:

U.S. government and federal agency obligations 2,538 (6,023) (3,485) (1,231) 3,777 (5,008)

Government-sponsored enterprise obligations 3,556 (551) 3,005 1,223 {1,351 (128)

State and municipal obligations 9,459 (4,993) 4,466 8,945 (6,877) 2,068

Mortgage-backed securities (18,553) (1,451) (20,004) 9,548 {16,426) (6,878)

Asset-backed securities 1,484 (3,949) (4,465) 6,017 (4,600} 1,417

Other securities ' 1,671 (3,099) (1,428) (555} 3,016 2,461
Short-term federal funds soid and securities purchased

under agreements to resel] 41 amn 24 30 (3) 27
Long-term securities purchased under agreements to

resell 6,062 4,117 1,945 2,165 3,554 5,719
Interest earning deposits with banks 51 3) 48 (147) (n (148)
Total interest income ' 48,874 (75,332) (26,458) 33,011 (51,150} (18,139)
Interest expense
Interest bearing deposits:

Savings 72 (108) (36) 78 (128) (50)

Interest checking and money mairkel 1,245 (3,536) (4,291) 2,273 (9,357) (7,124}

Time open and C.D.’s of less than $100,000 (551 (1,35%) (1,916) (1,445) (1,989) (3,434)

Time open and C.D.’s of $100,000 and over 571 (1,362) (791) (766) (1,332) (2,098)
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under

agreements to repurchase 144 (143) 1 219 (1,152) (933)
Other borrowings (160) 43 (17 7 (206) (199)
Total interest expense 1,315 (8,465) (7,150) 366 (14,204) (13,838)

Net interest income, fully taxable equivalent basis $ 47559 § (66,867)% (19,308) % 32,645 § (36946) 5 (4,301)
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Net interest income totaled $619.4 million in 2013 compared to $639.9 million in 2012. On a tax equivalent basis, net interest
income totaled $645.9 million in 2013 and decreased $19.3 million from the previous year. This decrease was mainly the result
of lower yields on loans and investment securities, partially offset by higher loan balances and lower rates paid on deposits. The
net yield on eaming assets (tax equivalent) was 3.11% in 2013 compared with 3.41% in the previous year.

During 2013, tax equivalent interest income on loans declined $6.4 million from 2012 due to a 50 basis point decrease in
average rates earned, offset by a $932.3 million, or 9.9%, increase in average loan balances. The average tax equivalent rate earned

on the loan portfolio was 4.32% in 2013 compared t0 4.82% in 2012. The lower rates depressed interest income by $49.1 million;.

however, the higher average balances contributed interest income of $42.8 million, which together resulted in a $6.4 million net
decrease in interest income. The largest decline occurred in business real estate loan interest, which decreased $6.1 million as a
result of a decline in rates of 39 basis points, partly offset by a $57.8 million, or 2.6% increase in average balances. Interest on
revolving home equity loans decreased $1.8 million due to a $21.8 million decline in average balances coupled with a 21 basis
point decrease in average rates. Higher levels of interest were earned on business, personal real estate and consumer loans, which
increased $834 thousand, $711 thousand, and $897 thousand, respectively. These increases were due to higher average balances,
which increased 13.6% in business, 12.7% in personal real estate and 21.7% in consumer loans, partly offset by lower average
rates earned. Average consumer loan balances increased $256.7 million, which was mainly the result of increases of $196.2 million
in auto loans and $88.7 million in fixed rate home equity loans. These increases were partially offset by an $82.9 million decrease
in marine and recreational vehicle (RV) loans as that portfolio continues to pay down. Interest earned on consumer credit card
loans decreased by $809 thousand due to a 44 basis point decrease in the average rate earned, partly offset by the impact ofa $21.8
million increase in average balances. :

Tax equivalent interest income on investment securities decreased by $21.9 million in 2013 due to a 25 basis point decrease
in average rates earned on these investments, while total average balances increased only slightly. The average rate eaed on the
total investment securities portfolio declined from 2.55% in 2012 to 2.30% in 2013, Interest income on mortgage-backed securities
decreased $20.0 million in 2013 mainly due to a $665.0 million, or 17.3%, decline in average balances. Other declines occurred
in interest on asset-backed securities (down $4.5 million) and U.S. government and federal agency obligations (down $3.5 million)
due to rate declines, partly offset by higher average balances. The rate decline in U.S. government obligations was largely due to
a decrease in interest of $3.2 miilion on inflation-protected securities. Interest income on state and municipal obligations and

government-sponsored enterprise obligations increased $4.5 million and $3.0 million, respectively, due to higher average invested -

balances, partly offset by declines in rates earned. State and municipal average balances rose $240.9 million, or 17.5%, offset by
a rate decline of 31 basis points. Government-sponsored enterprise obligations rose $193.3 million, or 63.0%, offset by a rate
decline of 11 basis points. Intcrest on long-term resell agreements increased $1.9 million in 2013 compared to the prior year due
to a $282.0 million increase in the average balances of these instruments, partly offset by a decrease in the average rate earned
from 2.15% in the previous year to 1.80% in 2013,

During 2013, interest expense on deposits decreased $7.0 million compared to 2012. This was the result of lower overall rates
paid on total deposits, which declined 8 basis points,in 2013 to .22%. Average rates paid on money market accounts declined 7
basis points, and rates paid on certificates of deposit declined 15 basis points. - The resulting declines in interest expense were
partly offset by the impact of higher average balances of money market accounts, which increased $579.1 million, or 7.1% over
2012. Interest expense on borrowings declined slightly, as the average rate paid fell 3 basis points. The average rate paid on total
interest bearing liabilities decreased to .23% compared to .30% in 2012.

During 2012, tax equivalent interest income on loans declined $16.9 million compared to 2011 due to a 27 basis point decrease:

in average rates earned, partly offsct by a $156.7 million increase in average balances. The average tax equivalent rate earned on
the loan portfolio was 4.82% compared to 5.09% in the previous year. Interest carned on business loans decreased $2.6 million
as a result of a decline in rates of 15 basis points and was partially oﬁ'sct by a 1.8% increase in average balances. Ylnterest on
construction loans decreased $3.7 million due to a $63.5 million decline in average balances coupled with a 23 basis point decrease
in average rates. Business rcal estate average loan balances increased $76.2 million, or 3.6%, while average rates earned decreased
by 32 basis points, which together resulted in a net $3.3 million decrease in interest income. Interest income on personal real
estate loans and consumer loans declined $3.4 million and $3.7 million, respectively, due to lower rates partially offset by higher
average loan balances. Average consumer loan balances increased $61.8 million, due to increases in auto loans and fixed rate
home equity loans, but partly offset by declines in marine and RV loans. Consumér credit card loan interest increased $1 .2 million
due to a 41 basis point increase in the average rate earned, parily offset by a decline i m the average balance outstanding of $16 0
millien.

Tax equivalent interest income on investment securities decreased by $6.1 million in 2012 due to a 38 basis point decrease in
average rates earned, partially offset by a $992.7 million, or 12.3%, increase in average balances outstanding. The average rate
earned on the total investment securities portfolio declined from 2.93% in 2011 to 2.55% in 2012. Interest income on mortgage-
backed securities decreased $6.9 million in 2012 due to a 43 basis point decrease in rates earned on these securities, offset by an
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increase of 8.3%, or $296.5 million, in average balances. Interest on asset-backed securities increased slightly due to an increase
in average balances of $481.3 million partially offset by a decline in rates of 16 basis points. Interest on municipal securities
increased $2.1 million due to higher average balances, which increased $202.1 million in 2012, partially offset by the impact of
a 50 basis point decrease in average rates earned. Interest on U.S. government and federal agency securities decreased by $5.0
million in 2012, which was mostly due to a decrease in interest on inflation-protected securities. Interest on long-term resell
agreements increased $5.7 million in 2012 over the prior year due to a $123.7 million increase in average balances, coupled with
an increase of 40 basis points in the average rate earned.

' [
-During 2012, interest expense on deposits decreased $12.7 million compared to 2011. This was the result of lower rates on

all deposit products coupled with a $402.2 million decline in average certificate of deposit balances, but partly offset by the effects
of higher average balances of money market and interest checking accounts, which grew by $727.7 million. Average rates paid
on deposit balances declined 13 basis points in 2012 to .30%. Interest expense on borrowings declined $1.1 million, mainly the
result of average rates declining by 14 basis points to .33%, but partly offset by an increase of $151.0 million, or 14.6% in the
average balances of federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase. The average rate paid on total
interest bearing liabilities decreased to .30% compared to .43% in 2011.

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses totaled $20.4 million in 2013, which represented a decrease of $6.9 million from the 2012 provision
of $27.3 million. Net loan charge-offs for the year totaled $31.4 million compared with $39.3 million in 2012, or a decrease of
$7.9 million. The decrease in net loan charge-offs from the previous year was mainiy the result of lower construction and business
real estate losses, which declined $4.4 million and $4.2 million, respectively, partly offset by higher business loan losses, which
increased $1.6 million. The allowance for loan losses totaled $161.5 million at December 31, 2013, a decrease of $11.0 million
compared to the prior year, and represented 1.47% of outstanding loans. The provision for loan losses is recorded to bring the
allowance for toan losses to a level deemed adequate by management based on the factors menticned in the following “Allowance
for Loan Losses™ section of this discussion. -

?Joh-lnterest Income

o B % Change

(Doilars in thousands) 2013 2012 2011 '13-"12 '12-11

Bank card transaction fees N $ ' -166,627 3 154,197. % 157,077 8.1% (1.8%
Trust fees ’ 102,529 94,679 88313 83 7.2
Deposit account charges and other fees ‘ - 79,017 79,485 82,651 (.6) (3.8}
Capital market fees 14,133 21,066 19,846 - (329 6.1
Consumer brokerage services 11,006 10,162 10,018 83 1.4
Loan fees and sales ‘ 5,865 6,037 7,580 (2.8) (20.4)
Other ’ B} ) 39,209 34,004 27,432 15.3 24.0
Total non-interest income ~ ! ’ $ 418386 § 399630 § 392,917 4.7% 1.7 %
Non-interest income as a % of total revenue* , ‘ 40.3% 38.4% 37.8%

Total revenue per full-time equivalent employee §° 2195 § 2208 % 219.0

* Total revenue is calculated as net interest income plus non-interest income,

. Non-interést income totaled $418.4 million, an increase of $18.8 million, or 4.7%, compared to $399.6 million in 2012. Bank
card fees increased $12.4 million, or 8.1%, over last year, as a result of continued growth in corporate card fees of $9.9 million,
or 13.9%. Inaddition, higher transaction volumes resulted in growth of 3.3% in merchant fees, while credit card fees also increased
by 3.8%. Corporate cér('i, merchant card and credit card fees for 2013 totaled $80.6 miliion, $27.1 million and $23.4 mitlion,
respectively. Trust fee income increased $7.9 million, or 8.3%, resulting mainly from growth in personal and institutional trust
fees. The market value of total customer trust assets (on which fees are charged) totaled $35.2 billion at year end 2013 and grew
16.4% over year end 2012. Deposit account fees decreased $468 thousand, or .6%, primarily due to a decline in overdraft and
return item fees of $3.4 million. This decline was mainly the result of a new posting routine on debit card transactions which took
effect in February 2013, Partly offsetting this effect was an increase in various other deposit fees and cash management fees of
$3.0 million. Overdraft fees comprised 39.2% of total deposit account fees in 2013, down from 43.3% in 2012, while corporate
cash management fees combri§6d 42.0% of total deposit account fees in 2013, compared to 40.3% in 2012. Capital market fees
decreased $6.9 mitlion, or 32.9%, compared to last year as customer demand for fixed income securities was weak this year.
Consumer brokerage services revenue increased $844 thousand, or 8.3%, due to growth in advisory fees, while loan fees and sales
revenue decreased $172 thousand, or 2.8%, due to a decline in loan commitment fees. Other non-interest income increased by
$5.2 miillion, or 15.3%, as a result of a $3.0 million fair value loss recorded last year on an office building which was held for sale
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and net gains of $1.4 million recorded this year in sales of five retail branch facilitics no longer in use. In addition, higher swap
and foreign exchange fees were recorded in 2013.

During 2012, non-interest income increased $6.7 million, or 1.7%, over 2011 to $399.6 million. Bank card fees declined $2.9
million, or 1.8%, from 2011, due to a decline in debit card interchange fees of $19.3 million, or 35.7% (mainly the effect of new
pricing regulations effective in the fourth quarter of 2011), which was partly offset by growth in corporate card fees of $13.0
million, or 22.4%. Corporate card and debit card fees for 2012 totaled $70.8 million and $34.6 million, respectively. Merchant
fees.grew by 8.9% due to higher transaction volumes and totaled $26.2 million for the year, while credit card fees grew 5.9% and
totaled $22.6 million. Trust fee income increased $6.4 million, or 7.2%. The market value of total customer trust assets totaled
$30.2 billion at year end 2012 and grew 10.7% over year end 2011. Deposit account fees decreased $3.2 million, or 3.8%, due
to lower overdraft and return item fees of $6.5 million, while other deposit fees increased $3.4 miilion. Overdraft fees comprised
43.3% of total deposit account fees in 2012, down from 49.5% in 2011. Corporate cash management fees comprised 40.3% of
total depeosit account fees in 2012 and were flat compared to 2011. Capital market fees increased $1.2 million, or 6.1%. Consumer
brokerage services revenue increased $ 144 thousand, or 1.4%, due to growth in advisory fees, mostly offset by lower life insurance
revenue. Loan fees and sales revenue was down $1.5 million, or 20.4%, due to a decline in mortgage banking revenue (mainly
because late in 2011 the Company adopted a policy of retaining all first mortgage loan originations). Other non-interest income
increased by $6.6 million, or 24.0%, mainly due to higher tax credit sales income, leasing fevénue and net gains related to banking
properties in 2012.

Investment Securities Gains (Losses), Net

(In thowusands) _ 2013 12 2011
Available for sale: .

Common stock $ 1,375 % — 3 T —
Municipal bonds ' 126 16 177
Agency mortgage-backed bonds — 342 =
OTTI losses on non-agency mortgage-backed bonds (1,284) (1,490) (2,537
Non-marketable:

Private equity investments - (4,642) 5,960 13,172
Total investment securities gains (losses), net $ 4425) % 4,828 § 10,812

Net gains and losses on investment securities during 2013, 2012 and 2011 are shown in the table above. Included in these
amounts are gains and losses arising from sales of bonds from the Company’'s available for sale portfolio, including credit-related
losses on debt securities identified as other-than-temporarily impaired. Also shown are gains and losses relating to non-marketable
private equity investments, which are primarily held by the Parent’s majority-owned private equity subsidiaries. These include
fair value adjustments, in addition te gains and losses realized upon disposition. Portions of the fair value adjustments attributable
to minority interests are reported as non-controlling interest in the consolidated statements of income, and resulted in income of
$1.1 million in 2013 and expense of $1.3 million and $2.6 million in 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Net securities losses of $4.4 million were recorded in 2013, which included $4.6 million in losses resulting mainly from fair
value adjustments on private equity investments, partly offset by a gain of $1.4 miliion relating to the donation of appreciated
stock by the Company. Also included in net losses were credit-related impairment losses of $1.3 million on certain non-agency
guaranteed mortgage-backed securities which have been identified as other-than-temporarily impaired. The cumulative credit-
related impairment on these bonds totaled $12.8 million. These identified securities had a total fair value of $70.4 million at
December 31, 2013, compared to $101.7 million at December 31, 2012,

Net securities gains of $4.8 million were recorded in 2012, compared to net gains of $10.8 million in 2011. In both years,
these gains and losses were comprised mainly of fair value adjustments in the private equity investment portfolio, coupled with
losses in the available for sale portfolio relating to other-than-temporary impairment {OTTI).




Non-Interest Expense

% Change

{Dollars in thousands} E 013 2012 2011 '13-'12 12-'11
Salaries ) 310,179 § 302,675 % 293,318 2.5% 3.2%
Employee benefits . 56,688 58,224 52,007 (2.6) 12.0
Net occupancy 45,639 45,534 46,434 2 (1.9)
Equipment 18,425 20,147 22,252 (8.5) (9.5)
Supplies and communication l 22,511 22,321 22,448 9 (.6)
Data processing and software ‘ 78,245 73,798 68,103 ' 6.0 8.4
Marketing 14,176 15,106 16,767 (6.2} (9.9
Deposit insurance 11,167 10,438 13,123 7.0 (20.5)
Debit overdraft litigation _ . — 18,300 NM (100.0)
Other 72,603 70,226 64,497 34 8.9
Total non-interest expense $ 629633 § 618,469 § 617,249 1.8% 2%
Efficiency ratio 60.5% 59.3% 59.1%
Salaries and benefits as a % of total non-interest

expense 58.3% 58.4% 35.9%
Number of full-time equivalent employees 4,727 4,708 4,745

Non-interest expense was $629.6 million in 2013, an increase of $11.2 million, or 1.8%, over the previous year. Salaries and
benefits expense increased by $6.0 million, or 1.7%, mainly due to higher full-time salaries expense, partly offset by lower medical
and incentives expense. Growth in salaries expense resulted partly from staffing costs associated with the Summit acquisition,
coupled with staffing additions in commercial banking, wealth and commercial card. Full-time equivalent employees totaled
4,727 at December 31, 2013, an increase of .4%. Occupancy expense increased $105 thousand, or .2%, while supplies and
communication expense increased $190 thousand, or .9%. Equipment expense decreased $1.7 million, or 8.5%, due to lower
depreciation expense. Data processing and software expense increased $4.4 million, or 6.0%, mainly due to higher bank card
processing expense and data processing termination fees relating to the Summit acquisition. Marketing expense declined $930
thousand, or 6.2%, while deposit insurance increased $729 thousand, or 7.0%. Other non-interest expense increased $2.4 miilion,
or 3.4%, over the prior year, resulting mainly from an increase of $4.0 million in legal and professional fees, provisions of $2.8
million on letter of credit exposures, contribution expense of $1.5 million on appreciated stock, and higher travel and entertainment
expense. These expense increases were partly offset by gains of $3.1 million on sales of foreclosed property in 2013, in addition
to a 2012 charge of $5.2 million related to certain Visa-related interchange litigation that did not reoccur in 2013.

In 2012, non-interest expense was $618.5 miilion, an increase of $1.2 million, or .2%, over 2011. Salaries and benefits expense
increased by $15.6 million, or 4.5%, largely due to higher salaries, incentive compensation, medical and retirement expense. Full-
time equivalent employees totaled 4,708 at December 31, 2012, a decline of .8% from 2011. Occupancy expense declined $900
thousand, or 1.9%, primarily resulting from lower depreciation and outside services expense, partly offset by a decline in rent
income. Equipment expense decreased $2.1 million, or 9.5%, also due to lower depreciation expense. Supplies and communication
expense decreased slightly, while marketing expense was lower by $1.7 million, or 9.9%. Data processing and software expense
increased $5.7 million, or 8.4%, mainly due to higher bank card processing expense. Deposit insurance expense declined $2.7
million, or 20.5%, as a result of new FDIC assessment rules which became effective in the second quarter of 2011. Other non-
interest expense increased £5.7 million, or 8.9%, mainly due to the accrual in 2012 of $5.2 million as mentioned above. Also,
during 2011, the Company's indemnification obligation related to certain Visa litigation was reduced by $4.4 million, and further
adjustments were not reoccurring. Partly offsetting these increases to other non-interest expense in 2012 were reductions of $853
thousand in regulatory examination fees and $788 thousand in intangible asset amortization, in addition to an increase of $1.7
million in deferred loan origination costs. In addition, results for 2011 included a non-recurring charge of $18.3 million relating
to the settlement of a class-wide debit card overdraft suit, discussed further in Note 20,

Income Taxes

Income tax expense was $122.2 million in 2013, compared to $127.2 million in 2012 and $121.4 million in 2011. The decrease
in income tax expense in 2013 over 211 2 was proportional to the decrease in pre-tax income. The effective tax rate, including the
effect of non-controlling interest, was 31.9% in 2013 compared to 32.1% in 2012 and 2011. The Company’s effective tax rates
in the years noted above were lower than the federal statutory rate of 35% mainly due to tax-exempt interest on state and tocal
municipal obligations.
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Financial Condition

Loan Portfolio Analysis

Classifications of consolidated loans by major category at December 31 for each of the past five years are shown in the table
below. This portfolio consists of loans which were acquired or originated with the intent of holding to their maturity. Loans held
for sale are separately discussed in a following section, A schedule of average balances invested in each loan category below

appears on page 50.

Balance at December 31

(In thousands)

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Commercial:

Business $ 3715319 § 3,134,801 § 2,808,265 § 2,957,043 § 2,877,936
Real estate — construction and land 406,197 355,996 386,598 460,853 665,110
Real estate — business 2,313,550 2,214,975 2,180,100 2,065,837 2,104,030

- Personal banking: .

Real estate — personal 1,787,626 1,584,859 1,428,777 - 1,440,386 1,537,687
Consumer 1,512,716 1,289,650 I,l-l4,889 T 1,104,327 1,333,763
Revolving home equity 420,589 437,567 463,587 477,518 489,517
Student — — — — 331,698
Consumer credit card 796,228 804,245 788,701 831,035 799,503
Overdrafts 4,611 9,291 6,561 13,983 6,080
Total loans $ 10956836 $ 9831384 § 9,177,478 § 9,410,982 § 10,145,324

The contractual maturities of loan categories at December 31, 2013, and a breakdown of those loans between fixed rate and

floating rate loans are as follows:

Principal Payments Due

After

In After One
One Year Year Through Five
{In thousands) or Less Five Years Years Total
Business v $ 1,742,479 § 1,389,715 § 583,125 § 3,715,319
Real estate — construction and land 237,992 156,726 11,479 406,197
Real estate — business 551,360 1,466,073 296,117 2,313,550
Real estate — personal 147,777 492 884 1,146,965 1,787,626
Total business and real estate loans $ 2,679,608 § 3,505,398 $ 2,037,686 8,222,692
Consumer ¥ ' 1,512,716
Revolving home equity @ , 420,589
Consumer credit card ¥ 796,228
Overdrafts 4,611
Total loans . 3 10,956,836
Loans with fixed rates 8 647,771 § 2,103,755 § 1,032,580 3 3,784,106
"Loans with floating rates 2,031,837 1,401,643 1,005,106 4,438,586
Total business and rea{ estate loans s 2,679,608 $ 3,505,398 '$ 2,037,686 $ 8,222,692

(1} Consumer loans with floating rates totaled 3177.4 million,

{2) Revolving home equity loans with floating rates iotaled $420.4 million.

(3) Consumer credit card loans with floating rates rotaled $654. 1 mitlion,

Total loans at December 31, 2013 were $11.0 billion, an increase of $1.1 billion, or 11.4%, over balances at December 3i
2012. This increase included loan balances of $207.4 million acquired in the Summit transaction on September 1, 2013. On an
overall basis, the growth in loans during 2013 occurred in all loan categories except in revoiving home equity loans and consumer
credit card loans, which experienced small declines. Business loans increased $580.5 million, or 18.5%, reflecting growth in tax-

advantaged lending, aircraft lending, leasing, and dealer floor plan loans.

Business real estate loans increased $98.6 million, or

4.5%, largely due to loans acquired in the Summit transaction. Construction loans increased $50.2 million, or 14.1%, and resulted
fromincreased activity in residential construction as housing began to recoverin 2012 and 2013 and the demand for new construction
reduced available housing supplies. Personal real estate loans increased $202.8 million, or 12.8%, as lending activity continued
to strengthen in 2013. The growth in personal real estate loans was mainly due to the Company's current practice of retaining all
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new loan production, instead of selling the loans in the secondary market, during the recent housing recovery. Consumer loans
were higher by $223.1 million, or 17.3%, primarily due to strong demand for consumer automobile and fixed rate home equity
lending, while marine and recreational vehicle lending continued to run off during the year. Revolving home equity loans decreased
$17.0 million, or 3.9%, as borrowers continue to prefer fixed rate home equity loans with pre-determined payments and amortization
schedules. The balance of these fixed rate loans grew $74.8 million. Consumer credit card loans decreased by $8.0 million, or
1.0%, as competition for new card customers remained intense and consumer card borrowers remained conservative in their use
of revolving card plans.

The Company currently generates approximately 32% of its loan portfolio in the St. Louis market, 29% in the Kansas City
market, and 39% in other regional markets. The portfolio is diversified from a business and retail standpoint, with 59% in loans
to businesses and 41% in loans to consumers. A balanced approach to loan portfolio management and an historical aversion toward
credit concentrations, from an industry, geographic and product perspective, have contributed to low levels of problem loans and
loan losses.

The Company participates in credits of large, publicly traded companies which are defined by regulation as shared national
credits, or SNCs. Regulations define SNCs as loans exceeding $20 million that are shared by three or more financial institutions,
The Company typically participates in these loans when business operations are maintained in the local communities or regional
markets and opportunities to provide other banking services are present. At December 31, 2013, the balance of SNC loans totaled
approximately $406.3 million, with an additional $1.2 billion in unfunded commitments, compared to $483.1 million in loans and
$1.1 billion in commitments at December 31, 2012,

Commercial Loans

Business :

Total business loans amounted to $3.7 billion at December 31, 2013 and include loans used mainly to fund customer accounts
receivable, inventories, and capital expenditures. The business loan portfolio includes tax advantaged financings which carry tax
free interest rates. These loans totaled $705.0 million at December 31, 2013, which was a 62.0% increase over Decemnber 31,
2012 balances, and comprised 6.4% of the Company's total loan portfolio. The portfolio also includes direct financing and sales
type leases totaling $368.8 million, which are used by commercial customers to finance capital purchases ranging from computer
equipment to office and transportation equipment. These leases increased $537.3 million, or 18.4%, over 2012 and comprised 3.4%
of the Company’s total loan pottfolio. Also included in this portfolio are corporate card loans, which totaled $189.5 million at
December 31, 2013. These loans, which decreased by 9.5% in 2013, are made in conjunction with the Company’s corporate card
business, and assist businesses in shifting from paper checks to a credit card payment system in order to automate payment
processes. These loans are gederally short-term, with outstanding balances averaging between 7 to 13 days in duration, which
helps to limit risk in these loans.

Business loans, excluding corporate card loans, are made primarily to customers in the regional trade area of the Company,
generally the central Midwest, encompassing the states of Missouri, Kansas, lllinois, and nearby Midwestern markets, including
lowa, Oklahoma, Colorado and Ohio. This portfolio is diversified from an industry standpoint and includes businesses engaged
in manufacturing, wholesaling, retailing, agribusiness, insurance, financial services, public utilities, healthcare, and other service
businesses. Emphasis is upon middle-market and community businesses with known local management and financial stability.
Consistent with management’s strategy and emphasis upon relationship banking, most borrowing customers also maintain deposit
accounts and utilize other banking services. Net loan recoveries in this category totaled $867 thousand in 2013, while net loan
recoveries of $2.5 million were recorded in 2012. Non-accrual business loans were $11.6 million (.3% of business loans) at
December 31, 2013 compared to $13.1 million at December 31, 2012.

Real Estate-Construction and Land

The portfolio of loans in this category amounted to $406.2 million at December 31,2013 and comprised 3.7% of the Company’s
total loan portfolio. These loans are predominantly made to businesses in the local markets of the Company’s banking subsidiary.
Commercial construction and land development loans totaled $240.9 million, or 59.3% of total construction loans at December
31,2013, Commercial construction loans are made during the construction phase for small and medium-sized office and medical
buildings, manufacturing and warehouse facilities, apartment complexes, shopping centers, hotels and motels, and other
commercial properties. Exposure to larger, speculative commercial properties remains low. Commercial land development loans
relate to land owned or developed for use in conjunction with business properties. Residential construction and land development
loans at December 31, 2013 totaled $165.3 million, or 40.7% of total construction loans. The largest percentage of residential
construction and land development loans are for projects located in the Kansas City and St. Louis metropolitan areas. Recent
market stabilization has resulted in 14, 1% growth in total construction and land loans during 2013. While credit risk in this sector
has been high over the last few years, loss trends continue to improve, with net loan recoveries of $4.7 million and $283 thousand
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recorded in 2013 and 2012, respectively. Construction and land loans on non-accrual status declined to $10.2 million at year end
2013 compared to $13.7 million at year end 2012. -

Real Estate-Business ,

Total business real estate loans were $2.3 billion at December 31, 2013 and comprised 21.1% of the Company’s total loan
portfolio. This category includes mortgage loans for small and medium-sized office and medical buildings, manufacturing and
warehouse facilities, shopping centers, hotels and motels; churches, and other commercial properties. - Emphasis is placed on
owner-occupied (46.4% of this portfolio) and income producing commercial real estate properties, which present lower risk levels.
The berrowers and/or the properties are generally located in local and regional markets. Additional information about loans by
category is presented on page 32, At December 31, 2013, non-accrual balances amounted to $19.8 million, or .9%, of the loans
in this category, up from $17.3 million at year end 2012, The Company experienced net charge-offs of $952 thousand in 2013
compared to net charge-offs of $5.1 million in 2012,

Personal Banking Loans
Real Estate-Personal

At December 31, 2013, there were $1.8 billion in outstanding personal real estate loans, which comprised 16.3% of the
Company’s total loan portfolio. The mortgage loans in this category are mainly for owner-occupied residential properties. The
Company originates both adjustable rate and fixed rate morigage loans. The Company retains adjustable rate mortgage loans, and
in2012 and 2013 retained all fixed rate loans as directed by its Asset/Liability Management Committee, given the low concentrations
of these loans. The Company originates its loans and does not purchase any from outside parties or brokers. Further, it has never
maintained or promoted subprime or reduced document products. At December 31, 2013, 34% of the portfolio was comprised of
adjustable rate loans while 66% was comprised of fixed rate loans. Levels of mortgage loan origination activity decreased slightly
in 2013 compared to 2012, with originations of $410 million in 2013 compared with $414 million in 2012. Interest rates remained
at historic lows through mid-year and this resulted in higher mortgage originations from refinancing, however, rates rose
significantly mid-year, which reduced new origination volumes. The Company has experienced lower loan losses in this category
than many others in the industry and believes this is partly because of its conservative underwriting culture, stable markets, and
the fact that it does not offer subprime lending products or purchase loans from brokers. Net loan charge-offs for 2013 amounted
to $1.2 million, compared to $1.4 million in the previous year. The non-accrual balances of loans in this category decreased to
$5.1 million at December 31, 2013, compared to $6 9 million at year end 2012,

Consumer

Consumer loans consist of auto, marine, tractor/trailer, recreational vehicle (RV), ﬁxed rate home equity, and other consumer
instaliment loans. These loans totaled $1.5 billion at year end 2013, Approximately 59% of consumer loans outstanding were
originated indirectly from auto and other dealers, while the remaining 41% were direct loans made to consumers. Approximately
50% of the consumer portfolio consists of automobile loans, 19% in fixed rate home equity loans, and 17% in marine and RV
loans. As mentioned above, total consumer loans increased by $223.1 million in 2013, mainly the result of growth in auto lending
of $180.4 million, or 32%. Growth of $74.8 million in fixed rate home equity loans was offset by the run-off of $74.7 million in
marine and RV loans, Net charge-offs on consumer loans were $7.5 million in 2013 compared to $8.1 million in 2012. Net charge-
offs decreased to .5% of average consumer loans in 2013 compared to .7% in 2012.- Consumer ioan net charge-offs included
marine and RV loan net charge-offs of $3.9 million, which were 1.3% of average marine and RV loans in 2013, compared to 1.8%
in 2012,

Revolving Home Equity - S e

Revoiving home equity loans, of which 99% are adjustable rate loans, totaled $420.6 million at year end 2013.” An additional
$682.9 million was available in unused lines of credit, which can be drawn at the discretion of the borrower. Home equity loans
are secured mainly by second mortgages (and less frequently, first mortgages) on residential property of the borrower. The
underwriting terms for the home equity line product permit borrowing availability, in the aggregate, generally up to 80% or 90%
of the appraised value of the collateral property at the time of origination. Net charge-offs totaled $986 thousand, or .2% of average
revolving home equity loans, compared to $1.8 million in 2012. T

Consumer Credit Card

Total consumer credit card loans amounted to $796.2 million at December 31, 2013 and comprised 7.3% of the Company’s
total loan portfolio. The credit card portfolio is concentrated within regional markets served by the Company. The Company offers
a variety of credit card products, including affinity cards, rewards cards, and standard and premium credit cards, and emphasizes
its credit card relationship product, Special Connections. Approximately 61% of the households in Missouri that own a Commerce
credit card product also maintain a deposit relationship with the subsidiary bank. At December 31, 2013, approximately 82% of




the outstanding credit card loan balances had a floating interest rate, compared to 77% in the prior year. Net charge-offs amounted
to $25.1 million in 2013, an increase of $646 thousand over $24.5 million in 2012. The ratio of credit card loan net charge-offs
to total average credit card loans totaled 3.3% in both 2013 and 2012. These ratios remain below national loss averages in those
years.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The Company has an established process to determine the amount of the allowance for loan losses which assesses the risks
and losses inherent in its portfolio. This process provides an allowance consisting of a specific allowance component based on
certain individually evaluated loans and a general component based on estimates of reserves needed for poois of loans.

Loans subject to individual evaluation generally consist of business, construction, business real estate and personal real estate
loans on non-accrual status, and include troubled debt restructurings that are on non-accrual status. These non-accrual loans are
evaluated individually for impairment based on factors such as payment history, borrower financial condition, cellateral, current
economic conditions and loss experience. For collateral dependent loans, appraisals of collateral (including exit costs) are normally
obtained annually but discounted based on date last received and market conditions. From these evaluations of expected cash
flows and collateral values, specific allowances are determined.

Loans which are not individually evaluated are segregated by loan type and sub-type and are collectively evaluated. These
loans include commercial loans (business, construction and business real estate) which have been graded pass, special mention
or substandard and all personal banking loans, except personal real estate loans on non-accrual status. Collectively-evaluated loans
include certain troubled debt restructurings with similar risk characteristics. Allowances determined for personal banking loans,
which are generally smaller balance homogeneous type loans, use consistent methodologies which consider historical and current
loss trends, delinquencies and current economic conditions. Allowances for commercial type loans, which are generally larger
and more complex in structure with more unpredictable loss characteristics, use methods which consider historical and current
toss trends, current loan grades, delinquencies, industry concentrations, economic conditions throughout the Company's markets
as monitored by Company credit officers, and general economic conditions,

The Company’s estimate of Ithe allowance for loan losses and the corresponding provision for loan losses rests upon various
judgments and assumptions made by management. Factors that influence these judgments include past loan loss experience,
current loan portfolio composition and characteristics, trends in delinquencies, portfolio risk ratings, levels of non-performing
assets, and prevailing regional and national economic conditions. The Company has internal credit administration and loan review
staffs that continuously review loan quality and report the results of their reviews and examinations to the Company’s senior
management and Board of Directors. Such reviews also assist management in establishing the level of the allowance. In using
this process and the information available, management must consider various assumptions and exercise considerable judgment
to determine the overall Jevel of the allowance for loan losses. Because of these subjective factors, actual outcomes of inherent
losses can differ from original estimates. The Company’s subsidiary bank continues to be subject to examination by several
regulatory agencies, and examinations are conducted throughout the year, targeting various segments of the loan portfolio for
review. Refer to Note | to the consolidated financial statements for additional discussion on the allowance and charge-off policies.

At December 31, 2013, the allowance for toan losses was $161.5 million compared to a balance at year end 2012 of $172.5
million. Total loans delinquent 90 days or more and still accruing were $14.0 million at December 31, 2013, a decrease of $1.4
million compared to year end 2012. Non-accrual loans at December 31, 2013 were $48.8 million, a decrease of $2.6 million from
the prior year, and were mainly:comprised of $19.8 million of business real estate loans, $10.2 million of construction loans and
$11.6 million of business loans. As the result of improving credit trends noted in the Company’s analysis of the allowance, the
provision for loan losses was $11.0 million less than net charge-offs for the year, thereby reducing the allowance for loan losses
to $161.5 million. The percentage of allowance to loans, excluding loans held for sale, decreased to 1.47% at December 31,2013
compared to 1.75% at year end 2012 as a result of the decrease in the allowance balance, in addition to loan growth. The percentage
of allowance to non-accrual loans was 331% at December 31, 2013, compared to 336% at December 31, 2012.

Net loan charge-offs totaled $31.4 miltion in 2013, representing a $7.9 million decrease compared to net charge-offs of $39.3
million in 2012. Net recoveries on construction and land loans were $4.7 million in 2013, compared to $283 thousand in 2012.
Business loans also remained in a net recovery position in 2013, with net recoveries of $867 thousand in 2013 compared to $2.5
million in 2012. Net charge-offs on business real estate loans decreased $4.2 million to $952 thousand in 2013, compared to net
charge-offs of $5.1 million in 2012. Net charge-offs on consumer credit cards increased $646 thousand to $25.1 million in 2013,
compared to $24.5 million in 2012; however, net consumer credit card charge-offs remained consistent at 3.34% of average
consumer credit card loans in 2013 compared to 3.35% in 2012, as a result of a stabilizing economy. Consumer credit card loan
charge-offs as a percentage of total net charge-offs rose to 80.1% in 2013 compared to 62.3% in 2012, as lower overall net charge-
offs in other loan categories offset the slight rise in consumer credit card charge-offs.
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The ratio of net charge-offs to total average loans outstanding in 2013 was .30% compared to .42% in 2012 and .70% in 2011.
The provision for loan losses in 2013 was $20.4 million, compared to provisions of $27.3 million in 2012 and $51.5 million in
2011.

The Company considers the allowance for loan losses of $161.5 million adequate to cover losses inherent in the loan portfolio

at December 31, 2013.

Years Ended December 31

} The schedules which follow summarize the relationship between loan balances and activity in the allowance for loan losses:

{Dollars in thousands)

2013

2012 2011 2010 2009

1 Loans outstanding af end of year* $ 10,956,836 3 9,831,384 § 9,177478 % 9410982 § 10,145,324
Average loans outstanding"’ $ 10311654 % 9379316 § 9,222,568 % 9,698,670 $ 10,629,867
Allowance for loan losses: ’

Balance at beginning of year $ 172,532 §% 184,532 § 197,538 § 194,480 § 172,619
Additions to allowance through charges to expense 20,353 27,287 51,515 100,000 160,697
Loans charged off: '

; Business 1,869 2,809 6,749 8,550 15,762
Real estate — construction and land 621 1,244 7.893 15,199 34812
Real estate — business 1,680 7,041 4,176 4.780 5,957
Real estate — personal 1,570 2,416 3,217 2,484 3,150
Consumer 11,029 12,288 16,052 . 24,587 35,979
Revolving home equity 1,200 2,044 1,802 2,014 1,197
Consumer credit card . 33,206 33,098 39,242 54,287 54,060
Overdrafis 2,024 2,221 2,254 2,672 3,493

Total loans charged off 54,199 63,161 81,385 114,573 154,410
Recovenies of loans previously charged off:
Business 2,736 5,306 1,761 3,964 2,925
Real estate — construction and land 5313 1,527 943 193 720
Real estate - business 1,728 1,933 613 722 7 709
Real estate — personal 343 990 445 428 363 -
Consuemer 3,489 4,161 3,896 4,108 . : 3,772
. R.evolving home equity 214 240 135 39 7
‘Consumer credit card 8,085 8,623 7,625 6,556 4785
Overdrafis 938 1,094 1,446 1,621 . 2,293
Total recoveries 22,846 23,874 16,864 17,631 15,574
Net loans charged off 31,353 39,287 64,521 96,942 138,836
Balance at end of year $ -161,532 5§ 172,532 % 184,532 3§ 197,538 § 194,480
Ratio of allowance to loans at end of year 1.47% 1.75% 2.01% 210% ‘1 92%
Ratio of provision to average loans outstanding 20% - 29% 56% 1.03% . L51%

(4) Net of unearned income, before deducting allowance for loan losses, excluding loans held for sale.
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1

. Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 |

Ratio of net charge-offs (recoveries} to average loans outsianding, by loan ' ‘
category: '

Business (.03)% (.08)% " 17% 16% Al%

Real estate — construction and land (1.24) (.08) .66 2.69 4.61

Real estate — business ‘ .04 23 A7 20 .24

Real estate — personal . .07 ‘ .09 19 14 A8

Consumer © .52 .69 1.09 1.64 2.20

Revolving home equity . ' .23 A0 .36 41 .24

Consumer credit card , 33 3.35, 4.23 6.28 677,

Overdrafs : 18.04 18.40 11.62 14.42 1227

Ratio of total net charge-ofTs to total ave_fage loans outstanding 30 % A% .70% 1.00% 1.31%

The following schedule provi:des a breakdown of the allowance for loan losses by loan category and the percentage of each
loan category to total loans outstanding at year end:

(Dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 2011 X010 2009 |
Loan Loss % of Loans Loan Loss  %ofLoans LoanLuoss  %ofLoans LoanLoss %ofLoans  LoanLoss % of Loans
Allowance to Total Allowance to Total Allowance to Total Allowance to Total Allowance to Total |
Allocation Loans Allocation Loans Allocation Loans Allecation Loans Allocation Loans |
Business § 43,146 ¢ 33.9% 8 47,729 319% 5 49,217 305% 3 47,534 314% § 40,455 28.4% |
RE — construction znd |
land 18,617 . 3.7 20,555 36 28,280 42 21,316 4.9 33,659 6.6 |
RE — business 32426 211 37.441 22,5 45,000 23.8 51,096 22.0 31,515 207 |
RE — personal 4,490 16.3 3,937 16.1 3,701 15.6 4,016 15.3 5,435 15.2 |
Consumer 15,440 13.8 15,165 13.1 15,369 12.1 19,449 12.4 30,257 131
i{cvolving home equity 3,152 38 4,861 45 2,220 3.1 2,502 5.1 1,737 ’ 4.3
Student — — — — — —_ — — 229 33 1
Consumer credit card 43,360 ' 7.3 41,926 8.2 39,703 8.6 50,532 8.8 49,923 7.9 i
Overdrafts 901 .1 918 .1 1,042 N 1,093 .1 1,270 —_ |
Total $ 161,532 100.0% § 172,532 100.0% § 184,532 100.0% $§ 197,538 100.0% § 194,480 100.0%

i
Risk Elements of Loan Portfolio

Management reviews the loan portfolio continuously for evidence of problem loans. During the ordinary course of business,
management becomes aware of borrowers that may not be able to meet the contractual requirements of loan agreements. Such
loans are placed under close supervision with consideration given to placing the loan on non-accrual status, the need for an |
additional allowance for loan loss, and (if appropriate) partial or fuil loan charge-off. Loans are placed on non-accrual status when :
management does not expect to collect payments consistent with acceptable and agreed upon terms of repayment. After a loan is
placed on non-accrual status, any interest previously accrued but not yet collected is reversed against current income. Interest is
included in income only as received and only afier ali previous loan charge-offs have been recovered, so long as management is
satisfied there is no impairment;of collatera! values. The loan is returned to accrual status only when the borrower has brought
all past due principal and interest payments current, and, in the opinion of management, the borrower has demonstrated the ability
to make future payments of principal and interest as scheduled. Loans that are 90 days past due as to principal and/or interest
payments are generally placed on non-accrual, unless they are both well-secured and in the process of collection, or they are
comprised of those personal banking loans that are exempt under regulatory rules from being classified as non-accrual. Consumer
installment ioans and related accrued interest are normatly charged down to the fair value of related collateral (or are charged off
in full if no collateral) once the loans are more than 120 days delinquent. Credit card loans and the related accrued interest are

charged off when the receivable is more than 180 days past due.
!
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The following schedule shows non-performing assets and loans past due 90 days and still accruing interest.

i

. ] December 31 )
{Dollars in thousands) . « 2013, 2012 2011 2010 2009

Total non-accrual loans . ' v % 48814 § 51410 § 75482 % 85275 $ 106613
Real estate acquired in foreclosure : 6,625 13,453 18,321 12,045 - 10,057
Total non-performing assets : . . $ 55439 § 64863 § 93803 § 97320 3 116,670
Non-performing assets as a percentage of total loans S1% 66% 1.02% 1.03% 1.15%
Non-performing assets as a percentage of total assets 24% 29% 45% 53% 54%
Total past due 90 days and still accruing interest $ 1396 $ 15347 § 149358 $ 20466 § 42,632

"The table below shows the effect on interest income in 2013 of loans on non-accrual status at year end.

{In thousands)

Gross amount of interest that would have been recorded.at original rate b 3,496
Interest that was reflected in income ' 283
Interest income not recognized 5 3,213

Non-accrual loans, which are also classified as impaired, totaled $48.8 million at year end 2013, a decrease of $2.6 million
from the balance at year end 2012. At December 31, 2013, non-accrual loans were comprised primarily of business real estate
Joans (40.5%), business loans (23.7%), and construction and land real estate loans (20.8%). Foreclosed real estate decreased $6.8
million to a total of $6.6 million at year end 2013. The decline was mainly due to the sell-off of a large 1-4 family development.
Total non-performing assets remain low compared to the overall banking industry in 2013, with the non-performing loans to total
loans ratio at .45% at December 31, 2013. Loans past due 90 days and still accruing interest decreased $1.4 million at year end
2013 compared to 2012. Balances by class for non-accrual loans and loans past due 90 days and still accruing interest are shown
in the "Delingquent and non-accrual loans” section of Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements,

In addition to the non-performing and past due loans mentioned above, the Company also has identified loans for which
management has concerns about the ability of the borrowers to meet existing repayment terms. They are classified as substandard
under the Company’s internal rating system. The loans are generally secured by either real estate or other borrower assets, reducing
the potential for loss should they become non-performing. Although these loans are generally identified as potential problem
loans, they may never become non-performing. Such loans totaled $98.3 million at December 31, 2013 compared with $141.9
million at December 31, 2012, resulting in a decrease of $43.6 million, or 30.7%. The change in potential problem loans was
largely due to decreases of $21.2 millien in business loans, and $£12.0 million in construction and land real estate loans. '

December 31
{In thousands) ) 2013 2012
Potential problem loans:
Business ] $ 23,691 3 44 881
Real estate — construction and land 21,812 33,762
Real estate — business ‘ 50,349 55,362
Real estate — personal 2,486 7,891
Total potential problem loans $ 98,138 § 141,896

At December 31, 2013, there were approximately $83.2 million loans outstanding whose terms had been modified or
restructured under a'troubled debt restructuring. These loans have been extended to borrowers who are experiencing financial
difficulty and who have been granted a concession, as defined by accounting guidance, and are further discussed in the "Troubled
debt restructurings” section in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements. This balance includes certain commercial loans
totaling $38.2 miltion which are classified as substandard and included in the table above because of this classification. -

Loans with Special Risk Characteristics

Management relies primarily on an internal risk rating system, in addition to delinquency status, to assess risk in the loan
portfolio, and these statistics are presented in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements. However, certain types of loans are
considered at high risk of loss due to their terms, location, or special conditions. Construction and land loans and business real
estate loans are subject to higher risk as a result of the current weak economic climate and issues in the housing industry. Certain
personal real estate products (residential first mortgages and home equity loans) have contractual features that could increase
credit exposure in a market of declining real estate prices, when interest rates are steadily increasing, or when a geographic area
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experiences an economic downturn. For these personal real estate loans, higher risks could exist when 1) loan terms require a
minimum monthly payment that covers only interest, or 2) loan-to-collateral value (LTV) ratios at origination are above 80%,
with no private mortgage insurance. Information presented below for personal real estate and home equity loans is based on LTV
ratios which were calculated with, valuations at loan origination date. The Company does not attempt to obtain updated appraisals
or valuations unless the loans become significantly delinquent or are in the process of being foreclosed upon. For credit monitoring
purposes, the Company relies on delinquency monitoring along with obtaining refreshed FICO scores, and in the case of home
equity loans, reviewing line utilization and credit bureau information annually. This has remained an effective means of evaiuating
credit trends and identifying problem loans, partly because the Company offers standard, conservative lending products.

Real Estate - Construction and fLand Loans

The Company’s portfolio of construction loans, as shown in the table below, amounted to 3.7% of total loans outstanding at
December 31, 2013.

December 31, December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2013 % of Total % of Total Loans 2012 % of Total % of Total Loans
Residential land
and land development b 79,273 19.5% T% 3 61,794 17.4% 6%
Residential construction 86,043 21.2 8 68,590 19.2 7
Commercial land
and land development 77,444 19.1 .7 83,461 235 .
Commercial construction 163,437 40.2 1.5 142,121 39.9 1.4
Total real estate — - ’

construction and land loans  § 406,197 100.0% 3.7% $ 355,996 106.0% 3.6%

Real Estate — Business Loans

Total business real estate loans were $2.3 billion at December 31, 2013 and comprised 21.1% of the Company’s total loan
portfolio. These loans include properties such as manufacturing and warehouse buildings, small office and medical buildings,
churches, hotels and motels, shopping centers, and other commercial properties. Approxlmately 46% of these loans were for owner-
occupied real estate properties, which present lower risk profiles.

December 31, December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2013 % of Total % of Total Loans 2012 % of Total % of Total Loans
Owner-occupied $ 1,074,074 46.4% 9.8% $ 1,035,407 46.7% 10.5%
Retail 271,228 1.7 2.5 245,021 i1 2.5
Office 265,352 11.5 24 269,756 122 2.7
Multi-family 178,524 1.7 1.6 184,208 8.3 1.9
Hotels 151,483 6.5 1.4 155,392 7.0 1.6
Farm 138,842 6.0 1.3 123,613 5.6 1.3
Industrial 89,045 9 8 110,645 5.0 1.1
Other 145,002 6.3 1.3 90,933 4.1 )
Total real estate - business )

loans $ 2,313,550 100.0% 21.1% $ 2,214,975 100.0% 22.5%

Real Estate - Personal Loans

The Company’s $1.8 billion personal real estate loan portfolio is composed of first mortgages on residential real estate.  The
majority of this portfolio is comprised of approximately $1.5 billion of loans made to the retail customer base and includes both
adjustable rate and fixed rate mortgage loans. As shown in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, 5.0% of the retail-
based portfolio has FICO scores of less than 660, and delinquency levels have been low. Loans of approximately $15.8 million
in this portfolio were structured with interest only payments. Interest only loans are typically made to high net-worth borrowers
and generally have low LTV ratios or have additional collateral pledged to secure the loan, and, therefore, they are not perceived
to represent above normal credit risk. Loans originated with interest only payments were not made to "qualify” the borrower for
a lower payment amount. A small portion of the total portfolio 1s composed of personal real estate loans made to commercial
customers, which totaled $244.3 million-at December 31, 2013.
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The following table presents information about the retail-based personal real estate loan portfolio for 2013 and 2012.

2013 - 2012
Principal - ST Principal

. Qutstanding at % of Loan Ouistanding at % of Loan
(Dollars in thousands) December 31 Portfolio December 31 Pornifolio
Ldans with interest only payments T8 15,849 1.0% $ 12,730 9%
Loans with no insurance and LTV:

Between 80% and 90% . . 80,431 . 5.2 76,02'3‘ 56 -

Between 90% and 95% , . 27,158 1.8 26,871 2.0

Over 95% ) } . 38,518 . 2.5 33290, . . 24

Over 80% LTV with no insurance 146,107 9.5 136,184 ° 10.0

Total loan portfolio from which above loans were identified 1,546,768 1,360,194

Revolving Home Equity Loans .

The Company also has revolving home equity loans that are generally collateralized by residential real estate. Most of these
loans (93.8%) are written with terms requiring interest only monthly payments. These loans are offered in three main product
lines: LTV up to 80%, 80% to 90%, and 50% to. 100%. As shown in the tables below, the percentage of loans wnth LTV ratios
greater than 80% has remained a small segment of this portfolio, and delmquencnes have been low and stable: The weighted
average FICO score for the total current portfolio balance is 740. "At maturity, the accounts are re-underwritter’and if they qualify
under the Company's credit, collateral and capacity policies, the borrower is given the option to renew the line of credit, or to
convert the outstanding balance 1o an amortizing loan. If criteria are not met, amortization is required, or the-borrower may pay
off the loan. Over the next four years, approximately 57% of the Company's current outstanding balances are expected to mature.
Of these balances, 79% have a FICO score above 700.. The Company does not expect a significant increase in losses as these
loans mature, due to their high FICO scores, low LTVs, and low historical loss levels.

: Unused Portion
Principal

of Available Balances
Cutstanding at New Lines v Lines at Over30 -
December 31, Ortginated - December 31, Days Past
(Dollars in thousands) 2013 * During 2013 * 2013 * Due
Loans with interest only payments $ 394714  93.8% $44,348  10.5% $656,679 156.1% $4,284 1.0%
Loans with LTV: ; .
Between 80% and 90% ‘ 42,162 ' 100 10,767 + ~ 2.6 36,274 8.6 . 284 A
Over 90% ’ 12,212 * 2.9 1,941 4 10,312 2.5 T 163 —
Over 80% LTV h 54,374 12.9 12,708 30 46,586 11,1 o447 0
Total loan portfolio from which above :
loans were identified 420,589 157,197

686,105 -

* Percentage of total principal outstanding of 3420.6 million at December'31, 2013,

Unused Portion _

Principal of Available Balances
Outstanding at - New Lines Lines at Over 30
December 31, ' Originated December 31, Days Past
(Dollars in thousands) o 2012 . > During 2012 * 2012 * Due .
Loans with interest only payments 3 409593  03.6% $60.673  13.9% $637.677 145.7% $4,011 9%
Loans with LTV: .
Between 80% and 90% 45,698 104 9,747 22 " 36,568 8.4 462 .
Over 0% 15,310 35 1,528 4 *: 11,320 25 358 .
Over 80% LTV 61,008 139 - 11,275 26 - 47,888 109 820 -2
Total lean portfolio from which above ) ’ ) '
loans were identified - 437,567 135,657 649,963

* Plertenrage of total principal owtstanding of $437.6 million ar December 31, 2012.

-
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Fixed Rate Home Equity Loans

In addition to the residential real estate mortgage loans and the revolving floating rate line product discussed above, the
Company offers a third choice to those consumers desiring a fixed rate loan and a fixed maturity date. This fixed rate home equity
loan, typically for home repair or'remodeling, is an alternative for individuals who want to finance a specific project or purchase
and decide to lock in a specific monthly payment over a defined period. Qutstanding balances for these loans were $284.9 million
and $210.1 million at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. At times, these loans are written with interest only monthly
payments and a balloon payoff at maturity; however, only 2% of this portfolio was comprised of interest only loans at both
December 31, 2013 and 2012. The delinquency history on this product has been low, as balances over 30 days past due totaled
only $3.5 million, or 1.2% of the portfolio, at year end 2613 and $2.0 million, or .9% of the portfolio, at year end 2012,

2013 2012
Principal Principal
OQutstanding at New Loans Outstanding at New Loans

(Dollars in thousands) December 31 * Originated * December 31 * Originated *
Loans with interest only payments $ 5,246 1.8% $6,53¢ 3% § 4,128 2.0% $5,464 2.6%
Loans with LTV:

Between 80% and 90% . 52,355 184 30,893 10.8 36,427 173 26,438 12.6

Over 90% 20,589 7.2 11,652 41 17,561 8.4 6,628 31

Over 80% LTV 72944 25.6 42,545 14.9 53,988 25.7 33,066 15.7

Total loan portfolio from which above

loans were jdentified 184,867 210,064

* Percentage of total principal outstanding of $284.9 million and $210.1 million ar.December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Management does not believe these loans collateralized by real estate (revolving home equity, personal real estate, and fixed
rate home equity) represent any unusual concentrations of risk, as evidenced by net charge-offs in 2013 of $986 thousand, $1.2
million and $3 18 thousand, respectively. The amount of any increased potential loss on high LTV agreements relates mainly to
amounts advanced that are in excess of the 80% collateral calculation, not the entire approved line. The Company currently offers
no subprime first mortgage or home equity loans, which are characterized as new loans to customers with FICO scores below 660.
The Company does not purchase brokered loans.

‘Other Consumer Loans ' -

Within the consumer loan portfolio are several direct and indirect product lines comprised mainly of loans secured by
automobiles, marine, and RVs. During 2013, $507.7 million of new automobile loans were originated, compared to $440.2 million
during 2012. Marine and RV loan production has been significantly curtaited in recent years with few new originations. The loss
ratios experienced for marine and RV loans have been higher than for other consumer loan products, at 1.3% and 1.8% in 2013
and 2012, respectively. Balances over 30 days past due are relatively unchanged at year end 2013 compared to 2012, The table
betow provides the total outstanding principal and other data for this group of direct and indirect lending products at December
31,2013 and 2012.

2013 i 2012
Principal Balances Principal Balances
o Qutstanding at New Loans Over 30 Days  Quistanding at New Loans  Over 30 Days
{In thousands) December 31 Originated Past Due December 31 Originated Past Due
Automobiles $ 749,970 $ 567,678 § 7,220 § 569,616 $ 440,206 $ . 4,454
Marine 68,162 2,765 2,860 88,858 1,450 2,948
RV 184,969 11 4,317 238,991 — 4,443

Total $ 1,003,101 % 510,454 % 14,397 3% 897,465 § 441,656 $ 11,845

Additionally, the Company offers low introductory rates on selected consumer credit card products. Out of a portfolio at
December 31,2013 of $796.2 million in consumer credit card loans outstanding, approximateiy $167.8 millicn, or 21.1%, carried
a low introductory rate. Within the next six months, $46.4 million of these loans are scheduled to convert to the ongoing higher
contractual rate. To mitigate some of the risk involved with this credit card product, the Company performs credit checks and
detailed analysis of the customer borrowing profile before approving the loan application. Management believes that the risks in
the consumer loan portfolio are reasonable and the anticipated loss ratios are within acceptable parameters.
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Investment Securities Analysis

Investment securities are comprised of securities which are classified as available for sale, non-marketable, or trading. During
2013, total investment securities decreased $404.2 million, or 4.3%, to $9.0 billion (excluding unrealized gains/losses) compared
to $9.4 billion at the previous year end. During 2013, securities of $2.2 billion were purchased in the available for sale and non-
marketable portfolios, which included $1.0 billion in asset-backed securities. Total sales, maturities and pay downs in these
portfolios were $2.6 billion during 2013. During 2014, maturities and pay downs of approximately $1.6 billion are expected to
occur. The average tax equivalent yield earned on total investment securities was 2.30% in 2013 and 2.55% in 2012.

At December 31, 2013, the fair value of available for sale securities was, $8.9 billion, including a net unrealized gain in fair
value of $41.1 mllhon compared to a net unrealized gam of $263.7 million at December 31, 2012. The overall unrealized gain in
fair value at December 31, 2013 included gains of $28.5 million in agency mortgage-backed securities, $10.4 million in non-
agency mortgage-backed securities, and $33.9 million in equity securities held by the Parent. These gains were partially offset
by unrealized losses of $25.0 million in govemmcnt-sponsored enterprise obligations.

Available for sale investment securities at year end for the past two years are shown below:

) December 31

(In thousands) . 2013 - ~ 2012
Amortized Cost . ’
U.S. government and federal agency obligations ) s _ e § - 498226 $ 399,91
Government-sponsored enterprise obligations ) ' ' 766,802 467,063
Stateland municipal obligations , i 1,624,195 1,585,926
Agency mongqge-backéd securities ) . ) 2,743,803 3,248,007
Non-agency mortgage-backed securities . 236,595 224223
Asset-backed securities 2,847,368 3,152,913
Other debt securities 147,581 174,727
" Equity securities : o 9,970 5,695
Total available for sale investment securities % 8874540 5 9258525
Fair Value
U.5. government and federal agency obligations ; $ 505,696 § 438,759
Government-sponsored enterprise obligations e e 741,766 471,574
State and municipal obligations . 1,619,171 1,615,707
Agency monghg.e-backed securities C T 02,772,338 3,380,955
Non-agency mortgage-backed securities 246,983 237,011
Asset-backed securities . ' 2,844,071 3,167,394
Other debt securities 141,757 177,752
Equity securities 43,898 33,096
Total available for sale investment securities $§ 8915680 § 9,522,248

The available for sale portfolio consists of agency mortgage-backed securities, which are collateralized bonds issued by
agencies, including FNMA, GNMA, FHLMC, FHLB, Federai Farm Credit Banks and FDIC. Non-agency mortgage-backed
securities totaled $247.0 million, at fair valué, at December 31,2013, and included Alt-A type mortgage-backed securities of $79.7
million and prime/jumbo loan type securities of $84.4 million. Certain of the non-agency mortgage-backed securities are other-
than-temporarily impaired, and the processes for determining impairment and the related losses are discussed in Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements. ‘ )

At December 31, 2013, U.S. government obligations included $505.6 million in 1.S, Treasury inflation-protected securities,
and state and municipal obligations included $127.7 million in auction rate securities, at fair value. Other debt securities include
corporate bonds, notes and commercial paper. Available for sale equity securities are mainly comprised of common stock held
by the Parent which totaled $37.2 million at December 31, 2013.
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The types of debt securities in the available for sale security portfolio are presented in the table below. Additional detail by
maturity category is provided in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements. '

. December 31, 2013

Percent of Weighted Estimated

Total Debt Average Average

Securities Yield Maturity*

Available for sale debt securities:

U.S. government and federal agency obligations 5.7% 1.05% 53 years
Government-sponsored enterprise obligations : 8.4 1.65 6.2
State and municipal ob]igal‘ions 18.2 242 6.2
Agency morigage-backed securities 31.2 2.74 39
Non-agency mortgage-backed securities 2.8 4.51 44
Asset-backed securities 32.1 .88 24
Other debt securities ' 1.6 2.40 59

*Based on call provisions and estimated prepayment speeds.

Non-marketable securities, which totaled $107.3 million at December 31, 2013, included $32.2 million in Federal Reserve
Bank stock and $14.3 million in Federal Home Loan Bank (Des Moines) stock held by the bank subsidiary in accordance with
debt and regulatory requirements. These are restricted securities which, lacking a market, are carried at cost. Other non-marketable
securities also include private equity securities which are carried at estimated fair value.

The Company engages in private equity activities primarily through several private equity subsidiaries. These subsidiaries
hold investments in various business entities, which are carried at fair value and totaled $56.6 million at December 21, 2013. In
addition to investments held by its private equity subsidiaries, the Parent directly holds investments in several private equity
concerns, which totaled $3.3 million at year end 2013. Most of the private equity investments are not readily marketable. While
the nature of these investments carries a higher degree of risk than the normal lending portfolio, this risk is mitigated by the overali
size of the investments and oversight provided by management, and management believes the potential for long-term gains in
these investments outweighs the potential risks. Most of the private equity investments are held by a subsidiary qualified as a
Small Business Investment Company.

Non-marketable securities at year end for the past two years are shown below:

December 31

(In thousands) ' 2013 2012
Debt securities $ 28,485 § 32,068
Equity securities 78,839 86,582

Total non-marketable investment securities s 107,324 § 118,650

In addition to its holdings in the investment securities portfolio, the Company holds long-term securities purchased under
agreements to resell, which totaled $1.2 billion at December 31,2013 and 2012. These investments mature in 2014 through 2016,
and most have rates that fluctuate with published indices within a fixed range. The counterparties to these agreements are other
financial institutions from whom the Company has accepted collateral of $1.2 billion in marketable investment securities at
December 31, 2013. The average rate earned on these agreements during 2013 was 1.60%.

The Company also holds $300.0 million in offsetting repurchase and resell agreements at December 31,2013, which are further
discussed in Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements. These agreements involve the exchange of collateral under
simultaneous repurchase and resell agreements with the same financial institution counterparty. These repurchase and resell
agreements have been offset against each other in the balance sheet, as permitted under current accounting guidance. The agreements
mature in 2014 through 2015 and earned an average of 78 basis points during 2013.

Deposits and Borrowings

Deposits are the primary funding source for the Bank and are acquired from a broad base of local markets, including both
individual and corporate customers. Total deposits were $19.0 billion at December 31, 2013, compared to $18.3 billion last year,
reflecting an increase of $698.7 million, or 3.8%. Most of this growth occurred in the fourth quarter of 2013, Included in the
increase are balances of $232.3 million acquired in the Summit transaction: Excluding these balances, total deposits grew 2.6%
year over year and reflect a stabilization of the higher growth activity in 2012 and 2011.
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‘Average deposits grew by $1.2 billion, or 7.3%, in 2013 compared to 2012 with most of this growth occurring in business
demand deposits, which grew $402.4 million, or 9.9%, and in money market deposits, which increased $579.1 million, or 7.1%.
Certificates of deposit with balances under $100,000 fell on average by $82.2 million, or 7.4%, while certificates of deposit over
$100,000 increased by $198.6 million, or 16.8%. '

The foliéwing table shows year end deposits by type as a percentage of total deposits.

December 31
. 2013 2012
Non-interest bearing ' 35.4% 34.3%
Savings, interest checking and money market ‘ 53.1 33.5
Time open and C.D.’s of less than $100,000 52 5.9
Time open and C.D.’s of $100,000 and over 6.3 6.3
Total deposits ) 100.0% 100.0%

Core deposits, which include non-interest bearing, iriterest checking, savings, and money market deposits, supported 75% of
average earning assets in 2013 and 74% in 2012, Average balances by major deposit category for the last six years appear on page
50. A maturity schedule of time deposits outstanding at December 31,2013 is included in Note 7 on Deposits in the consolidated
financial statements.

The Company’s primary sources of overnight borrowings are federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to
repurchase (repurchase agreements). Balances in these accounts can fluctuate significantly on a day-to-day basis and generally
have one day maturities. These short-term balances totaled $996.6 million at December 31, 2013. The Company also holds $350.0
million in long-term structured repurchase agreements that will mature throughout 2014. Total balances of federal funds purchased
and repurchase agreements outstanding at year end 2013 were $1.3 billion, a $263.0 million increase over the $1.1 billion balance
outstanding at year end 2012. Onan average basis, these borrowings increased $108.7 million, or 9.2%, during 2013, with increases
of $97.8 million in federal funds purchased and $10.9 million in repurchase agreements. The average rate paid on total federal
funds purchased and repurchase agreements was .06% during 2013 and .07% during 2012.

Most of the Company’s long-term debt is comprised of fixed rate advances from the FHLB. These borrowings increased to
$105.3 million at December 31, 2013, from $103.7 million outstanding at December 31, 2012. The average rate paid on FHLB
advances was 3.56% and 3.60% during 2013 and 2012, respectively. Most of the remaining balance outstanding at December 31,
2013 is due in 2017.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity Management

Liquidity is managed within'the Company in order to satisfy cash flow requirements of dépdsit and borrowing customers while
at the same time meeting its own cash flow needs. The Company has taken numerous steps to address liquidity risk and has
developed a variety of liquidity sources which it believes will provide the necessary funds for future growth. The Company
manages its liquidity position through a variety of sources including: '

« A portfolio of liquid assets including marketable investment securities and overmght investments,
* A largé customer deposit base and limited exposure to large, volatile cemﬁcates of deposit,

+ Lower long-term borrowings that might place demands on Company cash ﬂow a

+ Relatively low loan to deposit ratio promoting strong liquidity,

* Excellent debt ratings from both Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s netipnal rating services, and

- = Available borrowing capacity from outside sources.

During 2013, the Company saw faster growth in'average loans (ip 9.9%) than in deposits (up 7.3%), and maturities of marketable
securities were largely.used to fund loan growth, rather than reinvested in the portfolio. As a result, the Company’s average loans
to deposits ratio, one measure of liquidity, increased to 57.1% in 2013 from 55.8% in 2012,



The Company’s most liquid assets include available for sale marketable investment securities, federal funds sold, balances at
the Federal Reserve Bank, and securities purchased under agreements to reseli (resell agreements). At December 31, 2013 and
2012, such assets were as follows: .

{In thousands} 2013 2012

Available for sale investment securitiés ' ‘ : $ 8,915,680 3 9,522,248
Federal funds sold ’ ’ 43,845 27.595
Long-term securities purchased L.mder agreements to resell . 1,150,000 1,200,000
Balances at the Federal Reserve Bank 707,249 179,164
Total $ 16,816,774 3 10,929,007

Federal funds sold are funds lent to the Company’s correspondent bank customers with overnight maturities, and totaled $43.8
million at December 31, 2013. At December 31, 2013, the Company had lent funds totaling $1.2 billion under leng-term reseli
agreements to other large financial institutions. The agreements mature in 2014 through 2016. Under these agreements, the
Company holds marketable securities, safekept by a third-party custodian, as collateral, which totaled $1.2 bitlion in fair value at
December 31, 2013. Interest earning balances at the Federal Reserve Bank, which have overnight maturities and are used for
general liquidity purposes, totaled $707.2 million at December 31, 2013. The Company’s available for sale investment portfolio
includes scheduled maturities and expected pay downs of approximately $1.6 billion during 2014, and these funds offer substantial
resources to meet either new loan demand or help offset reductions in the Company’'s deposit funding base. The Company pledges
portions of its investment securities portfolio to secure public fund deposits, repurchase agreements, trust funds, letters of credit
issued by the FHLB, and borrowing capacity at the Federal Reserve Bank, At December 31, 2013 and 2012, total investment
securities pledged for these purposes were as follows:

(In thousands}) 2013 2012

Investment securities pledged for the purpose of securing:
Federal Reserve Bank borrowings $ 505,690 S 604,121
FHLB borrowings and letters of credit 58,445 46,732
Repurchase agreements 2,814,597 2,105,867
Other deposits 1,646,562 1,550,114
Total pledged securities 5,025,294 4,306,834
Unpledged and available for pledging 2,339,549 3,428,781
Ineligible for pledging 1,550,837 1,786,633

Total available for sale securittes, at fair value 5 8,915,680 3 9,522,248

Liquidity is also available from the Company’s large base of core customer deposits, defined as non-interest bearing, interest
checking, savings, and money market deposit accounts, At December 31,2013, such deposits totaled $16.9 billion and represented
88.5% of the Company’s total deposits. These core deposits are normally less volatile, often with customer relationships tied to
other products offered by the Company promoting long lasting relationships and stable funding sources. Total core deposits
increased $741.1 million in 2013, with growth of $609.2 million in corporate core deposits and $131.9 million in consumer core
deposits. Much of this growth occurred in the fourth quarter of 2013, reflecting seasonal patterns. While the Company considers
core consumer deposits less volatile, corporate deposits could decline if interest rates increase significantly or if corporate customers
increase investing activities and reduce deposit balances, If these corporate deposits decline, the Company's funding needs can
be met by liquidity supplied by the investment security portfolio, totaling $1.6 billion as noted above. In addition, as shown on
page 39, the Company has borrowing capacity of $3.4 billion through advances from the FHLB and the Federal Reserve.

(fn thousands) 3 2012
Core deposit base: '
Non-interest bearing ' G $ 6,750,674 $ 6,299,903
Interest checking 1,113,110 976,144
Savings and money market 8,995,126 8,841,799
Total $ 16858910 § 16,117,846
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Time open and certificates of deposit of $100,000 or greater totaled $1.2 billion at December 31, 2013. These deposits are
normally considered more volatile and higher costing and comprised 6.3% of total deposits at December 31, 2013.

. . ’ I
Other important components of liquidity are the level of borrowings from third party sources and the availability of future

credit. The Company’s outside borrowings are mainly comprised of federal funds purchased repurchase agreemems ‘and advances
from the FHLB, as follows:

{In thousands) . : 2013 2042
Borrowings: . . ‘ . ‘
Federal funds purchased . , § 24,795 § 24,510
Repurchase agreements S 1,321,763 1,059,040
FHLB advances : - . 105,310 103,710

Total : : - 8 1,451,868 $ 1,187,260

Federal funds purchased, which totaled $24.8 million at December 31; 2013, are unsecured overnight borrowings obtained
mainly from upstream correspondent banks with which the Company maintains approved lines of credit. Repurchase agreements
are secured by a portion of the Company’s investment portfolio and are comprised of both non-insured ‘¢ustomer funds, totaling
$971.8 million at December 31, 2013, and structured repurchase agreements of $350.0 million. Customer repurchase agreements
are offered to customers wishing to eamn interest in highly liquid balances and are used by the Company as a funding source
considered to be stable, but short-term in nature. The structured repurchase agreements were borrowed from an upstream financial
institution and are due in 2014, The Company also borrows on a secured basis through advances from the FHLB, which totaled
$105.3 million at December 31, 2013. All of these advances have fixed interest rates, with the majority maturmg in 2017. The
overall long-term debt position of the Company is small relative to its overall llablllty position.

The Company pledges certain assets, including loans and investment securities, to both the Federal Reserve Bank and the
FHLB as security to establish lines of credit and borrow from these entities, Based on the amount and type of collateral pledged,
the FHLB establishes a collateral value from which the Company may draw advances against the collateral. Also, this collateral
is used to enable the FHLB to issue letters of credit in favor of public fund depositors of the Company. The Federal Reserve Bank
also establishes a collateral value of assets pledged and permits borrowings from the discount window. The following table reflects
the collateral value of assets pledged, borrowings, and letters of crédit outstanding, in addition to the estimated future funding
capacity available to the Company at December 31, 2013.

K

December 3t, 2013

(In thousands) S ' " FHLB ‘Federal Reserve Total “.
Total collateral value pledged ’ $ ° 2,382,076 $ 1,507,280 % 3,889,356 -
Advances outstanding ' .(105,310) — . (105310)
Letters of credit issued . {353,0010) : - (353,010)
Available for future advances s 1,923,756 $ 1,507,280 § - 3,431,036

The Company’s average loans to deposits ratio was 57.1% at December 31, 2013, which is considered in the banking industry
to be a measure of strong liquidity. Also, the Company receives outside ratings from both Standard & Poor’s and Moody s on both
the consolidated company and its subsidiary bank, Commerce Bank. These ratings are as follows:

Standard &
- ’ : Poor’'s - Moody’s =~

Commerce Bancshares, Inc.

Issuer rating A A-

Commercial paper rating Pl :

Rating outlook : : Stable . Stable -
Commerce Bank : e s

Issuer rating A Aal

Bank financial strength rating '_ o "B

Rating outlook , B , Stable | . Stable -




The Company considers these ratings to be indications of a sound capital base and strong liquidity and believes that these
ratings would help ensure the ready marketability of its commercial paper, should the need arise. No commercizl paper has been
outstanding during the past ten years. The Company has no subordinated or hybrid debt instruments which would affect future
borrowing capacity. Because of its lack of significant long-term debt, the Company believes that, through its Capital Markets
Group or in other public debt markets, it could generate additional liquidity from sources such as jumbo certificates of deposit,
privately-placed corporate notes or other forms of debt. Future financing could also include the issuance of common ot preferred
stock.

The cash flows from the operating, investing and financing activities of the Company resulted in a net increase in cash and
cash equivalents of $489.7 million in 2013, as reported in the consolidated statements of cash flows on page 58 of this report.
Operating activities, consisting mainly of net income adjusted for certain non-cash items, provided cash flow of $360.9 million
and has historically been a stable source of funds. Investing activities used total cash of $713.7 million in 2013 and consisted
mainly of purchases and maturities of available for sale investment securities, changes in long-term securities purchased under
agreements to resell, and changes in the level of the Company’s loan portfolio. Growth in the loan portfolio used cash of $938.2
million. Net sales, pay downs and maturities in the investment securities portfolio provided cash of $147.3 million, net repayments
of long-term resell agreements provided cash of $50.0 million, and cash of $47.6 million was acquired in the Summit Bancshares,
Inc. transaction. Investing activities are somewhat unique to financial institutions in that, while large sums of cash flow are
normally used to fund growth in investment securities, loans, or other bank assets, they are normally dependent on the financing
activities described below.

~ Financing activities provided total cash of $842.4 million, primarily resulting from a $719.2 million increase in deposits and
a net increase of $263.0 million in borrowings of federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements, This increase to cash was
partly offset by purchases of treasury stock of $69.4 million and cash dividend payments of $82.1 million. Future short-term
liquidity needs for daily operations are not expected to vary significantly, and the Company maintains adequate liquidity to meet
these cash flows. The Company’s sound equity base, along with its low debt level, common and preferred stock availability, and
excellent debt ratings, provide several alternatives for future financing. Future acquisitions may utilize partial funding through
one or more of these options.

Cash flows resulting from the Company’s transactions in its common stock were as follows:

{In millions) : 2013 2012 2011
Exercise of stock-based awards and sales to affiliate non-employee directors b 102 § 156 § 15.3
Purchases of treasury stock . (69.4) (104.9) (101.2)
Cash dividends paid ’ (82.1) (211.6) (79.1)
Cash used ‘ $ (141.3) § (300.9) $ (165.0)

The Parent faces unique liquidity constraints due to legal limitations on its ability to borrow funds from its bank subsidiary.
The Parent obtains funding to meet its obligations from two main sources: dividends received from bank and non-bank subsidiaries
{within regulatory limitations) and management fees charged to subsidiaries as reimbursement for services provided by the Parent,
as presented below:

(In millions) . 2013 2012 2011

Dividends received from subsidiaries ) . $ 2004 $ 2350 § 180.1
Management fees ‘ 207 237 19.3
Total : b 221.1 § 2587 % 199.4

These sources of funds are used mainly to pay cash dividends on outstanding common stock, pay general operating expenses,
and purchase treasury stock. At December 31, 2013, the Parent’s available for sale investment securities totaled $57.8 million at
fair value, consisting of common stock and non-agency backed collateralized mortgage obligations. To support its various funding
commitments, the Parent maintains a $20.0 million line of credit with its subsidiary bank. There were no borrowings outstanding
under the line during 2013 or 2012.

Company senior management is responsible for measuring and monitoring the liquidity profile ofthe organization with oversight
by the Company’s Asset/Liability Committee. This is done through a series of controls, including a written Contingency Funding
Policy and risk monitoring procedures, which include daily, weekly and monthly reporting. In addition, the Company prepares
forecasts to project changes in the balance sheet affecting liquidity and to allow the Company to better plan for forecasted changes.
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Capital Management

The Company maintains strong regulatory capital ratios, including those of its banking subsidiary, in excess of the * well-
capitalized” guidelines under federal banking regulations. The Company’s capital ratios at the end of the last three years are as
follows:

i Well-Capitalized
. \ -y Regulatory
2013 . 2012 2011 _ Guidelines
Regulatory risk-based capital ratios: . '
Tier [ capital 14.06% 13.60% 14.71% 6.00%
Total capital 15.28 14,93 16.04 10.00
Leverage ratio ; 9.43 9.14 9.55 5.00

Tangible common equity to assets 92.00 925 9.91
Dividend payout ratio 31.51 79.48 31.06

The Company’s regulatory risked-based capital amounts and risk-weighted assets at the end of the last three years are as

follows:
(In thousands) 203 2012 2011
Regulatory risk-based capital: .
Tier I capital $ 2,061,761 § 1906203 § 1,928,690
Tier II capital 177,875 ]85,938'. 174,71}
Total capital - 2,239,636 .- 2,092,141 - 2,103,401 '
Total risk-weighted assets . 14,660,536 . - 14,015,648 13,115,261

The Company maintains a stock buyback program and purchases stock in the market under authorizations by its Board of
Directors, At a July 2013 meeting, the Board of Directors approved the purchase of additional shares, bringiﬁg the total shares
authorized for future purchase to 4,000,000 shares. During 2013 the Company purchased 1,741,806 shares of stock at an average
cost of $39.82 per share. At December 31, 2013 3,492,265 shares remained available for purchase under the current Board
authonzatmn

The Company’s common stock dividend pollcy rcﬂects its earnings outlook, desired payout ratios, the need to maintain adequate
capital levels and alternative investment options. The ‘Company paid a special cash dividend of $1.36 per share in the fourth
quarter of 2012, and the regular per share cash dividends increased 2.7% in 2013 compared with 2012. The Company also pa:d
its twentieth consecutive annual 5% stock dividend in December 2013. The Board of Directors approved a 5% increase in the
first quarter 2014 cash dividend.

Commitments, Contractual Obligations, and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In the normal course of business, various commltments and contingent liabilities arise which are not requxred to be recorded
on the balance sheet. The most significant of these are loan commitments totaling $8.4 billion (including approximately $3.8
billion in unused approved credit card lines) and the contractual amount of standby letters of credit totaling $325.6 million at
December 31, 2013. As many commitments expire unused or only partially used, these totals do not necessarily reflect future
cash requirements. Management does not anticipate any material losses arising from commitments or contingent llablhtles and
believes there are no material commitments to extend credit that represent risks of an unusual nature.



A tnble summarizing contractuat cash obligations of the Company at December 31, 2013 and the expected timing of these
payments follows:

F to. '

Payments Due by Penod

i Afler One Year  After Threc Years
. InOne Yearor  Through Three  Through Five

(In thousands) T Less Years Years After Five Years Total
Long-term debt obligations, mcludmg structured

repurchase agreements* _ ; §  3BLI78 % 4,132 § 100,000 % — 8 455,310
Operating lease obligations 5,850 8,984 6,172 16,300 37,306
Purchase obligations ' 59,232 106,843 98,929 12,272 277,276
Time open and C.D.’s * ] 1,740,247 362,024 84,400 1,767 2,188,438
Total L 5 2,156,507 § 481,983 § 289,501 § 30,339 § 2,958,330

* Includes principal payments only. '

As of December 31, 2013, the Company had unrecognized tax benefits of $1.4 million. This liability for unrecognized tax
benefits represents an estimate of ftax positions that the Company has taken in its tax returns which may not be sustained upon
éxamination by taxing authorities. Since the ultimate amount and timing of any future cash settlements cannot be predicted with
reasonable certainty, this estimated liability has been excluded from the table above. Further information about these benefits is
located in Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company funds a defined benefit pension plan for a portion of its employees. Under the funding policy for the plan,
contributions are made as necessary to provide for current service and for any unfunded accrued actuarial liabilities over areasonable
period. During 2012, the Company made a discretionary contribution of $1.5 million to its defined benefit pension plan in order
to reduce pension guarantee premitums. No contributions were made to the plan in 2013, and the Company is not required nor
does it expect to make a contribution in 2014.

- The Company has investments in several low-income housing partnerships within the areas it serves. These partnerships
supply funds for the constructlon[and operation of apartment complexes that provide affordable housing to that segment of the
population with lower family income. If these developments successfully attract a specified percentage of residents falling in that
lower income range, federal (and sometimes state) income tax credits are made available to the partners. The tax credits are
normally recognized over ten years, and they play an important part in the anficipated yield from these investments. In order to
continue receiving the tax credits each year over the life of the parmership, the low-income residency targets must be maintained.
Under the terms of the partnership agreements, the Company has a commitment to fund a specified amount that will be due in
installments over the life of the agreements, which ranges from 10 to 15 years. At December 31, 2013, the funded investments
totaled $13.9 million and are recorded as other assets in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet. Additional unfunded
commntments which are recorded as liabilities, amounted to $11.8 million at December 31, 2013,

The Company regularly purchases various state tax credits arising from third-party property redevelopment. These credits are
either resold to third parties or retained for use by the Company. During 2013, purchases and sales of tax credits amounted to
$65.1 million and $59.6 million, respectively. At December 31, 2013 the Company had outstanding purchase commitments
totalmg 3181.8 mllhon :

Interest Rate Sensitivity

The Company ] ASS€ULlab1|lty Management Committee (ALCO) measures and manages the Company’s interest rate risk on
a monthly basis to identify trends and establish strategies to maintain stability in net interest income throughout various rate
environments. Analytical modeling techniques provide management insight into the Company’s exposure to changing rates. These
techniques include net interest income simulations and market value analysis. Management has set guidelines specifying acceptable
limits within which net interest income and market value may change under various rate change scenarios. These measurement
tools indicate that the Company is currently within acceptable risk guidelines as set by management.

The Company's main mterest rate measurement tool, income simulations, projects net interest income under various rate change
scenarios in order to quantify the magnitude and timing of potential rate-related changes. Income simulations are able to capture
option risks within the balance sheet where expected cash flows may be altered under various rate environments. Modeled rate
movements include *“shocks, rartnps and twists”. Shocks are intended to capture interest rate risk under extreme conditions by
immediately shifting rates up and down, while ramps measure the impact of gradual changes and twists measure yield curve risk.
The size of the balance sheet is assumed to remain constant so that results are not influenced by growth predictions. The following
table shows the expected effect that gradual basis point shifis in the swap curve over a twelve month period would have on the
Company’s nel interest income, given a static balance sheet.
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December 31, 2013 September 30, 2013 December 31, 2012

§ Changein % Change in $ Change in % Change in $ Changein % Change in
R Net Interest  Net Interest Net Interest Net Interest Net Interest Net Interest
{Dollars in millions) Income Income ° Income Income Income Income
300 basis points rising (35.0) (.81)Y% ($6.7 (1.12)% ($2.1) (36)%
200 basis points rising 4« L0 A7 (.8) - (13) 3.1 Sl
100 basis points rising . : . 34 . 56 . 1.8 .30 49 .82

The Company also employs a sophisticated simulation technique known as a stochastic income simulation. This technique
allows management to see a range of results from hundreds of income simulations. The stochastic simulation creates a vector of
potential rate paths around the market’s best guess (forward rates) concerning the future path of interest rates and allows rates to
randomly follow paths throughout the vector: This allows for the modeling of non-biased rate forecasts around the market consensus.
Results-give management insight into a likely range of rate-related risk as well as worst and best-case rate scenarios.

. f . .

The Company also uses market value analyses to help identify longer-term risks that may reside on the balance sheet. This is
_considered a secondary risk measurement tool by management. The Company measures the market value of equity as the net
present value of all asset and liability cash flows discounted along the current swap curve plus appropriate market risk spreads. It
is the .change in the market value of equity under different rate environments, or effective duration that gives insight into the
magnitude of risk to future earnings due to rate changes Market value analyses also help management understand the price
sensitivity of non-marketable bank products under different rate environments. -

Under the above scenarios at December 31, 2013, a gradual increase in interest rates of 100 basis points is expected to increase
net interest income from the base calculation by $3.4 million, or .56%, and a rise of 200 basis points is expected to increase net
interest income by $1.0 million, or .17%. Under a 300 basis points rising rate scenario, net interest income would decrease by
$£5.0 million, or .81%. Due to the already low interest rate environment, the Company did not model falling rate scenarios, The
change in net interest income from the base calculation at December 31, 2013 for the three scenarios shown was higher than
projections made at September 30, 2013, largely due to a change in the mix of interest bearing liabilities. Short-term borrowings
of federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements, in addition to short-term certificates of deposit, are generally more rate-
sensitive, and these balances declined from the previous quarter. They were replaced by higher balances of demand and money
market deposns which are less rate-sensitive. This change resulted in a more asset-sensitive risk pattern and improving income
pro_|ect1ons As shown in the above scenanos as rates nise from 100 to 300 basis points, the effect on projected net interest income
generally becomes more negative. This occurs because, in the higher rate scenarios, the non-contractual deposits are modeled to
become more rate sensitive, resulting in margin compression. Also, these scenarios project deposit run-off which is replaced by
hlgher costing short-term borrowmgs Rising rates also tend to slow prepayments of both res:dentlal mortgage loans and mortgage-
Jbacked securities, which also'negatively affects net interest income.

Through review and oversight by the ALCO, the Company atternpts to engage in strategles that neutralize interest rate risk as
much as possnble The Company’s balance sheet remadins well-diversified with moderate interest rate risk and is well-positioned
for future growth. The use of derivative products is limited and the deposit base is strong and stable. The loan to deposit ratio is
still at relatively low levels, which should present the Company with opportunities to fund future loan growth at reasonable costs.
The Company beliéves that its approach to interest rate risk has appropriately considered its susceptibility to both rising and falling
rates and has adopted strategles Wl‘llC]‘l mlr‘lllee impacts of i interest rate nsk

+

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company maintains an overall interest rate risk management strategy that permits the use of derivative instruments to
modify exposure to interest rate risk. The Company’s interest rate risk management strategy includes the ability to modify the re-
pricing characteristics of certain assets and liabilities so that changes in interest rates do not adversely affect the net interest margin
and cash flows. Interest rate swaps are used on a limited basis as part of this strategy. As of December 31, 2013, the Company had
entered into two interest rate swaps with a notional amount of $12.2 million which are designated as fair value hedges of certain
fixed rate loans. The Company also sells swap contracts to customers who wish to modify their interest rate sensitivity. The
Company offsets the interest rate risk of these swaps by purchasing matching contracts with offsetting pay/receive rates from other
financial institutions. The notional amount of these types of swaps at December 31, 2013 was $584.8 million.

Credit risk participation agreements arise when the Company contracts, as a guarantor or beneficiary, with other financial
institutions to share credit risk associated with certain interest rate swaps. These agreements provide for reimbursement of losses
resulting from a third party default on the underlying swap.
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The Company enters into foreign exchange derivative instruments as an accommodation to customers and offsets the related
foreign exchange risk by entering into offsetting third-party forward contracts with approved, reputable counterparties. In addition,
the Company takes proprietary positions in such contracts based on market expectations. This trading activity is managed within
a policy of specific controls and limits. Most of the foreign exchange contracts outstanding at December 31, 2013 mature within
six months. )

In all of these contracts, the Company is exposed to credit risk in the event of nonperformance by counterparties, who may be
bank customers or other financial institutions. The Company controls the credit risk of its financial contracts through credit
approvals, limits and monitoring procedures. Because the Company generally enters into transactions only with high quality
counterparties, there have been no losses associated with counterparty nonperformance on derivative financial instruments.

The following table summarizes the notional amounts and estimated fair values of the Company’s derivative instruments at
December 31, 2013 and 2012. Notional amount, along with the other terms of the derivative, is used to determine the amounts to
be exchanged between the counterparties. Because the notional amount does not represent amounts exchanged by the parties, it
is not a measure of loss exposure related to the use of derivatives nor of exposure to liquidity risk.

2013 ' 2012
Notional Positive Fair Negative Fair  ° Notional Positive Fair Negative Fair

(In thousands) Amount Value Value Amount Value Value
Interest rate swaps § 596,933 8 11,428 $ (11,729) $ 435542 3 16,334 $ (17,060)
Interest rate caps 9,736 1 (1) 27,736 l 8]
Credit risk participation

agreements 82,456 4 (69) 43,243 9 {196)
Foreign exchange contracts 81,207 1,547 (1,530) 47,897 396 ’ (461)
Total at December 31 § 740,332 3 12,980 $ (13,329) $ 554418 $ 16,740 % (17,718)

Operating Segments

The Company segregates financial information for use in assessing its performance and allocating resources among three
operating segments. The results are determined based on the Company’s management accounting process, which assigns balance
sheet and income statement items to each responsible segment. These segments are defined by customer base and product type.
The management process measures the performance of the operating segments based on the management structure of the Company
and is not necessarily comparable with similar information for any other financial institution. Each segment is managed by
executives who, in conjunction with the Chief Executive Officer, make strategic business decisions regarding that segment. The
three reportable operating segments are Consumer, Commercial and Wealth. Additional information is presented in Note 13 on
Segments in the consolidated financial statements. ‘

The Company uses a funds transfer pricing method to value funds used (e.g., loans, fixed assets, cash, etc.) and funds provided
(deposits, borrowings, and equity) by the business segments and their components. This process assigns a specific value to each
new source or use of funds with a maturity, based on current swap rates, thus determining an interest spread at the time of the
transaction. Non-maturity assets and liabilities are valued using weighted average pools. The funds transfer pricing process
attempls to remove interest rate risk from valuation, allowing management to compare profitability under various rate environments.
The Company also assigns loan charge-offs and recoveries (labeled in the table below as “provision for loan losses™) directly to
each operating segment instead of allocating an estimated loan loss provision. The operating segments also include a number of
allocations of income and expense from various support and overhead centers within the Company.
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The tabte below is a summary of segment pre-tax income results for the past three years.

] : Other/ Consolidated
(Dellars in thousands) Consumer Commercial Weaith Segment Totals Elimination Totals
Year ended December 31, 2013: o ‘ .
Net interest income | . ' $ 268283 5 288,722 § 40,194 . 5 597,099 § 22173 $ 619372
Provision for loan losses (34,277) 3,772 (688) (31,193) 10,840 (20,353)
Non-interest income . 11337 186,446 116,765 416,588 1,798 418,386
Investment securities losses, net g — — — {4,425) (4,425)
Non-interest expense ' ‘ (270,209) (235,346) (96,530) (602,085) (27,548} (629,633)
Income before income taxes $ 77474 % 243594 & 59,741 $ 380,509 § 2,838 § 383,347
Year ended December 31,2012: .
Net interest income 3 274844 5 290968 % 39498 § 605310 3 345% 8 639,906
Proviston for loan losses (35,496) (2,824) (695) (39.015) 11,728 (27,287)
Non-interest income 114,307 179,824 108,472 402,603 (2,973) 399,630
Investment securities gains, net — — o — 4,828 4,828
" Non-interest expense (266,740} (226,935) (90,659) (584,334) (34,135) (618,469)
Income before income taxes $ 86915 $ 241,033 § 56,616 $ 384564 § 14,044 § 398,608
2013 vs 2012 o - ’ : )
Increase {decrease) in income before .
Income taxes: '
Amount . B $ (9,741) § 2,561 § 3,125 § (4,055) $ (11,206) § (15,261)
Pércent ' ' (11.2)% 1.1% 5.5% (1.1)% (79.8)% 3.8)%
Year ended December 31, 2011
Net interest income - $ 283,555 % 283,790 .§ 38862 § 606207 % 39863 § 646,07C
Provision for loan losses (47,273) (16,195) (712) (64,180} 12,665 (51,515) .
Nomn-interest income : 131,253 162,533 101,836 395,622 (2,705) 392,917
Investment securities gains, net : — — — — 10,812 10,812
Non-interest expense A (269.435) (221,273} (89,108) (579,816} (37,433) (617,249)
Income before income taxes % 98100 % 208855 % 50,878 § . 357,833 0§ 23202 § 381,035
2012 vs 2011 ]
Increase (decrease) in income before .
ncome faxes: 5
Amount $ (11,185 § +32,178 % 5738 - $ 26,731 b (9,158) % 17,573
Percent ' {11.4)% 15.4% 11.3% 7.5 % (39.5)% 4.6 %
Consumer 6

The Consumer segment includes consumer'deposits, consumer finance, and consumer debit and credit cards. Pre-tax
profitability for 2013 was $77.2 million, a decrease of $§9.7 million, or 11.2%, from 2012. This decrease was mainly due to a
decline of $6.6 million, or 2.4%, in net interest income, coupled with an increase of $3.5 million, or 1.3%, in non-interest expense.
In addition, non-interest income decreased $930 thousand, while the provision for toan losses decreased $1.2 million, or 3.4%.
Net interest income declined due to a $4.7 million decrease in loan interest income and a $7.3 million decrease in net allocated
funding credits assigned to the Consumer segment's loan and deposit portfolios, partly offset by a decline of §5.3 million in deposit
interest expense. Non-interest income decreased mainly due to declines in deposit account fees (mainly overdraft charges),
mortgage banking revenue, and ATM fees, but the declines were partly offset by growth in bank card fees. Non-interest expense
increased over the prior year due to higher corporate management fees, bank card related expense, building rent expense and credit
card fraud losses, partly offset by lower incentive compensation expense and allocated building security expense. The provision
for loan losses totaled $34.3 million, a $1.2 million decrease from 2012, which was mainly due to lower losses on marine and RV
loans. Total average loans in this segment increased $170.8 million, or 7.1%, in 2013 compared to the prior year due to growth
in auto loan originations, partly offset by repayments of marine and RV loans. Average deposits increased 5.7% over the prior
year, resulting mainly from growth in mterest checkmg and money market deposit accounts, partly offset by a decline in certificates
of deposit under $100,000.
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Pre-tax profitability for 2012 vas $86.9 million, a decrease of $11.2 million, or 11.4%, from 2011. This decrease was mainly
due to a decline of $8.7 million, or 3.1%, in net interest income, coupled with a decline of $16.9 million, or 12.9%, in non-interest
income. These income reductions were partly offset by a decrease of $11.8 million in the provision for loan losses and a $2.7
million decrease in non-interest expense. Net interest income declined due to a $7.9 million decrease in loan interest income and
a $9.8 million decrease in net allocated funding credits, partly offset by a decline of $9.0 million in deposit interest expense. Non-
interest income decreased mainly due to declines in bank card fee income (primarily debit card fees) and deposit account fees
{mainly overdraft charges). Non-interest expense declined from the same period in the previous year due to lower FDIC insurance
expense and corporate management fees, partly offset by higher salaries expense. The provision for loan losses totaled $35.5
million, an $11.8 million decrease from 2011, which was due mainly to lower losses on consumer credit card loans and marine
and RV loans. Total average loans decreased 3.0% in 2012 compared to the prior year due to declines in held for sale student
loans and personal real estate loans. Consumer loans grew, however, due to auto loan growth, which was partly offset by declining
marine and RV loans. Average deposits increased 4.2% over the prior period, due mainly to money market and interest checking
account growth, partly offset by lower balances of certificates of deposit under $100,000.

Commercial . .

The Commercial segment provides corporate lending (including the Small Business Banking product line within the branch
network), leasing, international services, and business, government deposit, and related commercial cash management services,
as well as merchant and commercial bank card products. The segment includes the Capital Markets Group, which sells fixed-
income securities to individuals, corporations, correspondent banks, public institutions, and municipalities, and also provides
investment safekeeping and bond accounting services. Pre-tax incoie for 2013 increased $2.6 million, or 1.1%, compared to the
prior year, mainly due to higher non-interest income and a decline in the provision for loan losses, partly offset by higher non-
interest expense and a decline in net interest income. Net interest income decreased $2.2 million, due to a $§5.7 million decline in
loan interest income, partly offset by higher net allocated funding credits of $3.0 million. Non-interest income increased by $6.6
million, or 3.7%, over the previous year due to growth in bank card fees (mainly corporate card), partly offset by lower capital
market fees. Growth was also seen in corporate cash management fees and tax credit sales fees. Non-interest expense increased
$8.4 million, or 3.7%, over the previous year, mainly due to higher full-time salaries expense, a provision recorded on a letter of
credit exposure, and higher bank card related expense. These expense increases were partly offset by higher gains on sales of
foreclosed property, lower incentive compensation, and lower processing costs. The provision for loan losses declined $6.6 million
from last year, as business real estate loan net charge-offs declined $4.2 million and construction and land loan net recoveries
increased $4.4 million, while business loan recoveries decreased by §1.6 million. Average segment loans increased $476.0 million,
or 8.4%, compared to 2012 as a result of growth in all commercial loan categories. Average deposits increased $542.7 million,
or 8.7%, due to growth in non-interest bearing accounts and certificates of deposit over $100,000,

In 2012, pre-tax profitability for the Commercial segment increased $32.2 million, or 15.4%, compared to the prior year, mainly
due to a lower provision for loan‘osses and growth in net interest income and nen-interest income. Net interest income increased
$7.2 million, or 2.5%, due to higher net allocated funding credits of $15.4 million (related to higher average deposit balances),
partly offset by a $10.1 million decline in loan interest income. The provision for loan losses in the segment totaled $2.8 million
in 2012, a decrease of $13.4 million from 2011. During 2012, net recoveries of $2.5 million were recorded on business loans,
compared to net charge-offs of $4.7 million in 2011. This decline in net charge-offs was partly due to recoveries of $3.6 million
on two non-performing loans in 2012. In addition, net charge-offs on construction loans decreased $7.2 million. Non-interest
income increased by $17.3 million, or 10.6.%, over the previous year due to growth in bank card fees (mainly corporate card),
capital market fees and tax credit sales revenue. Non-interest expense increased $5.7 million, or 2.6%, over 2011, mainly due to
higher salaries expense and bank card related expenses, partly offset by lower corporate management fees. Average segment loans
increased 1.0% compared to 2011 as a result of a growth in business real estate, lease and tax-free loans, partly offset by a decline
in construction loans. Average deposits increased 11.5% due to growth in non-interest bearing accounts, money market deposu
accounts and interest checking accounts, partly offset by a decline in certificates of deposit over $100,000.

Wealth

The Wealth segment provides traditional trust and estate planning, advisory and discretionary investment management services,
brokerage services, and includes Private Banking accounts. At December 31, 2013, the Trust group managed investments with a
market value of $20.4 billion ahd administered an additional $14.8 billion in non-managed assets. It also provides investment
management services to The Commerce Funds, a series of mutual funds with $1.8 billion in total assets at December 31, 2013.
Wealth segment pre-tax profitability for 2013 was $59.7 million, compared to $56.6 million in 2012, an increase of $3.1 million,
or 5.5%. Net interest income increased $696 thousand, or 1.8%, mainly due to a $1.2 million decline in deposit interest expense
and an increase of $529 thousand in loan interest ncome, which were partly offset by a $1.1 million decrease in net allocated
funding credits. Non-interest income increased $8.3 million, or 7.6%, over the prior year due to higher personal and institutional
trust fees and brokerage advisory fees. Non-interest expense increased $5.9 million, or 6.5%, mainly due to higher full-time salary
costs, incentive compensation and processing costs. Average assets increased $112.4 million, or 15.1%, during 2013 mainly due

46



to higher loan balances (mainly consumer and personal real estate loans) originated in this segment. Average deposits also increased
$195.9 million, or 11.6%, due to growth in money market and interest checking depostt accounts.

In 2012, pre-tax income for the Wealth segment was $56.6 million compared to $50.9 million in 2011, an increase of $5.7
million, or 11.3%. Net interest income increased $636 thousand, or 1.6%, and was impacted by a $1.8 million decline in deposit
interest expense, partly offset by a $1.0 million decrease in net allocated funding credits. Non-interest income increased $6.6
million, or 6.5%, over the prior year due to higher personal and institutional trust fees. Non-interest expense increased $1.6 million,
or 1.7%, mainly due to higher salary and benefit costs, partly offset by lower fraud losses and legal and professional fees. Average
assets increased $62.9 million, or 9.2%, during 2012 mainly due to higher loan balances, while average deposits increased $158.5
million, or 10.3%, on higher money market and interest checking accounts. .

The segment activity, as shown above, includes both direct and allocated items. Amounts in the “Other/Elimination” column
include activity not related to the segments, such as certain administrative functions, the investment securities portfolio, and the
effect of certain expense allocations to the segments. Also included in this category is the difference between the Company’s
provision for loan tosses and net loan charge-offs, which are generally assigned directly to the segments. In 2013, the pre-tax
income in this category was $2.8 million, compared to $14.0 million in 2012. This decrease occurred partly due to a $12.4 million
decline in net interest income in this category, related to the earnings of the investment portfolio and interest expense on borrowings
not allocated to a segment. In addition, unallocated securities gains declined $9.3 million, while unallocated non-interest expense
was lower by $6.6 miltion. ' ' S

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards

Other Comprehensive Income In February 2013, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued ASU 2013-02,
"Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income”. The amendments require an entity to
present, either in the income statement or in the notes, significant amounts reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive
income by the respective line itemns of net income, but only if the amount reclassified is required under U.S. GAAP to be reclassified
to net income in its entirety in the same reporting period. For other amounts that are not required under U.S, GAAP to be reclassified
in their entirety, an entity is required to cross-reference to other disclosures that provide additional detail about those amounts.
This ASU was effective for annual and interim periods beginning January 1, 2013. Adoption of the ASU did not have a significant
effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements (see Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements}.

Balance Sheet In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU 201 1-11, "Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities”. The
ASU is ajoint requirement by the FASB and International Accounting Standards Board to enhance current disclosures and increase
comparability of GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) financial statements. Under the ASU, an entity
is required to disclose both gross and net information about instruments and transactions eligible for offset in the balance sheet,
as well as instruments and transactions subject to an agreement similar to a master netting agreement. ASU 2013-01, "Clarifying
the Scope of Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities" was issued in January 2013, and amended ASU 2011-11 to
specifically include only derivatives accounted for under Topic 815, repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements, and securities
borrowing and lending transactions that are either offset or subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement. Both ASUs
were effective for annual and interim periods beginning January 1, 2013, and their required disclosures are included in the
accompanying Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

Investment Companies In June 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-08, "Amendments to the Scope, Measurement, and Disclosure
Requirements" for investment companies. The amendments changed the assessment of whether an entity is an investment company
by requiring an entity to possess certain fundamental characteristics, while allowing judgment in assessing other typical
characteristics. The ASU was effective January 1, 2014, and the Company did not change the status of any subsidiary or the
accounting applied to a subsidiary under the new guidelines,

Derivatives The FASB issued ASU 2013-10), "Inclusion of the Fed Funds Effective Swap Rate (or Overnight Index Swap Rate)
as a Benchmark Interest Rate for Hedge Accounting Purposes”, in July 2013. These amendments allow the Fed Funds Effective
Swap Rate (OIS) to be used as a U.S. benchmark interest rate for hedge accounting purposes, in addition to the current benchmark
rates of UST (the rate on direct Treasury obligations of the U.S. government) and LIBOR (the London Interbank Offered Rate on
swaps). The amendments were effective on a prospective basis for new or redesignated hedging relationships on July 17, 2013.
The adoption did not have a significant effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

Investments - Equity Method and Joint Ventures The FASB i1ssued ASU 2014-01, "Accounting for Investments in Quatified
Affordable Housing Projects”, in January 2014, These amendments allow investors in low income housing tax credit entities to
account for the investments using a proportional amortization method, provided that certain conditions are met, and recognize
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amortization of the investment as a component of income tax expense. In addition, disclosures are required that will enable users
to understand the nature of the in\'restments, and the effect of the measurement of the investments and the related tax credits on
the investor's financial statements, This ASU is effective for interim and annual periods beginning January 1, 2015 and should
be applied retrospectively to all periods presented. The adoption is not expected to have a significant effect on the Company's
consolidated financial statements, ' '

Troubled Debt Restructurings by Creditors The FASB issued ASU 2014-04, "Reclassification of Residential Real Estate
Collateralized Consumer Mortgage Loans upon Foreclosure”, in January 2014. These amendments require companies to disclose
the amount of foreclosed residential real estate property held and the recorded investment in consumer mortgage loans secured
by residential real estate properties for which formal foreclosure proceedings are in process according to local requirements of
the applicable jurisdiction. The ASU also defines when a creditor is considered to have received physical possession of residential
real estate property collateralizing a consumer mortgage loan. The amendments are effective for interim and annual periods
beginning January 1, 2015. The adoption is not expected to have a significant effect on the Company's consolidated financial
statements. - ‘ -

Corporate Governance

The Company has adepted a number of corporate governance measures. These include corporate governance guidelines, a code
of ethics that applies to its senior financial officers and the charters for its audit committee, its committee on compensation and
human resources, and its committee on governance/directors. This information is available on the Company’s Web site
www.commercebank.com under Investor Relations.
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SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY STATEMENTS OF INCOME

* Restated for the 5% stock dividend distributed in 2013.
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Year ended December 31, 2013 For the Quarter Ended
(In thousands, ‘excep! per share data) 12/31/2013 9/30/2013 6/30/2013 3/31/2013
Interest income s 162,141~ $ 162,144 § 167,255 § 158,745
Interest expense (7.276) (7.438) (1,797} (8,402)
Nel interest income 154,865 154,706 159,458 150,343
Non-interest income 109,522 106,311 102,676 99,877
Investment securities gains (losses), net (1,342) 650 (1,568) (2,165)
Salaries and employee benefits (95,012) (91,405) (89,569} (90,881)
Other expense (66,306) (64.907) (67,397) . . (64,156)
Provision for loan losses (5.543) {4,146) {7.379) (3,285)
Income before income taxes 96,184 101209 96,221 - 89,733
Income taxes. (30.359) . (32,764) . {30,182 (28,925)
Non-controlling interest 9 @ - (234)- 209
Net income attributable to Commerce Bancshares, Inc. $ 65915 $ 68,224 § 65,805 § 61,017
Net income per common share — basic* $ 69§ T8 69 .3 " .64
Net income per common share — diluted* $ 69 % s 69 8 .63
Weighted average shares — basic* 94,843 94,504 94,273 94,722
Weighted average shares — diluted* 95,321 94,975 04,667 94,966
Year ended December 31, 2012 For the Quarter Ended
{In thousands, except per share data) 12/31/2012 9/30/2012 6/30/2012 313172012
Interest income 3 170,185 8 163,194 § 174,624 § 169,966
Interest expense (8,932) C(9,383) (9,519) (10,229
Net interest income 161,253 153.811 165,105 159,737
Non-interest income 103,309 100,922 100,816 ! 94,583
Investment securities gains (losses), net (3,728) 3,180 1,336 | 4,040

. Salaries_and employee benefits (94,553) (89,292) (87.511) (89,543}
Other expense (63,724) '7 (64,_09?) {68,829) (60,918)
Provision for loan losses (8,326) (5,581) (5,21%) (8,165)
Income before income taxes 94,231 98,941 105,702 . 99,734
[ncome taxes (27,628) (32,15%) (34,466) (32,920)
Non-controlling interest 188 (780) (503) (1,015)
Net income attributable to Commerce Bancshares, Inc. $ 66,791 % 66,006 ' $ 70,733 65,799
Net income per common share — basic* 3 69 3 - 68 § - 73 3 67
Net income per common share — diluted* $ 69 § 68 § 728 . Y)
Weighted average shares — basic* 95,366 95,801 96,363 97,264
Weighted average shares — diluted* 95,549 96,130 96,658 97,633
Year ended December 31, 2011 For the Quarter Ended
{In thousands, except per share data) 12/31/2011 9/30/2011 6/30/2011 3/31/2011
Interest income s 173,223 § 170,835 % 178,087 $ 175,826 ‘
Interest expense (11,466) (12,205) (13,377 (14,853)
Net interest income 161,757 158,630 164,710 160,973
Non-interest income 94,035 101,632 101,344 95,906
Investment securities gains, net 4,942 2,587 1,956 .1,327
Salaries and cmployee benefits (88,010} {85,700} (84,223) (87,392)
Other expense (68,020) (68,046) (69,2.9.0) ’ {66,568)
Provision for loan losses (12,143) (11,395) {12,188) ‘(15,789)
Income before income taxes 92,561 97,708 102,309 88457
Income taxes (29.514) "“(Si ,699) (32,692) (27,507) .
Non-controlling interest . (1,543 " *657) (583 T 49D
Net income attributable to Commerce Bancshares, Inc. §- 61,504 $ 65352 § -+ 69,034 % 60,453 -

_ Net income per common share — basic® $ 63 3 .66 § 68 § .60
Net income per commmon share — diluted* h) 63 % - 65§ - -68 % Cv 60 -
Weighted average shares — basic* 97.455 98,648 100,180 100,097
Weighted average shares — diluted* 97,740 98,935 100,629 100,524




AVERAGE BALANCE SHEETS — AVERAGE RATES AND YIELDS

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
X Interest Interest Interest
(Dollars in thausands) ’éIf.’;E: L‘;‘é’:‘z Aﬁ::f&?:f;’ a\arlearnnfee E‘fg:i Agaﬂr:fémgﬁf 'é:ﬁf:c‘: E’f;c'i:i_ Aﬁf:nafimaﬂs
ASSETS
Loans:™ )
Business'® $ 3366564 § 102,847 305% $ 2962699 § 102,013 344% $ 2910668 5 104,624 3.59%
Real estate — construction and land 378,896 15,036 3.97 356,425 15,146 4.25 419,905 18,831 4,48
Real estate - business 2,251,113 92.55.5 4.11 2,193,271 98,693 4.50 2,117,03t 101,988 4.82
Real estate — personal 1,694,955 66,353 3.91 1,503,357 65,642 437 1,433,869 69,048 482
Consumer 1,437,270 67,299 4,68 1,180,538 66,402 562 1,118,700 70,127 6.27
Revolving home equity 424,358 16,822 3.96 446,204 18,586 4.17 468,718 19,952 4.26
Student'™ — — — — — — — — —
Consumer credit can.:l . 752,478 R4,84) 11.28 730,697 85,652 11.72 746,724 84,479 11.31
Overdrafls . 6,020 — — 6,125 — — 6,953 — —
Total loans 10,311,654 445,755 432 9,379,316 452,134 4.82 9,222,568 469,049 5.0%
Loans held for sale - 4,488 i76 39 . 9.688 361 31 47,227 1,115 2.36
Investment securities:
U.S, government & federal agency 401,162 8,775 219 132,382 12,260 3.69 357,861 17,268 483
obligations ' ’ v ” ’ '
Gg;ﬁl;:ﬁ:::svonsomd emerprise 495,947 8,658 173 306,676 5,653 1.84 253,020 5,781 2.28
State & municipal obligalions'm 1,617,814 58,522 3.6 1,376,872 54,056 393 1,174,751 51,988 . 443
Mortgage-backed securities 3,187,648 87,523 275 3,852,616 107,527 279 3.556,106 114,405 - 3.22
Asset-backed securities 3,061,415 27,475 00 2,925,249 31,940 1.09 2,443,901 30,523 1.25
Other marketable securities™ 182,313 5,625 309 139,499 6,556 4.70 171,409 8,455 493
Trading securities'® io,gsﬁ an 2.8 25,107 637 2.54 20,011 552 276
Non-marketable securities'® 116,557 12,226 §0.49 118,879 12,558 10.56 107,501 8,283 71.71
Total investment securities 9,087,852 209,276 .30 9,077,280 231,187 2.55 8.084,560 237,255 2.93
Short-term federal funds sold and i '
securities purchased under '
agreements to resell 24,669 106 43 16,393 82 .50 10,6590 55 51
L"u;'rgu‘;,“;f:f;‘?;ﬁlpmm under 1,174,589 21,119 1.80 892,624 19,174 215 768,904 13,455 1.75
Interest eamning deposits with banks 155,885 387 .25 135,319 339 .25 194,176 487 .25
‘Total interest earning assets 20,759,137 676,819 3.26 19,510,620 703,277 3.60 18,328,125 721,416 3.94
Allowance for loan losses {166,846) (178,934) (191,311)
Unrealized gain on investment
secarities 157,910 257,511 162,984
Cash and due from banks 382,500 369,020 348,875
Land, buildings and equipment - net 357,544 357,336 ' 377,200
Other assets 383,739 385,125 378,642
Total assets 5 21,873,984 § 20,700,678 ' $ 19,404,515
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Interest bearing deposits:
Savings s 625517 766 12 $ 574,336 802 14 $ 525,371 852 A6
Interest checking and money
market 9,059,524 13,589 15 8,430,559 17,880 21 7,702,901 25,004 32
Time open & C.D.'s ofless than 1,034,991 6,002 58 1,117,236 7,018 7 1,291,168 11,382 88
Time open & C..'s of 100,000 1,380,003 6,383 46 1181426 7,174 61 1,409,740 9272 56
Total interest bearing deposits 12,100,035 26,740 .22 11,303,557 33,774 30 10,929,177 46,480 43
Borrowings:
Federal funds purchased and
secutities sold under agreements .
(6 repurchass 1,294,691 809 06 1,185,978 808 07 1,035,007 1,741 17
Other borrowings 103,901 3,364 3.24 108,916 3,481 3.0 112,107 3,680 3.28
Total borrowings 1,398,592 4,173 30 1,294,894 4,289 33 1,147 114 5421 47
Total interest bearing liabilities 13,498,617 30,913 23 % 12,598,451 38,063 30 % 12,076,291 51,901 A3%
Non-interest bearing deposits 5,961,116 5522991 4,742,033
Other liabilities , 137,130 334,684 476,249
Equity . 2,177,111 2,244,552 2,109,942
Total liabilities and equity $ 21,873,984 $ 20,700,678 $ 19.404,515
Net interest margin (T/E) | 3 645,906 5 665,214 $ 669,515
Net yield on interest earning assets . 3% 34 % 3.65%

Percentage increase (decrease) in
net tnterest margin (T/E)
compared to the prior year (2.90)% (.64)% 51%

(A)  Loans on non-accrual status are included in the computation of average balances. Included in interest income above are loan fees and late charges, net of amortization of deferred loan
origination fees and costs, whick are immaterial. Credit card income from mercham discounts and net interchange fees are not included in loan income.

B)  Imerestincome and yields are presented on a fullv-taxable equivalent basis using the Federal statutory income tax rate. Loan interest income includes tax free loan income (calegorized
as business loan income} which includes tax equivalent adiustments of 86,673,000 in 2013, 55,803,000 in 2042, 35.538.000 in 2011, 54.620.000 in 2010, 33,922,000 in 2009 and
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Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008
Interest . [nterest B Interest Avcrage Balance
Average Average Rates Average Avcrage Raics Avcrage Avernge Rates >
Batance thcome! Eamed/Paid Balarice 'r';ﬁ;’c_“g’; Eamed/Paid Balance E;“;’:g EamedPaid Five Year Compound
$ 2887427 % 110,792 184% § 3,119,778 % 116,686 374% 0§ 3478927 § 170,620 4.50% (.65)%
557,282 22,384 402 739.896 26,7146 361 701,519 34,445 491 (11.59) ‘
2,029,214 102,451 5.05 2,143,675 108,107 5.04 2,281,664 136,955 6.00 (.27)
1,476,031 76,531 5.18 1,585,273 87,085 5.49 1,522,172 88,322 5.80 2.17
1,250,076 84,204 6.74 1,464,170 101,761 6.95 1,674,497 119,837 7.16 (3.01)
434,878 20,916 431 495,629 21,456 4,13 474.635 23,960 5.05 (2.21)
246,395 5,783 235 344,243 9,440 2.74 13,708 287 2,10 NM
760,079 £9,225 11.74 727422 59,045 12.24 776,810 83972 10.81 (.63)
7,288 - — 9,781 — — 11,926 — — (12.78)
9,698,670 512,286 5.28 10,629,867 560,326 5.27 10,935,858 658,398 6.02 (1.17)
358,402 6,091 1.70 397,583 8219 2.07 347,441 14,968 4.31 (58.10)
y |
439,073 9,673 2.20 169,214 6,754 3.99 7.065 364 515 12431
203,593 4.591 .25 137,928 4,219 3.06 176,018 7.075 4.02 3.2 ‘
966,694 45,469 4.70 873,607 43,882 5.02 695,542 37,770 543 _18.39
2,821,485 113,222 4,08 2,802,532 136,921 4.89 2,203,921 112,184 5.09 7.66 ‘
1,973,734 38,559 1.95 937,435 30,166 3.22 265,546 13,185 4.97 63.06
183,328 8,889 4.85 179,847 9,793 5.45 98,650 4,243 4.30 13.07
21,859 671 3.06 16,927 506 299 28,840 1,355 4.70 {6.16)
113,326 7,216 6.37 136,91t 6,398 4.67 133,996 7,730 577 {2.75)
6,723,132 228,290 3.40 5,254,401 238,639 4.54 3,609,578 183,906 5.09 20.28
6,542 48 73 43,811 222 51 425,273 8,287 1.95 (43.42)
150,235 2,549 1.70 — — — — — — NM
171,883 427 .23 325,744 BG7 25 46,670 198 A2 27.28
17,108,954 749,691 4.38 16,651,406 808,213 4.85 15,364,820 863,757 5.63 6.20
{195,870) {181,417} (145,176) 2.82
149,106 24,105 27,068 42.30 .
368,340 364,579 451,105 {3.25)
395,108 411,366 ! 412,852 (2.84)
410,361 349,164 343,664 2.23 ‘
$ 18,235,999 $ 17,619,203 § 16,454,333 586 ‘
!
1
S 478,592 622 A3 3 438,748 642 15 M 400,948 1,186 30 9.30
6,785,299 28,676 42 5,807,753 30,789 53 5.123,709 59,947 1.17 12.07
1,660,462 22,871 1.38 2,055,952 51,982 2.53 2,149,119 17322 360 (13.60)
1,323,952 13,847 1.05 1,858,543 353N 1.50 1,629,500 55,665 3.42 (3.27)
10,248,308 66,016 64 10,160,996 118,784 1.17 9.303.276 194,120 209 540
1,085,121 2,584 24 - 968,643 3,659 38 1,373,625 25,085 1.83 (1.18)
452,810 14,948 3.30 920,467 31,527 3.43 1,092,746 37,905 .3.47 (37.54)
1,537,931 17,532 1.14 1,589,110 35,226 1.86 2,466,371 62,990 2.55 (10.73)
11,786,236 83,548 T1% 12,050,106 154,010 1.28% 11,769,647 257,110 2.18% 2.78
4,115,664 3,660,166 2,946,534 15.13
346,312 176,676 140,333 11.06
1,988,787 1,732,255 1,597,819 6.38
$ 18235999 $ 17.619,203 $ 16,454,333 5.86 %
$ 666,143 $ 654,203 £ 608,647
3.89% 3.93% 3.96%
1.83% 7.48% 9.85%
$3,553,000 in 2008, Investment sccurities interest income inelude tax equivalent adjustments of $19.861,000 in 2013, $19,505,000 in 2012, 317,907,000 in 2011, 515,593,000 in 2010,
514,779,000 in 2009 and §12,355,000in 2008. These adjustments relate to state and municipal ohligations, other marketable securities, trading securities, and non-marketable securities.
(C)  In December 2008, the Company purchased $358,451,000 of studenrt loans with the intent to hold to maturity. In October 2010, the seller elected to repurchase the loans under the terms

of the original agreement. |
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QUARTERLY AYERAGE BALANCE SHEETS — AVERAGE RATES AND YIELDS

Year ended December 31, 2013

Fourth Quarter Third Quarter Second Quarter First Quarter
Average Average Rates Average Avcrage Rates Average Average Rates Average Average Raies
(Dedlars in millions) Balance Earned/Paid Balance Eamed/Paid Balance Famned/Paid Balance Earned/Paid
ASSETS
Loans:
Business™™ 3,635 3.04% $ 3415 2.96% 3,253 3.07% 8§ 3,157 307%
Real estate — construction and tand 391 3.98 399 4.07 373 394 352 3.87
Real estate - business 2,300 4.02 2,257 4.12 2,217 4.14 2,230 4,17
Real ¢state — personal 1.783 3.80 1,729 3.83 1.665 3.97 1,600 4,08
Consumer 1,500 4,52 1472 4.53 1,431 4.69 1,343 5.03
Revolving home equity 421 3.88 422 3.94 426 3.96 429 4.08
Consumer credit card 760 11.20 753 1133 742 11.20 755 11.38
Overdrafis 7 — 6 — 6 — 5 —_
Total loans 10,797 422 10,453 4.26 10,113 434 9,871 449
Loans held for sale — — —_ — 9 4.05 9 379
Investment securities:
U.S. government & federal agency
obligations 405 1.12 402 3.04 400 5.15 398 (.59
Government-sponsored enterprise
obligations 663 1.63 427 1.74 439 1.74 469 1.86
State & municipal obligations"’ 1,629 3.53 1,605 3.54 1,634 361 1,603 379
Mortgage-backed securities 2,944 2.18 3,028 2.86 3,273 297 3,514 2.59
Asset-backed securities 2,844 .87 3,000 87 3.200 91 3,207 93
Other marketable securities'™ 168 3.25 180 2.92 188 2.97 194 321
Trading securities'! 18 2.44 16 2.41 22 2.40 28 1.90
Non-marketable securities’ 114 11.63 114 7.10 119 16.92 19 6.20
Total investment securities 8,785 2.26 8,772 2.31 9.275 2.52 9,532 2,12
Short-term federal funds sold and
securities purchased under agrecments
to resell 35 39 32 A4 23 A8 9 42
Long-term securities purchased under
agreements to resell 1,150 1,51 1,170 1.73 1,200 1.94 1.178 2.01
Interest eaming deposits with banks 260 .25 115 24 17 .26 130 24
Total interest earning assets 21,027 3.20 20,542 3.25 20,737 3.36 20,729 3.23
Allowance for loan losses (163) (165) (167) {(172)
Unrealized gain on investment securities 89 60 229 256
Cash and due from banks 404 384 366 376
Land, buildings and equipment — net 353 357 359 361
Other asscts 389 374 397 375
Total assets ! 22,099 § 21552 21,921 $ 21925
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY '
Interest bearing deposits: )
Savings | 628 A2 $ 631 14 640 11 $ 604 A2
Interest checking and money market 9,199 14 8,964 15 8933 14 9,142 A7
Time open & C.D.’s under $100,000 998 A8 1,021 .54 1,053 63 1,069 66
Time open & C.D.’s 100,000 & over' 1,287 46 1,432 43 1,464 46 1,337 52
Total interest bearing deposits 12,112 20 12,048 21 12,090 22 12,152 25
Borrowings: '
Federal funds purchased and securities
sold under agreements to repurchase® 1,186 05 1.248 05 1,544 07 1,201 07
Other borrowings 106 3.27 104 3.27 103 3.23 103 3.19
Total borrowings 1,292 x| 1,352 30 1,647 27 1,304 32
Total interest bearing liahilities 13,404 22% 13,400 22% 13,737 23% 13,456 25%
Non-interest bearing deposits f 6271 5.873 5,768 5,929
Other liabilities 0 145 229 366
Equity 2,214 2,134 2,187 2,174
Total liabilities and equity 22,099 h) 21,552 21,921 3 21,925
Net interest margin (T/E} 162 g 161 166 s 157
Net yield on interest earning assets 3.06% 3.11% 3.21% 3.07%

(A) Includes tax equivalent calculations.
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Year ended December 31, 2012

_ First Qusarter

Fourth Quarter Third Quarter Second Quarter
Average  Average Rates Avernge  Average Rates Average  Average Rates  Average  Average Rates
(Dollars in millions) Balance Eamcd/Paid Balance Earned/Paid Balance Earned/Paid Balance Eamed/Paid
ASSETS o , VN
Loans: )
Business™ 3,042 329% §$ 3,019 339% . - 2,895° 3.58% 1% 2,894 7500 - 3.52%
Real estate - construction and land 346 4.11 340 4.30 360 4.24 380 . 4.34
Real estate — business 2,200 4.33 2,183 4.39 2,206 .. 47 2,185~ . 4.57
Real estate - personal 1,572 4,15 1,523 4.31 1,476 4.46 1,441 . - 458
Consumer 1,273 5.35 1,205 5.54 1,135 573 1,108 5.93
Revolving home equity 436 4.13 444 4.17 449- -« 417 . 455 + 4,18
Consumet credit card . 749 i1.42 730 1183 713 4 .; 11.87 . 731 11.78
Overdrafts 6 — 5 — 6 - — . 8 —
Total loans 9,624 4.64 9,449 . 476 9,240 .4.95 . ¢ 9202 i 495
Loans held for sale 9 3.74 9 3.86 9 391 L 1240 348
Investment securities: . .
U.S. government & federal agency v T " Cery
obligations o 341 5.1 329 (.07 331 7.58 28 2.08
Government-sponsored ;znlerpri;;e ) ’ - R
obligations 400 1.72 276 1.65 b265 2.06 28370 . 2,01
State & municipal obligations™ 1,532 3.67 1,388 3.89 1,323 4,03 1,263 .47
Mortgage-backed securities 3,448 2.79 3,767 2.62 4,010 2.89 " 4,191 285
Asset-backed securities 3,158 99 2,879 1.10 2,900 1.13 2,762 116
Other marketable securities™ 138 5.35 122 4.50 136 4.92 163 4.11
Trading securities™ 21 - 2.01 24 2.34 23 1 2.65¢ © 33 .0 295
Non-marketable securities'® ie - 1751 117 7.54 123 - 8.60 1T " 8.55
Total investment securities 9,157 2.59 8,902 ©2.29 ‘9,111 2.75 T 9,140 - 256
Short-term federal funds sold and ' N oo
securities purchased under agreements
to resel] 10 46 19 49 22 53 - 14 .50
Long-term securities purchased under BRI -
agreements to rese!l 1,022 2.10 848 2.31 , - 850 2.17 850 2.02
Interest earning deposits with banks 209 - .25 81 .20 . 163 28 . 88 . .25
Total interest earning assets 20,031 .3.52 15,308 3.49 . 19,395 375 ¢, 001019306 . 3.66
Allowance for loan losses (i74) (177) . (181) (88 Ly
Unrealized gain on investment securities 282 275 A 243 230 o
Cash and due from banks 385 366 - 358 367
Land, buildings and equipment — net 359 353 356 ‘ 361
Other assets 382 392 378 387 .
Total assets 21,265 8 20,517 $ 20,549 s 20467 ot
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY i T
Interest bearing deposits: :
Savings 581 13 8 582 A5 5 584 A2 8 550 Y
Interest checking and money market 8,638 19 8,401 21 8,369 21 8,312 ‘24
Time open & C.D."s under $100,000 1,084 68 1,101 it 1,129 Tl 1,156 33
Time open & C.D.’s $100,000 & over 1,030 .65 1,005 69 1,250 59 7 1,444 .53
Total interest bearing deposits 11,333 28 11,089 30 11,332 30 11,462 32
Borrowings: ‘
Federal funds purchased and securities
sold under agreements to repurchase 1,130 07 1,217 07 L1110 .06 1,287 07
Other borrowings 104 3.25 109 311 111 316 112 © 326
Total borrowings 1,234 a3 1,326 32 1,221 35 1,399 33
Total interest bearing liabilities 12,567 28% 12,415 30% 12,553 30% 12,861 32%
Non-interest bearing deposits 6,013 5,536 5,405 5,132
Other liabilities 359 296 368 276
Equity 2,286 2,270 2,223 2,198
Total liabilities and equity 21,265 5 20,517 20,549 . $ 20,467
Net interest margin (T/E} 168 $ 160 b3 171 3 166 .
Net yield on interest earning assets 3.35% 3130% 3.55% 345%

(A)  Includes tax equivalent calculations.
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_ Item 7a. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

+ The information required by this item is set forth on pages 42 through 44 of Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
- -Condition and Results of Operations.

Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

-REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Stockholders
{Commerce Bancshares, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Commerce Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company)
as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, cash flows, and
changes in equity for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2013. These consolidated financial statements
are the respon51b1l|ty of the Company s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
stateinents based on our audits.

’

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement: An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in‘the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

-+, In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Commerce Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for each of the years m the three-year period ended December 31, 2013, in conformity with U.S. generally
" accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
the Compadny’s internal control aver financial reporting as of December 31, 2013, based on criteria established in /nternal Control
_ - Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and

__-our report dated February 24, 2014 -expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
" financial reporting,

| KPre P

Kénsas City, Missouri
"™ February 24, 2014

. :
LY i-l‘al!“ . . ".‘, L.
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Commerce Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31

2013 2012 .
(In thousands}
ASSETS
-Loans $ 10,956,836 § 9,831,384
, Allowance for loan losses (161,532) (172,532)
Net loans 10,795,304 9,658,852
Loans held fc_)r sale — 8,827
Investrnent securities: ‘
Available for sale ($687,680,000 and $736,183,000 pledged in 2013 and
2012, respectively, to secure swap and repurchase agreements) 8,915,680 . 9,522248
Trading 19,993 28,837
Non-marketable 107,324 118,650
Total investment securities 9,042,997 9,669,735
Short-term federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resel] 43,845 27,595
Long-term securities purchased under agreements to resell ' 1,150,000 1,200,000
Interest eaming deposits with banks 707,249 +179,164
Cash and due from banks 518,420 573,066
Land, buildings and equipment — net 349,654 357,612
Goodwill 138,921 125,585
Other intangible assets — net 9,268 5,300
Other assets 316,378 353,853
Total assets $ 23,072,036 S 22,159,589
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Deposits: ‘
Non-interest bearing $ 6,750,674 $ 6,299,903
Savings, interest checking and money market 10,108,236 a “9,817,945
Time open and C.D.’s of less than $100,000 983,689 1,074,618
Time open and C:D.’s of $100,000 and over 1,204,749 1,156,189
Total deposits 19,047,348 18,348,653
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase 1,346,558 1,083,550
Other borrowings 107,310 103,710
Other liabilities 356,423 452,102
Total liabilities 20,857,639 19,988,015
Commerce Bancshares, Inc. stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, §1 par value
Authorized and unissued 2,000,000 shares — —
Common stock, $5 par value ;
Authorized 100,000,000 shares; issued 96,244,762 and 91,729,235 shares in 2013 and 2012,
respectively 481,224 458,66'46
Capital surplus 1,279,948 1,102,507
Retained eamings 449 836 477,210
Treasury stock of 235,986 and 196,922 shares in 2013 and 2012, respectively, at cost (10,097) ’ (7,580)
Accumulated other comprehensive income ' ) 9,731 136,344
Total Commerce Bancshares, Inc. stockholders’ equity 2,210,642 2,167,127
Non-controlling interest 3,755 4,447
Total equity 2,214,397 “2,171,574
Total liabilities and equity $ 23,072,036 $§ 22,159,589

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Commerce Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

For the Years Ended December 31

(In thousands, except per share data) 2013 2012 2011
INTEREST INCOME
Interest and fees on loans . $ 439,082 § 446,331 § 463,511
interest on loans held for sale 176 361 1,115
Interest on investment securities 189,415 211,682 219,348
Interest on short-term federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements
to resell 106 82 55
Interest on long-term securities purchased under agreements to resell 21,119 19,174 13,455
Interest on deposits with banks 387 339 487
Total interest income 650,285 677,969 697,971
INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest on deposits:
Savings, interest checking and money market 14,355 18,682 25,856
Time open and C.D.’s of less than $100,000 6,002 7918 11,352
Time open and C.D.’s of $100,000 and over 6,383 7,174 9,272
[nrtee;:li?ct: lg):sgederal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to 809 508 1741
Interest on other borrowings 3,304 3,481 3,680
Total interest expense 30,913 38,063 51,901
Net interest income 619,372 639,906 646,070
Provision for loan losses 20,353 27,287 51,515
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 599,019 612,619 594,555
NON-INTEREST INCOME
Bank card transaction fees 166,627 154,197 157,077
Trust fees 102,529 94,679 88,313
Deposit account charges and other fees ' 79,017 79,485 82,651
Capital market fees 14,133 21,066 19,846
Consumer brokerage services 11,006 10,162 10,018
Loan fees and sales 5,865 6,037 7,580
Other 39,209 34,004 27432
Total non-interest income 418,386 399,630 392,917
INVESTMENT SECURITIES GAINS (LOSSES), NET .
Change in fair value of other-than-temporary impairment securilies 278 11,223 2,190
Portion recognized in other comprehensive income (1,562) {12,713) 4,727)
Net impairment losses recognized in earnings (1,284) (1,490) (2,537)
Realized gains (losses) on sales and fair value adjustments (3,141) 6,318 13,349
Investment securities gains (losses), net (4,425) - 4,828 10,812
NON-INTEREST EXPENSE
Salaries and employee benefits 366,867 360,899 345,325
Net occupancy : 45,639 45,534 46,434
Equipment 18,425 20,147 22,252
Supplies and communication 22,511 22,321 22,448
Data processing and software 78,245 73,798 68,103
Marketing ‘ 14,176 15,106 16,767
Deposit insurance 11,167 10,438 13,123
Debit overdrafi litigation : — - 18,300
Other 72,603 70,226 64,497
Total non-interest expense 629,633 618,469 617,249
Income before income taxes ‘ 383,347 398,608 381,035
Less income taxes ! 122,230 127,169 121,412
Net income 261,117 271,439 . - 259,623
Less non-controlling interest expense 156 2,110 3,280
LET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TQO COMMERCE BANCSHARES, INC. $ 260,961 § 269&29 $ 256,343
Net income per common share - basic 3 273 % 277 8 2.57
Net income per common share - diluted 5 272 $ 2.76 § . 2.56

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Commerce Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

C
e LT . : ““ " For the Years Ended December 31 -~ J
{In thousands} =~ T T 2013 2012 2011
Net income’ ' T '3 261,117 $ 271439 $.- . 259,623
Other comprehensive income (loss): -
Net unrealized gains on securities for which a portion of an other- '
than-temporary impairment has been recorded in earnings 958 ) 7,566 3,214
Net unrealized gains {losses) on other securities (138,960) 24,126 48,287
~Change in pension loss ‘ 11,389 : (5,886) '(4,368)
Other comprehensive income (loss) (126,613) 25,806 47,l§3
Comprehensive income 134,504 297,245 306,816
" Less non-controlling interest expense ” 156 . 2,114 3,280
- Comprehensive income attributable to Commerce Bancshares, Inc. $ 134,348 3 295,135 § 303,536
_ See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. '

apt

57




Commerce Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended December 31

(M thousands) H 2013 2012 2011
OPERATING ACTIVITIES !
Net income S 261,117 § 271,439 8 259,623
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Provision for loan losses 20,353 27,287 51,515
Provision for depreciation and amortization 41,944 43,448 46,743
Amortization of investment security premiums, net 30,419 36,238 18,972
Deferred income tax (benefit) expense 9,201 16,234 (2,836)
Investment securities (gains) losses, net 4425 (4,828) (16,812)
Net gains on sales of loans held for sale — (376) (2,040)
Proceeds from sales of loans held for sale — 22,720 87,732
Criginations of loans held for sale —_ —_— {52,995)
Net (increase) decrease in rading securities 1,358 (9,645) 2,354
Stock-based compensation 6,427 5,001 4,731
(Increase) decrease in interest receivable 3,234 3,149 (2,010}
Decrease in interest payable (1,56%) (1,272) (4,598)
[ncrease (decrease) in income taxes payable {1,663) (13,395) 14,519
Net tax benefit related to equity compensation plans {1,003) (2,094) {1,065)
Other changes, net (13,310) (10,794) (2472
Net cash provided by operating activities 360,933 383,112 407,361
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash and cash equivalents received in acquisition 47,643 — —
Proceeds from sales of investment securities 16,299 16.875 19,833
Proceeds from maturities/pay downs of investment securities ' 2,542,123 3,080,664 2,562,551
Purchases of investment securittes i (2,411,153) (3,182,857 (4,517,463)
Net (increase) decrease in loans . (938,223) (693,193) 168,983
Long-term securities purchased under agreements to resell (125,000) (575,000) (500.000)
Repayments of long-term securities purchased under agreements to resell 175,000 225,000 100,000
Purchases of land, buildings and equiﬁment (23,841) (34,969) (21,332)
Sales of land, buildings and equipment 3,492 2,643 2,593
Net cash used in investing activities (713,660) (1,160,837 (2,184,835)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ’
Net increase in non-interest bearing, savings, interest checking and money market deposits 801,211 1,777,058 1,981,201
Net decrease in time open and C.D."s" (82,013) (257,586) (255,769)
Repayment of long-tevrm securities sold under agreements to repurchase (50,000) — -
Net increase (decrease) in short-term federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements
to repurchase ' 313.008 (172,531) 273,254
Repayment of other long-term borrowings (1,578) (8,107) (456)
Net increase in short-term borrowings 2,000 — —
Purchases of treasury stock (69,353) (104,909) (101,154)
Issuance of stock under stock purchase and equity compensation plans 10,242 15,588 15,349
Net tax benefit related to equity compensation plans 1,003 2,094 1,065
Cash dividends paid on common stoék (82,104) (211,608) (79,140)
Net cash provided by financing activities 842,416 1,039,999 1,834,350
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 489,689 262,274 56,876
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 779,815 517,551 460,675
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 3 1,269,514 § 779825 $ 517,551
Income tax paymeats, net ' $ 114,336 § 119,166 $ 106,653
Interest paid on deposits and borrowings $ 32,432 % 319335 $ 56,499
Loans transferred to foreclosed real estate s 8,747 § 8,167 % 22,957
Loans transferred from held for sale to held for investment category 5 8,941 § — 8 —

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Commerce Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries . : r
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY l i

Commerce Bancshares, Inc. Shareholders

59

Accumulated doonT Tt
Other Non-
Common Capital Retained Treasury Comprehensive  Controlling s
{In thousands, except per share data) Stock Surplus Earnings Stock Income (Loss) Interest Total
Balance, December 31, 2010 § 433942 § 971293 § 555778 § (2371 $ 63,345 $+  .1,477 'S 2,023,464
Net income 256,343 3,280 . 259,623
Other comprehensive income 47,193 ' 47,193
Distributions to non-controlling interest (443) . (443)
Purchase of treasury stock (101,154) (101,154)
Cash dividends paid ($.795 per share) (79,140) ' (79,140)
Net tax benefit related to equity compensation plans 1,065 . Y . , 1,065
Stock-based compensation 4,731 L e W73
Issuance under stock purchase and equity . .
compensation plans, net 2,539 4,061 8,749 15,349
5% stock dividend, net 9,906 60,915 (157,562) 86,414 ' S (327)
Balance, December 31, 2011 446,387 1,042,065 575,419 (8,362) ©- 110,538 4,314 2/170,361
Net income : 269,329 v 2,110 - 271,439
Other comprehensive income r 25,806 25,806
Distributicns to non-controlling interest LT (191D
Purchase of treasury stock (104,909} (104,909)
Cash dividends paid ($2.195 per share) (211,608) i, T < (211,608)
Net tax benefit related to equity compensation plans 2,094 . ' f 3.094
Stock-based compensation 5,001 ' 5,001
Issuance under stock purchase and equity '
compensation plans, net {16,905) 32,493 15,588
5% stock dividend, net 12,259 70,252 (155,930) 73,198 221)
Balance, December 31, 2012 458,646 1,102,507 477,210 (7,580) 136,344 4,447 - 171,574
Net income . i 260,961 . 156 261,117
QOther comprehensive loss .(126,613) (1‘26,613)
Acquisition of Summit Bancshares Ine. 1,001 11,125 3,07 o T . ‘:l§.!97'
Distributions to non-controlling interest . (848) . _ (848)
Purchase of treasury stock , (69,353) . 1(69,353)
Cash dividends paid (5.857 per share) (82,104) " (82,104)
Net tax benefit related to equity compensation plans 1,003 , 1,003
Stock-based compensation 6,427 6,427,
Issuance under stock purchase and equity : a
compensation plans, net (14,824) 25,066 10,242
5% stock dividend, net 21,577 173,710 (206,231) i0,699 ' ' '(245)
Balance, December 31, 2013 § 481,224 5 1,279948 § 449836 §  (10,097) $ 9731 § 3,755 § 2,214,397
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. : .
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Commerce Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations

Commerce Bancshares, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the Company) conducts its principal activities from approximately 360
locations throughout Missouri, Illinois, Kansas, Oklahoma and Colorado. Principal activities include retail and commercial
banking, investment management, securities brokerage, mortgage banking, credit related insurance and private equity investment
activities.

.+ Basis of Presentation

The Company follows accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) and reporting practices
applicable to the banking industry, The preparation of financial statements under GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and notes. These estimates are based on information
available to management at the time the estimates are made. While the consolidated financial statements reflect management’s
best estimates and judgments,“actual results could différ from those estimates. The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of the Company and its majority-owned subsidiaries (after elimination of all material intercompany balances and
transactions). Certain amounts for prior years have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. Such
reclassifications had no effect on net income or total assets.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

In the accompanying consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include “Cash and due from banks”,
“Short-term federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell”, and “Interest earning deposits with banks”
as segregated in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Loans and Related Earnings

‘Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or pay-off are reported at
their outstanding principal balances, net of undisbursed loan proceeds, the allowance for loan losses, and any deferred fees and
costs on originated loans, Origination fee income received on loans and amounts representing the estimated direct costs of
origination are deferred and amortized to interest income over the life of the loan using the interest method. Prepayment premium
or yield maintenance agreements are generally required on all term commercial loans with fixed rate intervals of 3 years or more.

Interest on loans is accrued based upon the principal amount outstanding. Interest income is recognized primarily on the level
yield method. Loan and commitment fees, net of costs, are deferred and recognized in income over the term of the loan or
commitment as an adjustment of yield. Annual fees charged on credit card loans are capitalized to principal and amortized over
12 months to foan fees and sales. Other credit card fees, such as cash advance fees and late payment fees, are recognized in income
as an'adjustment of yield when charged to the cardholder’s account.

Non-Accrual Loans

Loans are placed on non-accrual status when management does not expect to collect payments consistent with acceptable and
agreed upon terms of repayment. Business, construction real estate, business real estate, and personal real estate loans that are
contractually 90 days past due as to principal and/or interest payments are generally placed on non-accrual, unless they are both
well-secured and in the process of collection. Consumer, revolving home equity and credit card loans are exempt under regulatory
rutes from being classified as non-accrual. When a loan is placed on non-accrual status, any interest previously accrued but not
collected is reversed against current income, and the loan is charged off to the extent uncollectible. Principal and interest payments
received on non-accrual loans are generally applied to principal. Interest is included in income only after all previous loan charge-
offs have been recovered and is recorded only as received. The loan is returned to accrual status onty when the borrower has
brought all past due principal and interest payments current, and, in the opinion of management, the borrower has demonstrated
the ability to make future payments of principal and interest as scheduled. A six month history of sustained payment performance
is generally required before reinstatement of accrual status.
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Restructured Loans

A loan is accounted for as a troubled debt restructuring if the Company, for economic or legal reasons related to the borrowers’
financial difficulties, grants a concession to the borrower that it would not otherwise consider. A troubled debt restructuring typically
involves (1) moditication of terms such as a reduction of the stated interest rate, loan principal, or accrued interest, (2) a loan
reniewal at a stated interest rate lower than the current market rate for a new loan with similar risk, or (3) debt that was not reaffirmed
in bankruptcy. Business, business real estate, construction real estate and personal real estate troubled debt restriicturings with
impairment charges are placed on non-accrual status. The Company measures the impairment loss of a troubled debt restructuring
in the same manner as described below. Troubled debt restructurings whlch are performing under their contractual terms continue
to accrue interest which is recognized in current earnings,

Impaired Loans

Loans are evaluated regularly by management for impairment. Included in impaired loans are all non-accrual loans, as well
as loans that have been classified as troubled debt restructurings. Once a loan has been identified as impaired, impairment is
measured based on either the present value of the expected future cash flows at the loan’s initial effective interest rate or the fair
value of the collateral if collateral dependent. Factors considered in determining impairment include delinquency status, cash
flow analysis, credit analysis, and collaterat value and availability.

Loans Held for Sale

In prior periods, loans held for sale included student loans and certain fixed rate residential mortgage loans. These loans are
typically classified as held for sale upon origination based upon management’s intent to sell the production of these loans. They
are carried at the lower of aggregate cost or fair value. Fair value is determined based on prevailing market prices for loans with
similar characteristics, sale contract prices, or, for those portfolios for which management has concerns about contractual
performance, discounted cash flow analyses. Declines in fair value below cost (and subsequent recoveries) are recognized in loan
fees and sales. Deferred fees and costs related to these loans are not amortized but are recognized as part of the cost basis of the
loan at the time it is sold. Gains or losses on sales are recognized upon delivery and included in loan fees and sales.

Allowance/Provision for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level believed to be appropriate by management to provide for probable loan
losses inherent in the portfolio as of the balance sheet date, including losses on known or anticipated problem loans as well as for
loans which are not currently known to require specific allowances. Management has established a process to determine the
amount of the allowance for loan losses which assesses the risks and losses inherent in its portfolio. Business, construction real
estate and business real estate loans are normally larger and more complex, and their collection rates are harder to predict. These
loans are more likely to be collateral dependent and are allocated a larger reserve, due to their potential volatility. Personal real
estate, credit card, consumer and revolving home equity loans are individually smaller and perform in a more homogenous manner,
making loss estimates more predictable. Management’s process provides an allowance consisting of'a specific allowance component
based on certain individually evaluated loans and a general component based on estimates of reserves needed for pools of loans.

Loans subject to individual evaluation generally consist of business, construction real estate, business real estate and personal
real estate loans on non-accrual status. These impaired loans are evaluated individually for the impairment of repayment potential
and collateral adequacy, and in conjunction with current economic conditions and loss experience, allowances are estimated. Other
impaired loans identified as performing troubled debt restructurings are collectively evaluated because they have similar risk
characteristics. Loans which have not been identified as impaired are segregated by loan type and sub-type and are collectively
evaluated. Reserves calculated for these loan pools are estimated using a consistent methodology that considers historical loan
loss experience by loan type, delinquencies, current economic factors, loan risk ratings and industry concentrations,

The Company’s estimate of the allowance for loan losses and the corresponding provision for loan losses is based on various
judgments and assumptions made by management. The amount of the allowance for loan losses is highly dependent on
management’s estimates affecting valuation, appraisal of collateral, evaluation of performance and status, and the amount and
timing of future cash flows expected to be received on impaired loans. Factors that influence these judgments include past loan
loss experience, current loan portfolio composition and characteristics, trends in portfolio risk ratings, levels of non-performing
assets, prevailing regional and national economic conditions, and the Company’s ongoing loan review process.

The estimates, appraisals, evaluations, and cash flows utilized by management may be subject to frequent adjustments due to

changing econemic prospects of borrowers or properties. These estimates are reviewed periodically and adjustments, if necessary,
are recorded in the provision for loan losses in the periods in which they become known.
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Loans, or portions of loans, are charged off to the extent deemed uncollectible. Loan charge-offs reduce the allowance for loan
losses, and recoveries of loans previously charged off are added back to the allowance. Business, business real estate, construction
real estate and personal real estate loans are generally charged down to estimated collectible balances when they are placed on
non-accrual status. Consumer loans and related accrued interest are normally charged down to the fair value of related collateral
(or are charged off in full if no collateral) once the loans are more than 120 days delinquent. Credit card loans are charged off
against the allowance for loan losses when the receivable is more than 180 days past due. The interest and fee income previously
capitalized but not collected on credit card charge-offs is reversed against interest income.

Operating, Direct Financing and Sales Type Leases

The net investment in direct financing and sales type leases is included in loans on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets
and consists of the present values of the sum of the future minimum lease payments and estimated residual value of the leased
asset. Revenue consists of interest earned on the net investment and is recognized over the lease term as a constant percentage
return thereon. The net investment in operating leases is included in other assets on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.
It is carried at cost, less the amount depreciated to date. Depreciation is recognized, on the straight-line basis, over the lease term
to the estimated residual value. Operating lease revenue consists of the contractual lease payments and is recognized over the
lease term in other non-interest income. Estimated residual values are established at lease inception utilizing contract terms, past
customer experience, and general market data and are reviewed and adjusted, if necessary, on an annual basis.

Investments in Debt and Equity Securities

The Company has classified the majority of its investment portfolio as available for sale. From time to time, the Company
sells securities and utilizes the proceeds to reduce borrowings, fund loan growth, or modify its interest rate profile. Securities
classified as available for sale are carried at fair value. Changes in fair value, excluding certain losses associated with other-than-
temporary impairment (OTTI), are reported in other comprehensive income (loss), a component of stockholders’ equity. Securities
are periodically evatuated for OTTI in accordance with guidance provided in ASC 320-10-35. For securities with OTT]I, the entire
loss in fair value is required to be recognized in current earnings if the Company intends to sell the securities or believes it likely
that it will be required to sell the security before the anticipated recovery. If neither condition is met, but the Company does not
expect to recover the amortized cost basis, the Company determines whether a credit loss has occurred, and the loss is then
recognized in current earnings. The noncredit-related portion of the overall oss is reported in other comprehensive income (loss).
Mortgage and asset-backed securities whose credit ratings are below AA at their purchase date are evaluated for OTTI under ASC
325-40-35, which requires evaluations for OTT] at purchase date and in subsequent periods, Gains and losses realized upon sales
of securities are calculated using the specific identification method and are included in Investment securities gains (losses), net,
in the consotidated statements of income. Premiums and discounts are amortized to interest income over the estimated lives of
the securities. Prepayment experience is continually evaluated to determine the appropriate estimate of the future rate of prepayment.
When a change in a bond's estimated remaining life is necessary, a corresponding adjustment is made in the related amortization
of premium or discount accretion.

Non-marketable securities include certain private equity investments, consisting of both debt and equity instruments. These
securities are carried at fair value in accordance with ASC 946-10-15, with changes in fair value reported in current earnings. In
the absence of readily ascertainable market values, fair value is estimated using internally developed models. Changes in fair
value and gains and losses from sales are included in Investment securities gains (losses), net in the consolidated statements of
income. Other non-marketable securities acquired for debt and regulatory purposes are accounted for at cost.

Trading account securities, which are bought and held principally for the purpose of resale in the near term, are carried at fair
value. Gains and losses, both realized and unrealized, are recorded in non-interest income.

Purchases and sales of securities are recognized on a trade date basis. A receivable or payable is recognized for pending
transaction settlements.

Securities Purchased under Agreements to Resell and Securities Sold under Agreements to Repurchase

The Company periodically enters into investments of securities under agreements to resell with large financial institutions.
These agreements are accounted for as collateralized financing transactions. Securities pledged by the counterparties to secure
these agreements are delivered to a third party custodian. Collateral is valued daily, and the Company may require counterparties
to deposit additional collateral, or the Company may return collateral pledged when appropriate to maintain full collateralization
for these transactions. At December 31, 2013, the Company had entered into $1.2 billion of long-term agreements to resell and
had accepted securities valued at $1.2 billion as collateral. ’
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Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are offered to cash management customers as an automated, collateralized
investment account and totaled $971.8 million at December 31, 2013. Securities sold are also used by the Bank to obtain additional
borrowed funds at favorable rates, and at December 31, 2013, such securities sold totaled $350.0 million of long-term structured
repurchase agreements. As of December 31,2013, the Company had pledged $2.8 billion of available for sale securities as collateral
for repurchase agreements,

As permitted by current accounting guidance, the Company offsets certain securities purchased under agreements to resell
against securities sold under agreements to repurchase in its balance sheet presentation. These agreements, which are not included
in the balance sheet amounts above, are further discussed in Note 19, Balance Sheet Offsetting.

Land, Buildings and Equipment

Land is stated at cost, and buildings and equipment are stated at cost, including capitalized interest when appropriate, less
accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed using straight-line and accelerated methods. The Company generally assigns
depreciable lives of 30 years for buildings, 10 years for building improvements, and 3 to 8 years for equipment. Leasehold
improvements are amortized over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or remaining lease terms. Maintenance and repairs are
charged to non-interest expense as incurred.

Foreclosed Assets

Foreclosed assets consist of property that has been repossessed and is comprised of commercial and residential real estate and
other non-real estate property, including auto and recreational and marine vehicles. The assets are initially recorded at the lower
of the loan balance or fair value less estimated selling costs. Initial valuation adjustments are charged to the allowance for loan
losses. Fair values are estimated primarily based on appraisals, third-party price opinions, or internally developed pricing models.
After initial recognition, fair value estimates are updated periodically, and the assets may be marked down further, reflecting a
new cost basis. These valuation adjustments, in addition to gains and losses realized on sales and net operating expenses, are
recorded in other non-interest expense.

Intangible Assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives are not amortized but are tested annually for 1mpa1rment
Intangible assets that have finite useful lives, such as core deposit intangibles and mortgage servicing rights, are amortized over
their estimated useful lives. Core deposit intangibles are amortized over periods of 8 to 14 years, representing their estimated lives,
using accelerated methods. Mortgage servicing rights are amortized in proportion to and over the period of estimated net semcmg
income, considering appropriate prepayment assumptions.

When facts and circumstances indicate potential impairment of amortizable intangible assets, the Company evaluates the
recoverability of the asset carrying value, using estimates of undiscounted future cash flows over the remaining asset life. Any
impairment loss is measured by the excess of carrying value over fair value. Goodwill impairment tests are performed on an annual
basis or when events or circumstances dictate. In these tests, the fair value of each reporting unit, or segment, is compared to the
carrying amount of that reporting unit in order to determine if i |mpalrment is indicated. If so, the 1mphed fair value of the reporting
unit’s goodwill is compared to its carrying amount, and the impairment loss is measured by the excess of the carrying value over
fair value. There has been no impairment resulting from goodwill impairment tests. However, adverse changes in the economic
environment, operations of the reporting unit, or other factors could result in a decline in the implied fair value,

Income Taxes

Amounts provided for income tax expense are based on income reported for financial statement purposes and do not necessarily
represent amounts currently payable under tax laws. Deferred income taxes are provided for temporary differences between the
financial reporting bases and income tax bases of the Company’s assets and liabilities, net operating losses, and tax credit
carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates that are expected to apply to taxable
income when such assets and liabilities are anticipated to be settled or realized. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of
a change in tax rates is recognized as tax expense or benefit in the period that includes the enactment date of the change. In
determining the amount of deferred tax assets to recognize in the financial statements, the Company evaluates the likelihood of
realizing such benefits in future periods. A valuation allowance is established if it is more likely than not that all or some portion
of the deferred tax asset will not be realized. The Company recognizes interest and pena]ues related to income taxes within income
tax expense in the consolidated statements of income.

The Company and its eligible subsidiaries file a consolidated federal income tax return. State and local income tax returns are
filed on a combined, consolidated or separate return basis based upon each jurisdiction’s laws and regulations.
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Derivatives

As required by current accounting guidance, all derivatives are carried at fair value on the balance sheet. Accounting for
changes in the fair value of derivatives {gains and losses) differs depending on whether a qualifying hedge relationship has been
designated and on the type of hedée relationship. Derivatives used to hedge the exposure to change in the fair value of an asset,
lability, or firm commitment attributable to a particular risk are considered fair value hedges. Under the fair value hedging model,
gains or losses attributable to the change in fair value of the derivative, as well as gains and losses attributable to the change in
fair value of the hedged item, are recognized in current earnings. Derivatives used to hedge the exposure to variability in expected
future cash flows, or other types of forecasted transactions, are considered cash flow hedges. Under the cash flow hedging model,
the effective portion of the gain or loss related to the derivative is recognized asa component of other comprehensive income and
reclassified to eamings in the same period in which the hedged transaction affects earnings. The ineffective portion is recognized
in current earnings. For derivatives that are not part of a hedging relationship, any gain or loss is recognized immediately in current
earnings.

The Company formally documents all hedging relationships between hedging instruments and the hedged item, as well as its
risk management objective, At December 31, 2013, the Company had two interest rate swaps designated as fair value hedges. The
Company performs quarterly assessments, using the regression method, to determine whether the hedging relationship has been
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values.

Other derivatives held by the Company do not qualify for hedge accounting, and gains and losses on these derivatives, as
mentioned above, are recognized in current earnings. These include interest rate swaps and caps, which are offered to customers
to assist in managing their risks of adverse changes in interest rates. Each contract between the Company and a customer is offset
by a contract between the Company and an institutional counterparty, thus minimizing the Company's exposure to rate changes.
The Company also enters into certain contracts, known as credit risk participation agreements, to buy or sell credit protection on
specific interest rate swaps. It also purchases and sells forward foreign exchange contracts, either in connection with customer
transactions, or for its own trading purposes. In addition, in previous years the Company’s general practice was to sell fixed rate
mortgage loans in the secondary market. Both the mortgage loan commitments and the related sales contracts were acCounted for
as derivatives.

The Company has master netting arrangements with various counterparties but does not offset derivative assets and liabilities
under these arrangements in its consolidated balance sheets.

Additional information about derivatives held by the Company and valuation methods employed is provided in Note 16, Fair
Value Measurements and Note 18, Derivative Instruments,

Pension Plan

The Company’s pension plan is described in Note 10, Employee Benefit Plans. The funded status of the plan is recognized as
an asset or liability in the consolidated balance sheet, and changes in that funded status are recognized in the year in which the
changes occur through other comprehensive income. Plan assets and benefit obligations are measured as of fiscal year end. The
measurement of the projected benefit obligation and pension expense involve actuarial valuation methods and the use of various
actuarial and economic assumptions. The Company monitors the assumptions and updates them periodically. Due to the long-
term nature of the pension plan obligation, actual results may differ significantly from estimations. Such differences are adjusted
over time as the assumptions are replaced by facts and values are recalculated.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company’s stock-based employee compensation plan is described in Note 11, Stock-Based Compensation and Directors
Stock Purchase Plan. In accordance with the requirements of ASC 718-10-30-3 and 35-2, the Company measures the cost of
stock-based compensation based on the grant-date fair value of the award, recognizing the cost over the requisite service period.
The fair value of an award is estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The expense recognized is based on an
estimation of the number of awards for which the requisite service is expected to be rendered and is included in salaries and
employee benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.

Treasury Stock

Purchases of the Company’s common stock are recorded at cost. Upon re-issuance for acquisitions, exercises of stock-based
awards or other corporate purposes, treasury stock is reduced based upon the average cost basis of shares held.
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Income per Share N

Basic income per share is computed using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during each year.
Diluted income per share includes the effect of all dilutive potential common shares (primarily stock options and stock appreciation
rights) outstanding during each year. The Company applies the two-class method of computing income per share. The two-class
method is an earnings allocation formula that determines income per share for common stock and for participating securities,
according to dividends declared and participation rights in undistributed earnings. The Company’s restricted share awards are
considered to be a class of participating security. All per share data has been restated to reflect the 5% stock dividend dlstnbuted
in December 2013. . -

eaoe

2. Acqulsmon

On September 1, 2013, the Company acquired Summit Bancshares Inc. (Summit). Summit's results of operations are included
in the Company's consolidated financial results beginning on that date. The transaction was accounted for using the acquisition
method of accounting, and as such, assets acquired, liabilities assumed and consideration exchanged were recorded at their estimated
fair value on the acquisition date. In this transaction, the Company acquired ali of the outstanding stock of Summit in exchange
for shares of Company stock valued at $43.2 million. The valuation of Company stock was determined on the basis of the closing
market price of the Company's common shares on August 30, 2013, The Company's acquisition of Summit added $261.6 million
in assets (including $207.4 million in loans), $232.3 million-in deposits and two branch locations in Tulsa and Oklahoma City,
Oklahoma. Intangible assets recognized as a result of the transaction consisted of approximately $13.3 million in goodwill and
$5.6 million in core deposit premium: Most of the goodwill wasrassigned-to the Company's Commercial segment, .None of the
goodwill recognized is deductible for income tax purposes. .1

- Ve

The fair value of core deposit premium was estimated by a third party using an after-tax cost savings method. This methodology
calculates the present value of the estimated after-tax cost savings‘attributable to the core deposit base, relative to alternative costs
of funds and tax benefit, if applicable, over the expected remaining economic life of the depositors. Based on an estimation of
the expected remaining economic life of the depositors, the core deposit premlum is being amortized over a 14 year period, using
an accelerated method. 0 . .

Historical pro forma information for the acqulsmon has not. been presented because the effect on the Company ] ﬁnanc:al
statements was not material. Acquired loans with evidence of deterioration in credit quahty were not material to the consolidated
f'mancnal statements of the Company. Accordmgly, the provisions of ASC 3 10- 30, which require special accounting for such loans,
were not applied,

On September 3, 2013, the Company granted nonvested restricted stock awards of 42,674 shares of Cofnpany stock to various
former Summit officers, which are included in the activity shown i JinNote 11 on Stock-Based Compensation. These awards vest

over periods of 3 to 4 years and the Company €expects to recognlze compensanon expense of approx:mately $1.3 million in future
periods.

3. Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses.

Major classifications within the Company’s held to maturity loan portfolio at December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

(In thousands) . 2013 2012
Commercial: - .- -

Business - - . L S 3715319 § 3,134,801
Real estate — construction and land -~ .~ - 406,197 355,996
Real estate — business e 2,313,550° 2,214,975
Personal Banking:

Real estate — personal , . 1,787,626 1,584,859
Consumer - - . S 1,512,716 1,289,650
Revolving home equity ’ - ’-" . - _ 420,589 437,567
Consumer credit card L o o ~ 796,228 804,245
Overdrafts o . P 9,291
Total loans: - $ 10,956,836 $ 9,831,384
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Loans to directors and executive officers of the Parent and its significant subsidiaries, and to their associates, are summarized
as follows:

{In thousands})

Balance at January 1, 2013 : 3 61,614

Additions ‘ : 257,690

Amounts collected S . (274,981)
Amounis written off ' ’ —_
Balance, December 31, 2013 3 44,323

Management believes all loans to directors and ¢xecutive officers have been made in the ordinary course of business with
normal credit terms, including interest rate and collateral considerations, and do not represent more than a normal risk of collection.
There were no outstanding loans at December 31, 2013 to principal holders (over 10% ownership) of the Company’s common
stock. -

The Company’s lending activity is generally centered in Missouri, Illinois, Kansas and other nearby states including Oklahoma,
Colorado, lowa, Ohio, and others. The Company maintains a diversified portfolio with limited industry concentrations of credit
risk. Loans and loan commitments are extended under the Company’s normal credit standards, controls, and monitoring features.
Most loan commitments are short or intermediate term in nature. Commercial loan maturities generally range from three to seven
years. Collateral is commonly required and would include such assets as marketable securities and cash equivalent assets, accounts
receivable and inventory, equipment, other forms of personal property, and real estate. At December 31, 2013, unfunded loan
commitments totaled $8.4 billion (which included $3.8 billion in unused approved lines of credit related to credit card loan
agreements) which could be drawn by customers subject to certain review and terms of agreement. At December 31, 2013, loans
totaling $3.6 billion were pledged at the FHLB as collateral for borrowings and letters of credit obtained to secure public deposits.
Additional loans of $1.4 billion were pledged at the Federal Reserve Bank as collateral for discount window borrowings.

The Company has a net investment in direct financing and sales type leases of $368.8 millionand $311.6 million at December 31,
2013 and 2012, respectively, which is included in business loans on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets. This investment
includes deferred income of $25.1 millton and $23.6 million at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The net investment
in operating leases amounted to $24.4 million and $21.1 million at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and is included in
other assets on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.

Allowance for loan losses

A summary of the activity in the allowance for losses during the previous three years follows:

Personal

(In thousands) Commercial Banking Total
Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 119,946 § 77,592 § 197,538
Provision for loan losses 18,052 33,463 51,515
Deductions: .

Loans charged ofT - 18,818 62,567 81,385

Less recoveries 3,317 13,547 16,864
Net loans charged off 15,501 49,020 64,521
Balance at December 31, 2011 122,497 62,035 184,532
Provision for loan losses (14,444} 41,731 27,287
Deductions:

Loans charged off 11,094 52,067 63,161 N

Less recoveries . 8,766 15,108 23,874
Net loans charged off 2,328 36,959 39,287
Balance at December 31, 2012 105,725 66,807 172,532
Provision for loan losses (16,143) 36,496 20,353
Deductions:

Loans charged off 5170 49,029 - 54,199

Less recoveries 9,777 13,069 22,846
Net loans charged off (recoveries) (4,607) 35,960 31,353
Balance at December 31, 2013 s 94,189 § 67,343 § 161,532
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- The following table shows'the balance in the allowance for Joan losses and the related loan balance at December 31, 2013 and |
2012, disaggregatéd on the basis of-impairment methodology.' Impaired loans evaluated under ASC 310-10-35 include toans on |
non-accrual status which are individually evaluated for impairment and other impaired loans deemed to have similar risk

characteristics, which are collectively evalvated. All other loans are collectively-evaluated for-impairment under ASC 450-20.
) . a P R

i

- .. - - o [ T

. Impaired Loans

All Other Loans

Allowance for Loans Allowance for Loans
{In thousands) Loan Losses Outstanding Loan Losses Qutstanding
December 31, 2013
Commercial $ 8476 $ 78516 $ 85713 $ 6,356,550
Personal Banking ' < 2,424 29,120 64,919 '4,492,650
Total - o v $ 10,900 § 107,636 § 150,632 $ 10,849,200
December31,20!2 ; v .
Commercial : ) $ 5434 § 80,807 § 100,291 § 5,624,965
Personal Banking ‘ ’ 2051 36111 64,756 4,089,501
Total . 3 7485 § 116,918 § 165,047 § 9,714,466 ~
Impaired loans

The table below shows the Company’s’investment in impaired loans at December 31, 2013 and 2012. These loans consist of
all loans on non-accrual status and other restructured loans whose terms have been modified and classified as troubled debt
restructurings under ASC 310-40. These restructured loans are performing in accordance with their modified terms, and because
the Company believes it probable that all amounts due under the modified terms of the agreements will be collected, interest on
these loaps-is being recognizéd on an accrual basis. They are discussed further in the "Troubled debr restructurings"” section on
page71. .

R N Tt . 0 -

(In rhousam'l’s) T

2013 2012
Non-accrual loans . $ 48814 § 51,410
Restructured loans (accruing) 58,822 65,508
Total impaired loans . . $ 107,636 § . 116,918
g 't
b ) { H [
' }
]
G TS YL 4
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The following table provides additional information about impaired loans held by the Company at December 31, 2013 and
2012, segregated between loans foni- which an allowance for credit losses has been provided and loans for which no allowance has
been provided.

¥

Recorded Unpaid Principal Related
(In thousands) investment Balance Allowance
December 31, 2013
With no related allowance recorded:
Business $ 7,969 § 9,000 § —
Real estate — construction and land 8,766 16,067 —
Real estate — business 4,089 6,417 —_
Revolving home equity 2,191 2,741 —
$ 23,015 § 34225 % —
With an allowance recorded:
Business ) $ 19,266 $ 22,597 § 3,037
Real estate — construction and land 17,632 19,708 2,174
Real estate - business 20,794 29,287 3,265
Real estate — personal 10,425 13,576 1,361
Consumer - 4,025 4,025, 85
Revolving home equity | 666 - 666 2
Consumer credit card 11,813 11,813 976
, $ 84,621 § 101,672 $ 10,900
Total . $ 107,636 $ 135897 § 10,900
December 31, 2012
With no related allowance recorded:
Business 3 9,964 § 12,697 $ —
Real estate — construction;and land 8,440 15,102 —
Real estate — business 5,484 8,200 —
Real estate ~ personal 1,166 1,380 —
Revolving home equity 510 843 —
$ 25,564 3 38,222 § —
With an allowance recorded:
Business 5 19,358 §$ 22,513 § 1,888
Real estate — constructiori and land 20,446 25,808 1,762
Real estate — business 17,115 23,888 1,784
Real estate — personal 14,157 17,304 857
Consumer 4,779 4,779 93
Revolving home equity * 779 779 18
Consumer credit card | 14,720 14,720 1,083
' $ 91,354 § 109,791 § 7,485
Total 3 116,918 § 148,013 § 7,485
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Total average impaired loans during 2013 and 2012 are shown in the table below.

* Total 5 76,151 § 29,463 $ 105,614 3

2013 2012
Personal Persdnal '
{In thousands} - Commercial Banking Total .. Commercial Banking Totat
Average impaired loans:
Non-accrual loans . 3 35,500 % " 5329 §$ 41,229 % 55,994 % 7,343 §. 63,337
Restructured loans (accruing) 40,251 24,134 64,385 43,181 22,520 65,701
99,175 § 29,863 § - 129,038 °

The table below shows interest income recognized during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 for impaired
loans held at the end of each respective period. This interest relates to accruing restructured loans, as discussed previously.

For the Year Ended December 31

(In thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Interest income recognized on impaired loans:
Business . 509 3 1,184 § 284
Real estate — construction and land . 758 " 655 947
Real estate - business ' I 215 246 327
Real estate -- personal 263 376 37
Consumer ~ - ; . ' 346 415 —_
» Revolving home equity . . 36 37 —_—
Consumer credit card 1,116 1,341 2,016
Total 5 3243 %8 4254 %3 3,611
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Delinquent and non-accrual loans'

The following table provides ag!if:g information on the Company’s past due and accruing loans, in addition to the balances of 1
loans on non-accrual status, at December 31, 2013 and 2012

. Current or Less 90 Days Past

{In thousands) l Th;gsi%g‘:ys 7 30P;§9DDL1:YS Dl:cil:gi:;” Non-accrual Total

December 31, 2013

Commercial: '

Business 3 5,697,589 S 5,467 $ 671 § 11,592 § 3,715,319

Real estate - construction and land 386,423 9,601 . —_ ) 10,173 406,197

Real estate — business ‘ 2,292,385 1,340 47 19,778 2,313,550

Personal Banking:

Real estate — personal . 1,771,231 9,755 1,560 5,080 1,787,626

Consumer 1,492,960 17,482 2,274 — 1,512,716 /
Revolving home equity . 416,614 1,082 702 ' 2,17 420,589 |
Consumer credit card 777,564 9,952 8,712 - 796,228 1
Overdrafts | 4315 296 — — 4,611

Total ‘ $ 10839081 § 54,975 § 13,966 § 48814 § 10,956,836

December 31, 2012 ' '

Commercial:

Business § 3,110,403 § 10,054 § 1,288 % 13,056 $ 3,134,801

Real estate — construction and land 325,541 16,721 56 13,678 355,996

Real estate — business 2,194,395 ) _ 3,_276 - 17,304 2,214 975 4
Personal Banking:

Real estate — personal ' 1,564,281 10,862 2,854 6,362 1,584,859

Consumer 1,273,581 13,926 2,143 — 1,289,650

Revolving home equity 433,437 2,121 1,499 510 437,567

Consumer credit card 786,081 10,657 7,507 —_ 804,245

Qverdrafts - 8,925 366 — — 9291

Total ’ $ 9,696,644 § 67,983 % 15,347 § 51,410 § 9,831,384
Credit quality

The following table provides information about the credit quality of the Commercia! loan portfolio, using the Company’s
internal rating system as an indicator. The internal rating system is a series of grades reflecting management’s risk assessment,
based on its analysis of the borrower’s financial condition. The “pass™ category consists of a range of loan grades that reflect
increasing, though still acceptable, risk. Movement of risk through the various grade levels in the “pass” category is monitored
for early identification of credit deterioration. The “special mention” rating is attached to loans where the borrower exhibits
material negative financial trends due to borrower specific or systemic conditions that, if left uncorrected, threaten its capacity to
meet its debt obligations. The borrower is believed to have sufficient financial flexibility to react to and resolve its negative financial
situation. It is a transitional grade that is closely monitored for improvement or deterioration. The “substandard” rating is applied
to toans where the borrower exhibits well-defined weaknesses that jeopardize its continued performance and are of a severity that
the distinct possibility of default exists. [Loans are placed on “non-accrual” when management does not expect to collect payments
consistent with acceptable and agreed upon terms of repayment, as discussed in Note I,

70



Commercial Loans

Real Estate - Real Estate -
{In thousands)' Business Construction Business Total
December 31, 2013 ' '
Pass 3618120 § 372515 §  2,090344 § 6,180,979
Special mention ;61,916 1,697 ' 53,079 116,692
Substandard 23,691 21,812 50,349 95,852
Nor-accrual 11,592 . 10,173 19,778 41,543
Total 3715319 § 406,197 $ 2,313,550 $§ 6,435,066
December 31., 2012 . )
Pass 3,018,062 § 297,156 §  2,103913 §  5419,131
Special mention 58,793 11,400 38,396 108,589
Substandard 44,890 33,762 55,362 134,014
Non-accrual e 13,056 13,678 17,304 44,038
Tota 3,134,801 .$ 355996 § . 2214975 § 5,705,772

The credit quality of Personal Banking loans is monitored primarily on the basis of aging/delinquency, and this information
is provided in the table in the above section on "Delinguency and non-accrual loans”. In addition, FICO scores are obtained and
updated on a quarterly basis for most of the loans in the Personal Banking portfolio. This is a published credit score designed to
measure the risk of default by taking into account various factors from-a person's financial history. The bank normally obtains a
FICO score at the loan's origination and renewal dates, and updates are obtained on a quarterly basis. Excluded from the table
below are certain loans for which FICO scores are not obtained because the loans are related to commercial activity. At December
31, 2013, these were comprised of $244.3 million in personal real estate loans and $47.5 million in consumer loans, or 6.5% of
the Personal Banking portfolio. At December 31, 2012, these were comprised of $224.5 million in personal real estate loans and
$87.4 million in consumer loans, or 7.6% of the Personal Banking portfolio. For the remainder of loans in the Personal Banking
portfolio, the table below shows the percentage of balances outstanding at December 31, 2013 and 2012 by FICO score.

Perscnal Banking Loans

% of Loan Category
Real Estate - Revolving Home  Consumer Credit

‘ Personal Consumer - - Equity Card-- -
December 31, 2013 : . T .
FICO score: ) | ‘ )
Under 600 1.7% 5.4% 2.1% 4.1%
600 — 659 L 33 10.1. 7.3 1.7
660719 . - _ . 103 23.4 15.0 32.9
720 - 779 -. + 258 . 283 285 27.9.
780 and over 58.9 328 471 234
Total 100.0% 100.0% " 100.0% 100.0%
December 31, 2012 .,
FICO score: ) L ' . ) .
Under 600 L ' . 23% - 6.7% . 2.6% 4.4%
600 - 659 . RRLPTI : 32 - 1.3 .53 1.7
660 - 719 ) T 10.4 c 2440 15.2 321
720-779 - ' - 266 - 26.4 30.0 282,
780 and over ' o _ 57.5 L 312 46.9 236
Total . . . 1000% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Troubled debr res:ructurmgs

Asmentioned previously, the Company's impaired loans include loans whtch have been classified as troubled debt restructunngs
Total restructured loans amounted.to $83.2 million at December 31, 2013. Restructured loans are those extended to borrowers
who are experiencing ﬁnancnal difficulty and who have been granted a concession. Restructured loans are p]aced on non- accrua]
status if the Company does not believe it probable that amounts dué under the contractual terms will be collected, and those non-
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accrual loans totaled $24.4 million at December 31, 2013, Other performing restructured loans totaled $58.8 million at
December 31, 2013. These are partly comprised of certain business, construction and business real estate loans classified as
substandard. Upon maturity, the loans renewed at interest rates judged not to be market rates for new debt with similar risk and
as a result were classified as troubled debt restructurings. These commercial loans totaled $38.2 million and $40.3 million at
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. These restructured loans are performing in accordance with their modified terms, and
because the Company believes it probable that all amounts due under the modified terms of the agreements will be collected,
interest on these loans is being recognized on an accrual basis. Troubled debt restructurings also include certain credit card loans
under various debt management and assistance programs, which totaled $11.8 million at December 31, 2013 and $14.7 million at
December 31, 2012. Modifications to credit card loans generally involve removing the available line of credit, placing loans on
amortizing status, and lowering the contractual interest rate. The Company also classifies certain loans as troubled debt
restructurings because they were not reaffirmed by the borrower in bankruptcy proceedings. These loans, which are comprised
of personal real estate, revolving home equity and consumer loans, totaled $8.8 million and $10.4 million at December 31, 2013
and 2012, respectively. Interest on these loans is being recognized on an accrual basis, as the borrowers are continuing to make
payments.

The table below shows the outstanding balance of loans classified as troubled debt restructurings at December 31, 2013, in
addition to the period end balances of restructured loans which the Company considers to have been in default at any time during
the past twelve months. For purposes of this disclosure, the Company considers "default” to mean 90 days or more past due as
to interest or principal. ’

Balance 90 days past
due at any time
during previous 12

{In thousands) ‘ December 31, 2013 months
Commercial:

Business ) . ‘ $ 23,612 § 7,969
Real estate — construction and land | 25,640 4,268
Real estate — business . 10,629 3,126
Personal Banking: t

Real estate — personal 6,821 60
Consumer ) 4,025 138
Revolving home equity ‘ 666 —
Consumer credit card . 11,813 870
Total restructured loans : g 83,206 $§ 16,431

For those loans on non-accrual status also classified as restructured, the modification did not create any further financial effect
on the Company as those loans were already recorded at net realizable value. For those performing commercial toans classified
as restructured, there were no concessions involving forgiveness of principal or interest and, therefore, there was no financial
impact to the Company as a result of modification to these loans. No financial impact resulted from those performing loans where
the debt was not reaffirmed in bankruptcy, as no changes to loan terms occurred in that process . However, the effects of modifications
to consumer credit card loans were estimated to decrease interest income by approximately $1.3 million on an annual, pre-tax
basis, compared to amounts contractually owed.

The allowance for loan losses related to troubled debt restructurings on non-accrual status is determined by individual evaluation,
including collateral adequacy, using the same process as loans on non-accrual status which are not classified as troubled debt
restructurings. Those performing loans classified as troubled debt restructurings are accruing loans which management expects
1o collect under contractual terms. Performing commercial loans have had no other concessions granted other than being renewed
at an interest rate judged not to be market. As such, they have similar risk characteristics as non-troubled debt commercial loans
and are collectively evaluated based on internal risk rating, ioan type, delinquency, historical experience and current economic
factors. Performing personal banking loans classified as troubled debt restructurings resulted from the borrower not reatfirming
the debt during bankruptey and have had no other concession granted, other than the Bank's future limitations on collecting payment
deficiencies or in pursuing foreclosure actions. As such, they have similar risk characteristics as non-troubled debt personal
banking loans and are evaluated collectively based on loan type, delinquency, historical experience and current economic factors,

If a troubled debt restructuring defaults and is already on non-accrual status, the allowance for loan losses continues to be
based on individual evaluation, using discounted expected cash flows or the fair value of collateral. If an accruing, troubled debt
restructuring defaults, the loan's risk rating is downgraded to non-accrual status and the loan's related allowance for loan losses
is determined based on individual evaluation, or if necessary, the loan is charged off and cellection efforts begin.
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_The Company had commitments of $11.2 million at December 31, 2013 to lend additional funds to borrowers with restructured
leans. o

The Company’s holdings of foreclosed real estate totaled $6.6 million and $13.5 million at December 31; 2013 and 2012,
respectively. Personal property acquired in repossession, generally autos and marine and recreational vehicles, totaled $2.8 million
and $3.5 million at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. These assets are carried at the lower of the amount recorded at
acquisition date or the current fair value ]ess estimated sellmg costs. . ' :

4, Investment Securities

Investment securities, at fair value, consisted of the following at December 31, 2013 and 2012.

{In thousands) 2013 2012

Available for saie: : - . -
U.S. government and federal agency obligations . - ' - 8 305,696 § 438,759
Govemnment-sponsored enterprise obligations 741,766 471,574
State and municipal obligations 1,619,171 1,615,707
Agency mortgage-backed securities 2,772,338 3,380,955
Non-agency mortgage-backed securities 246,983 237,011
Asset-backed securities ) _ ' 2,844,071 3,167,394
Other debt securities | . 141,757 177,752
Equity securities ' ' . 43,898 33,096
Total available for sale 8,915,680 9,522,248
Trading ) 19,993 28,837
Non-marketable 107,324 118,650
Total investment securities : ' s $ 9042997 § 9,669,735

Most of the Company’s investment securities are classified as available for sale, and this portfolio is discussed in more detail
below. Securitics which are classified as non-marketable include Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) stock and Federal Reserve
Bank stock held for borrowing and regulatory purposes, which totaled $46.5 million and $45.4 million at December 31, 2013 and
December 31, 2012, respectively. Investment in Federal Reserve Bank stock is based on the capital structure of the investing bank,
and investment in FHLB stock is mainly tied to the level of borrowings from the FHLB. These holdings are carried at cost. Non-
marketable securities also include private equity investments, which amounted to $6¢.7 million and $73.2 million at December 31,
2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively. In the absence of readily ascertainable market values, these securities are camed at
estimated fair value. , . - ' ‘

A summary of the available for sale investment securities by maturity groupings as of December 31, 2013 is shown in the
following table. The weighted average yield for each range-of maturities was calculated using the yield on each security within
that range weighted by the amortized cost of each security at December 31, 2013. Yields on tax exempt securities have not been
adjusted for tax exempt status. The investment portfolio includes agency mortgage-backed securities, which are guaranteed by
agencies such as FHLMC, FNMA, GNMA and FDIC, in addition to non-agency mortgage-backed securities which have no
guarantee, but are collateralized by residential mortgages. Also included are certain other asset-backed securities, primarily
collateralized by credit cards, automobiles and commercial loans. The Company does not have exposure to subprime originated
mortgage-backed or collateralized debt obligation instruments, and does not hold any trust preferred securities.
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Weighted Average

(Dollars in thousands) e Amortized Cost Fair Value Yield
U.S. government and federal agency obligations:
After 1 but within 5 years $ 274,859 § 293,742 1.71%%
After 5 but within 10 years : 150,790 152,277 51
After 10 years 72,5717 59,677 (3
Total U.S. government and federal agency obligations 498,226 505,696 1.05*
Government-sponsored enterprise obligations:
Within 1 year 30,159 30,437 1.58
After 1 but within 5 years . 446,124 444,504 , 157
After 5 but within 10 years , . 143,535 132,930 1.59
After 10 years 146,984 133,895 1.97
Total government-sponsored enterprise obligations 766,802 741,766 1.65
State and municipal obligations: -
Within 1 year 141,912 143,357 2.70
After 1 but within 5 years 734,238 756,570 2.64
After 5 but within 10 years 562,959 543,749 221
Afier 10 years 185,086 175,495 1.94
Total state and municipal obligations 1,624,195 1,619,171 2.42
Mortgage and asset-backed securities:
Agency mortgage-backed securities 2,743,803 2,772,338 2.74
Non-agency mortgage-backed securities 236,595 246,983 4.51
Asset-backed securities 2,847 368 2,844,071 .B8
Total mortgage and asset-backed securities 5,827,766 5,863,392 1.90
Other debt securities:
Within 1 year 7,695 7,719
After 1 but within 5 years 49,697 50,125
After 5 but within 10 years 90,189 83,913
Total other debt securities 147,581 141,757
Equity securities ] 9,970 43,898
Total available for sale investment securities b 8,874,540 § 8,915,680

* Rate does not reflect inflation adjustmeny on inflation-protected securities

Investments in U.S. government securities are comprised mainly of U.S. Treasury inflation-protected securities, which totaled
$505.6 million, at fair value, at December 31, 2013. Interest paid on these securities increases with inflation and decreases with
deflation, as measured by the Consumer Price Index. At maturity, the principal paid is the greater of an inflation-adjusted principal
or the original principal. Included in state and municipal obligations are $127.7 million, at fair value, of auction rate securities,
which were purchased from bank customers in 2008, Interest on these bonds is currently being paid at the maximum failed auction
rates. Equity securities are primiarily comprised of investments in common stock held by the Parent, which totaled $37.2 million,

at fair value, at December 31, 2013,
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For securities classified as available for sale, the followmg table shows the unrealized gains and losses (pre-tax) in accumulated
other comprehensive income, by security type. R -

Gross Unrealized  Gross Unrealized

{In thousands) : ot Amortized Cost © Gains - Losses Fair Value
December 31, 2013 - : - . .. .
U.S. government and federal agency obligations $ 498,226 $ , 20,614 3 (13,144) § 505,696
Government-sponsored enterprise obligations 766,802 2,245 (27.281) 741,766
State and municipal cbligations . ‘ 1,624,195 28,321 (33,345) 1,619,171
Mortgage and asset-backed securities: ’ o e

Agency mortgage-backed securities . ] 2,743,803 54,659 (26,124) o 2,772,338
Non-agency mortgage-backed securities 236,595 12,008 (1,620) 246,983

- Asset-backed securities - 2,847,368 - - 6,872 . (10,16%) . - 2,844,071
Total mortgage and asset-backed securities 5,827,766 - - - 73,539 - (37,913) - -~ 5,863,392
Other debt securities 147,581 671 (6,495) 141,757
iéquity securities ) 5,970 33,928 — 43,898
Total ' : 3 8,874,540 'S 159,318 § (118,178)'S" 8,915,680
‘December 31, 2012 e ' _ ' ' o R
U.S. government and fcdcral agency obllgatlons 3 399971 § 40,395 3 (1,607) S 438,759
Govemnment-sponsored enterprise obligations - 467,063 5,188 (677) 471,574
State and municipal obligations 1,585,926 46,076 " {16,295) 1,615,707

Mortgage and asset-backed securities: '

Agency mortgage- backed secunues 3,248,007 l 132,953 (5) 3 380,955
Non- -agency mortgage- backed secuntles ’ 224:223 12,906 (1 18)‘ ) 237, 011
Asset-backed securities ’ 13,152,913 15,848 (1367) 3,167,394
Total mortgage and asset-backed securities . ‘ . " 6,625,143 161,707 . (1,490 . 6,785,360
Other debt securities . 174,727 3,127 (102) 177,752
Equity securities - e G595 27401 ot o 33,096

Total - 5 9,258,525 § 283,894 § 20,171} % 9,522,248

L4

The Company’s impairment policy requires a review of all securities for which fair value is less than amortized cost.” Special
emphasis and analysis is placed on securities whose credit rating‘has" fallen below A3 {(Moody's) or A- (Standard & Poor's); whose
fair values have fallen more than 20% below purchase price for an extended period of time, or have been identified based on
management’s judgment. These securities are placed on a watch list, and for all such securities, detailed cash flow medels are
prepared which use inputs specific to each security. Inputs to these models include factors such as cash flow received, contractual
payments required, and various other information related to the underlymg collateral (mcludmg current dclmqucnmes), collateral
loss severity rates (mcludmg loan to values), expected dellnqucncy rates, credit-support from other tranches, and prepayment
speeds: Stress tests are performed at varying levels of delinquency rates, prepayment speeds and loss severities in order to gauge
probable ranges of credit loss. At December 31, 2013, the fair value of secuntlcs on this watch list was $188.8 million compared
to $220.7 million at December 31, 2012. ‘ ' " e . N

As of December 31, 2013, the Company had recorded OTTE on certain non-agency mortgage-backed securities, part of the
watch list mentioned above, which had an aggregate fair value of $70.4 million. The cumulative credit-related portion of the
impairment initially recorded on these securities totaled $12.8 million and was recorded in earnings. The Company does not intend
to sell these securities and belleves itis not likely that it will be required to sell the securities before the recovery of their amortized
cost.

of
.
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The credit-related portion of the loss on these securities was based on the cash flows projected to be received over the estimated
life of the securities, discounted to present value, and compared to the current amortized cost bases of the securities. Significant
inputs to the cash flow models used to calculate the credit losses on these securities included the following:

Significant Inputs

Prepayment CPR

| ' Projected cumulative default
Credit support

Loss severity

Range
0% - 25%
16% - 52%
0% - 14%
18% - 8i%

The following table shows changes in the credit losses recorded in current earnings, for which a portion of an OTTI was

recognized in other comprehensive income.

‘ (In thousands)

2013 2012 2011
Balance at January 1 $ 11,306 $ 9931 § 7,542
Credit losses on debt securities for which impairment was not previously recognized — — 170
Credit losses on debt securities for which impairment was previously recognized 1,284 1,490 2,368 |
Increase in expected cash flows that are recognized over remaining tife of security 91 (115) {149) !
Balance at December 31 kY 12,499 § 11,366 % 9,931

1

Securities with unrealized losses recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income are shown in the table below, along
with the length of the impairment period. The table includes securities for which a portion of an OTTI has been recognized in

other comprehensive income.

The total available for sale po:rtfolio consisted of approximately } ,800 individual securities at December 31,2013, The portfolio
included 507 securities, having an aggregate fair value of $3.4 bitlion, that were in a loss position at December 31, 2013, compared
to 144 securities, with a fair value of $901.9 million, at December 31, 2012. The total amount of unrealized loss on these securities

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total
| Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
| {In thousands) Fair Value Losses Fair Valee Losses Fair Value Losses
‘ December 31, 2013 ‘ J
U.S, government and federal agency obligations $ 96,172 % 243 § 59677 § 12901 § 155849 § 13,144
Govemment-sponsored enterprise obligations ) 487,317 18,155 93,654 9,126 580,971 27,281
| State and municipal obligations 478,818 15,520 178,150 17.825 656,968 33,345
| Mortgage and asset-backed secunities:
l Agency mortgage-backed securities 717,778 26,124 — — 717,778 26,124
1 Non-agency mortgage-backed securities 53,454 l 918 22,289 702 75,743 1,620
Asset-backed securities 1,088,556 9,072 58,398 1,097 1,146,954 10,169
Total mortgage and asset-backed securities 1,859,788 36,114 80,687 1,799 1,940,475 37,913
Other debt securities 90,028 5,604 9,034 891 99,062 6,495
j Total i $3,012,123 § 75636 $ 421,202 § 42,542 § 3,433,325 § 118,178
| December 31, 2012 ' .
U.5. government and federal agency obligations $§ 71464 3 1607 3 — § — § 71464 § 1,607
Govermnment-sponsored enterprise obligations 102,082 677 — — 102,082 677
State and municipal obligations 173,600 2,107 80,530 14,188 254,130 16,295
Mortgage and asset-backed securities:
Agency mortgage-backed securities . 5,874 5 — —_ 5,874 5
Non-agency morigage-backed securities — — 12,609 118 12,609 118
Asset-backed securities ‘ 338,007 976 78,684 391 416,691 1,367
Total mortgage and asset-backed securities 343,881 981 91,293 509 435,174 1,490
Other debt securities ' 39,032 102 — — 39,032 ° 102
Total $ 730,059 3 5474 $ 171,823 § 14697 $ 901,882 § 20,171
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increased $98.0 million to $118.2 million, mainly due to higher interest rates in the second half of 2013, At December 31, 2013,
the fair value of securities in an unrealized loss position for 12 months or longer totaled $421.2 million, or 4.7% of the total
portfolio value, and did not include any securities identified as other-than -temporarily lmpalrcd

The Company s holdings of state and municipal obligations included gross unrealized losses of $33.3 million at December 31
2013, Of these losses, $10.0 million related to auction rate securities and $23.3 million related to other state and municipal
obligations. This porifolio, excluding auction rate securities, totaled $1.5 billion at fair value, or 16.7% of total available for sale
securities, The Company does not have exposure to obligations of municipalities which have filed for Chapter 9 bankruptcy. The
Company has processes and procedures in pIace to meonitor its holdings, identify signs of financial distress and, if necessary, exit
its positions in a timely manner. The ponfollo is diversified in order to reduce risk, and mformatmn about the top five largest

holdings, by state arld economic sector, is shown in the following table.

% of Average Life  Average Rating

: Portfolio (in years) (Moody's)

At December 31, 2013

Texas 9.9% l 4.1 Aal
Florida ) 9.3 4.6 Azl
Ohio ) o 6.0 49 Aa2
New York 5.5 6.3 Aal
Washington . . 5.4 5.0 Aa2
General obligation 30.6% 4.6 Aa2
Lease 16.2 4.6 Aa2
Housing 154 44 Aal
Transportation 13.9 42 Al
Limited tax 5.6 5.4 Aal

The credit ratings (Moody’s rating or equivalent) at December 31, 2013 in the state and municipal bond portfolio (excluding
auction rate securities) are shown in the following table, The average credit quality of the portfolio is Aa2 as rated by Moody’s.

% of Ponifolio
Aaa 11.3%
Aa 67.5
A 15.1
Baa 13
Not rated 8
100.0%

The following table presents proceeds from sales of securities and the components of investment securities gains and losses

which have been recognized in earnings.

(In thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Proceeds from sales of available for sale securities 7,076 $ 5231 § 11,202
Proceeds from sales of non-marketable securities 9,223 11,644 8,631
Total proceeds 16,299 § 16,875 § 19,833
Available for sale: -

Gains realized on sales ' 126 § 358 § 177
Gain realized on donation 1,375 — —
Other-than-temporary impairment recognized on debt securities (1,284) (1,490) (2,537)
Non-marketable: i ' '

Gains realized on sales 1,808 [,655 2,388
Losses realized on sales (2,979 (200) —
Fair value adjustments, net (3,471) 4,505 10,734
Investment securities gains (losses), net (4,425) § 4828 § 10,812
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Investment securities with a fair value 0 $5.0 billion and $4.3 billion were pledged at December 31,2013 and 2012, respectively,
to secure public deposits, securities sold under tepurchase agreements, trust funds, and borrowings at the Federal Reserve Bank.
Securities pledged under agreements pursuant to which the collateral may be sold orre-pledged by the secured parties approximated
$687.7 million, while the remaining securities were pledged under agreements pursuant to which the secured parties may not sell
orre-pledge the collateral. Except for obligations of various government-sponsored enterprises such as FNMA, FHLB and FHLMC,
no-investment in a single issuer exceeds 10% of stockholders’ equity.

5. Land, Buildings and Equipment .
Land, buildings and equipme:m consist of the following at December 31, 2013 and 2012:

{In thousands} 2013 2012

Land $ 106,005 § 107,540
Buildings and improvements ! . 529,842 523,662
Equipment 227,467 229,370
Total ' 863,314 860,572
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 513,660 502,960
Net land, buildings and equipment ) 349,654 3 357,612

Depreciation expense of $30.7 million, $32.2 million and $34.5 million for 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively, was included
in pccupancy expense and equipment expense in the consolidated income statements, Repairs and maintenance expense of $16.8
million, $17.3 million and $17.7 million for 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively, was included in occupancy expense and equipment
expense. There has been no interest expense capitalized on construction projects in the past three years.

6. Goodwill and dther Intangible Assets

The following table presents information about the Company's intangible assets which have estimable useful lives.

'December 31, 2013 ' December 31, 2012
Gross Gross )
Carrying  Accumulated Valuation Net Carrying Accumulated Valuation Net

(In thousands) Amount Amortization  Allowance Amount Amount Amortization Allowance Amount
Amortizable intangible '

assets:

Core deposit premium $ 31,270 $ (22,781) § — $ 8489 § 25720 § (20,892) $ — $ 4828

Mongagc servicing rights 3,430 (2,567 (84) 779 3,132 (2,267) (393) 472
Total $ 34700 § (25348 $ B4 § 9268 $ 28852 $ (23,159) § (393) 3 5,300

As discussed in Note 2 on Acquisition, the Company acquired Summit Bancshares, Inc. on September 1, 2013, As a result of
the acquisition, goodwill of $13.3 million and a core deposit intangible asset of $5.6 million were recorded. Based on an estimation
of the expected remaining economic life of the depositors, the core deposit premium is being amortized over a 14 year period
using an accelerated method.

The carrying amount of goodwill and its allocation among segments at December 31, 2013 and 2012 is shown in the table
below. As a result of ongoing assessments, no impairment of goodwill was recorded in 2013, 2012 or 2011. Further, the regular
annual review on January 1, 2014 revealed no impairment as of that date.

' December 31, December 31,

{In thousands) s 2013 2012 -

Consumer segment s 70,721 3 67,765
Commercial segment 67,454 57,074
Wealth segment 746 746
Total gobdwi]l ' $ 138,921 § 125,585

78




Changes in the net carrying amount of goodwill and other net intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2013 and

2012 are shown in the following table.

Core Deposit " Mortgage
{In thousands) Goodwill Premium Servicing Rights
‘Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 125585 § 6,970 3 - 744
Originations — — 35
Amortization — (2,142) (341)
Impairment reversal — — 34
‘Balance at December 31, 2012- - - - 125,585 4,828 472"
Summit acquisition - 13,336 5,550 —
Originations ) — — 298
‘Amortization . o — (1,889) (300)
Impairment reversal o . — — 309
Balance at December 31, 2013 s 138,921 § §489 § 779

Wi

Mortgage servicing rights (MSRs) are initially recorded at fair value and subsequently amomzed over the period of esnmated
servicing income, They are periodically reviewed for impairment and if impairment is indicated, recorded at fair value At
December 31,2013, temporary impairment of $84 thousand had been recogmzed Temporary impairment, including 1mpamnent
recovery, is effected through a change in a valuation 'atlowance. The fair valve of the MSRs is based on the present value of

expected future cash flows; as further discussed in Note 16 on Fair Value Measurements.

Aggregate amortization expense on i‘ntangible assets for the years ended December 31,2013, 2012 and 2011 was $2.2 million,
$2.5 million and $3.0 million, respectively. The following table shows the estimated future amortization expense based on existing
asset balances and the interest rate environment as of December 31, 2013, The Company’s actual amortization expense in any
given period may be different from the estimatéd amounts depending upon the acquisition of intangible assets, changes in mofigage
interest ratle.sd,' prepayment rates and other market conditions.

-

~ (In thousahds)”
' 2014 $ 1,999
2015 7 1,609
016 - " URRFRRENRERE ol 1246
R *2017 - “teto921
- 2018 688
7. Deposus . al
Affecember 31, 2OI3 the scheduled maturities of total time open and certlﬁcates of depos:t were as follows
' o {In thousands) I
s ) Due in 2014 $ 1,740,247
_ ’ Due in 2015 © 235,401
‘ + -, Duein2016 126,623
_ Due in 2017 35,402
Lieo . .".Duein2018 48,998
A = Thereafter 1,767
- Total

N $ 2,188,438
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The following table shows a detailed breakdown of the maturities of time open and certificates of deposit, by size category, at
December 31, 2013,

Certificates of Other Time Certificates of Other Time

Deposit under Deposits under Deposit over Deposits over
(In thousands) . $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 Total
Due in 3 months or less : $ 159,550 § 33,313 § 314,206 -§ 19,08 § 526,155
Due in over 3 through 6 months 179,266 38,196 249,528 32,052 499,042
Due in over 6 through 12 months 308,582 55,173 280,247 71,048 715,050
Due in over 12 months : 135,935 73,674 221,906 16,676 448,191
Total : $ 783,333 § 200,356 $ 1,065,887 § 138,862 § 2,188,438

Regulations of the Federal Reserve System require cash balances to be maintained at the Federal Reserve Bank, based on
certain deposit levels. The minimum reserve requirement for the Bank at December 31, 2013 totaled $49.2 million.

8. Borrowings "
The following table sets forth selected information for short-term borrowmgs (borrowings with an original maturity of less

than one year).

i . YearEnd ,.  Average . Maximum

Weighted ~ Weighted ~ Average Balance  Quistandingat . Balance at
{Dollars in thousands) Rate ‘' Rae Qutstanding any Month End - December 31
Federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements: '
2013 1% A% 8 914,554 $ 1,479,849 3 996,558
2012 . d A ' .. 185978 1,149,156 683,550

2011 . ' .1 g 635,009 1,002,002 856,081

Short-term borrowings consist primarily of federal funds purchased and securitiés sold under agreements-to repurchase
(repurchase agreements), which'generally mature within 90 days. Shori-term repurchase agreements at December 31, 2013 were
comprised of non-insured customer funds totaling $971.8 million, which were secured by a-portion of the Company’s investment
portfolio.

Long-term borrowings of the Company consisted of the following at December 31, 2013:

v : Year End Year End
{Dollars in thousands) ] Borrower Maturity Date  Weighted Rate Balance
FHLB advances v Subsidiary bank o © 2014 48% $ 1,178

' 2015-17 3.5 104,132
Structured repurchase agreements Subsidiary bank 2014 0 350,000

Total . B ‘ ) 8 455,310 -

The Bank is a member of the Des Moines FHLB and has access to term financing from the FHLB. These borrowings are
secured under a blanket collatéral agreement including primarily residential mortgages as well as all unencumbered assets and
stock of the borrowing bank. Total outstanding advances at December 31, 2013 were $105.3 million. All of the outstanding
advances have fixed interest rates and contain prepayment penalties. The FHLB has also issued letters of credit, totaling $353.0
million at December 31, 2013,:to secure the Company’s obligations to certain depositors of public funds.

Structured repurchase agreements totaled $350.0 million at December 31,2013. These borrowings have floating interest rates
based upon various published constant maturity swap (CMS) rates and will mature in 2014, They are secured by agency mortgage-
backed and U.S. government securities in the Company's investment portfolio, which totaled $366. 5 million at December 31,
2013. As of year end, these agreements did not bear interest because of low CMS rates.
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9. Income Taxes

The components of income tax expense from operations for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 201 l_.we_ré as
follows:

(In thousands) - Current Deferred * Total
Year ended December 31, 2013: -
U.S. federal 3 102,191 § 7984 § 110,175
State and local | ) ) 10,838 1,217 12,055
Total ) 5 113,029 $ %201 % 122,230
Year ended December 31, 2012:
- U.S. federal : , b 100,210 § 15,125| 5 115,335
State and local : - 10,725 1,109 11,834
Total 5 110,935 % 16,234 $ 127,169
Year ended December 31, 2011:
U.S. federal $ 113,920 § (2,720) $ ' 111,200
State and local 10,328 (116) 10212
Total 5 124,248 § (2,836) § 121,412

The components of income tax (benefit) expense recorded directly to stockholders’ equity for the years ended December 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011 were as follows:

(In thousands) . . o3 - 2012 2011
Unrealized gain (loss) on securitics available for sale $ . (84,582) % 19425 § .- - 31,565
Accumulated pension (benefit) loss 6,981 (3,608) - (2,641)
Compensation expense for tax purposes in excess of amounts recognized for

financial reporting purposes : Tt (1,003) T (2,004) - {1,065)
Income tax (benefit) expense allocated to stockholders’ equity 5 (78,604) $ 13,723 § 27,859

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2013 and 2012 were as follows:

(In thousands) o 2013 2012
Deferred tax assets: !
Loans, principally due to allowance for loan losses ) 5 70,154 § - 75,710
Accrued expenses : . 15,740 15,528
Equity-based compensation . ‘ ‘ , d 12,407 12,469
Deferred compensation 6,980 6,280
Pension 728 C 7,840
Other - . ‘ ‘ ) 14,740 11,799
Total deferred tax assets - - 120,749 129,626
Deferred tax liabilities: c -
Equipment lease financing . 64,320 . 54,980
Unrealized gain on securities available for sale 15,633 100,215
Land, buildings and equipment 14,757 16;433
Intangibles 7,282 4,867
Accretion on investment securities 5,972 '6,613
Other . 7,325 . - 8399
Total deferred tax liabilities . . 115,289 191,507

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) $ 5,460 % (61,881)

" The Compainy acquired a federal net operating loss (NOL) carryforward of approximately $4.3 million in connection with a
2003 acquisition. At December 31, 2013, the NOL had been fully utilized. Management believes it is more likely than not that
the rcsults of future operations will generate sufficient taxable income to realize the total deferved tax assets.
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Areconciliation between the expected federal income tax expense using the federal statutory tax rate of 35% and the Company’s
actual income tax expense for 2013, 2012 and 2011 is provided in the table below. The effective tax rate is calculated by dividing
income taxes by income before income taxes less the non-controlling interest expense.

{in thousands) | 2013 - 2012 2011
Computed “expected” tax expense | $ 134,117 § 138,774 % 132,214
Increase (decrease) in income taxes fesulting from:

‘ Tax-exempt interest, net of cost to carry (16,612) (15,516) (14,815)
State and local income taxes, net of federal tax benefit 7,836 7,692 6,638
Tax deductible dividends on allocqlted shares held by the Company’s ESOP (1,116) (2,991) (1,058)
Other (1,995) (790) (1,567)

Total income tax expense | $ 122,230 § 127,169 % 121,412

’ i
"Itis the Company’s policy to récognize interest and penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense. The Company
recorded tax benefits related to interest and penalties of $5 thousand, $81 thousand and $1 thousand in 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. At December 31, 20]3 and 2012, liabilities for interest and penalties were $172 thousand and $176 thousand
respectively.

As of December 31, 2013 aod 2012, the gross amount of unrecognized tax benefits was $1.4 million and $1.6 million,
respectively, and the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits that would impact the effective tax rate, if recognized, was §1.0
million and $1.1 million, respectively.

The Company and its subs;dlanes are subject to income tax by federal, state and local government taxing authorities. Tax
years 2010 through 2013 remain open to examination for U.S. federal income tax. Tax years 2009 through 2013 remain open to
examination in major state taxing jurisdictions.

The activity in the accrued liability for unrecognized tax benefits for the years ended December 31 2013 and 2012 was as
follows

(In thousands) ' M3 2012
Unrecognized tax benefits at beginning of year . § 1,581 $ 1,584
Gross increases — tax positions in prior period e 70 417
Gross decreases — tax positions in prior period ‘ : : (2) (25)
Gross increases — current-period tax positions 282 219
Lapse of statute of limitations (503) (614)
Unrecognized tax benefits at end of year 3 1,428 $ 1,581

10. Employee Benefit Plans

. Employee benefits charged to operating expenses are summarized in the table below. Substantially all of the Company’s
employees are covered by a defined contribution (401(k)) plan, under which the Company makes matching contributions.

{In thousands) ‘ 2013 2012 2011
Payroll taxes . 5 21,705 § 21,247 20,703
Medical plans 18,393 19,861 " 16,350
401(k) plan ‘ 12,465 12,613 11,728
Pension plans ‘ ! 1,627 2,441 994
Other . : 2,498 2,062 2,232
Total employee benefits o b 56,688 $ 58,224 3§ 52,007

i .

A portion of the Company’s} employees are covered by a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan, however, participation
in the pension plan is not available to employees hired after June 30, 2003. All participants are fully vested in their benefit payable
upon normal retirement date, whlch is based on years of participation and compensation. Certain key executives also participate
in a supplemental executive retirement plan (the CERP) that the Company funds only as retirement benefits are disbursed. The
CERP carries no segregated assets, Since January 2011, all benefits acerued under the pension plan have been frozen. However,
the accounts continue to accrue interest at a stated annual rate. The CERP continues to provide credits based on hypothetical
contributions in excess of those permitted under the 401(k) plan. In the tables presented below, the pension plan and the CERP
are presented on a combined lg’asis.
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Under the Company’s funding policy for the defined benefit pension plan, contributions are made to a trust as necessary to
satisfy the statutory minimum required contribution as defined by the Pension Protection Act, which is intended to provide for
current service accruals and for any unfunded accrued actuarial liabilities over a reasonable period. To the extent that these
requirements are fully covered by assets in the trust, a contribution might not be made in a particular year. The Company made
a discretionary contribution of $1.5 million to its defined benefit pension plan in 2012 in,order to reduce pension guarantee
premiums. No contributions to the defined plan were made in 2013 and the minimum required contribution for 2014 is expected
to be zero. The Company does not expect to make any further contributions in 2014 other than the necessary funding contributions
to the CERP. Contributions to the CERP were $69 thousand, $65 thousand and $18 thousand during 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively,

- The following items are components of the net pension cost for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011.

(In thousands) ) 2013 2012 2011
Service cost-benefits earned during the year o $ 509 § 504 § 406
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation _ i . 4,509 5,162 5,366
Expected return on plan assets ' ' {6,476) (6,178) (6,727)
Amortization of unrecognized net loss CoL 3,085 2953 1,949
Net periodic pension cost $ 1,627 § 2441 § 994 .

The following table sets forth the pension plans’ funded status, using valuation dates of December 3 1,2013 and 2012.

{In thousands) N . 2013 2012
Change in projected benefit obligation '

Projected benefit obligation at prior valuation date $ 125,147 % 110,186
Service cost . " 509 504
Interest cost 4,509 5,162
Benefits paid (5,904) - (5,248)
Actuarial {gain) loss (10,588) 14,543
Projected benefit obligation at valuation date ) - 113,673 125,147
Chairge in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at prior valuation date 101,834 97,228
Actual return on plan assets 11,173 8,274
Employer contributions 69 1,580
Benefits paid (5,904) (5,248)
Fair value of plan assets at valuation date 107,172 101,834
Funded status and net amount recognized at valuation date $ (6,501) § (23,313)

The accumulated benefit obligation, which represents the liability of a plan using only benefits as of the measurement date,
was $113.7 million and $125.1 million for the combined plans on December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. .
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Amounts not yet reflected in net periodic benefit cost and included in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at
December 31, 2013 and 2012 are shown below, mcludmg amounts recognized in other comprehensive income during the periods.
All amounts are shown on a pre- -tax basis. :

{In thousands) i . ) ) . 2013 2012

Prior service credit (cost) : : 8 — 35 —
Accumulated loss 1 (25,479) (43,849)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss {25,479) (43,849)
Cumulative employer contributions m excess of net periodic benefit cost 18,978 20,536
Net amount recognized as an accrued benefit liability on the December 31 balance sheet b (6,501) 3 (23,313)
Net gain (loss) arising during period $ 15,285 § (12,447)
Amortization of net loss - ' A 308 2,953
Total recognized in other comprehensive income $ 18,370 § {9,494)
Total income (expense) recognized in net periodic pension cost and other comprehensive income  $ 16,743 § (11,935)

1
[N

The estimated net loss to be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive income into net periodic pension cost in 2014
is $1.4 million.

. . | . . . .
The following assumptions, on a weighted average basis, were used in accounting for the plans.

' 2013 2012 " 2011

Determination of benefit obligation at year end:

Discount rate ' ' 4.55% 3.65% 4.80%

Assumed credit on cash balance accounts 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Determination of net periodic benefit cost for year ended:

Discount rate ‘I 3.65% 4.80% 5.40%

Long-term rate of return on assct;s 6.50% 6.50% 7.00%

Assumed credit on cash balance accounts 5.00% 5.00% 3.00%

'
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The following table shows the fair values of the Company’s pension plan assets by asset category at December 31, 2013 and
2012. Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used to measure fair value are prov1ded n Note 16 on Fair Value
Mcasurements E . .

Fair Value Measurements

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets Significant Other Significant

f°’,1‘:§2,‘5i°“1 Observable [nputs ~ Unobservable
{In thousands) Total Fair Value (Level 1) {Leve! 2) Inputs (Level 3)
December 31, 2013 '
Assets:
U.5. government obligations K _ %S 91 % — § —
Government-sponsored enterprise obh gatlons @ i - 2,512 — 2,512 —
State and municipal obligations ' 7,270 — 7,270 —
Agency mortgage-backed securities ® . 1,744 — 1,744 -
Non-agency mortgage-backed securities 6,156 — 6,156 —
Asset-backed securities 5,98‘5 —_— 5,985 —
Corporate bonds ©’ 36,345 — 36,345 —
Equity securities and mutual funds: ¥
U.S. large-cap i ) 23,677 23,677 — —
U.S. mid-cap , , 13,864 13,864 — —
U.S. small-cap 4,331 4,331 . - ' —
International developéd markets 857 857 — -
Emerging markets “ . 659 659 . — =
Money market funds ' L 2,871 2,871 —_ —
Total - 3 107,172 § 47,160 $ 60,012 $ —
December 31, 2012 '
Assets: . v . Lo
Cash ‘ 3 318 . it § — 5 L —
U.S. government obligations ' 343 343 - —
‘Government-sponsored enterprise obligations @ 6,930 — 6,930 e
‘State and municipal obligations ) ‘ . 5,700 — 5,700 -
Ageney mortgage-backed securities®’ . 3,000 — 3000 -
i\ion-agency mortgage-backed securities 6,936 — 6,936 ) —
Asset-backed securities 7,125 . — 7,125 . —
Corporate bonds © 27,653 — 27,653 -
Equity securities and mutual funds: ©
U.S. large-cap’ ' _ ! 22400 22,400 ' — —
US. midcap - _ , 12,600 12,600 - —
US.smallcap . ' ' % %) 3,792 — —
International developed markets . . . 908 . 908 — —
Emerging markets. + .. ~ 916 916 — —
Money market funds ; T T 3,500 3,500 _ — e
Total i ) ) ’ o $ 101,834 $ 44,490 § 57,344 § L —

{a)} This category represents bonds (excluding mortgage-backed securities) issued by agencies such as the F ederal Home Loan Bank, the
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp and the Federal National Morigage Association. , "

(b) This category represents mortgage-backed securities issued by the agencies mentioried m (a).

(c) This category represents investment grade bonds issued in the U.S., prima{'j'!y by domestic issuers, representing diverse industries.

(d) This category represents investments in individual common stocks and equity funds. These holdings are diversified, largely across the
Jinancial services, consumer goods, healthcare, technology, and energy sectors, :
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The investment policy of the pension plan is designed for growth in value within limits designed to safeguard against significant
losses within the portfolio. The policy sets guidelines regarding the types of investments held that may change from time to time,
currently including items such as holding bonds rated investment grade or better and prohibiting investment in Company stock.
The plan does not utilize derivatives. Management believes there are no significant concentrations of risk within the plan asset
portfolio at December 31, 2013. Under the current policy, the long-term investment target mix for the plan is 35% equity securities
and 65% fixed income securities. The Company regularly reviews its policies on investment mix and may make changes depending
on economic conditions and perceived investment risk.

The discount rate is based on jmatching the Company's estimated plar cash flows to a yield curve derived from a portfolio of
corporate bonds rated AA by either Moody's or Standard and Poor's.

The assumed overall expected long-term rate of return on pension plan assets used in calculating 2013 pension plan expense
was 6.5%. Determination of the plan’s expected rate of return is based upon historical and anticipated returns of the asset classes
invested in by the pension plan and the allocation strategy currently in place among those classes. The rate used in plan calculations
may be adjusted by management for current trends in the economic environment. The 10-year annualized return for the Company’s
pension plan was 7.2%. During 2013, the plan’s rate of return was 11.1%, compared to 8.4% in 2012. Because a portion of the
plan’s investments are equity securities, the actual return for any one plan year is affected by changes in the stock market. Due
to positive investment returns experienced in 2013 and an increase in the discount rate, the Company expects to incur pension
expense of $773 thousand in 2014, compared to $1.6 miliion in 2013.

The following future benefit payments are expected to be paid:

(In thousands)
2014 ' $ 5,958
2015 6,234
2016 ' ‘ 6,551
. 2017 : ] o 6,731
. 2018 - e 6,940

2019 - 2023 36,258

11. Stock-Based Compensation and Directors Stock Purchase Plan*

The Company’s stock-based compensation is provided under a stockholder-approved plan which allows for issuance of various
types of awards, including stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock and restricted stock units, performance awards
and stock-based awards. At December 31, 2013, 3,729,477 shares remained available for issuance under the plan. The stock-
based compensation expense that was charged against income was $6.4 million, $5.0 mitlion and $4.7 million for the years ended
December 31,2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The total income tax benefit recognized in the income statement for share-based
compensation arrangements was $2.4 million, $1.9 million and $1.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and
2011, respectively.

During 2013, stock-based compensation was issued in the form of nonvested stock awards and stock appreciation rights, while
in 2012, stock-based compensation was issued solely in the form of nonvested stock awards. Nonvested stock is awarded 1o key
employees, by action of the Company's Compensation and Human Resources Committee and Board of Directors. These awards
generally vest after 4 to 7 years of continued employment, but vesting terms may vary according to the specifics of the individual
grant agreement. There are restrictions as to transferability, sale, pledging, or assigning, among others, prior to the end of the
vesting period. Dividend and voting rights are conferred upon grant. A summary of the status of the Company’s nonvested share
awards as of December 31, 2013 and changes during the year then ended is presented below.

.. .- . ., Weighted
Average Grant
) Shares Date Fair Valug
Nonvested at January 1, 2013 - 926,871 32.97
Granted - 421,803 36.67
Vested : - - (54,922 . - 3272
Forfeited .. . (28,729) T 33.03
Canceled . {121,268) 33.64
Nonvested at December 31, 2013 1,143,755 34.27

The total fair value (at vest date) of shares vested during 2013, 2012 and 2011 was $2.1 million, $2.1 million and $1.6 million,
respectively. '
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Stock appreciation rights {SARs) and stock options are granted with exercise prices equal to the market price of the Company’s
stock at the date of grant. SARs, which the Company granted in 2006 through 2009, and again in 2013, vest ratably over four
years of continuous service and have 10-year contractual terms. All SARs must be settled in stock under provisions of the plan.
Stock options, which were granted in 2005 and previous years, vested ratably over three years of continuous service, and also
have 10-year contractual terms. : . :

In determining compensation cost, the Black-Scholes option-pricing model is used to estimate the fair value of options and
SARs on date of grant. The Black-Scholes model is a closed-end model that uses various assumptions as shown in the following
table. Expected volatility is based on historical volatility of the Company’s stock. The Company uses historical exercise behavior
and other factors to estimate the expected term of the options and SARs, which represents the period of time that the options and
SARs granted are expected to be outstanding. The risk-free rate for the expected term is based on the U.S. Treasury zero coupon
spot rates in effect at the time of grant. The per share average fair value and the model assumptions for SARs granted in 2013
are shown in the table below. '

Weighted per share average fair value at grant date $6.82
Assumptions: -+ | .
Dividend yield 2.3%
Volatility 23.2%
Risk-free interest rate 1.2% \
Expected term C e 7.3 ye:iré T
© Asummary of option activity during 2013 is presented below.
Weighted ‘Xilcgr:lge: ‘
AVerage.  ponaining  Aggregale
Exercise  Conuactual Intrinsic -
(Dollars in thousands, except per share daia)} Shares Price Term Value
Outstanding at January 1, 2013 807,121 3  30.01
. Granted - - —
Forfeited — R
. Expired ' : - — - - . ' -
Exercised (354,798) 29.32
Outstanding, exercisable and vested at December 31, 2013 452,323 § 3055 (.8 years § 6,494
A summary of SAR activity during 2013 is presented below.
. Weighted
Weighted Average :
Average Remaining  Aggregate
Exercise Contractual intrinsic
(Doliars in thousands, except per share data} Shares Price Term Value
Outstanding at Janvary 1, 2013 1,876,523 § 3435 ‘
Granted ! v 224 282 37.17
Forfeited (2,954) 33.19
Expired — —
Exercised S (339,597) 3454 -
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 1,758,254 § 3468 4.0 years § 17,993
Exercisable at December 31, 2013 1,535,329 § - 3432 32 years § 16,267
Vested and expected te vest at December 31, 2013 1,748,676 § 3466 4.0 years $ 17919
Additional information about stock options and SARs exercised is presented below,
{In thousands} 2013 202 2011
Intrinsic value of options and SARs exercised * $ 6,580 § 7,769 % 6,722
Cash received from options and SARs exercised $ 9,426 § 14820 3 14,604
Tax benefit realized from options and SARs exercised $ 335 % 847

1269 §
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As of December 31, 2013, there was $20.5 million of unrecognized compensation cost (net of estimated forfeitures) related
to unvested SARs and stock awards. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 3.4 years.

The Company has a directors stock purchase plan whereby outside directors of the Company and its subsidiaries may elect to
use their directors’ fees to purchase Company stock at market value each month end. Remaining shares available for issuance
under this plan were 137,337 at December 31, 2013. In 2013, 20,222 shares were purchased at an average price of $40.39 and in
2012, 21,751 shares were purchased at an average price of $35.32. '

* All share and per share umounts in this note have been restated for the 5% stock dividend distributed in 2013,

12, Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The table below shows the activity and accumulated balances for components of other comprehensive income. The largest
component is the unrealized holding gains and losses on available for sale securities. Unrealized gains and losses on debt securities
for which an other-than-temporary impairment (OTTI) has been recorded in current earnings are shown separately below. The
other component is amortization from other comprehensive income of losses associated with pension benefits, which occurs as
the amortization is included in current net periodic benefit cost. '

Unrealized Gains (Losses) Total Accumulated
on Securities (1) . Other
Pension Loss Comprehensive
{In thousands) OTTI Other 2) Income
Balance January 1, 2013 $ 3,245 § 160,263 $  (27,164) 3 136,344
Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications 261 (222,628) 15,285 (207,082)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income 1,284 (1,501) 3,085 2,868
Current period other comprehensive income (loss), before tax 1,545 (224,129) 18,370 (204,214)
Income tax (expense) benefit (587) 85,169 (6,981) 77,601
Current period other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 958 (138,960) 11,389 (126,613)
Balance December 31, 2013 $ 4,203 § 21,303 $  (15,775) % 9,731
Balance January 1, 2012 $ 4321) § 136,137 § (21.278) 8 119,538
Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications 10,713 39,271 (12,447 37,537
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income 1,490 (357) 2,953 4,086
Current period other comprehensive income (loss), before tax 12,203 38914 (9,494) 41,623
Income tax (expense) benefit (4,637) (14,788) 3,608 (15817
Current period other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 7,566 24,126 (5.886) 25,806
Balance December 31, 2012 $ 3245 § 160,263 § (27,164) 3 136,344

(1) The pre-tax amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income are included in "investment securities gains (losses), net” in the
consolidated statements of income.

{2) The pre-tax amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income arc included in the computation of net periodic pension cost as
"amortization of unrecognized net loss" (see Note 10).

13. Segments

The Company segregates financial information for use in assessing its performance and allocating resources among three
operating segments: Consumer, Commercial and Wealth. The Consumer segment includes the consumer portion of the retail
branch network (loans, deposits and other personal banking services), indirect and other consumer financing, and consumer debit
and credit bank cards. The Commercial segment provides corporate lending (including the Small Business Banking product line
within the branch network), leasing, international services, and business, government deposit, and related commercial cash
management services, as well as merchant and commercial bank card products. The Commercial segment also includes the Capital
Markets Group, which sells fixed income securities and provides investment safekeeping and bond accounting services. The
Wealth segment provides traditional trust and estate tax planning, advisory and discretionary investment management, and
brokerage services, and includes the Private Banking product portfolio.

The Company’s business line reporting system derives segment information from the internal profitability reporting system
used by management to monitor and manage the financial performance of the Company. This information is based on internal
management accounting policies, which have been developed to reflect the underlying economics of the businesses. The policies
address the methodologies applied in connection with funds transfer pricing and assignment of overhead costs among segments.
Funds transfer pricing was used in the determination of net interest income by assigning a standard cost {credit) for funds used
(provided) by assets and liabilities based on their maturity, prepayment and/or repricing characteristics. Income and expense that
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directly relate to segment operations are recorded in the segment when incurred. Expenses that indirectly support the segments
are aliocated based on the most appropriate method available. -

The Company uses a funds transfer pricing method 1o value funds used (e.g., loans, fixed assets, and cash) and-funds provided
(e.g., deposits, borrowmgs and equity) by the business segments and their components. This process assigns a specific value to
each new source or use of funds with a maturity, based on current swap rates, thus determining an interest spread at the time of
the transaction. Non- -maturity assets and liabilities are valued using weighted average pools. The funds transfer pricing process
attempts to remove interest rate risk from valuation, allowing management to compare profitability under various rate environments.

The following tables present selected financial information by segment and reconciliations of combined segment totals to
consolidated totals. There were no material intersegment revenues between the three segments. Management periodically makes
changes to methods of assi gmng costs and income to its business segments to better reflect operating results. 1f appropnate these
changes are reflected in prior year information presented below.

Segment Income Statement Data

- : : . Other/ Consolidated
{In thousands) . Consumer Commercial Wealth Segment Totals.  Elimination Totals
Year ended December 31, 2013: ;i" . . . .
Net interest income 3 268,281 § . 288,722 $ 40,194 § 597,199 § | 22,173°8 619372
Provision for loan losses (34,277 3m (688) . (3L193) 10,840 (20,353)
Non-interest income 113,377 186,446 116,765 416,588 1,798 418,386
Investment securities losses, net . : — —_ C— - C—_ ~(4,425) (4,425)
Non-interest expense - . (270,209) - (235,346) (96,530) (602,085) ¢ (27,548) . (629,633)
Income before income taxes $- 77,174 § 243,594 § 59,741 § 380,509 8 - 2838 % 383,347
Year ended December 31,-2012: ’ . ’ : - Co " Soe T
Net interest income : : $ 274844 § 290,968 $ 39,498 § 605310 34,596 § 639,906
Provision for loan losses {35,496) (2,824) (695) (39,015 11,728 (27,287)
Non-tnterest income 114,307 179,824 108,472 402,603 (2,973  + - 399,630
Investment securities gains, net . —_ _ — — - 4,828 T, 4,828
Non-interest expense (266,740) (226,935) {90,659) (584,334 ~ - (34,135) (618,469)
Income before income taxes $ 86,915 % 241,033 § 56,616 $ 384,564 § 14,044 § 398,608 )
Year ended December 31, 2011:- : .
Net interest income L 8 283,555 % 283,790 § 38,862 § 606,207 $ 39863 § 646,070
Provision for loan losses e 47,273) (16,195) (712) {64,180)  * 12,665 (51,515)
Non-interest income 131,253 162,533 101,836 395,622 ! {2,705) 392,917
Investment securities gains, net — — — — 10,812 10,812
Non-interest expense ' ‘ (269,435) (221,273) (89,108) (579,816) (37,433) - (617,249)
Income before income taxes $ 98,100 § 208855 § ' 50,878 3 357,833 % 23,202 § 381,035

The segment activity, as shown above, includes both direct and allocated itelm's.'Amoums in the “Other/Elimination” column
include activity not related to the segments, such as that relating to administrative functions, the investment securities portfolio,
and the effect of certain expense allocations to the segments. The provision for loan losses in this category contains the difference
between net loan charge-offs assigned directly to the segments and the recorded provision for loan loss expense. Included in this
category’s net interest income are earnings of the investment portfolio, which are not allocated to a segment.
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Segment Balance Sheet Data

Other/ Consolidated

{In thousands) Consumer Commercial Wealth Segment Totals Elimination Totals
Average balances for 2013:

Assets $ 2,674,136 § 6,321,153 § 855,721 § 9.851,010 § 12,022974 § 21,873,984
Loans, including held for sale 2,589,179 6,124,902 845,918 9,559,999 756,143 10,316,142
Goodwill and other intangible assets 73,340 61,925 746 136,011 —_ 136,011
Deposits 9,317,525 6,809,265 1,885,807 18,012,597 48,554 18,061,151
Average balances for 2012:

Assets ' $ 25033503 § 5834512 % 743312 § 9,081,327 $ 11,619351 § 20,700,678
Loans, including held for sale . 2,418,428 5,648,923 735,153 8,802,504 586,500 9,389,004
Goodwill and other intangible assets 72,765 58,573 746 132,084 — 132,084

Deposits 8,816,905 6,266,569 1,689,937 16,773,411 53,137 16,826,548

The above segment balances include only those items directly associated with the segment. The “Other/Elimination™ column
includes unaliocated bank balances not associated with a segment (such as investment securities and federal funds sold), balances
relating to certain other administrative and corporate functions, and eliminations between segment and non-segment balances.
This column also includes the resulting effect of allocating such items as float, deposit reserve and capital for the purpose of
computing the cost or credit for funds used/provided,

The Company’s reportable segments are strategic lines of business that offer different products and services. They are managed
separately because each line services a specific customer need, requiring different performance measurement analyses and
marketing strategies. The performance measurement of the segments is based on the management structure of the Company and
is not necessarily comparable with similar information for any other financial institution. The information is also not necessarily
indicative of the segments’ financial condition and results of operations if they were independent entities.

14. Common Stock

- On December 16, 2013, the Company distributed a 5% stock dividend on its $5 par common stock for the twentieth consecutive
year. All per share data in this report has been restated to reflect the stock dividend.

Basic income per share is computed by dividing income available to common shareholders by the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding during the year. Diluted income per share gives effect to all dilutive potential common shares that
were outstanding during the year. Presented below is a summary of the components used to calculate basic and diluted income
per share, which have been restated for all stock dividends.

The Company applies the two-class method of computing income per share. Under current guidance, nonvested share-based
awards that contain nonforfeitable rights to dividends are considered securities which participate in undistributed earnings with
common stock. The two-class method requires the calculation of separate income per share amounts for the nonvested share-
based awards and for common stock. Income per share attributable to common stock is shown in the following table. Nonvested
share-based awards are further discussed in Note 11 on Stock-Based Compensation.



(In thousands, except per share data) : - 2013 2012 2011

Basic income per comnton share:

Net income attributable to Commerce Bancshares, Inc. ’ s 260,961 § 269,329 § 256,343
Less income allocated to nonvested restricted stockholders 2,939 2,563 1,846
Net income available to common stockholders s 258,022 % 266,766. § 254,497
Weighted average commeon shares outstanding 94,585 96,195 - 99,086
Basic income per common share $ 2.73 8. L2717 % .2.57
Diluted income per commeon share: .
Net income attributable to Commerce Bancshares, Inc. $ 260,961 § 269,329 § 256,343
Less income aliocated to nonvested restricted stockholders ’ ' 2,931 . 2562 T, 1,842
Net income available to common stockholders § 258,030 § 266,767 $ 254,501
Weighted average common shares outstanding 94,585 96,195 99,086
Net effect of the assumed exercise of stock-based awards -- based on the ti-easury ) e
stock method using the average market price for the respective periods 398 294 362
Weighted average diluted common shares outstanding 94,983 96,489 - 99,448
Diluted income per common share . $ 272 § C 27608 2.56

Nearly all unexercised stock options and stock appreciation rights were included in the computations of diluted income per
share for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, Unexercised options and rights of 1.2 million were excluded from the
computation of diluted income per share for the year ended December 31, 2011, because their inclusion would have been anti-
dilutive.

The table below shows activity in the outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock during the past three years. Shares
in the table below are presented on an historical basis and have not been restated for the annual 5% stock dividends,

" Years Ended December 31

(In thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Shares outstanding at January | 91,414 88,952 86,624
Issuance of stock: _ _
Awards and sales under employee and director plans : 653 837 724
5% stock dividend 4,565 4,352 4,231
Summit acquisition ' ' o 1,000 — —
Purchases of treasury stock (1,742) (2,716) (2,622)
Other %) 18] (5)
Shares outstanding at December 31 95,881 91,414 88,952

The Company maintains a treasury stock buyback program authorized by its Board of Directors. At December 31, 2013,
3,492,265 shares were available for purchase under the current Board authorization.

15. Regulatory Capital Requirements

The Company is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure to
meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and additional discretionary actions by regulators that could
have a direct material effect on the Company’s financial statements. The regulations require the Company to meet specific capital
adequacy guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Company’s assets, liabilities and certain off-balance sheet items as
calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Company’s capital classification is also subject to qualitative judgments by
the regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and the Bank to maintain
minimum amounts and ratios of Tier I capital to total average assets (leverage ratio), and minimum ratios of Tier | and Total capital
to risk-weighted assets (as defined). To meet minimum, adequately capitalized regulatory requirements, an institution must maintain
a Tier [ capital ratio of 4.00%, a Total capital ratio of 8.00% and a leverage ratio of 4.00%. The minimum required ratios for well-
capitalized banks (under prompt corrective action provisions) are 6.00% for Tier | capital, 10.00% for Total capital and 5.00% for
the leverage ratio.
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The following tables show the capital amounts and ratios for the Company (on a consolidated basis) and the Bank, together
with the minimum and well-capitalized capital requirements, at the last two year ends.

Minimum Capital

Well-Capitalized Capital

Actual Requirement Requirement
(Dollars in thousands) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
December 31, 2613 .
Total Capital (to risk-weighted ass:ets): L
Commerce Bancshares, Inc. (consotidated) $2,239.636 15.28% §$1,172,843 2.00% N.A. N.A,
Commerce Bank : 1,971,850 13.55 1,164,469 8.00 31455586 10.00%
Tier 1 Capital (to risk-weighted assets):
Commerce Bancshares, Inc. (consoljdatéd) $2,061,761 14.06% §$ 586,421 4.00% N.A. N.A.
Commerce Bank 1,809,231 12.43 582,234 4.00 § 873,351 6.00%
Tier I Capital (to adjusted quarterly average assets):
{Leverage Ratio) : .
Commerce Bancshares, Inc. (consolidated} $2,061,761 943% § 874,673 4.00% N.A. N.A.
Commerce Bank 1,809,231 8.31 871,050 4.00 $1,088,812 5.00%
December 31, 2012
Total Capitat (to risk-weighted assets):
Commerce Bancshares, Inc. (consolidated) $2,092,141 1493% $1,121,252 8.00% N.A. N.A.
Commerce Bank 1,887,251 13.60 1,110,330 800  $1,387,912 10.00%
Tier I Capital {to risk-weighted assets):
Commerce Bancshares, Inc. (consolidated) $1,906,203 13.60% §$ 560,626 4.00% N.A. N.A,
Commerce Bank 1,713,752 12.35 555,165 400 § 832,747 6.00%
Tier 1 Capital (to adjusted quarterly average assets):
(Leverage Ratio)
Commerce Bancshares, Inc. {consolidated} $1,906,203 9.14% § 834,171 4.00% N.A. N.A,
Commerce Bank J 1,713,752 8.26 829,711 4.00 $1,037,139 5.00%

At December 31,2013, the Company met all capital requirements to which it is subject, and the Bank’s capital position exceeded

the regulatory definition of well-capitalized.
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16. Fair Value Measurements

The Company uses fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain financial and nonfinancial assets and
liabilities and to determine fair value disclosures. Various financial instruments such as available for sale and trading sccurities,
certain non-marketable securities relating to private equity activities, and derivatives are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis.
Additionally, from time to time, the Company may be required to record at fair value other assets and liabilities on a nonrecurring
basis, such as loans held for sale, mortgage servicing rights and certain other investment securities. These nonrecurring fair value
adjustments typically involve lower of cost or fair value accounting, or write-downs of individual assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. Depending, on the nature of the asset or liability, the Company uses various valuation )
techniques and assumptions when estimating fair value. For accounting disclosure purposes, a three-level valuation hlerarchy of
fair value measurements has been established. The valuation hierarchy is based upon the transparency of i inputs to ‘the valuatlon
of an asset or liability as of the measurement date. The three levels are defined a follows:

*  Level I —inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.

*  Level 2 - inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets,
quoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not active, and inputs that are observable for
the assets or liabilities, either directly or indirectly (such as interest rates, yield curves, and prepayment speeds).

*  Level 3 — inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value. These may be internally
developed, using the Company’s best information and assumptions that a market participant would consider.

When determining the fair value measurements for assets and liabilities required or permitted to be recorded or disclosed at
fair value, the Company considers the principal or most advantageous market in which it would transact and considers assumptlons
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability. When possible, the Company looks to active and observable
markets to price identical assets or liabilities. When identical assets and liabilities are not traded in active markets, the Company
tooks to observable market data for similar assets and liabilities. Nevertheless, certain assets and liabilities are not actively traded
in observable markets, and the Company must use alternative valuation techniques to derive an estimated fair value measurement.



The table below presents the caWing values of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December
31,2013 and 2012. There were no transfers among levels during these years.

Instruments Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis
|

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices in Significant
' Ag:_v[iigﬁ ?{;ﬁls Significant Other  Unobservable
Assets Observable Inputs Inputs
(In thousands) ' Total Fair Value {Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
December 31, 2013 ;
Assets:
Available for sale securities:
U.S. government and federal agency obligations ) 505,696 § 505,696 $ — 3 —
Government-sponsored enterprise obligations 741,766 — 741,766 —
State and municipal obligations 1,619,171 —_ 1,491,447 127,724
Agency mortgage-backed securitig‘zs 2,772,338 — 2,772,338 —
Non-agency mortgage-backed securities 246,983 — 246,983 —
Asset-backed securities 2,844,071 — 2,844,071 —
Qther debt securities 141,757 — 141,757 —
Equity securities 43,898 24,646 19,252 —
Trading securities 19,993 — 19,993 —
Private equity investments 56,612 — — 56,612
Derivatives * 12,980 —_ 12,976 4
Assets held in trust 7.511 7,511 — —
Total assets 9,012,776 537,853 8,290,583 184,340
Liabilities:
Derivatives * 13,329 — 13,260 69
Total liabilities 3 13,329 $ — 3 13,260 § 69
December 31, 2012
Assets:
Available for sale securities:
U.S. government and federal agt’;ncy obligations 3 438,759 $ 438,759 3 — 5 —
Government-sponsored enterprisl)e obligations 471,574 — 471,574 —
State and municipal obligations - 1,615,707 — 1,489,293 126,414
Agency mortgage-backed securities 3,380,955 — 3,380,955 —
Non-agency mortgage-backed securities 237,011 — 237,011 —
Asset-backed securities ' 3,167,394 — 3,167,394 —
Other debt securities . 177,752 — 177,752 —
Equity securities " 33,096 17,835 15,261 —
Trading securities . 28,837 — 28,837 —
Private equity investments 68,167 — — 68,167
Derivatives * 16,740 — 16,731 9
Assets held in trust 5,440 5,440 — —
Total assets 9,641,432 462,034 8,984,808 194,590
Liabilities:
Derivatives * 17,718 — 17,522 196
Total liabilities $ 17,718 3 — 35 17,522 § 196

* The fair value of each class of derivative is shown in Note 18,
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Valuation methods for instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Following is a description of the Company’s valuation methodologies used for instruments measured at fair value on a recurring
basis:

Available for sale investment securities

For available for sale securities, changes in fair value, including that portion of other-than-temporary impairment unrelated to
credit toss, are recorded in other comprehensive income. As mentioned in Note 4 on Investment Securities, the Company records
the credit-related portion of other-than-temporary impairment in current earnings. This portfolio comprises the majority of the
assets which the Company records at fair value. Most of the portfolio, which includes government-sponsored enterprise, mortgage-
backed and asset-backed securities, are priced utilizing industry-standard models that consider various assumptions, including
time value, yield curves, volatility factors, prepayment speeds, default rates, loss severity, current market and contractual prices
for the underlying financial instruments, as well as other relevant economic measures. Substantially all of these assumptions are
observable in the marketplace, can be derived from observable data, or are supported by observable levels at which transactions
are executed in the marketplace. These measurements are classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. Where quoted prices
are available in an active market, the measurements are classified as Level 1. Most of the Level 1 measurements apply to equity
securities and U.S. Treasury obligations.

The fair values of Level 1 and 2 securities (excluding equity securities) in the available for sale portfolio are prices provided
by a third-party pricing service. The prices provided by the third-party pricing service are based on observable market inputs, as
described in the sections below. On a quarterly basis, the Company compares a sample of these prices to other independent sources
for the same and similar securities. Variances are analyzed, and, if appropriate, additional research is conducted with the third-
party pricing service. Based on this research, the pricing service may affirm or revise its quoted price. No significant adjustments
have been made to the prices provided by the pricing service. The pricing service also provides documentation on an ongoing
basis that includes reference data, inputs and methodology by asset class, which is reviewed to ensure that security placement
within the fair value hierarchy is appropriate,

Valuation methads and inputs, by class of security:

+  US. government and federal agency obligations

U.S. treasury bills, bonds and notes, including intlation-protected securities, are valued using live data from active market
makers and inter-dealer brokers. Valuations for stripped coupon and principal issues are derived from yield curves generated
from various dealer contacts and live data sources.

= Government-sponsored enterprise obligations

Government-sponsored enterprise obligations are evaluated using cash flow valuation models. Inputs used are live market
data, cash settlements, Treasury market yields, and floating rate indices such as LIBOR, CMT, and Prime.

»  State and municipal obligations, excluding auction rate securities

A yield curve is generated and applied to bond sectors, and individual bond valuations are extrapolated. Inputs used to
generate the yield curve are bellwether issue levels, established trading spreads between similar issuers or credits, historical
trading spreads over widely accepted market benchmarks, new issue scales, and verified bid information. Bid information
is verified by corroborating the data against external sources such as broker-dealers, trustees/paying agents, issuers, or
non-affiliated bondholders.

»  Mortgage and asset-backed securities

Collateralized mortgage obligations and other asset-backed securities are valued at the tranche level. For each tranche
valuation, the process generates predicted cash flows for the tranche, applies a market based (or benchmark) yield/spread
for each tranche, and incorporates deal collateral performance and tranche level attributes to determine tranche-specific
spreads to adjust the benchmark yield. Tranche cash flows are generated from new deal files and prepayment/default
assumptions. Tranche spreads are based on tranche characteristics such as average life, type, volatility, ratings, underlying
collateral and performance, and prevailing market conditions. The appropriate tranche spread is applied to the corresponding
benchmark, and the resulting value is used to discount the cash flows to generate an evaluated price.

Valuation of agency pass-through securities, typically issued under GNMA, FNMA, FHLMC, and SBA programs, are
primarily derived from information from the To Be Announced (TBA) market. This market consists of generic mortgage
pools which have not been received for settlement. Snapshots of the TBA market, using live data feeds distributed by
multiple electronic platforms, are used in conjunction with other indices to compute a price based on discounted cash flow
models,
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o (Other debt securities

Other debt securities are valued using active markets and inter-dealer brokers as well as bullet spread scales and option
adjusted spreads. The spreads and models use yield curves, terms and conditions of the bonds, and any special features
(e.g., call or put options and redemption features),

*  Equity securities

Equity securities are priced using the market prices for each security from the major stock exchanges or other electronic
quotation systems. These are generally classified as Level 1 measurements. Stocks which trade infrequently are classified
as Level 2.

The available for sale portfolio includes certain auction rate securities. The auction process by which the auction rate securities
are normally priced has not functioned in recent years, and due to the illiquidity in the market, the fair value of these securities
cannot be based on observable market prices. The fair values of these securities are estimated using a discounted cash flows
analysis which is discussed more fully in the Level 3 Inputs section of this note. Because many of the inputs significant to the
measurement are not observable, these measurements are classified as Level 3 measurements.

Trading securities

The securities in the Company’s trading portfolio are priced by averaging several broker quotes for similar instruments and
are classified as Level 2 measurements.

Private equity investments

These securities are held by the Company’s private equity subsidiaries and are included in non-marketable investment securities
in the consolidated balance sheets. Due to the absence of quoted market prices, valuation of these nonpublic investments requires
significant management judgment. These fair value measurements, which are discussed in the Level 3 Inputs section of this note,
are classified as Level 3.

Derivatives

The Company’s derivative instruments include interest rate swaps, foreign exchange forward contracts, commitments and sales
contracts related to personal mortgage loan origination activity, and certain credit risk guarantee agreements. When appropriate,
the impact of credit standing as well as any potential credit enhancements, such as collateral, has been considered in the fair value
measurement.

»  Valuations for interest rate swaps are derived from a proprietary model whose significant inputs are readily observable
market parameters, primarily yield curves used to calculate current exposure. Counterparty credit risk is incorporated into
the mode! and calculated by applying a net credit spread over LIBOR to the swap's total expected exposure over time.
The net credit spread is comprised of spreads for both the Company and its counterparty, derived from probability of
default and other loss estimate information obtained from a third party credit data provider or from the Company's Credit
Department when not otherwise available. The credit risk component is not significant compared to the overall fair value
of the swaps. The results of the model are constantly validated through comparison to active trading in the marketplace.
These fair value measurements are classified as Level 2.

= Fair value measurements for foreign exchange centracts are derived from a model whose primary inputs are quotations
from global market makers and are classified as Level 2.

*  The fair values of mortgage loan commitments and forward sales contracts on the associated loans are based on quoted
prices for sirnilar loans in the secondary market. These prices include the value of loan servicing rights. However, these
prices are adjusted by a factor which considers the likelihood that a commitment will ultimately result in a closed loan.
This estimate is based on the Company’s historical data and its judgment about future economic trends. Based on the
unobservable nature of Ithis adjustment, these measurements are classified as Level 3.

+  The Company’s contracts related to credit risk guarantees are valued under a proprietary model which uses unobservable
inputs and assumptions about the creditworthiness of the counterparty (generally a Bank customer). Customer credit
spreads, which are based on probability of default and other loss estimates, are calculated internally by the Company's
Credit Department, as mentioned above, and are based on the Company's internal risk rating for each customer. Because
these inputs are significant to the measurements, they are classified as Level 3.
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. Assets held in trust .

‘Assets held in‘an otside trust for the Company’s deferred compensation plan consist of investments in mutual funds. The fair
value measurements are based on quoted prices in active markets and classified as Level 1. The Company has recorded an asset

representing the total.investment amount. The Company has also recorded a corresponding nonﬁnanc1a1 llablhty, representmg the
Company’s llablllty to the pian participants.

P oo

"

The changes in Level 3 assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis are summarized as follows:

. "7 Fair Value Measurements Using Significant Unobservable Inputs
; : . (Level 3)
: ! State and
Municipal .Private Equity )
(In thousands) . Obligations Investments Derivatives “Total
Year ended December 3I 2013:
Balance at Januvary 1, 2013 $ 126,414 § 68,167 3 (187) 8 194,394
Total gains or losses (reahzed/unreahzed)
Included in eamings ' L — @ B4 @M
" Included in other comprehenﬁive income 3,253 e ': = — 3,253
Investment securities called (2,150) o — (2,150)
Discount accretion 207 — — 207
Purchases of private equity securities — 3,950 — 3,950
1 Sa!e / paydown (_)f private equity securities — (12,865) — (12,84_55)
Capitalized interest/dividends . — 331 — kK] |
Sale of risk participation agreement S = = 12y (112)
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 127,724 $ ° 56,612 $ (65)'s 184,271
Total gains or losses for the annual period included in earnings
] attributable to the change in unrealized gains or losses relating to . o T . :
assets still held at December 31, 2013 $ — 3 (5,297) § 234 § (5,063)
Year ended December 31, 2012: . o ) S
"Balance at January 1, 2012 - : . $. 135,621 § - 66,978 ‘3 (123) % 202,476
Total gains or losses (realized/unrealized): P
] Included in camings ' - ' — 4305 6 452
Included in other comprehensive i income e (1,368) . - = {1,368)
Investment securities called . (8,27‘5) — ‘ — , ‘ (8,275)
Discount accretion Lo ) 436 — _— 436
Purchases of private.equity sécurities — 8,910 — 8,910
Sale / paydown of private equity securmes : — (12,751) — © (12,751
{ Capitalized interest/dividends . — 525 — 525
Purchase of risk participation agreement . ( ' — . — 28 28
Sale of risk participation agreement — — {108) (108)
Balance at December 31, 2012 . $ 126,414 § 68,167 $ (187)% 194,304

Total gains or losses for the annual period included in earnings AR . .
attributable to the change in unreallzed gains or losses relating to . .
assets still held at December 31,2012° $ ' —'5 3,080 3 (21) $ 3,059
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Gains and losses on the Level 3 assets and liabilities in the table above are reported in the following income categories:

N

Investment® *~
R Loan Fees and Other Non- Securities Gains -

{In rhousands) , Sales Interest Income {Losses),Net , .  Total
Year ended December 31, 20]3 _ ) ‘ .
Total gains or losses included in earnings 3 — § 234 § 2971) $ (2,737)
Change in unrealized gains or losses relating to assets still held at

December 31, 2013 $ — 3 234 § 5291 % (5,063)
Year ended December 31, 2012: - : -
Total gains or losses included in earnings - - . $ s -25 § - 4505 % 4,521
Change in unrealized gains or losses relatmg to assets stilt held at

December 31, 2012 b — 3 203 3,080 $ 3,059

Level 3 Inputs o i

As shown above, the Company's significant Level 3 measurements which employ unobservable inputs that are readily
quantifiable pertain to auction rate securities (ARS) held by the Bank and investments in portfolio concerns held by the Company's
private equity subsidiaries. ARS'are included in state and municipal securities and totated $127.7 million at December 31, 2013,
while private equity investments, included in non-marketable securities, totaled $56.6 million. .

Information about these inputs is presented in the table and discussions below.

Quantitative Information about Level 3 Fair Value Measurements

Valuation Technique Unobservable Input . Range
Auction rate securities Discounted cash flow ~ ..° ~  Estimated market recovery period . 4 - 5years
Estimated market rate 1.9% - 4.1%
Private equity investments Market comparable companies EBITDA multiple 40 - 55

The fair values of ARS are estlmated using a discounted cash flows analysis in which estimated cash flows are based on
mandatory interest rates paid under fallmg auctions and projected over an estimated market recovery period. Under normal
conditions, ARS traded in weekly auctions and were considered liquid investments. The Company's estimate of when these
auctions might resurne is highly judgmental and subject to variation depending on current and projected market conditions. Few
auctions of these securities have been held since 2008, and most sales have been privately arranged. Estimated cash flows during
the period over which the Company expects to hold the securities are discounted at an estimated market rate. These securities are
comprised of bonds issued by various states and municipalities for healthcare and student lending purposes, and market rates are
derived for each type. Market rates are calculated at each valuation date using a LIBOR or Treasury based rate plus spreads
representing adjustments for liquidity premium and nonperformance risk. The spreads are developed internally by employees in
the Company's bond department. An increase in the holding period alone would result in a higher fair value measurement, while
an increase in the estimated market rate (the discount rate) alone would result in a lower fair value measurement. The valuation
of the ARS portfolio is reviewed on a quarterly basis by the Company's chief investment officers. ‘

The fair values of the Company’s private equity investments are based on a determination of fair value of the investee company
less preference payments assuming the sale of the investee company. Investee companies are normally non-public entities. The
fair value of the investee company is determined by reference to the investee's total earnings before interest, depreciation/
amortization, and income taxes (EBITDA) multiplied by an EBITDA factor. EBITDA is normally determined based on a trailing
prior period adjusted for specific factors including cufrent economic outlook, investee management, and specific unique
circumstances such as sales order information, major customer status, regulatory changes, etc. The EBITDA multiple is based on
management's review of published trading multiples for recent private equity transactions and other judgments and is derived for
each individual investee, The fair value of the Company's investment (which is usually a partial interest in the investee company)
is then calculated based on its ownership percentage in the investee company. On a quarterly basis, these fair value analyses are
reviewed by a valuation committee consisting of investment managers and senior Company management.
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Instruments Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis

For assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis during 2013 and 2012, and still held as of December 31, 2013 and
2012 the following table provides the adjustments to fair valué recognized durlng the respective periods, the level of valuation
assumplmns used to determine each adjustment, and lhe carrying value of lhe related individual assets or portfolios at December

31, 20]3 and 2012.

. . -4
. . .o

SRS Fair Value Measurements Using

! v Quoted Prices in

; Significant
. - Active Market, g
f(':o]r‘leden?i::ai s gnificant Other  Unobservable

. Assets Observable Inputs Inputs Total Gains

{In thousands) Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) (Losses)

Balance at Becember 31,2013 -

Collateral dependent impaired loans . $ 236548 0 — 8 . — 8§ 236548 (8,406)
Private equity investments . . 500 " R . — 500 (500}
Mortgage servicing rights - 779 oy — Coont — 779 309
Foreclosed assets  *'+ 41,287 e — - 1,287 (430)

Balance at December 31, 2012 _ )

" Collateral dependent impaired loans $ uszs s — 3 24,572 $ (8411)
Mortgage servicing rights 472 — — 472 34
Foreclosed assets 297 — — 297 (170)
Long-lived assets | o . 5,617 — — 5,617 (3,428)

B i S . .
Valuanon methods for mstruments measured at fair value on a nonrecurrmg basis "
Fol]owmg 15 a descrlptlon of the Company’s valuation methodolog:es used for other financial and nonfinancial instruments
measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis.
.

Collateral dependent impaired loans

While the overall loan portfolio is not carried at fair value, the Company periodically records nonrecurring adjustments to the
carrying value of loans based on fair value measurements for partial charge-offs of the uncollectible portions of those loans.
Nonrecurring adjustments also include certain impairment amounts for collateral dependent loans when establishing the allowance
for loan losses. Such amounts are generally based on the fair value of the underlymg collateral supporting the loan. In determining
the value of real estate collateral, the Company relies on extemal and internal'appraisals of property values depending on the size
and complexxty of the real estate collateral! Thé Company maintains a staff of qualified appraisers who also review third party
appraisal repotts for reasonableness. In the case of non-real estatc collateral, reliance is placed on a variety of sources, including
external estimates of value and judgments baséd on the experience and expertise of internal specialists. Values of all loan collateral
are regularly reviewed by credit administration. Unobservable inputs to these measurements, which include estimates and
judgments often used in conjunction with appraisals, are not readily quantifiable. These measurements are classified as Level 3.
Changes in fair value recognized for partial charge-offs of loans and loan impairment reserves on loans held by the Company at
December 31, 2013 and 2012 are shown in the table above. :

.

Lox-zn.s-held for sale . .. R

" Loans held for sale are’carried at the lower of cost or fair value. In recent periods, this portfolio consisted of student loans.
Most of the portfolio was under contract to an agency which was unable to con51stently purchase loans under existing contractual
terms. Such loans were evaluated using a fair value measurement method based on a discounted cash flows analysis, which was
classified as Level 3.
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Private equity investments and restricted stock

These assets are included in non-marketable investment securities in the consolidated balance sheets. They include certain
investments in private equity concerns held by the Parent company which are carried at cost, reduced by other-than-temporary
impairment. These investments are periodically evaluated for impairment based on their estimated fair value as determined by
review of available information, most of which is provided as monthly or quarterly internal financial statements, annual audited
financial statements, investee tax returns, and in certain situations, through research into and analysis of the assets and investments
held by those private equity concerns. Restricted stock consists of stock issued by the Federal Reserve Bank and FHLB which
is held by the bank subsidiary as required for regulatory purposes. Generally, there are restrictions on the sale and/or liquidation
of these investments, and they are carried at cost, reduced by other-than-temporary impairment. Fair value measurements for
these securities are classified as Level 3.

Mortgage servicing rights

The Company initially measures its mortgage servicing rights at fair value and amortizes them over the period of estimated
net servicing income. They are periodically assessed for impairment based on fair value at the reporting date. Mortgage servicing
rights do not trade in an active market with readily observable prices. Accordingly, the fair value is estimated based on a valuation
model which calculates the present value of estimated future net servicing income. The model incorporates assumptions that
market participants use in estimating future net servicing income, including estimates of prepayment speeds, market discount
rates, cost to service, float earnings rates, and other ancillary income, including late fees. The fair value measurements are classified
as Level 3.

Goodwill and core deposit premium

Valuation of goodwill to determine impairment is performed on an annual basis, or more frequently if there is an event or
circumstance that would indicate impairment may have occurred. The process invelves calculations to determine the fair value
of each reporting unit on a stand-alone basis. A combination of formulas using current market multiples, based on recent sales of
financial institutions within the Company’s geographic marketplace, is used to estimate the fair value of each reporting unit. That
fair value is compared to the carrying amount of the reporting unit, including its recorded goodwill. Impairment is considered to
have occurred if the fair value of the reporting unit is lower than the carrying amount of the reporting unit. The fair value of the
Company’s common stock relative to its computed book value per share is also considered as part of the overall evaluation. These
measurements are classified as Level 3.

Core deposit premiums are recognized at the time a portfolio of deposits is acquired, using valuation techniques which calculate
the present value of the estimatéd net cost savings attributable to the core deposit base, relative to alternative costs of funds and
tax benefits, if applicable, over the expected remaining economic life of the depositors. Subsequent evaluations are made when
facts or circumstances indicate potential impairment may have occurred. The Company uses estimates of discounted future cash
flows, comparisons with alternative sources for deposits, consideration of income potential generated in other product lines by
current customers, geographic parameters, and other demographics to estimate a current fair value of a specific deposit base. If
the calculated fair value is less than the carrying value, impairment is considered to have occurred. This measurement is classified
as Level 3.

i

Foreclosed assets

Foreclosed assets consist of loan collateral which has been repossessed through forecltosure. This collateral is comprised of
commercial and residential real estate and other non-real estate property, including auto, marine and recreational vehicles.
Foreclosed assets are recorded as held for sale initially at the lower of the loan balance or fair value of the collateral less estimated
selling costs. Subsequent to foreclosure, valuations are updated periodically, and the assets may be marked down further, reflecting
a new cost basis. Fair value measurements may be based upon appraisals, third-party price opinions, or internally developed
pricing methods. These measurements are classified as Level 3. '
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Long-lived assets

In accordance with ASC 360-10-335, investments in branch facilities and various office buildings are written down to estimated
fair value, or estimated fair value less cost to seli if the property is held for sale, Fair value is estimated in a process which considers
current local commercial real estate market conditions and the judgment of the sales agent and often involves obtaining third party
appraisals from certified real estate appraisers. The carrying amounts of these real estate holdings are regularly monitored by real
estate professionals employed by the Company, These fair value measurements are classified as Level 3. Unobservable inputs to
these measurements, which include estimates and judgments often used in conjunction with appraisals, are not readily quantifiable.
The loss recognized in 2012 resulted primarily from the Company's decision to market certain property adjacent to a2 downtown
Kansas City office building, also held for sale, which required a write-down to fair value less selling costs.

17. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of financial instruments held by the Company, in addition to a discussion of
the methods used and assumptions made in computing those estimates, are set forth below.

Loans

The fair values of loans are estimated by discounting the expected future cash flows using the current rates at which similar
loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining maturities. This method of estimating
fair value does not incorporate the exit-price concept of fair value prescribed by ASC 820 “Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosures”. Expected future cash flows for each individual loan are based on contractual features, and for loans with optionality,
such as variable rates and prepayment features, are based on a multi-rate path process. Each loan's expected future cash flows are
discounted using the LIBOR/swap curve plus an appropriate spread. For business, construction and business real estate loans,
internally-developed pricing spreads are developed which are based on loan type, term and credit score. The spread for personal
real estate loans is generally based on newly originated loans with similar characteristics. For consumer loans, the spread is
calculated at loan origination as part of the Bank's funds transfer pricing process, which is indicative of individual borrower

creditworthiness. All consumer credit card loans are discounted at the same spread, depending on whether the rate is variable or
fixed.

Loans Held for Sale, Investment Securities and Derivative Instruments

Detailed descriptions of the fair value measurements of these instruments are provided in Note 16 on Fair Value Measurements.

1

Federal Funds Purchased and Sold, Interest Earning Deposits With Banks and Cash and Due From Banks

The carrying amounts of federal funds purchased and sold, interest earning deposits with banks, and cash and due from banks
approximates fair value, as these instruments are payable on demand or mature overnight.

Securities Purchased/Sold under Agreements to Resell/Repurchase

The fair values of these investments and borrowings are estimated by discounting contractual maturities using an estimate of
the current market rate for similar instruments.

Deposits

The fair value of deposits with no stated maturity is equal to the amount payable on demand. Such deposits include savings
and interest and non-interest bearing demand deposits. These fair value estimates do not recognize any benefit the Company
receives as a result of being able to administer, or control, the pricing of these accounts. Because they are payable on demand,
they are classified as Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value of time open and certificates of deposit is based on the
discounted value of cash flows, taking early withdrawal optionality into account. Discount rates are based on the Company’s
approximate cost of obtaining similar maturity funding in the market. Their fair value measurement is classified as Level 3.

Other Borrowings

The fair value of other borrowings, which consists mainly of long-term debt, is estimated by discounting contractual maturities

using an estimate of the current market rate for similar instruments.
1Y
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The estimated fair values of the Company’'s financial instruments are as follows:

' Fair Value 2013 2012
" Hierarchy Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
{In thousands) Level Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Financial Assets
"Loans:
Business B Level 3§ 3,715,319 § 3,723,263 $ 3,134,801 $ 3,144,989
Real estate - construction and’ land Leveld 406,197 410,022 355,996 352,547
Real estate - business ' Level 3 2,313,550 2,345,124 2,214,975 2,240,796
Real estate - personal Level 3 1,787,626 1,802,364 1,584,859 1,642,820
Consumer Level 3 1,512,716 1,519,830 1,289,650 1,309,403
Revolving home equity Level 3 420,589 424,811 437,567 441,651
Consumer credit card Level 3 796,228 811,550 804,245 823,560
Overdrafis Level 3 4,611 4,611 9,201 9,291
Loans held for sale Level 2 — — 3,017 3,030
Loans held for sale Level 3 — — 5,810 5,810
Investment securities: : 1. .
Available for sale Level 1 530,342 530,342 456,594 456,594
Available for sale Level 2 8,257,614 8,257,614 8,939,240 8,939,240
Available for sale Level 3 127,724' 127,724 126,414 126414
Trading ) Level 2 19,993 19,993 28,837 28,837
Non-marketable Level 3 107,324 107,324 118,650 118,650
Federal funds sold Level 1 43,845 43,845 27,595 27,595
Securities purchased under agreements to resell Level 3 1,150,000 1,149,625 1,200,000 1,215,234
Interest eaming deposits with banks Level 1 707,249 707,249 179,164 179,164
Cash and due from banks Level 1 Si8,420 518,420 573,066 573,066
Derivative instruments Level 2 - 12,976 T 12,976 16,731 16,731
Derivative instruments Level 3 4 4 9 9
Financial Liabilities
Non-interest bearing deposits Level 1 % 6,750,674 $ 6,750,674 $ 6,299,903 § 6,299,903
Savings, interest checking and money market deposits - Level 1 10,108,236 10,108,236 9,817,943 9,817,943
Time open and certificates of deposit Level 3 2,188,438 2,190,610 2,230,807 2,239,595
Federal funds purchased Level 1 24,795 24,795 24,510 24,510
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase Level 3 1,321,763 1,321,633 1,059,040 1,057,462
Other borrowings Level 3 107,310 116,843 103,710 117,527
Derivative instruments Level 2 13,260 13,260 17,522 17,522
Level 3 69 69 196

Derivative instruments

196

Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments

The fair value of letters of credit and commitments to extend credit is based on the fees currently charged to enter into similar
agreements. The aggregate of these fees is not material. These instrument

Contingencies and Guarantees. -

Limitations

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on relevant market information. They do not reflect any premium
or discount that could result from offering for sale at one time the Company’s entire holdings of a particular financial instrument.
Because no market exists for many of the Company’s financial instruments, fair value estimates are based on judgments regarding
future expected loss experience, risk characteristics and economic conditions. These estimates are subjective, involve uncertainties

and cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.
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18. Derivative Instruments

The notional amounts of the Company’s derivative instruments are shown in the table below. These contractual amounts,
along with other terms of the derivative, are used to determine amounts to be exchanged between counterparties and are not a
measure of loss exposure. The largest group of notional amounts relate to interest rate swaps, which are discussed in more detail
below. .

El

December 31
{In thousands) - o 2013 . 2012
Interest rate swaps ’ $’ 596,933 $ 435,542
Interest rate caps - 9,736 27,736
Credit risk participation agreements _ 52,456 43,243
Foreign exchange contracts _ 81,207 47,897
Total notional amount ) , $ 740,332 § 554418

The Company’s foreign exchange activity involves the purchase and sale of forward foreign exchange contracts; which are
commitments to purchase or deliver a specified amount of foreign currency at a specific future date. This activity enables customers
involved in international business to hedge their exposure to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations. The Company minimizes
its related exposure arising from these customer transactions with offsetting contracts for the same currency and time frame. In
addition, the Company uses foreign exchange contracts, to a limited extent, for trading purposes, including taking proprietary
positions. Risk arises from changes in the currency exchange rate and from the potential for counterparty nonperformance. These
risks are controlled by adherence to a foreign exchange trading policy which contains control limits on currency amounts, open
positions, maturities and losses, and procedures for approvals, record-keeping, monitoring and reporting. Hedge accounting has
not been applied to these foreign exchange activities.. .

The Company’s mortgage banking operation makes commitments to extend fixed rate loans secured by 1-4 family residential
properties. The Company’s general practice in previous years was to sell such loans in the secondary market. The related
commitments were considered to be derivative instruments. These commitments were recognized on the balance sheet at fair value
from their inception through their expiration or funding and had an average term of 60 to 90 days. The Company obtained forward
sale contracts with investors in the secondary market in order to manage these risk positions. Most of the contracts were matched
to a specific loan on a “best efforts” basis, in which the Company was obligated to deliver the loan only if the loan closed. The
sale contracts were also accounted for as derivatives. Hedge accounting was not applied to these activities. In late 2011, the
Company curtailed the sales of these types of loans, and did not hold any such loans for sale at December 31, 2013 or December
31,2012,

Credit risk participation agreements arise when the Company contracts, as a guarantor or beneficiary, with other financial
institutions to share credit risk associated with certain interest rate swaps. The Company’s risks and responsibilities as guarantor
are further discussed in Note 20 on Commitments, Contingencies and Guarantees.

The Company’s interest rate risk management strategy includes the ability to modify the repricing characteristics of certain
assets and liabilities so that changes in interest rates do not adversely affect the net interest margin and cash flows. Interest rate
swaps are used on a limited basis as part of this strategy. At December 31, 2013, the Company had entered into two interest rate
swaps with a notional amount of $12.2 million, which are designated as fair value hedges of certain fixed rate loans. Gains and
losses on these derivative instruments, as well as the offsetting loss or gain on the hedged loans attributable to the hedged risk,
are recognized in current earnings. These gains and losses are reported in interest and fees on loans in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income. The table below shows gains and losses related to fair value hedges.

For the Years
Ended December 31
(In thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Gain on interest rate swaps $ 422 $ 331 § 106
Loss on loans (408) (324) (95)
Amount of hedge ineffectiveness $ 14 b3 7 § 1

The Company’s other derivative instruments are accounted for as free-standing derivatives, and changes in their fair value are
recorded in current earnings. These instruments include interest rate swap contracts sold to commercial customers who wish to
modify their interest rate sensitivity. These swaps are offset by matching contracts purchased by the Company from other financial
dealer institutions. Contracts with dealers that require central clearing (generally, transactions occurring after June 10, 2013) are
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novated to a clearing agency who becomes the Company's counterparty. Because of the matching terms of the offsetting contracts,
in addition to collateral provisions which mitigate the impact of non-performance risk, changes in fair value subsequent to initial
recognition have a minimal effect on eamings. The notional amount of these free-standing swaps at December 31, 2013 was
$584.8 million. '

Many of the Company’s interest rate swap arrangements with large financial institutions contain contingent features relating
to debt ratings or capitalization levels. Under these provisions, if the Company’s debt rating falls below investment grade or if
the Company ceases to be “well-capitalized” under risk-based capital guidelines, certain counterparties can require immediate
and ongoing collateralization on-interest rate swaps in net liability positions, or can require instant settiement of the contracts.
The Company maintains debt ratings and capital well above these minimum requirements.

The banking customer counterparties are engaged in a variety of businesses, including real estate, building matenals,
comtnunications, consumer products, education, and manufacturing, At December 31, 2013, the largest loss exposures were in
the groups related to education, real estate and building materials, and manufacturing. If the counterparties in these groups failed
to perform, and if the underlying collateral proved to be of no value, the Company would incur losses of $2.4 million (real estate
and building matertals), $2.4 million (education), and $1.5 million (manufacturing), based on estimated amounts at December 31,
2013, .- :

The fair values of the Company’s derivative instruments are shown in the table below. Information about the valuation methods
used to measure fair value is provided in Note 16 on Fair Value Measurements. Derivatives instruments with a positive fair value
(asset derivatives) are reported in other assets in the consolidated balance sheets while derivative instruments with a negative fair
value (liability derivatives) are reported in other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets.

Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives

December 31 December 31
2013 . 2012 . 20013 2012 )

(vIn thousands) . Fair Value K Fair Value
Derivatives designated as

hedging instruments:
Interest rate swaps b — % — b 300y 8§ (723)
Total derivatives designated

as hedging instruments 3 — 8 — 8 @300 3 - {723)
Derivatives not'designated as

hedging instruments:
Interest rate swaps $ 11,428 b 16,334 $ (1429 3 (16,337)
Interest rate caps 1 : 1 I (N
Credit risk participation . ‘

agreements 4 9 (69) (196)
Foreign exchange contracts 1,547 396 (1,530) {461)
Total derivatives not : -

designated as hedging . ,

instruments s 12,980 % 16,740 8 (13,029 § (16,995}
Total derivatives $ 12980 § 16,740 $ (13329) § (17,718)

+
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The effects of derivative instruments on the consolidated statements of income are shown in the table below.

Location of Gain or (Loss) Recognized Amount of Gain or (Loss) Recognized in
in [ncome on Derivative , Income on Derivalive
o ) For the Years
.. . Ended December 31
(fn thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Derivatives in fair value hedging relationships: '
Interest rate swaps Lo ‘ Interest and fees on loans $ 422" 3 331 5 106
Total ' $ 422 R 331 3 106
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments; - | . '
[nterest rate swaps - Other non-interest income $ 1,140 3 743 $ . 797
Credit risk participation agreements . Other non-interest income 234 25 - 270
Foreign exchange contracls Other non-interest income 81 {161) : f‘_'.' (36)
Mortgage loan commitments Loan fees and sales — 20) (5
Mortgage loan forward sale contracts Loan fees and sales — 11 s +(422)
Total $ 1,455 $§ 598 - § - 558

19. Balance Sheet Offsetting o

The following tables show the extent to which assets and liabilitics relating to derivative instruments, s'ecnfritic;s purchased
under agreements 1o resell (resell agreements), and securities sold under agreements to repurchase (repurchase agreements) have
been offset in the consolidated balance sheets. They also provide information about these instruments which are subject to an
enforceable master netting arrangement, irrespective of whether they are offset, and the extent to which the instruments could
potentially be offset. Also shown is collateral received or pledged in the form of other finan¢ial instruments, which are generalty
marketable securities. The collateral amounts in these tables are limited to the outstanding balances of the related asset or liability
(after netting is applied); thus amounts of excess collateral are not shown. Most of the assets and liabilities in the following tables
were transacted under master netting arrangements that contain a conditional right of offset, such as close-out netting, upon default.

The Company is party to master netting arrangements with most of its swap‘derivative counterparties; however, the Company
does not offset derivative assets and liabilities under these arrangements on its consolidated balance sheet. Collateral, usually in
the form of marketable securities, is exchanged between the Company and dealer bank counterparties, and is generally subject to
threshelds and transfer minimums. By contract, it may be sold or re-pledged by the secured party until recalled at a subsequent
valuation date by the pledging party. For those swap transactions requiring central clearing, the Company posts cash and securities
to its clearing agency. At December 31, 2013, the Company had a net liability position with dealer bank and clearing agency
counterparties totaling $8.8 million, and had posted securities with a fair value of $1¢.2 million and cash totaling $1.8 million.
Collateral positions are valued daily, and adjustments to amounts received and pledged by the Company are made as appropnate
to maintain proper collateralization for these transactions. Swap derivative transactions with customers are- generally secured by
rights to non-financial collateral, such as real and personal property, which is not shown in the table below.

.t ]
v -3

Resell and repurchase agreements are agreements to purchase/sell securities subject to an obligation to resell/repurchase the
same or similar securities. They are accounted for as collateralized financing transactions, not as sales and purchases of the
securities portfolio. The securities collateral accepted or pledged in resell and repurchase agreements w1th other financial
institutions also may be sold or re-pledged by the secured party, but is usually delivered to and held by third party trustees. The
Company generally retains custody of securities pledged for repurchase agreements with customers.

The Company is party 1o several agreements commonly known as collateral swaps, These agreements involve the exchange
of collateral under simultaneous repurchase and resell agreements with the same financial institution counterparty. These repurchase
and resell agreements have the same principal amounts, inception dates, and maturity dates and have been offset against each other
in the balance sheet, as permitted under the netting provisions of ASC 210-20-45. The collateral swaps totaled $300.0 million at

both December 31, 2013 and December 31,2012, At December 31, 2013, the Company had posted collateral consisting of $311.0

million inagency mortgage-backed securities and accepted $331.3 million in investment grade asset-backed, commercial mortgage-
backed, and corporate bonds.
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Gross Amounts Not Offset in the
Balance Sheet

Financial Securities
Gross Amounts  Net Amounts Instruments Collateral
Gross Amount QOffsetinthe = Presented inthe  Available for Received/
{In thousands) Recognized Balance Sheet  Balance Sheet Offset Pledged Net Amount
December 31,2013
Assets: .
Derivatives subject to master netting :
agreements - 11,579 § — § _ 11,579 % (1,299} § (338) % 9,942
Derivatives not subject to master .
netting agreements 1,401 — 1,401
Total derivatives 12,980 — 12,980
Total resell agreements, subject to
master netting arrangements 1,450,000 (360,000) 1,150,000 — (1,150,000) —_
Liabilities: ‘
Derivatives subject to master netting
agreements 12,962 — 12,962 (1,299) (9,063) 2,600
Derivatives not subject to master ’
netting agreements 367 —_ 367
Total derivatives 13,329 — 13,329
Total repurchase agreements, subject to
master netting arrangements , 1,621,763 (300,0060) 1,321,763 — (1,321,763) —
December 31, 2012 '
Assets:
Derivatives subject to master netting
agreements 16,475 § — § 16475 § (603) § — $ 15,872
Derivatives not subject to master .
netting agreements ‘ 265 — 265
Total derivatives : 16,740 — 16,740
Total resell agreements, subject to’
master netting arrangements 1,500,000 (300,000) 1,200,000 — (1,200,000) —
Liabilities: '
Derivatives subject to master netting
agreements ' 17,315 — 17,315° (603) (]6,01'7)' 695
Derivatives not subject to master ,
netting agreements ' 403 - 403
Total derivatives . 17,718 — 17,718
Total repurchase agreements, subject to
master netting arrangements 1,359,040 {300,000} 1,059,040 — (1,059,040) —

20. Commitments, Conting'encies and Guarantees

The Company leases certain premises and equipment, all of which were classified as operating leases. The rent expense under
such arrangements amounted t6 $6.5 million, $6.9 million and $7.4 million in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. A summary of
minimum lease commitments follows:

1

(In thousands) Type of Property

Year Ended December 31 Real Property Equipment Total
2014 5 - 5811 § 39 % 5,850
2015 4,896 29 4,925
2016 4,033 26 4,059
2017 3,541 2 3,543
2018 ' 2,629 — 2,629
After 16,300 — 16,300

Total minimum lease payments 5 37,306
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All leases expire prior to 2051. It is expected that in the normal course of business, leases that expire will be renewed or replaced
by leases on other properties; thus, the future minimum lease commitments are not expected to be less than the amounts shown
for 2014, .

The Company engages in various transactions and commitments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business
to meet customer financing needs. The Company uses the same credit policies in making the commitments and conditional
obligations described below as it does for on-balance sheet instruments. The following table summarizes these commitments at
December 31: - .

(n thousands) : - L2013 2012

Commitments to extend credit: ‘ .
Credit card : . '$- 3,835323 % 3,878,468
Other ' - © 4,591,468 4,500,352
Standby letters of credit, net of participations " 325,623 . 359,765
Commercial letters of credit ' 11,77t 12,582

e e
Commitments to extend credit are legally binding agreements tolend to a borrower prov:dmg there are no vrolanons of any

conditions established in the contract. As many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total
commitment does not necessarily represent future cash requirements. Refer to Note 3 on Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses
for further discussion. . S g

Commercial letters of credit act as a means of ensuring payment to a seller upon shipment of goods to a buyer. . The majority
of commercial letters of credit issued are used to settle payments in international trade. Typically, letters of creditrequire presentation
of documents which describe the commercial transaction, evidence shipment, and transfer title. |

The Company, as a provider of financial services, routinely issues financial guarantees in the form of financial and performance
standby letters of credit. Standby letters of credit are contingent commitments issued by.the Company generally to guarantee the
payment or performance obligation of a customer to a third party. While these represent a potential outlay by the Company, a
significant amount of the commitments may expire without being drawn upon. The Company has recourse against the customer
for any amount it is required to pay to a third party under a standby letter of credit: The letters of credit are subject to the same
credit policies, underwriting standards and approval process as loans made by the Company. Most of the standby letters of credit
are secured, and in the event of nonperformance by the customer, the Company has rights to the underlying collateral, which could
include commercial real estate, physical plant and property, inventory, receivables, cash and marketable securities.

i

At December 31, 2013, the Company had recorded a liability in the amount of $3.8 mlllron representing the carrying value
of the guarantee obligations associated with the standby letters of credit. This amount will be accreted into income over the
remaining life of the respective commitments. Commitments outstanding under these letters of credit, which represent the maximum
potential future payments guaranteed by the Company, were $325 6 mrlhon at Décember 31, 2013

ETTRN . _‘ proe e

The Company regularly purchases various state tax credits arisihg from third-’party property redevelopment, These credits are
either resold to third parties or retained for use by the Company. During 2013, purchases and sales of tax credits amounted to
$65.1 million and $59.6 million, respectively. At December 31, 2013, the Company had outstanding purchase commitments
totaling $181.8 million. The commitments are expected to be funded in 2014 through '20](7.

The Company perlodlcal]y enters into risk participation agreements (RPAS) asa guarantor to other financial institutions, in
order to mitigate those institutions’ credit risk associated with intefest rate swaps with third " pames The RPA snpulatcs that, in
the event of default by the third party on the interest rate swap, the Company wiil reimburse a ‘portion of the loss borne by the
financial institution. These interest rate swaps are normally collateralized {generally with réal property, inventories and equipmert)
by the third party, which limits the credit risk associated with the Company’s RPAs. The third parties usually have other borrowing
relationships with the Company. The Company monitors overall borrower collateral, and at December 31, 2013, believes sufficient
collateral is available to cover potential swap losses. The RPAs are carried at fair value throughout their term, with all changes in
fair value, including those due to a change in the third party’s creditworthiness, recorded in current earnings. The terms of the
RPAs, which cormrespond to the terms of the underlying swaps, range from 3 to 10 years. At December 31, 2013, the fair value of
the Company’s guarantee liability RPAs was $69 thousand, and the notional amount of the underlying swaps was $50.1 million.
The maximum potential future payment guaranteed by the Company cannot be readlly estimated and is dependent upon the fair
value of the interest rate swaps at the time of default. -




In December 2013, the settlement of a multi-district interchange suit against Visa, MasterCard and credit-card issuing major
banks was approved in federal court. The settlement, as proposed in 2012, included a provision to reduce credit card interchange
income by 10 basis points over an eight month period. In 2012, the Company established a lability for the estimated cost of this
reduction in interchange income, which totaled $5.2 million. The Company's payments to Visa related to the reduction began in
September 2013 and totaled $2.3 million during 2013. The Company's adjusted remaining liability totaled $2.5 million at
December 31, 2013.

In December 2011, the Bank reached a class-wide settlement in a class action lawsuit captioned Wolfgeher v. Commerce Bank,
Case No. 1:10-cv-22017 (MDL 2036} which alleged that the Bank had improperly charged overdraft fees on certain debit card
transactions and claimed refunds for the plaintiff individually and on behalf of other customers as a class. The settlement provided
for a payment of $18.3 million, which was expensed by the Company in 2011, into a class settlement fund, the proceeds of which
have been used to issue refunds to class members and to pay attorneys' fees, administrative and other costs. The Bank also agreed
to post debit card transactions in chronological order, which was implemented on February 21, 2013. As a result of the change
in the posting order of debit card transactions, the Company currently estimates that overdraft income will be reduced on an annual
basis by $3.5 million to $5.5 million. A formal Settlement Agreement and Release related to this lawsuit was signed by the Bank
on July 26,2012, A second suit alleging the same facts and also seeking class-action status was filed on June 4, 2010 in Missouri
state court; however, the second suit was resolved by agreement on July 18, 2013 and was subsequently dismissed.

On January 4, 2013, the Company was named in a petition by Patrick J. Malloy TII, Bankruptcy Trustee for the Bankruptey
Estate of George David Gordon Jr. (“Gordon™), The petition was filed in the District Court in and for Tulsa County, State of
Oklahoma and removed to the United States District Court for the Northern District of Oklahoma, and subsequently remanded
back to the District Court on May 7, 2013. On May 10, 2013, the Company was served with an amended petition in the case. The
amended petition alleges that Gordon was invelved in securities fraud and that Bank South, an Oklahoma bank that was subsequently
acquired by the Company, together with a lending officer employed by Bank South, are jointly and severally liable, as aiders and
abettors of the fraudulent scheme, for losses suffered by defrauded investors. The losses suffered by investors who have assigned
their claims to the Trustee are alleged to be in excess of $9.0 million. The claim alleges that the Bank is liable as a successor by
merger to Bank South. Based on facts available to the Company and after discussion with outside counsel handling the matter,
the Company believes it has substantial defenses to this matter but has established a liability of $1.0 million. This matter will
continue to be evaluated on an ongoing basis.

The Company has various other lawsuits pending at December 31, 2013, arising in the normal course of business. While some
matters pending against the Company specify damages claimed by plaintifts, others do not seck a specified amount of damages
or are at very early stages of the legal process. The Company records a loss accrual for all legal matters for which it deems a loss
is probable and can be reasonably estimated. Some legal matters, which are at early stages in the legal process, have not yet
progressed to the point where a loss amount can be determined to be probable and estimable.

21. Related Parties

The Company’s Chief Executive Officer, its Vice Chairman, and its President are directors of Tower Properties Company
(Tower) and, together with memibers of their immediate families, beneficially own approximately 72% of the outstanding stock
of Tower. At December 31, 2013, Tower owned 222,663 shares of Company stock. Tower is primarily engaged in the business
of owning, developing, leasing and managing real property.

Payments from the Company and its affiliates to Tower are summarized below. During 2012 and 2011, the Company leased
several surface parking lots in downtown Kansas City, owned by Tower, for employee use. In the fourth quarter of 2012, the
Company purchased these lots from Tower for $7.1 million. Other payments, with the exception of dividend payments, relate to
property management services, including construction oversight, on four Company-owned office buildings and reiated parking
garages in downtown Kansas City.

(In thousards) 2013 2012 2011

Rent on leased parking lots $ — 5 294 3 353
Leasing agent fees i l 50 63 57
Operation of pa:kiné garages | ] 84 75 83
Building management fees . . 1,799 1,774 < 1,615
Property construction management fees -~ - 114 231 18
Dividends paid on Company stock held by Tower i 191 489 177
Total 5 2,238 % 2,926 § 2,403
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Tower has a $13.5 million line of credit with the Bank which is subject to normal credit terms and has a variable interest rate.
The maximum borrowings outstanding under this line during 2013 was $2.0 million, and there was no balance outstanding at
December 31,2013. The maximum borrowings outstanding during 2012 and 2011 were $5.0 million and $3.0 million, respectively,
and the balance outstanding at December 31, 2012 and 2011 was $2.0 million and zero, respectively. Interest of $12 thousand,
$51 thousand, and $22 thousand was paid during 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Letters of credit may be collateratized under
this line of credit; however, there were no letters of credit outstanding during 2013, 2012 or 2011, and thus, no fees were received
during these periods. From time to time, the Bank extends additicnal credit to Tower for construction and development projects.
No construction loans were outstanding during 2013, 2012 and 2011. '

Tower leases office space in the Kansas City bank headqﬁarters building owned by the Company. Rent paid to the Company

totaled $67 thousand in 2013, $66 thousand in 2012 and $75 thousand in 2011, at §14. 92 $15.08 and $15.67 per square foot,
respectlvely

Directors of the Company and their beneficial interests have deposit accounts with the Bank and may be provided with cash
management and other banking services, including loans, in the ordinary course of business. Such loans were made on substantially
the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other
unrelated persons and did not involve more than the normal risk of cotlectability.

As discussed in Note 20 on Commitments, Contmgenc1es and Guarantees, the Company regularly purchases various state tax
credits arising from third-party property redevelopment and reselis the credits to third parties. During 2013, the Company sold
state tax credits to its Chief Executive Officer, his father (a former Chief Executive Officer), its Vice Chairman, and a member of
its Board of Directors, in the amount of $846 thousand, $282 thousand, $456 thousand, and '$200 thousand, respectwely, for
personal tax'planning. During 2012 and 2011, the Company s Chief Executive Officer purchased 5tate tax credits of $465 thousand
and $1.0 million, respectively. In 2011, his father purchased state tax credits in the amount of $920 thousand. The terms of the

sales and the amounts pald were the same as the terms and amounts paid for similar tax credits by persons not related to the
Company.

-
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22, Parent Company Condensed Financial Statements

1 . . T,
Following are the condensed financial statements of Commerce Bancshares, Inc. (Parent only) for the periods indicated:

Condensed Balance Sheets

{In thousands)

December 31

2013

2012 i

Assets

Investment in consolidated subsidiaries:

Banks $ 1,952,179 § 1,983,751

Non-banks 63,134 61,217
Cash 53 58
Securities purchased under agreements to resell 142,650 67,675
Investment securities:

Available for sale 57,754 65,189 A

Non-marketable 3,326 4272
Advances to subsidiaries, net of borrowings 1,772 5,504
Income tax benefits 470 10,236
Other assets 15.201 13,051
Total assets $ 2,236,539 3§ 2,210,953
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Pension obligation ' $ 6,501 % 23,313
Other liabilities 19,396 20,513
Total liabilities 25,897 43,826
Stockholders’ equity 2,210,642 2,167,127
Total liabilities and stockholders® equity $ 2,236,539 § 2,210,953

Condensed Statements of Income

For the Years Ended December 31

(In thousands) 2013 2012 2011

Income

Dividends received from consolidated subsidiaries: 1
Banks 200,001 § 235,000 $ 180,001
Non-banks 390 —_ 115

Earnings of consolidated subsidiaries, net of dividends 62,815 34.467 74,260

Interest and dividends on investment securities 4,029 5,074 7,997

Management fees charged subsidiaries 20,701 23,658 19,318 !

Investment securities gains 1,294 346 —

Other 2,958 2,067 1,560

Total income 292,188 300,612 283,251

Expense '

Salaries and employee benefits 20,433 24,188 21,572

Professional fees 3,538 1,950 1,826 X

Data processing fees paid to affiliates 2,775 2,664 3,351

Indemnification obligation — — (4,432)

Other 10,236 7,582 5,975

Total expense 36,982 36,384 28,292

Income tax benefit (5,755) (5,101) (1,384)

Net income 260,961 $ 269,329 § 256,343 .
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‘Condensed Statements of Cash Flows . . o
For the Years Ended December 31

(In thousands) . 003 . 2002, 2011
Operating Activities
Net income ©S . 260961 $_ - '269)329 § 256,343
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities: | S - -
Eamings of consolidated subsidiaries, net of dividends (62,815) .(34,467) _(74,260)
Other adjustments, net , . ‘ 7 . ('955) S (1078) . . (1,144)
Net cash provided by operating activities . : - g - 197,191. 227,784 180,939
Investing Activities - ‘ i o ' ’
(Increase) decrease in securities purchased under agreements to resell (74,975) 50,400 {40,373)
Decrease in investment in subsidiaries, net o e 151 o L1193 T 1
Proceeds from sales of investment securities | B66 ‘346 —
Proceeds from maturities/pay downs of investment securities | ' , 13644, . 17,063 22,233
Purchases of investment securities . FE . . — - (2,000) -
Decrease in advances to subsidiaries, net 3,732 4,136 1,658
Net purchases of building improvements and equipment (402) l (92) (685)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities ' (56,984) 71,048 . {17,053)
Financing Activities
Purchases of treasury stock ‘ {69,353) (104,909} - (101;154)
Issuance under stock purchase and equity compensation plans ' 10,242 . 15,588 15,349
Net tax benefit related to equity compensation plans . . . 1,003 2,094 1,065,
Cash dividends paid on common stock . (82,104} (211,608) (79,140)
Net cash used in financing activities , . (140,212) (298,835) (163,880)
Increase (decrease) in cash (5) (3) 6
Cash at beginning of year 58 61 55
Cash at end of year $ 53 % 58 % 61
Income tax payments (receipts), net $ (6,933) $ 523 8§ (2,700}

Dividends paid by the Parent to its shareholders were substantially provided from Bank dividends. The Bank may distribute
dividends without prior regulatory approval, provided that the dividends do not exceed the sum of net income for the current year
and retained net income for the preceding two years, subject to maintenance of minimum capital requirements. The Parent charges
fees to its subsidiaries for management services provided, which are allocated to the subsidiaries based primarily on total average
assets, The Parent makes advances to non-banking subsidiaries and its subsidiary bank holding company. Advances are made to
the Parent by its subsidiary bank holding company for investment in temporary liquid securities. Interest on such advances is based
on market rates.

For the past several years, the Parent has maintained a $20.0 million line of credit for general corporate purposes with the
Bank. The line of credit is secured by investment securities. The Parent has not borrowed under this line during the past three
years.

At December 31, 2013, the fair value of available for sale investrment securities held by the Parent consisted of investments
of $37.2 million in common stock and $20.6 million in non-agency mortgage-backed securities. The Parent’s unrealized net gain
in fair value on its investments was $35.5 million at December 31, 2013, The corresponding net of tax unrealized gain included
in stockholders’ equity was $22.0 million. Also included in stockholders’ equity was an unrealized net of tax gain in fair value of
investment securities held by subsidiaries, which amounted to $3.5 million at December 31, 2013.
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Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND

FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

There were no changes in or disagreements with accountants on accounting and financial disclosure.

Item 9a. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Conclusion Regarding the Effec;tiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal
financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15
(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Based on this evaluation, our principal executive officer and our
principal financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered
by this annual report.

Management’s Report on Internal Control OQver Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such
term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Under the supervision and with the participation of our management,
including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (1992) issued by
the Committee of Spensoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on our evaluation under the framework in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework (1992), our management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting
was cffective as of December 31, 2013,

The Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2013 has been audited by KPMG LLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which follows.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

No change in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting occurred that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, such controls during the last quarter of the period covered by this report.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders _
Commerce Bancshares, Inc.: ‘ .-

We have audited Commerce Bancshares, Inc.'s (the Company) internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2013, based on criteria establishéd in Internal Control * Integrated Framework (1992)-issued by thé'Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in
the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion
on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Compény Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control
over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. OQur audit included obtaining an understanding of intemal control
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Qur audit also included performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed‘ to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in‘accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refléct the tfahsactidns and dispositions
of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accountmg pnnCIpIes and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

'

In our opinion, Commerce Bancshares, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2013, based on criteria established in fnternal Control - Integrated Framework (1992} issued by the Commiittee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), .
the consolidated balance sheets of the Company as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statements of
income, comprehensive income, cash flows, and changes in equity for each of the years in the three-year period ended December
31, 2013, and our report dated February 24, 2014 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

KPre wr

Kansas City, Missouri
February 24, 2014
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Item 9b. OTHER INFORMATION

None

PART 111

Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by Items 401, 405 and 407(c)(3), (d)(4) and (d)(5) of Regulation S-K regarding executive officers
is included at the end of Part I of this Form 10-K under the caption “Executive Officers of the Registrant” and under the captions
“Proposal One - Election of the 2017 Class of Directors”, “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance”, “Audit
Committee Report”, “Committees of the Board - Audit Committee and Committee on Governance/Directors” in the definitive
proxy statement, which is incorporated herein by reference. '

The Company’s financial officer code of ethics for the chief executive officer and senior financial officers of the Company,
including the chief financiat officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions, is available
at www.commercebank.com. Amendments to, and waivers of, the code of ethics are posted on this Web site.

P

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by [tems 402 and 407(e)(4) and (e)(5) of Regulation S-K regarding executive compensation is included
under the captions “Compensation Discussion and Analysis”, “Executive Compensation”, *Director Compensation”,
“Compensation and Human Resources Committee Report”, and “Compensation and Human Resources Committee Interlocks and
Insider Participation” in the definitive proxy statement, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEF [CIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by Items 201(d) and 403 of Regulation S-K is included under the captions “Equity Compensation
Plan Information” and “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” in the definitive proxy statement,
which is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information required by ltems 404 and 407(a) of Regulation S-K is covered under the captions “Proposal One - Election
of the 2017 Class of Directors” and “Corporate Governance” in the definitive proxy statement, which i is incorporated herein by
reference.

Item 14. PRINCIPALACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Item 9{e) of Schedule 14A is included under the captions “Pre-approval of Services by the External
Auditor” and “Fees Paid to KPMG LLP” in the definitive proxy statement, which is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15. 'EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES : : ToT

AV . e ‘ ' e I

(a) The following documents are filed as a part of this report:

Page

.- n F1nanc1al Statements -

"Consolidated Balance Sheets 55

Consolidated Statéments of Income 56

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 57

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 58
) Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity .., 58

Notes to Consohdated Financial Statements ‘ 60

Summary of Quarterly Statements of Income 49

(2) - Financial'Statement Schedules:
All schedules are omitted as such information is inapplicable or is included in the financial
statements.

(b) The exhlblts filed as part of this repert and exhibits mcorporated herein by reference to other documents are listed
in the Index'to Exhlblts (pages E-1 through E-2).
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13°or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized this 24th day of February 2014,

- COMMERCE BANCSHARES, INC.

, By: /s/ TROMAS J. NOACK
i Thomas J. Noack

, Vice President and Secretary

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Actof 1934, th:s report has been signed below by the following persons
on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated on the 24th day of February 2014.

By: /s/ CHARLES G. KIM
Charles G. Kim
Chief Financial Officer

By: /s/ JEFFERY D. ABERDEEN
_ Jeffery D. Aberdeen .
. Controller
(Chief Accounting Officer)

David W. Kemper

{Chief Executive Officer)
Terry D. Bassham
John R. Capps |
Earl H. Devanny, III
W. Thomas Grant, 11
James B. Hebenstreit ‘
Jonathan M. Kemper . > A majority of the Board of Directors*
Terry O. Meek ‘
Benjamin F. Rassieur, III
Todd R. Schnuck ;
Andrew C. Taylor
Kimberly G. Walker '

/

* David W. Kemper, Director and Chief Executive Officer, and the other Directors of Registrant listed, executed a power of
attorney authorizing Thomas J. Noack, their attorney-in-fact, to sign this report on their behalf.
|

: By: /s/ THOMAS J. NOACK

Thomas J. Noack
Attorney-in-Fact
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

3 —Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws: e

(a) Restated Articles of Incorporation, as amended, were filed in quanefly report on Form 10-Q (Commission file
number 0-2989) dated August 10, 1999, and the same are hereby incorporated by reference. . ‘

(b) Restated By-Laws, as amended, were f’lled in current report on Form 8-K (Commission file number 0-2989)
dated February 14, 2013, and the same are hereby incorporated by reference. '

4 — Instruments defining the rights of security holders, including indentures:

(a) Pursuant to paragraph (b)(4)(iii) of Item 601 Regf;lation $-K, Registrant will furnish to the Commission upon
request copies of long-term debt instruments. .

10 — Material Contracts (Fach of the following is a management contract or compensatory plan arrangement);

(a) Commerce Bancshares, Inc. Executive Incentive Compensation Plan amended and restated as of January 1,
2009 was filed in quarterly report on Form 10-Q (Commission file number 0-2989) dated August 7, 2009, and
the same is hereby incorporated by reference. .

{b)(1) Commerce Bancshares, Inc. 1987 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan amended and restated as of July 24,
2009 was filed in quarterly report on Form 10-Q (Commission file number 0-2989) dated August 7, 2009, and
the same is hereby incorporated by reference. oL -

{b)}(2) An amendment to the Commerce Bancs‘h-areé-,' fnc. 1987 Nbrf-Quéliﬁed Stoclc'.Opti_on Pian was filed in
current report on Form 8-K (Commission file number 0-2989) dated February 16, 2012, and the same is hereby
incorporated by reference.

(c) Commerce Bancshares, Inc. Stock Purchase Plan for Non-Employee Directors amended and restated as of
April 17,2013 was filed in current report on Form 8-K (Commission file number 0-2989) dated April 23, 2013,
and the same is hereby incorporated by reference.

(d)(1) Commerce Bancshares, Inc. 1996 Incentive Stock Option Plan amended and restated as of April 2001 was
filed in quarterly report on Form 10-Q (Commission file number 0-2989) dated May 8, 2001, and the same is
hereby incorporated by reference.

(d)(2) An amendment to the Commerce Bancshares, Inc. 1996 Incentive Stock Option Plan was filed in current
report on Form 8-K (Commission file number 0-2989) dated February 16, 2012, and the same is hereby
incorporated by reference. -

(e) Commerce Executive Retirement Plan amended and restated as of January 28, 2011 was filed in annual report
on Form 10-K (Commission file number 0-2989) dated February 25, 2011, and the same is hereby incorporated
by reference.

(fy Commerce Bancshares, Inc. Restricted Stock Plan amended and restated as of July 24, 2009 was filed in
quarterly report on Form 10-Q (Commission file number 0-2989) dated August 7, 2009, and the same is hereby
incorporated by reference.

(g) Form of Severance Agreement between Commerce Bancshares, Inc. and certain of its executive officers
entered into as of October 4, 1996 was filed in quarterly report on Form 10-Q (Commission file number 0-2989)
dated November 8, 1996, and the same is hereby incorporated by reference.

(h) Trust Agreement for the Commerce Bancshares, Inc. Executive Incentive Compensation Plan amended and
restated as of January 1, 2001 was filed in quarterly report on Form 10-Q (Commission file number 0-2989)
dated May 8, 2001, and the same is hereby incorporated by reference.

(i) Commerce Bancshares, Inc. 2014 Compensatory Arrangements with CEQ and Named Executive Officers
were filed in current report on Form 8-K (Commission file number 0-2989) dated January 30, 2014, and the
same is hereby incorporated by reference.

(J) Commerce Bancshares, Inc. 2005 Equity Incentive Plan amended and restated as of April 17, 2013 was filed
in current report on Form 8-K (Commission file number 0-2989) dated April 23, 2013, and the same is hereby
incorporated by reference.

(k) Commerce Bancshares, Inc. Notice of Grant of Stock Options and Option Agreement was filed in quarterly
report on Form 10-Q (Commission file number 0-2989) dated August 5, 2005, and the same is hereby
incorporated by reference.

(1) Commerce Bancshares, Inc. Restricted Stock Award Agreement, pursuant to the Restricted Stock Plan, was
filed in quarterly report on Form 10-Q (Commission file number 0-2989) dated August 5, 2005, and the same is
hereby incorporated by reference.
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(m) Commerce Bancshares, Inc. Stock Appreciation Rights Agreement and Commerce Bancshares, Inc.
Restricted Stock Award Agreement, pursuant to the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan, were filed in current report on
Form 8-K (Commission file number 0-2989) dated February 23, 2006, and the same are hereby incorporated by
reference. '

(n) Commerce Bancshares, Inc. Stock Appreciation Rights Agreement and Commerce Bancshares, Inc.
Restricted Stock Award Agreements, pursuant to the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan, were filed in quarterly report on
Form 10-Q {Commission file number 0-2989) dated May 6, 2013, and the same are hereby incorporated by

reference. .

21 — Subsidiaries of the Registrant .

23 — Consc?nt of Independent Registered Public Acc_ounting Firm

24 — Power of Attorney

31.1 — Certification of CEO pursuart to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2 -— Certification of CFO pursuant to Section'302 of the Sarbanesfoxley Act of 2002

32 — Certifications of CEOQ and CFO pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

101.— Interactive data files pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T: (i) the Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) the
Consolidated Statements of Income, (iii} the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income, (iv) the Consolidated
Statements of Changes in Equity, (v) the Consolidated Statemenits of Cash Flows and (vi) the Notes to Consolidated Financial

N il

Statements, tagged as blocks of text and in detail
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The consolidated subsidiaries of the Registrant at February 1, 2014 were as follows:

Exhibit 21

State or Otherr

T Jurlsdlcnnn ol'

Name Location Incorporation
CBIl-Kansas, Inc. . ... ..... e e M ... .1, Kansas C:ty, MO » Kansas Y
Commerce Bank. . ................ PRI Ll RPN ....... Kansas Cny, MO “Missouri |
Commerce Brokerage Services, lnc. S5 ‘ [T S b e ..... Clayton MO M:ssoun .
Clayton Holdings, LLC ............0 . ... .. N e AR e Kansas Clty, MO M:ssoun .
. ., Clayton Financial Corp. .......... R ez e e e Clayton MO M:ssoun N
. Clayton Realty Corp.. . ... S I Wit b Clayton MO Missouri
Hlinois Financial, LLC. .. .. ... ... . . Peoria, IL Delaware -
IMinois Realty, LLC . ... ... Peoria, IL Delaware
Commerce Insurance Services, Inc.. .................oir i Fenton, MO Missouri
Commerce Investment Advisors, Inc. .............. e Kansas City, MO Missouri. , ,
Commerce Mortgage Corp. ... ... ..o Kansas City, MO Missouri , ¢,
CBI Equipment Finance, Inc.. . .............. .... P Kansas City, MO Missouri
Mid-Am Acquisition, LLC. ........ ... .0 Clayton, MO Missouri
Tower Redevelopment Corporation. . ............ ... .ccoiuiroea i, Kansas City, MO Missouri
CBILInsurance COMPAny ... .........oiut it Kansas City, MO  Arizona
CFB Partners IL LLC . ... o Kansas City, MO Missouri
CFBPartners, LLC ... ... .. . Clayton, MO Delaware
CFBVenture Fund L Inc. ... . o Kansas City, MO Missouri
CFB Venture Fund, L.P... ... ... Clayton, MO Delaware
CFB Venture Fund 1L, L.P_ . ... .. . . Kansas City, MO Missouri
Capital for Business, Inc.. . ... ... Kansas City, MO  Missouri




Exhibit 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC'ACCOUNTING FIRM
1

The Board of Directors

Commerce Bancshares, [nc.: .
: |

We consent to the incorperation |by reference in the Registration Statements No. 33-28294, No. 33-82692, No. 33-8075, No.
33-78344,No. 33-61499, No. 33-61501,No. 333-14651, No. 333-186867, and No. 333-188374, each on Form S-&, No.333-140221
on Form S-3ASR, and No. 333- 140475 and No. 333-189535 on Form S-4 of Commerce Bancshares, Inc. of our reports dated
February 24, 2014, with respect to the consolidated balance sheets of Commerce Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December
31,2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, cash flows, and changes in equity
for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2013, and the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2013, which reports appear in the December 31, 2013 annual report on Form 10-K of Commerce

Bancshares, Inc.
KPMG LLP

Kansas City, Missouri
February 24, 2014




Exhibit 24

POWER OF ATTORNEY |

KNOWALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned do hereby appoint Thomas j.Noackand] effery D. Aberdeen,
or either of them, attorney for the undersigned to sign the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Commerce Bancshares, Inc., for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, together with any and all amendments which might be required. from time to time with
respect thereto, to be filed with the Securities and Exchangc Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of l934 with respect
to Commerce Bancshares, Inc.,-with full power and authority in either of said attorneys to.do and perform in the name of and on
behalf of the undersigned every act whatsoever necessary or desirable to be done in the premises as fully and to all mtems and
purposes as the undersigned might or could do in person. s P T

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed these presents as of this 3 1st day of Janualy,‘Z.O'M.' .

oy

/s/ TERRY D. BASSHAM
/s/ JOHN R. CAPPS

/s/ EARL H. DEVANNY, IIl
/s/ W. THOMAS GRANT, II R
/s/ JAMES B. HEBENSTREIT SR
Isi DA"VIID W. KEMPER .. ',,  R .
/s/JONATHANM KEMPER ' )

s/ TERRY O. MEEK eﬂ EEEE
/s/ BENJAMIN E. RA_slelgR, m o o
/s/ TODDR. SCANUCK "'

e '/s/ANDREWC TAYLOR . - e

& ’ 1
£ . L verlL e,

/s/ KIMBERLY G. WALKER S



R . Exhibit 31.1

Lo CERTIFICATION

a ST e L o ' : '

i
I DaVIdW Kemper certlfy;that . ‘ o . : .

" L
N

l I'have rev1ewed thrs annual report on Form 10—]( of Commerce Bancshares, Inc

© iy S .oy ’ Vo

2 Based onmy- know]edge thrs report does not contain any untrue statement of a matenal fact or omit to state a materlal fact
necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in
all material respects the findncial condmon results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented
in this report;

TR SRS S

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and lSd lS(ﬂ) for the regrstrant and we have:

(a) Designed such dlsclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to.us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is
being prepared,

3

(b} Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial smteants for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

e, .

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the reglstram s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our

conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report

based on such evaluation; and

. NI P Y o S . . . .
{(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during
the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrstrant s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably hkely to matenally affect the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other cemfymg officer and-I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s audltors and the aud:t committee of the registrant’s board of directors {or persons performing
the equivalent functions): NERTAN :

(a) All significant deﬁciencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and

{b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

' /s/ DAVID W. KEMPER

‘ David W. Kemper
i Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

February 24, 2014

B




A Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Charles G. Kim, certify that: Totae

Teivn oo
-

1. [ have reviewed this annual feport on Form 10-K of Commerce Bancshares, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statemént of a material fact or omit to state a‘material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under whlch such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report; - , : v b

" i
3 Based on my knowledge, the fi nanmal statements and other financml mformahon included in this report, falrly present in
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented ‘

in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and' | are respbnsib]e'fér :éstablishing and maintaining digclosul_fe coﬁtrpls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢)) and internal control over financial repotting (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and we have:

_(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is
being prepared, )

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report
based on such evaluatior; and ) o oo

Vo ) ' R

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during
the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter {the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing
the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and

(b) An’fr fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ CHARLES G. KIM

Charles G. Kim i
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

February 24,2014




Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
ASADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Commerce Bancshares, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31,2013 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), we, David W. Kemper
and Charles G. Kim, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, respectively, of the Company, hereby certify, pursuant
to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of our knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly. presents, in all material respects, the ﬁnancnal condition and results of

operations of the Company. q

/s/ DAVID W. KEMPER

David W. Kemper
Chief Executive Officer

/s/ CHARLES G. KIM

' K ' . Charles G. Kim
: Chief Financial Officer

February 24, 2014

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.




Designed by Falk Harrlsen, St. Louts, Missour

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS
1000 Walnut

P.0.Box 419248

Kansas City, MO 64141-6248
(816) 234-2000
www.commercebank.com

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS
KPMG LLP
Kansas City, Missouri

TRANSFER AGENT, REGISTRAR

AND DIVIDEND DISBURSING AGENT
Computershare Trust Company, N.A.
P.0. Box 43078

Providence, Ri 02940-3078

(800) 317-4445

(800) 952-9245 Hearing Impaired/TDD
www.computershare.com/investor

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING
NASDAQ
Symbol: CBSH

COMMON STOCK INFORMATION

The table below sets forth the high and the low prices of
actual transactions for the Company’s common stock, which
is publicly traded on the NASDAQ Stock Market, adjusted for
the December 2013 5% stock dividend.

FISCAL 2013 HIGH Low
First Quarter $38.94 $33.71
Second Quarter 42.50 36.63
Third Quarter 45.26 40.04
Fourth Quarter 45.77 40.80

ANNUAL MEETING

The annual meeting of shareholders will be held Wednesday,
Aprit 16, 2014 at 9:30 a.m., at The Ritz Carlton - St. Louis,
100 Carondelet Plaza, Clayton, MO 63105 in the Amphithe-
ater on level two.

INVESTOR INQUIRIES
Shareholders, analysts and investors seeking information
about the Company should direct their inquiries to:

Jeffery 0. Aberdeen, Controller
1000 Walnut

P.0O. Box 419248

Kansas City, MO 64141-6248
(800) 892-7100
mymoney@commercebank.com

SHAREHOLDERS MAY RECEIVE FUTURE

ANNUAL REPORTS AND PROXY MATERIALS

OVER THE INTERNET

To take advantage of the opportunity to receive materials
electronically, rather than by mail, individuals who hotd
stock in their name may enroll for electronic delivery at
Computershare’s investor website https:/fwww.computershare.
com/us/investor.

+ |If you have already created a log in 1D and password at the
above site, just login and follow the prompts to “Enrollin
Electronic Delivery.”

+ |f you have not created a login ID and password on the
above site, choose “Create Login.” You will need the Social
Security number or tax ID number associated with your
Commerce stock account to create the login. After you
have created your login, follow the prompts to “Enroll in
Electronic Delivery.”

Please note:
* Your consent is entirety revocable.

* You can always vote your proxy on the Internet whether
or not you elect to receive your materials electronically.

Shareholders who hold their Commerce stock through a
bank, broker or other holder of record should refer to the
information provided by that entity for instructions on how to
elect to view future annual reports and proxy statements over
the Internet,

Employee PIP (401(k)) shareholders who have a Company
email address and online access, will automatically be
enrolled to receive the Annual Report, Proxy Statement

and proxy ¢ard over the Internet unless they choose to opt
out by emailing the Corporate Secretary at thomas.noack@
commercebank.com.
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